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No. 1
STATEMENT OF CLAIM (AMENDED) (ANNEXURES "A", "B", "C" AND "D" 

ARE NOT REPRODUCED).
AMENDED STATEMENT OF CLAIM

1. The plaintiff and each of the defendants (other than Gavin Hosking) are 
companies duly incorporated.

2. In or about August, 1969 a firm carrying on business under the name Patrick 
& Co. borrowed the sum of $1,500,000.00 from the fourth defendant for the purpose 
and with the intention of lending the same sum of money to the second defendant. 

10 3. It was a term and condition of the loan from the fourth defendant to Patrick & 
Co., that repayment thereof be secured by means of an irrevocable letter of credit 
established by an Australian Bank in favour of the fourth defendant in the sum of 
$1,500,000.00

4. On or about 15th August, 1969 Patrick & Co., requested the plaintiff to 
establish an irrevocable letter of credit in favour of the fourth defendant in the sum of 
$1,500,000.00

5. On or about 15th August, 1969 it was agreed by and between Patrick & Co. 
and the plaintiff that in consideration that the plaintiff would establish the letter of 
credit referred to in paragraph 4 hereof: 

20 (a) The plaintiff would receive as security for its contingent liability under
the letter of credit in favour of the fourth defendant an irrevocable letter
of credit established by the third defendant in the sum of $1,500,000.00.

(b) In the event that the fourth defendant drew on the letter of credit
established by the plaintiff:

(i) Patrick & Co. would immediately lodge with the plaintiff a draft 
and accompanying documents in terms of the letter of credit 
established by the third defendant for an amount not less than that 
required to meet the amount drawn by the fourth defendant under 
the letter of credit established by the plaintiff.

30 (ii) Patrick & Co., would do all things necessary to permit the plaintiff
to draw upon the letter of credit established by the third defendant, 

(iii) Patrick & Co. and the second defendant would not do anything 
which would prevent the plaintiff drawing upon the said letter of 
credit, or which would otherwise render valueless to the plaintiff 
the security referred to in paragraph 5(a) hereof, or the agreement 
referred to in paragraph 5(b)(i) and (ii) hereof.

6. Alternatively to paragraph 5 hereof, on or about 15th August, 1969 it was 
agreed between Patrick & Co. the plaintiff the second defendant and the third 
defendant that in consideration that the plaintiff would establish the letter of credit 

40 referred to in paragraph 4 hereof:
(a) The plaintiff would receive as security for its contingent liability under 

the letter of credit in favour of the fourth defendant an irrevocable letter 
of credit established by the third defendant in the sum of $1,500,000.00.

(b) In the event that the fourth defendant drew on the letter of credit 
established by the plaintiff:

(i) Patrick & Co. would immediately lodge with the plaintiff a draft
and accompanying documents in terms of the letter of credit
established by the third defendant for an amount not less than that
required to meet the amount drawn by the fourth defendant under

50 the letter of credit established by the plaintiff.

In the Supreme 
Court of New 
South Wales 

Common Law
Division

Commercial
List

No.

Statement of 
Claim
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(ii) Patrick & Co. would do all things necessary to permit the plaintiff 
to draw upon the letter of credit established by the third defendant.

(iii) Patrick & Co. and the second defendant would not do anything 
which would prevent the plaintiff drawing upon the said letter of 
credit, or which would otherwise render valueless to the plaintiff 
the security referred to in paragraph 6 (a) hereof, or the agreement 
referred to in paragraph d(b)(i) and (ii) hereof.

7. (a) Alternatively to paragraphs 5 and 6 hereof, on or about 15th August, 
1969 Patrick & Co. and the plaintiff entered into the agreement referred 
to in paragraph 5 hereof. 10

(b) On or about 15th August, 1969 the second defendant and the third 
defendant knew that on or about 15th August, 1969 Patrick & Co. and 
the plaintiff had entered into the agreement referred to in paragraph 5 
hereof.

(c) On or about 15th August, 1969 the plaintiff, the second defendant and 
the third defendant agreed that neither Patrick & Co. nor the second 
defendant would do anything which would prevent the plaintiff drawing 
upon the said letter of credit established by the third defendant, or which 
would otherwise render valueless to the plaintiff the security referred to in 
paragraph 5(a) hereof, or the agreement referred to in paragraph 5(b) 20 
(i) and (ii) hereof.

(d) Alternatively to (c) on or about 15th August, 1969 Patrick & Co. the 
second defendant and the third defendant knew that the plaintiff in 
agreeing to establish the letter of credit referred to in paragraph 4 hereof 
was acting on the faith or understanding of the matters referred to in 
paragraph (c) hereof.

8. On or about 15th August, 1969: 
(a) The plaintiff established a letter of credit in the form of annexure "A".
(b) The third defendant established a letter of credit in the form of annexure"B". 30
(c) The fourth defendant lent the sum of $1,500,000.00 to Patrick & Co.
(d) Patrick & Co. lent the sum of $1,500,000.00 to the second defendant.

9. On or about 14th August, 1973 the loans referred to in paragraphs 8(c) and 
(d) hereof were repaid by Patrick & Co. (then known as Patrick Partners) and the 
second defendant.

10. Prior to 15th August, 1973 the first defendant commenced to carry on part 
of the business formerly conducted by Patrick & Co.

11. On or about 15th August, 1973 the first defendant borrowed the sum of 
$1,500,000.00 from the fourth defendant for the purpose and with the intention of 
lending the same sum of money to the second defendant. 40

12. It was a term and condition of the loan from the fourth defendant that repay­ 
ment thereof be secured by means of an irrevocable letter of credit established by an 
Australian Bank in favour of the fourth defendant in the sum of $1,500,000.00.

13. On or about 15th August, 1973 the first defendant requested the plaintiff to 
establish an irrevocable letter of credit in favour of the fourth defendant in the sum of 
$1,500,000.00.

14. On or about 15th August, 1973 it was agreed by and between the 
first defendant and the plaintiff that in consideration that the plaintiff would establish 
the letter of credit referred to in paragraph 13 hereof: 

(a) The plaintiff would receive as security for its contingent liability under 50 
the letter of credit in favour of the fourth defendant an irrevocable letter



of credit established by the third defendant in the sum of $1,500,000.00. 
(b) In the event that the fourth defendant drew on the letter of credit 

established by the plaintiff: 
(i) The first defendant would immediately lodge with the plaintiff

draft and accompanying documents in terms of the letter of credit
established by the third defendant for an amount not less than that
required to meet the amount drawn by the fourth defendant
under the letter of credit established by the plaintiff.

(ii) The first defendant would do all things necessary to permit the
10 plaintiff to draw upon the letter of credit established by the third

defendant.
(iii) The first defendant and the second defendant would not do any­ 

thing which would prevent the plaintiff drawing upon the said letter 
of credit, or which would otherwise render valueless to the plaintiff 
the security referred to in paragraph 14(a) hereof, or the agree­ 
ments referred to in paragraph 14(b) (i) and (ii) hereof.

15. Alternatively to paragraph 14 hereof, on or about 15th August, 1973 it was 
agreed between the plaintiff and the first, second and third defendants that in 
consideration that the plaintiff would establish the letter of credit referred to in para- 

20 graph 13 hereof: 
(a) The plaintiff would receive as security for its contingent liability under 

the letter of credit in favour of the fourth defendant an irrevocable letter 
of credit established by the third defendant in the sum of $1,500,000.00.

(b) In the event that the fourth defendant drew on the letter of credit 
established by the plaintiff: 

(i) The first defendant would immediately lodge with the plaintiff a
draft and accompanying documents in terms of the letter of credit
established by the third defendant for an amount not less than that
required to meet the amount drawn by the fourth defendant under

30 the letter of credit established by the plaintiff.
(ii) The first defendant would do all things necessary to permit the 

plaintiff to draw upon the letter of credit established by the third 
defendant.

(iii) The first defendant and the second defendant would not do any­ 
thing which would prevent the plaintiff drawing upon the said letter 
of credit, or which would otherwise render valueless to the plaintiff 
the security referred to in paragraph 15(a) hereof, or the agree­ 
ment referred to in paragraph 75(b)(i) and (ii) hereof.

16. (a) Alternatively to paragraphs 14 and 15 hereof, on or about the 15th 
40 August, 1973 the first defendant and the plaintiff entered into the agree­ 

ment referred to in paragraph 14 hereof.
(b) On or about 15th August, 1973 the second defendant and the third 

defendant knew what on or about 15th August, 1973 the first defendant 
and the plaintiff had entered into the agreement referred to in paragraph 
14 hereof.

(c) On or about the 15th August, 1973 the plaintiff, second defendant and 
the third defendant agreed that neither the first defendant nor the second 
defendant would do anything which would prevent the plaintiff drawing 
upon the said letter of credit established by the third defendant, or which 

50 would otherwise render valueless to the plaintiff the security referred to 
in paragraph 14(a) hereof, or the agreement referred to in paragraph 
14(b)(i) and (ii) hereof.
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(d) Alternatively to (c) on or about 15th August, 1973 the first defendant 
the second defendant and the third defendant knew that the plaintiff in 
agreeing to establish the letter of credit referred to in paragraph 13 hereof 
was acting on the faith or understanding of the matters referred to in 
paragraph (c) hereof.

17. On or about 15th August, 1973:  
(a) The plaintiff established a letter of credit in the form of annexure "C".
(b) The third defendant issued a document in the form of annexure "D".
(c) The fourth defendant lent the the sum of $1,500,000.00 to the first

defendant. 10
(d) The first defendant lent the sum of $1,500,000.00 to the second 

defendant.
18. Each of the loans referred to in paragraph 17 hereof falls due for repayment 

on 14th August, 1975.
19. On or about 28th July the first defendant presented a petition to the Court 

seeking an order that it be wound up on the ground (inter alia) that it was insolvent.
20. Prior to the institution of these proceedings the first defendant informed the 

plaintiff and the other defendants that it would not repay the sum of $1,500,000.00 
or any part thereof to the fourth defendant on 14th August, 1975.

21. Prior to the institution of these proceedings the fourth defendant informed 20 
the plaintiff that in the event that the first defendant did not repay the sum 
of $1,500,000.00 or any part thereof to the fourth defendant on 14th August, 1975 
the fourth defendant intended to draw upon the letter of credit established by the 
plaintiff being annexure "C" hereto.

22. Prior to the institution of these proceedings the first defendant informed the 
plaintiff, that in the event that the fourth defendant drew upon the letter of credit 
established by the plaintiff being annexure "C" hereto it would not lodge with the 
plaintiff a draft or accompanying documents in terms of the letter of credit established 
by the third defendant for the amount required to meet the amount drawn by the 
fourth defendant under the letter of credit established by the plaintiff, or any amount. 30

23. The first defendant has denied that it is bound to do all things necessary to 
permit the plaintiff to draw upon the letter of credit established by the third defendant.

24. The second defendant has threatened to pay the sum of $1,500,000.00 to the 
first defendant and thereby prevent the plaintiff from drawing upon the said letter of 
credit.

25. The plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the matters alleged in 
paragraphs 2-17 hereof inclusive:  

(a) The first defendant assigned to the plaintiff the debt due by the second 
defendant to the first defendant.

(b) The plaintiff has a charge on the debt due by the second defendant to the 40 
first defendant to secure the plaintiff's contingent liability under the letter 
of credit referred to in paragraph 13 hereof.

(c) The second and third defendants have notice of the said charge and 
assignment.

26. Alternatively to paragraphs 2-25 hereof inclusive on or about 15th August, 
1969 Patrick & Co. acting as agent for the fourth defendant and/or the second 
defendant procured the fourth defendant to lend the sum of $1,500,000.00 to the 
second defendant.

27. On or about 15th August, 1969 the plaintiff established a letter of credit in 
the form of annexure "A" hereto for the purpose of securing repayment of the said 50 
loan from the second defendant to the fourth defendant.



28. On or about 14th August, 1973 Patrick & Co. (then known as Patrick 
Partners) acting as agent for the fourth defendant and/or the second defendant caused 
the said loan to be repaid.

29. On or about 15th August, 1973 the first defendant acting as agent for the 
fourth defendant and/or the second defendant procured the fourth defendant to lend 
the sum of $1,500,000.00 to the second defendant.

30. On or about 15th August, 1973 the plaintiff established a letter of credit in 
the form of annexure "B" hereto for the purpose of securing repayment of the said 
loan from the second defendant to the fourth defendant. 

10 31. The said loan falls due for repayment on 14th of August, 1975.
32. On or about the 28th July 1975 the first defendant presented a petition to the 

Court seeking an order that it be wound up on the ground (inter alia) that it was 
insolvent.

33. Prior to the institution of these proceedings the first defendant informed the 
plaintiff and the other defendants that it would not repay the sum of $ 1,500,000.00 
or any part thereof to the fourth defendant on 14th August, 1975.

34. Prior to the institution of these proceedings the fourth defendant informed
the plaintiff that in the event that the first defendant did not repay the sum of
$1,500,000.00 or any part thereof to the fourth defendant on 14th August, 1975 the

20 fourth defendant intended to draw upon the letter of credit established by the plaintiff
being annexure "C" hereto,

35. On or about the 26th day of July 1975 Gavin Hosking was appointed 
provisional liquidator of the first defendant.

36. It would be unjust and inequitable for Gavin Hosking as such provisional 
liquidator to cause or permit the first defendant to receive payment of the sum of 
$1,500,000.00 from the second defendant without paying the said sum to the plaintiff.

The plaintiff claims:
1. A declaration that the first defendants are bound in the event that there is a 

drawing on the plaintiff's letter of credit No. LD1436 in favour of State Electricity 
30 Commission of Victoria to execute and deliver to the plaintiff a draft accompanied 

by such other documents as are necessary to enable the plaintiff to draw on the third 
defendant's letter of credit No. SI 1085 as amended in the manner indicated in a letter 
dated the 15th August, 1973 from the third defendant to the first defendants.

2. An order that the first defendants be restrained from receiving payment of or 
collecting $1,500,000.00 from the second defendant or from taking any step or 
participating in any action that would interfere with the drawing by the plaintiff on the 
third defendant's letter of credit No. SI 1085 as amended.

3. A declaration that in the event that the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria draws on the plaintiff's letter of credit No. LD1436 the plaintiff will be en- 

40 titled to receive payment of the second defendant's debt to the first defendants.
4. Alternatively to 3, a declaration that the plaintiff has a charge over 

$1,500,000.00 to secure any moneys that may become owing to it by the first 
defendants as a result of any drawing on the plaintiff's letter of credit No. LD1436.

5. An order that the second defendant be restrained from paying $1,500,000.00 
to the first defendants.

6. An order that the third defendant pay to the plaintiff the amount which the 
plaintiff pays to the State Electricity Commission of Victoria under the plaintiff's 
letter of credit No. LD1436.

7. Alternatively to 6, an order that the second defendant pay to the plaintiff the 
50 amount which the plaintiff pays to the State Electricity Commission of Victoria under 

the plaintiff's letter of credit No. LD1436.
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8. Costs.
To the Defendants:

Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited, Patrick House, 5 Gresham Street,
Sydney.
Gavin Hosking, C/- Price Waterhouse & Co., Royal Exchange Building,
Gresham Street, Sydney.
First Leasing Australia Limited, C/- Flynn Borosh Chopin & Co., 155 King
Street, Sydney.
First National Bank of Boston, C/- Flynn Borosh Chopin & Co., 155 King
Street, Sydney.
State Electricity Commission of Victoria, C/- Vindin & Littlejohn, 49 York
Street, Sydney.

You are liable to suffer judgment or an order against you unless the prescribed form 
of notice of your appearance is received in the Registry within fourteen (14) days 
after service of this Statement of Claim upon you and you comply with the rules of 
court relating to your defence.

Plaintiff: The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited, 343 George 
Street, Sydney.

Solicitor: Peter Robert Everett, C/- Dibbs, Crowther & Osborne, 16 Barrack 
Street, Sydney.

Plaintiff's Address for Service: C/- Dibbs, Crowther & Osborne, 16 Barrack 
Street, Sydney.

Address of Registry: Common Law Office, Cnr. King & Elizabeth Streets, 
Sydney.

Filed:
Solicitor for the Plaintiff

10

20



No. 2 
STATEMENT OF DEFENCE OF THE FIRST DEFENDANTS.

Statement of Defence of the First Defendants
1. The first defendants admit the facts alleged in paragraphs 1, 3, 4, 8, 9, 10, 

12, 13, 17, 18, 19, 23, 32 and 35 of the Amended Statement of Claim.
2. The first defendants do not admit the facts alleged in paragraphs 5, 6, 7, 14, 

15, 16, 21, 24, 26, 28 and 34 of the Amended Statement of Claim or any of them.
3. In answer to paragraph 2 of the Amended Statement of Claim the first 

defendants admit that in or about August 1969 a firm carrying on business under 
10 the name Patrick & Co. borrowed the sum of $ 1,500,000.00 from the fourth defendant 

with the intention of lending an equivalent sum of money to the second defendant. 
Save as aforesaid the first defendants do not admit the facts alleged in the said 
paragraph.

4. In answer to paragraph 11 of the Amended Statement of Claim the first 
defendants admit that on or about 15th August 1975 the first defendant borrowed the 
sum of $1,500,000.00 from the fourth defendant with the intention of lending an 
equivalent sum of money to the second defendant. Save as aforesaid the first defendants 
do not admit the facts alleged in the said paragraph.

5. In answer to paragraph 20 of the Amended Statement of Claim the first
20 defendants admit that prior to the institution of the proceedings it informed the

fourth defendant that it could not repay to the fourth defendant the sum of
$1,500,000.00 or any part thereof on 14th August 1975 but save as aforesaid the
first defendants deny the facts alleged in the said paragraph.

6. In answer to paragraph 27 of the Amended Statement of Claim the first 
defendants admit that on or about 15th August 1969 the plaintiff established a letter 
of credit in the form of Annexure "A" to the Statement of Claim but save as aforesaid 
they do not admit the facts alleged in the said paragraph.

7. In answer to paragraph 30 of the Amended Statement of Claim the first 
defendants admit that on or about the 15th August 1973 the plaintiff established a 

30 letter of credit in the form of Annexure "B" to the Statement of Claim but save as 
aforesaid they deny the facts alleged in the said paragraph.

8. In answer to paragraph 33 of the Amended Statement of Claim the first 
defendants admit that prior to the institution of the proceedings it informed the fourth 
defendant that it could not repay to the defendant the sum of $1,500,000.00 or any 
part thereof on 14th August 1975 but save as aforesaid it denies the facts alleged in 
the said paragraph.

9. The first defendants deny the facts alleged in paragraphs 22, 25, 29, 31 and 
36 of the Amended Statement of Claim and each of them.

10. In further answer to paragraphs 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 
40 36 of the Amended Statement of Claim the first defendants say that the said 

paragraphs and each of them do not disclose any cause of action or entitlement to 
relief of the plaintiff against the first defendants.
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Filed: 1 Oct 1975 Solicitor for the First Defendants
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In the Common No. 3

onhe'supreme NOTICE TO ANSWER INTERROGATORIES ADDRESSED TO FIRST
Court of New DEFENDANTS.

NOTICE TO ANSWER INTERROGATORIES (P.I.A.L.)
List Within 7 days after service of this notice the first defendants are required to answer 

Nto~3 interrogatories numbered 1 to 4 and verify their answers:  
INTERROGATORIES 

1- On or prior to 16.8.1973 did any officer or employee of Patrick Intermarine
interrogatories Acceptances Ltd. inform any officer, employee or agent of the second defendant or

the third defendant:   10
(a) That Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited had agreed or arranged 

to borrow the sum of $1,500,000 from the fourth defendant for the 
purpose of lending an equivalent sum to the second defendant.

(b) That it was a term and condition of the loan from the fourth defendant 
to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited that repayment thereof be 
secured by means of an irrevocable letter of credit to be established by 
the plaintiff in favour of the fourth defendant. 

2. If the answer to 1 (a) or (b) is in the affirmative:  
(a) Who on behalf of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited gave the

information? 20
(b) To whom on behalf of the second or third defendant was the informa­ 

tion given?
(c) What was the information given?
(d) How was the information given?
3. On or prior to 16.8.1973 did any officer or employee of Patrick Intermarine 

Acceptances Limited inform any officer or employee or agent of the second defendant 
or third defendant:  

(a) That the plaintiff required Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited to 
provide security for the plaintiff's contingent liability under the said letter 
of credit. 30

(b) That Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited had agreed with the 
plaintiff to provide as security for the plaintiff's contingent liability under 
the said letter of credit a letter of credit established by the third 
defendant in the sum of $1,500,000.

(c) That Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited had agreed with the 
the plaintiff that in the event that the fourth defendant drew on the letter 
of credit to be established by the plaintiff, Patrick Intermarine Accept­ 
ances Limited would immediately lodge with the plaintiff a draft and 
accompanying documents in terms of letter of credit No. SI 1085 
established by the third defendant for an amount not less than that 40 
required to meet the amount drawn by the fourth defendant under the 
letter of credit established by the plaintiff. 

4. If the answer to 3 (a), (b) or (c) is in the Affirmative:  
(a) Who on behalf of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited gave the 

information?
(b) To whom on behalf of the second or third defendants was the information 

given?
(c) What was the information given?
(d) How was the information given?

................................................................................................ 50
Solicitor for the Plaintiff



No. 4 
FIRST DEFENDANT'S ANSWERS TOVERIFIES STATEMENT OF 

INTERROGATORIES.
VERIFIED STATEMENT OF FIRST DEFENDANTS IN ANSWER TO

INTERROGATORIES OF THE PLAINTIFF
The First Defendants, PATRICK-INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED 
and GAVIN JOHN HOSKING, answers the Plaintiff's Interrogatories specified in 
Notice filed on 19th December, 1975 as follows: 

1A. On or prior to 16.8.1973 did any officer or employee of Patrick Intermarine 
10 Acceptances Limited inform any officer, employee or agent of the second defendant 

or the third defendant: 
(a) That Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited had agreed to or 

arranged to borrow the sum of $1,500,000 from the fourth defendant 
for the purpose of lending an equivalent sum to the second defendant

1A. (a) No.
1A. (b) On or prior to 16.8.1973 did any officer or employee of Patrick Inter­ 

marine Acceptances Limited inform any officer, employee or agent of the 
second defendant or the third defendant: 

(b) That it was a term and condition of the loan from the fourth defendant 
20 to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited that repayment thereof be 

secured by means of an irrevocable letter of credit to be established by 
the plaintiff in favour of the fourth defendant. 

1A. (b) No. 
2A. If the answer to l(a) or (b) is in the affirmative:

(a) Who on behalf of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited gave the 
information?

(b) To whom on behalf of the second or third defendant was the information 
given?

(c) What was the information given? 
30 (d) How was the information given? 

2B. Not applicable.
3A. On or prior to 16.8.1973 did any officer or employee of Patrick Intermarine 

Acceptances Limited inform any officer or employee or agent of the second defendant 
or third defendant: 

(a) That the plaintiff required Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited to 
provide security for the plaintiff's contingent liability under the said letter 
of credit. 

3B. (a) No.
3A. (b) On or prior to 16.8.73 did any officer or employee of Patrick Intermarine 

40 Acceptance Limited inform any officer or employee or agent of the 
second defendant or third defendant;

(b) That Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited had agreed with the 
plaintiff to provide as security for the plaintiff's contingent liability under 
the said letter of credit a letter of credit established by the third defendant 
in the sum of $ 1,500,000.00.

3B. (b) No.
3A. (c) On or prior to 16.8.1973 did any officer or employee of Patrick Inter­ 

marine Acceptances Limited inform any officer or employee or agent of 
the second defendant or third defendant: 

50 (c) That Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances Limited had agreed with the 
plaintiff that in the event that the fourth defendant drew on the letter of
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credit to be established by the plaintiff, Patrick Intermarine Acceptances 
Limited would immediately lodge with the plaintiff a draft and 
accompanying documents in terms of letter of credit No. SI 1085 
established by the third defendant for an amount not less than that 
required to meet the amount drawn by the fourth defendant under the 
letter of credit established by the Plaintiff.

3B. (c) No.
4A. If the answer to 3(a), (b) or (c) is in the affirmative: 

(a) Who on behalf of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited gave the 
information?

(b) To whom on behalf of the second or third defendants was the informa­ 
tion given?

(c) What was the information given?
(d) How was the information given? 

4B. Not applicable.

Filed: 15th June 1976
Brian Thomas Wilson 

Solicitor for the First Defendants 
AFFIDAVIT

On 9th June 1976, I, GAVIN JOHN HOSKING of Care of Messrs. Price 
Waterhouse & Co., Chartered Accountants, Royal Exchange Building, Gresham Street, 
Sydney in the State of New South Wales, Chartered Accountant, say on oath: 

1. I am the Liquidator of Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances Limited (in 
liquidation).

2. The answers to Interrogatories numbers 1, 2, 3 and 4 are true to the best of 
my knowledge, information and belief based on my enquiries of officers of the 
company and others and upon other investigations made in respect of answering 
the Plaintiff's Interrogatories.
SWORN by the deponent at Sydney on the day first hereinbefore written. 
Before me:
B. W. Gollan J.P. (N.S.W.) Sgd. G. J. Hosking (Sgd.) 
A Justice of the Peace

10

20

30
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No. 5 

AFFIDAVIT OF NORMAN HARLEY BLACKET.
AFFIDAVIT

On 8th day of August, 1975, I NORMAN HARLEY BLACKET of 61 
Cremorne Road, Cremorne Point in the State of New South Wales, retired bank 
officer say on oath:

1.1 was at all material times an Assistant General Manager of the Commercial
Banking Company of Sydney Limited ("the Bank"), Prior to my appointment as an
Assistant General Manager on 29th of November, 1968 I was the Manager of the

10 Sydney Office of the Bank and in that capacity was immediately responsible for the
supervision of the account maintained by Patrick & Company with the Bank.

2. On or about 19th March, 1969 I received a telephone call from Mr. Tim 
Alien a partner of the firm of stockbrokers then known as Patrick & Co. Mr. Alien 
said to me, "We are considering a transaction under which $lm is to be borrowed 
from an Australian company and re-lent to another Australian company. The lending 
company is seeking security by way of a bank letter of credit in its favour. Would the 
Bank be prepared to issue a clean letter of credit in favour of the lending company? 
The Bank will receive by way of security a letter of credit in its favour from the First 
National Bank of Boston." Mr. Alien also asked, "What will be the Bank's charge for 

20 the issue of the letter of credit?" I said to Mr. Alien, "We will have a look at the matter 
on the basis of charging a fee at the rate ofi% per annum for the life of the facility." 
Mr. Alien said to me, "Would you consider it on the lowest possible rate as our charge 
is small and the completion of the transaction could depend on the fee charged by the 
Bank."

3. At some later time on 19th March, 1969 I phoned Mr. Alien. I said to Mr. 
Alien, "Further to our earlier conversation, the Bank will enter the commitment and 
the rate will be i% per annum and not i% per annum as earlier mentioned plus a 
charge of 0.15% of any negotiations under the letter of credit. Before the Bank issues 
the local letter of credit we will require that the letter of credit from the First National 

30 Bank of Boston is established in our favour and it will have to be in the nature of a 
"back-to-back" letter of credit." Mr. Alien said to me, "I will confer with your Inter­ 
national Department if the matter is to proceed."

4. Pursuant to my agreement with Mr. Alien the Bank issued a letter of credit in 
favour of State Electricity Commission of Victoria in the sum of $500,000.00 to 
expire on 8th April, 1970.

5. On or about 8th May, 1969 I received a telephone call from Mr. Tim Alien. 
He said to me, "We are considering a further transaction involving $1.5m which will 
be borrowed from an Australian organisation and lent to an Australian company and 
the lending organisation requires a security by way of a Bank letter of credit in its 

40 favour. Would the Bank establish the letter of credit required against a "back-to-back" 
letter of credit from the First National Bank of Boston? It would be for a term of four 
years." Mr. Alien also asked me, "What would the Bank's fee be?" I said to Mr. Alien, 
"The Bank will be prepared to enter into the commitment and its fee would be $2,500 
per annum during the currency of the credit plus 0.15% for any drawings made under 
the credit. We would require to see the terms of the backing credit and have it 
established prior to us issuing our letter of credit." Mr. Alien said "Yes, that will be 
all right."

6. Pursuant to my agreement with Mr. Alien the Bank issued a letter of credit 
in favour of State Electricity Commission of Victoria in the sum of $1,500,000.00 to 

50 expire on 15th May, 1973. 
Sworn at Sydney 
before me:

Justice of the Peace.
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AFFIDAVIT "C", "D' OF "E" ALAN
No. 6 

FREDERICK THOMPSON (ANNEXURES "A", "B", 
"G", "H", "K", "L" AND "M" ARE NOT REPRODUCED).

AFFIDAVIT
On the Sixth of August 1975 I ALAN FREDERICK THOMPSON of 89 Ray 

Road, Epping in the State of New South Wales a General Manager of The 
Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited say on oath:

1. I am a General Manager of The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney 
Limited (hereinafter called "the Bank").

2. Prior to the 14th August 1969 the firm carrying on business under the name 10 
of Patrick & Company were customers of the Bank.

3. On or about the 8th July 1970 the Bank was informed by Patrick & 
Company that on and after the 1st August 1970 the members of the firm carrying on 
business under the name of Patrick & Company would thereafter carry on that 
business under the name Patrick Partners.

4. Thereafter the firm carrying on business under the name Patrick Partners were 
customers of the Bank.

5. On or about the 15th October 1971 Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited 
established an account with the Bank and thereafter was a customer of the Bank.

6. On or about the 15th August 1969 the Bank issued a Letter of Credit No. 20 
LD973 in favour of State Electricity Commission of Victoria. Annexed hereto and 
marked "A" is a copy of the said Letter of Credit.

7. The said Letter of Credit was issued by the Bank pursuant to a request by 
Patrick & Company dated the 15th August 1969 a copy whereof is annexed hereto 
and marked "B".

8. Annexed hereto and marked with the letters indicated are copies of the follow­ 
ing documents, namely: 

"C" Advice of credit dated 14th August 1969 from the Bank to Patrick &
Company.
"D" Letter from the Bank to Patrick & Company. 30

9. Annexed hereto and marked "E" "F" and "G" respectively are copies of the 
following Telex messages, namely: 

"E" 13/8/69 from the Third Defendant to the Bank 
"F" 14/8/69 from the Bank to the Third Defendant 
"G" 14/8/69 from the Third Defendant to the Bank.

10. On or about the 19th August 1969 the Bank received from the Third 
Defendant a letter of Credit dated the 14th August 1969 No. SI 1085 a copy whereof 
is annexed and marked "H". The original of the said Letter of Credit is in 
the possession of the Bank.

11. Annexed hereto and marked "J" is a copy of an internal Minute prepared 40 
by Lyons Kerans, Chief Manager Corporate Services of the Bank, which Minute 
forms part of the Bank's file relating to Patrick & Company, Patrick Partners and 
Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited. Mr, Kerans is at present on holidays.

12. Annexed hereto and marked with the letters indicated are copies of the 
following documents, namely: 

"K" Request by Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited dated 14th August
1973.
"L" Letter of Credit dated 16th August 1973 issued by the Bank.
"M" Advice of amendment of Letter of Credit received from the Third
Defendant. 50
"N" Letter dated 16th August 1973 from the Bank to Patrick Intermarine
Acceptances Limited.
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"O" Letter dated 24th August 1973 from the Bank to Patrick Intermarine 
Acceptances Limited together with the Reserve Bank Exchange Control 
approval enclosed under cover of that letter.

13. On or about 30th July 1975 the Bank received from the State Electricity 
Commission of Victoria a letter a copy whereof is annexed and marked "P" together 
with the copy letter referred to therein.

14. Annexed hereto and marked with the letters indicated are copies of the
following letters: 

"Q" The Bank to the First Defendant dated the 30th July 1975 
"R" The Bank to the Second Defendant dated 31st July 1975 
"S" Clayton Utz & Company to the Bank dated 5th August 1975.

SWORN at Sydney
Before me:

In the Common
Law Division of

the Supreme
Court of New
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List
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Affidavit of
Alan 

Frederick 
Thompson

Justice of the Peace
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2'lth August, 1073.

The Manager,
Patrick-lntorruariiie Acceptances Limited,
G.P.O. Box 3P-79,
SYDNEY. 2001

Dear Sir,

We refer to our recent telephone ooricersations
oncerning the extension, until l^th August, 1975 oF an arrange­ 

ment under -which irrevocable letters of credit are established by 
the First National Bank of Boston and this Bank to secure a 
borrowing of $ 1, *5OO , OOP from the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria by Patr i clc-lri termarine Acceptances Limited for on-lending 
to First Leasing of Australia Limited, Melbourne.

We are pleased to confirm our Bank approval
to the facility which was renewed and completed on l6th August, 
1973.

Our commission fee( (is .23$° per annum payable
yearly in advance and arrangements have been made to charge your 
company's Sundry Charges account nt our Casllereagh A. Hunter Street 
Branch with tho initial $3,.7J)Q.

For your files wo enclose copy of the Reserve 
Bank of Australia Exchange Control approval.

We are pleased to be of service in this regard.

Yours faithfully,

L. D. H. K^RANS
L.D.H. Kerans 

Chief Manager Corporate Services

This is the Annexure marked "O" referred to in the Affidavit of Alan Frederick 
Thompson sworn the 6th day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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65 MARTIN PLACE

nOX 3947 UPO SYDNEY 2001

TELEPHONE 2 0327

RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA IH REPLY PLEASE QUOTE ECD. OB. 1C

15 August 1973

The Manager
The Commercial Banking Company

of Sydney Limited 
Box 2720 G.P.O. 
SYDNEY, N.S.W. 2001

Dear Sir,

EXCHANGE CONTROL 

We refer to your letter of 14 August 1973.

Authority under the Banking (Foreign Exchange) 
Regulations is given to the extension, until 15 August 1975, 
of arrangements under which guarantees given by The First 
National Bank of Boston, U.S.A., and your bank secure the 
borrowing of ^-Al, 500, 000 from the State Electricity 
Commission of Victoria by Patrick-Intermarine Acceptance 
Limited for on-lending to First Leasing of Australia 
Limited.

Yours faithfully,

For the Manager
Exchange Control Department

This is the annexure marked "O" referred to in the Affidavit of 
Sworn the day of 19 Before me:

A Justice of the Peace.
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8th August, 1973 Customer

dKANCII CORPORATE SERVICES
(Old 'lonnoction)

L/C fee at present 1/6ths% p.a 
Proposed .25$> P«a 
Interest Rate

Overdraft %
Line Fee t.75%
on unused portiori

Endorsement Fee____1.2%____

NAME 

ACTIVITY

DIRECTORS

PRESKNT 
POSITION

I'otal Bank Liabilities 
to include O/D Debt 
or limit whichever is 
the greater. T.I,, anj/ 
>>rhD.L., Hill Limit. 
Total Contingent 
Liabilities including 
lease finance.)

PROPOSED

SECURITY

(Summary 
olily

'lh
reference to\ 0 
associated buMiess]

DRAWBACKS^
(to include 

reference to hard 
core)

BENEFITS
(new accounts 

to be obtained & 
reference to credit 
funds & overseas 
exchange con ten tj

RECOMMENDA­ 
TION

PATHICK-INTKRMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED

(5O^o Patrick Corporation Ltd 50°/o Patrick-Intermarine (Aust) Ltd)
Money market operators.

M.R.L. Dowling (Chm) P. Davie, P. Grey, H. L. Johnson 
E. J. Roberts Secretary J. R. Lees

iQlaLJMUS $ Ierm_Loan $
Total Limits $ repayable $ p .a .

reducing by $ p.a.
Bill Endorsement Facility $ 1 million for bills of exchange 

accepted or endorsed by Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances -
bills outstanding $525,OOO

Letter of Credit (matched)- issued in favour of the State Electric- 
~^Victoria and expiring 'Total Bank Liabilities $1,001,276

(£»»«&*tfaTances ^arl .2*7^ Dr (Castlereagh & Hunter Sts Br. )

Total Limits $
reducing by $ p.a. repayable $ p.a.

Bill Endorsement Facility $1,OOO,000 - unchanged
"ftiat we issue a letter of credit in favour of the State

Electricity Commission of Victoria for $1,500,000 for 2
(rollover of existing facility) 

Contingent Liabilities S yi^ 300 , OOO * Total Bank Liabilities $?

years

5D1

Dill Endorseiiii
Matching letti^ of credit in our favour issued by the First 
National Bany of Boston for $A1,500,OOO for two years.

Fac ility   see attached

of ei^ting letter of credit in favour of the 
Electricity Commission of Victoria for |A1,500,OOO

05/^/73 and backed by a matching letter of credit from 
National Bank of Boston.

saction in respect of the maturing letter of credit 
red into in August, 1969 for a four-year term and was 

d on behalf of Patrick Partners who borrowed from the 
id onlent to First Leasing Australia Limited.

ric-K-Intermariiia i Acceptances Ltd commenced business in 
1971 and was/lestablished to conduct the money market

' I Vvities on behalf of its shareholder companies including 
"trick Pat-tnerfei The present request was received by 

,telephone vf pom Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances Ltd and has been 
confirt4<>n bytytelephone with First Leasing Australia. 

Bank of Australia approval is being obtained.

/ /'
r .

Our charge fan existing facility was 1/6th of
I^W.e consider the charge should now be a minimum of

- $2,50O p.a.
p.a.

Closer relationship with the Patrick-Intermarine and 
First National Bank of Boston Groups.

Recommended on the basis of .25% per annum return to this bank.

10/8/73 2.30 p.m. telephoned Pat. Int. (Accept.) Ltd. & confirmed our approval of .25% 
per annum Coy will come back if successful.

his is the Annexure marked "J" referred to in the Affidavit of Alan Frederick 
Thompson sworn the 6th day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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OVERSEAS 16th August, 1973, 
TCiGPF.

The Secretary,
Patrick Intermnrine Acceptances Ltd. ,
Patrick House,
5 Greshnm Street,
SIDNEY. N.S.W. 2UOO.

Dear Sir,

The First National Hank of Boston, Tloston, 
Irrevocable Credit in favour of Patrick Partners 
for $A1.500.000.__________ ___

We confirm our telephone conversation
of today, in which we advised having received cabled advice 
from The First National Hank of Boston, Boston, dated l4th 
instant amending the abovementloned Letter of Credit as 
follows:

"OUR L/C S-11085 FAVOUR PATRICK AND COMPANY ACCOUNT FIRST 
LEASING AUSTRALIA LTD VALIDITY EXTENDED TO AUGUST l*» 1975 
BENEFICIARY OF THIS CKEDIT IS NOW PATRICK INTEIlMAIt.TNE 
ACCEPTANCES LIMITED 128 EXHIBITION STRUCT MELOCUlliCE VICTORIA 
3000 ACCRUED INTEREST HAY HE NOW DRAWN AT A RATE NOT EXCEEDING 
8.7 PERCENT PEU ANNUM".

All other terms aod conditions of the 
credit remain unaltered.

Please attach this advice to the original 
advice of Credit dated 14th August, 196"9.

Yours faithfully,

T. G. Crisp

pro ._Maoaf.:er»

This is the Annexure marked "N" referred to in the Affidavit of Alan Frederick 
Thompson sworn the 6th day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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Ctu'/ 1 electricity Communion of Victoria

!•!»/ ','!<','•'• (',>'•'. I ;.<•• I! ••'.i-no .jii.'ll 
I':,"! :. , .. .', I ',()•!:',!

C:!lj'c.j f; l':!'.ij,'ci;)hic Acicroa'j: r-'oclroco."! Melbourne 

O'.pr ?)'•'. — •!.;•-•

mw 30 July 1975

The Manager
Melbourne Office
Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited
257 Collins Street
MELBOURNE 3000

Dear Sir

For your information attached is a copy of letter delivered to Patrick 
Intermarine Acceptances Limited regarding an investment arranged throng! 
that Company and secured by an irrevocable Letter of Credit issued by 
your Bank. (No LDU36 dated 16 August 1973.)

Failing the ability of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited to pay 
the maturing funds on the due date, the Commission will be seeking from 
your Bank such repayment under the terms of the said Letter of Credit.

Yours faithfully

F P ChTppcrfield 
SECRETARY

enc

ENQUIRIES: Mr H K Kruse
Telephone 615 2238

This is the Annexure marked "P" referred to in the Affidavit of Alan Frederick 
Thompson sworn the 6th day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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STATE ELECTRICITY COMMISSION OF VICTORIA 

COPY for.............QGM£E]^^^^

mw 30 July 1975

The Manager
Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd 
5th Floor
Pearl Assurance Duilding 
151 Queen Streat 

3000

Dear Sir

RE LOAN. OF $1.5M, 8.157. PER ANNUM, DUE 14 AUGUST 1975 
SECUuED BY BANK IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT

In regard to the above investment arranged by you 
on behalf of the Commission, and in view of the 
press reports relating to your Company, would you 
kindly advise forthwith what arrangements are in 
hand for the repayment of these funds and quarterly 
interest due on 14 August next.

Yours faithfully

F P Chipperfield 
SECRETARY

ENQUIRIES: Mr H K Kruse
Telephone 615 2238

This is the annexure marked "P" referred to in the Affidavit of A F Thompson 
Sworn the 6th day of August 1975 Before me:

A Justice of the Peace.
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Our rut: CM/KI:G 3Oth July, 1975.

The Prnvis i^p ~: 1 ! i TJ i do.tor ,
Board of Dir ;  :;;  nrs ,
Patri c!: Interrarinc Acceptances Limited,
5 Gresham otn. et,
SYrriF.Y, 2000.

Dear Sirs/

As you will bo aware the fixed advance by your Company to 
First Leasing Australia Limited of an amount of 1.5 million dollars 
Australian matures on the 14th August, next.

This Bank originally issued a 1otter of credit in favour of 
the Victorian Stjte t! lee t nci ty Commitsioners to secure an advance to your 
Company for the (.urpose of ther.e funds being on-lent to First Leasing 
against a letter of crodi t ir.oued in your favour by the First national 
Bank of i'oiitcn. Ui.j-jr th-.- torm^ of the arrangements between your Company 
and this L'ank in the event of drawings by the Victorian S.E.C. under the 
letter of credit <~-'-;tabl i r;hed by this Bank your Cone any was to lodge with 
the Bank draft; and all documentation necessary to entitle it to draw under 
the First National Bank's letter of credit.

The substance of the arrangement was, of course, th^ t we would
have the so cur ity of \.-<>>.\r Cor. pan/' r; loan to First l.^ac, i nq and the supporting 
letter of c rod it -md M-.at in the L-vent of default by Patrick Ir. r.c marine in 
payment of trio Vi ctr.r i,;:i :>. E .C. advance at r.itur i ty this B..mk would have 
recourse both. I^:.T i:ir;t 'ho borrov-T to w vicm the? funds wore on-lent and against 
the letter of cr-dit issued in your favour as security for the on-lending as 
the case might be.

Further, we have been advised that under your Company's
arrangements with thi  % Bank your Cc;r::any is urv^c-r a legal obligation not 
to do anything that would d'.-privf this i?ank of the bene f it of its security 
and, in pare icui;;r, riot to t-:irt icij ̂ to in any action that would render 
ineffective or valueless the letter of credit from First National Bank.

Sine*-; it ar,pears that there in a real likelihood, in fact a 
probabi lity that the S. L". C. will draw on our letter of cm di t, we must , 
in the ci rcunst .j^o  ::, r^qui re that with in 2''. hours Patrick In to marine 
Accept ances Limited undertake in writing to us as follows :

1. That it vi 11 not receive re-payment of and col lect 
on its own banal C the ti'-bt from First Leas ing.

2. That it will di rcct First Leas ing to pay the debt 
to this Bank on maturity.

3. That it will not take any step or part icipate in 
any action th at would render ineffective or 
valueless to thi^ I'-ar.k tiio letter of credit from 
First N a t i on a I L'. ^.n k of Bo s t on .

4. That upon n i turi t y of the debt from Firs t Leas ing 
in the e vi   n t t ha t it ha ; not a 1 rea'ly bron pa id to 
this I'.,iMk yr.i wi 1 1 provide this Li ark wi tti all 
docur.i:n t:. 11 i> -r. a:id d ra f'. s n (1 cer,r,.iry to en t i tl e us 
to draw under tlie E'irst National Bank' s letter of 
credit.

In the even t that i;.; ~h undo / tak ing i -3 noi_ for tliconing we will 
have no alternative but: to commence legal proceedings without further 
notice.

Yours faithfully,

R. E. Graham
Chief t-:a:uu;ei- - Sydney Office

This is the Annexure marked "Q" referred to in the Affidavit of Alan Frederick 
Thompson sworn the 6th day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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M/G/JMcK/1 31st July 1975

The T-'anaping Director, 
First Leaair^ Australia Limited, 
3?th Floor, B.TI.P. Hou3e, 
1'jO Villiara Street, 

E. Vie. 3000

Dear Sir,

Re: PATRTCK INTEKMARINE F.TTED ADVANCE

As you are aware this Bank issued the original letter 
of credit in favour of the Victorian State Electricity Commission 
as security for their advance to Patrick Tnterir.arine for the 
purpose of on lending to your Company, chainst security of a 
matching letter of credit by the First National Bank of Boston.

The terras of our arrangements with Patrick Tntorirarine 
vere inter alia that in the event of any drawing under, the 
letter of credit issued by this P-ank Patrick Intenrarine would 
lodf^e with this Bonk drafts and necessary documents under the 
First National's letter of credit to the intent t^at default by 
Patrick's in repayment to tho Victorian S.D.C. would entitle the 
Bank to recourse arrainst Patrick's security for the on lending. 
As you will be at-are it is not usual in such circumstances to 
take a formal assignment of the actual debt so lonf? as ono has 
secured drawing rights under the letter of credit but notwith­ 
standing this we have been advised that the P,ank has recourse 
not only to the letter of credit but also to the debt in effect 
"guaranteed" by the letter of credit.

You will be aware that a Provisional Liquidator has been 
appointed to Patrick Tntermarine and we can only assume that our 
letter of credit will be drawn upon.

Tn those circumstances, obviously, we would intend that 
a drawing be rade on our behalf on the First National Bank's 
letter of credit.

- continued -

This is the Annexure marked "R" referred to in the Affidavit of Alan Frederick 
Thompson sworn the 6th day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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It is our contention that in the circumstances if you 
were to re-pay your loan rather them siEply let us have recourse 
to the Firat National Dan'c's letter o.r credit you would be at 
risk and in particular that this rank is entitled to receive 
payment or th<3 debt and that Patrick Intermnrine could not give 
a valid discharge for it.

Ve enclose a copy of a letter that we have this day 
written to Patrick Interirnrine.

Until we have a reply to that letter we cannot say 
whether there will be any particular problem in settling the 
matter but iu the meanwhile we ask that you assure us that you 
will not nake any payment of the debt to Patrick Intel-marine 
without giving us at least k8 hours notice of your intention 
to do ao.

Yours fekthfully.

John McKillop 
Acting Manager

End:

This is the annexure marked "R" referred to in the Affidavit of 
Sworn the day of 19 Before me:

A Justice of the Peace.
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.AYTON UTZ & COMPANY 

SOLICITORS

113

CM: REG

136 LIVERPOOL STREET 

SYDNEY NSW 2OOO

It LF THON [ / Of) 4 1

c rj t "< ? o 
i Am i s C:LIJ i 7 SYDNTY

1ELEX ,'4O ':?

HAND DELIVERY

Attention Ilr. R.E.Graham

The Manager,
Commercial Banking Coiapay of Sydney Ltd.,
343 George Street,
SYDNEY 2000 5th August, 1975

Dear Sir,

PATRICK INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED

We act .tor the Provisional Liquidator appointed 
to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited, who has 
handed us your letter to him of the 30th July, 1975 
with instructions to reply thereto.

We are instructed to advise that the Provisional 
Liquidator is not prepared to give the undertakings; you 
required of him in that letter.

Yours faithfully, 
CLAYTON UTZ & COMPANY

351.

JU,
'.T.Wilson)

This is the Annexure marked "S" referred to in the Affidavit of Alan Frederick 
Thompson sworn the 6th day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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No. 7
AFFIDAVIT OF ALAN FREDERICK THOMPSON (ANNEXURE "A" IS 

NOT REPRODUCED).
AFFIDAVIT—llth August, 1975
I ALAN FREDERICK THOMPSON of 89 Bay Road, Epping in the State of New 
South Wales a General Manager of The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney 
Limited say on oath:

1. I crave leave to refer to the Affidavit sworn by me on 6th August 1975 and 
filed herein.

10 2. On or about 12th August 1969 I received a telephone call from an Officer 
of the firm of Patrick & Company. He said to me, "We would like the Bank to 
establish a further letter of credit in favour of the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria for a further 1.5 million dollars for a term of four years commencing on 
Friday next. It will be similar to the previous transactions of this nature and we 
propose to on-lend the money to an Australian Company." I said to him, "I assume 
that the security will once more be a matching letter of credit from the First National 
Bank of Boston." He said to me, "Yes, that is so. Will the Bank's charge be the same 
as the Bank's previous letter of credit?" I said to him, "Yes, the Bank's fee would be 
g% per annum plus 0.15% on any drawings under the letter of credit." I then said

20 to him, "The proposal will of course need the approval of the Board. However, I 
do not anticipate that there will be any problems and I will advise you further."

3. Annexed hereto and marked with the letter "A" is a memorandum prepared 
by me following the abovementioned conversation.

4. At the time of the abovementioned conversation I was not informed of the 
identity of the Australian company. However, on sighting the letter of credit from 
the First National Bank of Boston I learned that that letter of credit was established 
on account of First Leasing Australia Limited. I am informed and verily believe that 
at all material times the First National Bank of Boston had a substantial sharehold­ 
ing in First Leasing Australia Limited. 

30 SWORN at Sydney 
before me:

In the Supreme 
Court of New 
South Wales 

Common Law
Division 

Commercial
List

No. 5925 of 
1975

No. 7

Affidavit of
Alan

Frederick 
Thompson
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In the Supreme
Court of New
South Wales

Common Law
Division 

Commercial
List

No. 5925 of 
1975

No. 8

Affidavit of 
Donald Lex

Webb

No. 8
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD LEX WEBB. (ANNEXURES "D" AND "E" ARE NOT 

REPRODUCED).
AFFIDAVIT

ON 11th August, 1975 I DONALD LEX WEBB of Rue Pasteur Port Vila New 
Hebrides, Bank Officer, say on oath:—

1. I was at all material times the Sub-Manager of the Corporate Services 
Division of The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited ("the Bank").

2.1 crave leave to refer to the Affidavit of Alan Frederick Thompson sworn the 
6th August, 1975 and filed herein. 10

3. I was immediately responsible for the arrangement of facilities provided by 
the Bank to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited in aid of its money market 
operations.

4. In or about July of 1973 in the course of a telephone conversation with Mr. 
Peter Davie, a Director of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited he said to me, 
"I should like to discuss with you at some time in the near future the arranging of 
an extension of the letter of credit supplied by the Bank to State Electricity 
Commission of Victoria as security for a loan made by the Commission to Patrick & 
Company". I said to him, "When you have worked out the details of the proposal 
please let me know and I will discuss it with you. I presume that other than the 20 
period of the loan it will be similar to the earlier transaction.

5. On or about the 7th August 1973 I received a phone call from Mr. Peter 
Davie. He said to me, "You will recall that I spoke to you about the extension of 
the letter of credit to State Electricity Commission of Victoria for 1.5 million dollars 
which expires on the 14th of this month. That letter of credit was initially arranged 
by Patrick & Company whose merchant banking operations were taken over by us. 
We would like to arrange for an extension of that letter of credit for a further two 
years. The credit will secure a loan by State Electricity Commission of Victoria to 
us. We will be on-lending the 1.5 million dollars to First Leasing Australia. You will 
receive as security a matching letter of credit from First National Bank of Boston. 30 
The credit will be in our favour and not in favour of Patrick & Company. Would the 
Bank consider extending the letter of credit and will you let me know what the Bank's 
charges will be". I said to him, "I don't think there would be any problems but it is 
ultimately a matter for the Board's approval. I'll get back to you to let you know what 
the charges will be and whether the extension has been approved."

6. On or about 8th August 1973 I prepared a memorandum for signature by 
Mr. Lyons Kerans the Chief Manager of the Corporate Services Division for reference 
to the Board. Annexed hereto and marked with the letter "A" is a true copy of the 
said memorandum.

7. On or about the 10th August 1973 I spoke to an Officer of Patrick Inter- 40 
marine Acceptances Limited. I said to him, "The Board has approved in principle 
the extension of the letter of credit and our charge will be .25% per annum for the 
life of the facility". The Officer said to me, "I will let you know if we can negotiate 
an extension of the loan at that rate".

8. On or about the 13th August 1973 I received a telephone call from an Officer 
of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited. He said to me, "We have been successful 
in renegotiating the loan. Will you please arrange for the issue of the letter of credit in 
favour of State Electricity Commission of Victoria". I said to him, "Yes, I shall attend 
to that immediately but before the transaction can proceed we will need to obtain 
exchange control approval from the Reserve Bank and we will have to sight the 50 
First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit". He said to me, "Yes, that will be 
alright".
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10

9. On or about the 14th August 1973 I wrote to the Reserve Bank. Annexed 
hereto is a true copy of my letter and a copy of their reply marked "B" and "C" 
respectively.

10. On or about 14th August 1973 I requested the Overseas Department of the 
Sydney Office of the Bank to prepare the necessary requisition from Patrick Inter- 
marine Acceptances Limited in respect of the letter of credit in favour of State 
Electricity Commission of Victoria and to prepare the letter of credit to State 
Electricity Commission.

11. On or about the 15th August 1973 I prepared a memorandum for the Board 
of Directors of the Bank. Annexed hereto and marked "D" is a true copy of that 
memorandum.

12. On or about 24th August 1973 I prepared a letter for signature by Mr. 
Lyons Kerans addressed to the Manager of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited. 
Annexed hereto and marked "E" is a true copy of that letter. 
SWORN at 
before me: 
A Justice of the Peace

In the Supreme
Court of New
South Wales

Common Law
Division 

Commercial
List

No. 5925 of 
1975

Affidavit of
Donald Lex

Webb
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.(KANCII

NAMI;

ACTIVITY

DIRECTORS

NI 
POSITION

'fTiilal Hunk l.iuhilities 
In include Oinilehl 
r/r limn, \<'lrnherer i.t 
the frailer, T. /,. find/ 
iirl-'.IJ.I,.. Kill Limit. 
Total C'tiitniRcnf 
Liabilities including 
lease finance.)

PROPOSED

8th August, 1973 Customer _/'___ year,
(()] ci Cornice t i on } 

COIiPOKA'n-; SKKV.ICES

^

,.
DRAWUACKs'

/to include 
rejereiicc to hard 
core)

BEN I-FITS

reference in credit 
funds A overseas 
exchange content)

V --
RI-X'OMM! Nl>

A MON

I'l npo.'.r.d 'i

Interest Rale 
Overdraft
Line Fee , 75 '
on unused portiBrl

ICildorsement Fee____1.2'

PATNJCK-INTKKMAIUNIC ACC10P lANCIuS L1M1TICI)
Pa trick-In terniarine (Aust) Ltd)(50% Patrick Corporation Ltd 

Money market operators.

M.H.L. Howling (Chin) P. Davie, P. Grey, U. L. Johnson 
K. J. Roberts Secretary J. K. Lees

Total Debts S Isjm Loan S
Total Limits S repayable $ ,,.„.

reducing by S p.a.
Bi j 1 Endorsement Facility $ 1 rn i I 1 i on for bills of exchange 

accepted or endorsed by Pa t rick-intermarine Acceptances' -
bills outstanding $525,OOO

Lo tier of C reel i t (matched)- issued in favour- of the State Electric 
QI'» V i c t o i - i a and r x p t r :i n/r * Tolal Hank Liabilities % 1 , OO 1 , ?7fi

' ' •> ^iV;iiS»»«l4'jiajanMs il . fflt? Ur- (Castlereagh ft. Hunter Sts Dr. 
Total Limits J, Term Loan $

15

p. a . repayable

Hill Kndorsement Facility $ 1 , OOO , OOO - unchanged
That we issue a letter of credit in favour of the S_tate

E l_ec_t r i c i t y Cornn^i ss i on of Victoria for $ 1 , 5OO , OOP for 2 years
(roJ lover- of" existing facility)

Conlinj;cnl l.nibililics J u .5OO_, QUO ____ ___ ̂  lolaMlaiik Liahililics $? , 50 1 , 3?fi __ 
tii IJ Kiuio r-somi-n^ I'acilj ty - see at rat-fied

of credit in our- favour issued by the FirstMat.chin^ let 
National Hair of Boston for- ft A 1 , 5OO , OOO for two years.

^

t-vMoVer of ^iV^s t i \\r, letter of c red i t 
S i. a t e \t'j 1 oc fc r i.c i. t y Co mm i s s i on of V i c to

fnvour- of the 
for ft A 1 , 50O.OOO\K1 ec fcr i.ci

pV re t' 5/^/7 ^ and backed by a ma t.cli i n^ letter of credi t from 
National .Dank of Boston.

1s a c I. i on in re spec t of ttie ma tu r i i\(r, letter of credit 
^ rnrl into in Au^us I , I ( )d') for a four-year term Find was 
i on behalf of I'a t r i c k I'a r I TIP r s who borrowed from the 
Vii I on t en t to F'irs t Leas Ln^ Aus tra Ma Li tn i led.

;4<-.l n te rma r- i 
171 c1 rid wa

ess in
tab M shed to conduct tlie money market 

share h older compa iii e s li.nc 1 uding
.1 by

ties on be Waif of its share ho Ider companies i 
k P.iftnorfe i The present requr 5 h wns rece i ve 
one l from 'Pa t.rick-ln tertnar i ne Acceptances Ltd an 
ifloil by; ft I.e 1 e phone with First Leas i n^ fiust.ra 1 i a . 

Hank' of Aus tral ia approval :i s be infj obtained.

/ .Our charge on exi s tinff facili ty was 1/6 th of }% - $2, 5OO P rp  
''W.e consi der tho charge should nov be a minimum of . 2^7° p. an

' \ - $3,750. (y

Closer rela I. i onsh i p with the Pa tri ck - I n terniarine and 
First National Dank of Doston Groups.

Recommend on the basis of .25c/i per annum return to this bank.

This is the Annexure marked "A" referred to in the Affidavit of Donald Lex Webb 
sworn the llth day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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2'lt.h August., 197-3.

'I lif f'anfi;;r> r~ , 
I'ali i c k- 1 n 1 r> i ni.'i i iiio 
r, . P.O. Pox 'V'l ' , 
SYi'NI Y. 2001

Acceptances Limited,

Dear Sir,

Ve ref«M lo our lecenl. telephone ooiic ersat ions
concern f ri(7 the e x ( «I>F i nn , until I'ltli \u/^iir.l,, lOT 1 ) of .111 ,-n-t aii;je — 
niont inuloi vliirli irrovocal'lo letters of credit are e.i tob 1 i shed by 
t.lip First Nr> t j 011:1 1 Tlnnk of Ploston and this Hank to secure a 
borrow 1 Tig of *? 1 , r!('O , OOP from t h<? State F1 P>- t r i c i t y ''o'nm i sp i on of 
Victoria by P 11 i i d< —1 iilerm.iri ne Acceptances 1 Imlted for oil-lending 
to First Leasing of Australia Limited, Melbourne.

V.'o are pleased to confirm our Uank approval
to the facility vhich wns renewed and completed oil 16th August, 
1971.

Oui - coiinn I R r>ion feo i s . .?3/' p^r nivnn:-! payable
yonrly in mlv.-iTi'-o and n rrnii(;omeii t s havn boon made to clinr/jo your 
rompniiy's Sxui'lrv C)inrf»os accouiit nt our Cas t leren^li f,-. Hunter Streets 
Branch with tlm irilti.-jJ. $3,7^0. -

For your filos wo enolono copy of the Reserve 
Bank of Austia'la Exchange Control approval.

'n'e are pleased to be of service in thin regard.

Yours faithfully, 

1 . I.', hi. iv. KANS
1 . T'. H. Korrui'- 

f'hief Maiin;;oi- '"orpoiate Services

This is the Annexure marked "B" referred to in the Affidavit of Donald Lex Webb 
sworn the llth day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA /» «»ir ««.«»«»« BCD.0».1C

15 AuCuot 1973

The Manager
The Commercial Banking Company,

of Sydney Limited 
Box 2720 CJ.P.O. 
SYDNEY, N.S.W. 2001

Dear Sir,

EXCHAMOE CONTROL 

We refer to your letter of 14 August 1973.

Authority under the Banking (Foreign Exchange) 
Regulations is given to the extension, until 15 August 1975, 
of arrangements under which guarantees given by The First 
National Bank of Boston, U.U.A., and your bank secure the 
borrowing of £A1,500,000 from the State Electricity 
Commission of Victoria by Patrick-Intermarine Acceptance 
Limited for on-lending to First Leasing of Australia 
Limited.

Yours faithfully,

For the Manager
Exchange Control Department

This is the Annexure marked "C" referred to in the Affidavit of Donald Lex Webb 
sworn the llth day of August 1975 
Before me

Justice of the Peace
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No. 9
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS BEFORE HIS HONOUR MR. JUSTICE 

SHEPPARD.
Mr. Gleeson, Q.C., appeared with Mr. Downes and Miss Lock for the plaintiff.
Mr. Lockhart, Q.C., appeared with Mr. Tobias for the first defendants, Patrick 

Intermarine Acceptances Limited and Gavin Hosking.
Mr. Meagher, Q.C., appeared with Mr. Hamilton for the third and fourth 

defendants, First Leasing Australia Limited and First National Bank of Boston.
(Mr. Macready announced that he appeared with Mr. Graham for the State

10 Electricity Commission of Victoria and submitted to any order of the Court except in
relation to costs. Mr. Macready was excused until the question of costs should arise.)

(Leave given to the plaintiff to amend the title of the first defendant by adding 
the words "In liquidation" after the name of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances 
Limited.)

(Mr. Lockhart stated that Mr. Hosking was the provisional liquidator in the 
initial stages and would not seem to be a proper party to the proceedings. His Honour 
stated that to the extent that it was necessary he made an order pursuant to s. 230(3) 
of the Companies Act giving the plaintiff leave to continue these proceedings against 
the defendant Gavin Hosking.)

20 (Mr. Lockhart requested that the question of Mr. Hosking's position be cleared 
up as soon as possible. His Honour stated that he would give Mr. Gleeson some little 
time to consider the position.)

Mr. Gleeson: Your Honour may recollect some interlocutory proceedings in 
relation to this matter last year. Indeed I think your Honour made a statement that 
was recorded at some stage in relation to the basis upon which the matter was to pro­ 
ceed. Mr. Lockhart has a copy of that.

This is an action which arises out of a transaction that was entered into in August 
1973, a transaction involving an operation on what is sometimes called the money 
market, and it will involve your Honour looking at practices and commercial agree- 

30 ments made by people operating in that market and considering the legal consequences 
of the actions and agreements that they undertook and entered into. A good deal of 
the evidence before your Honour, and indeed some of the allegations contained in 
the pleadings, relate to matters that happened before August of 1973, and that is 
because the transaction that the parties entered into in August of 1973 was merely 
a repetition of transactions of a similar kind that had been entered into between the 
parties on previous occasions, and it is probably necessary to have a look at the history 
of their previous dealings to understand what they were doing in August of 1973; but 
in any event it is necessary because in relation to one vital element of the August 1973 
transaction, what was done was merely to extend a contract in the nature of a letter of 

40 credit that had been entered into in relation to a similar transaction in 1969.
So the history behind the August 1973 transaction is not only significant for the 

purpose of understanding that transaction but it is also a necessary part of that trans­ 
action in the sense that in one important respect the parties, in arranging their legal 
relationships in August 1973, extended a contract that had previously been entered 
into.

Your Honour, the various parties and their relationships with one another are 
also important in this case. Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited was in sub­ 
stance the successor to a business of a kind which is sometimes described as merchant 
banking, sometimes described as operating in the money market, which had previously 

50 been carried on by a firm of stockbrokers who in 1969 carried on business under the 
name of Patrick & Co. and later changed the name to Patrick Partners.
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In about 1972 (the precise date does not matter) it appears that Patrick Inter- 
marine Acceptances Limited took over that aspect of the business which had formerly 
been operated by Patrick & Co., later named Patrick Partners, and persons who were 
members of the firm of Patrick Partners such as a Mr. Alien and a Mr. Course were 
active in the affairs of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited also.

It appears that Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited, like Patrick Partners, 
had a Melbourne office, and that Mr. Roy C. Course was the person in charge of the 
office down there; and Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited, like Patrick & Co. 
and Patrick Partners, was a customer of the C.B.C. Bank at all material times. 
Another customer of the Melbourne office of the C.B.C. Bank was a company called 10 
First Leasing & Finance Limited, and First Leasing & Finance Limited was a com­ 
pany, fifty per cent of the capital of which was owned by the First National Bank of 
Boston, an American bank, and fifty per cent of which was owned by interests 
connected with a Melbourne family of the name of Reinehr. The man principally in 
charge of the business of First Leasing & Finance Limited was Mr. Reinehr.

I mentioned to your Honour that First Leasing & Finance Limited was a 
customer of the bank in Melbourne. The business of First Leasing & Finance Limited 
consisted in a large part of leasing goods and equipment in the role of a financier. 
Your Honour is familiar with the kind of leasing operation undertaken by many 
finance companies and that was the principal business of First Leasing & Finance 20 
Limited. It also apparently in a small way dealt on its own account in the money 
market. First Leasing & Finance Limited, in order to raise funds for its ordinary 
business operations, raised them, amongst other ways, by borrowing on the money 
market.

Now there will be evidence before your Honour to suggest that First Leasing 
& Finance Limited really did not have a great deal to offer as security for its borrow­ 
ings in the way of assets of its own. Its principal asset in terms of its ability to raise 
moneys on the money market was its association with the First National Bank of 
Boston and the backing it could produce or obtain from that large and highly 
respected overseas bank. 30

It will also appear to your Honour that an important source of funds which 
found their way on to the money market were large institutional lenders like the 
State Electricity Commission of Victoria, and it appears that those lenders operated 
under an inhibition in relation to the basis upon which they were prepared to lend 
moneys in these money market operations. Whilst they were happy to accept the 
backing of a bank, they required the backing for a borrower of an Australian bank, 
and that seems to be the way the C.B.C. Bank came into the picture.

Now First Leasing & Finance Limited on a number of occasions prior to August 
1973 obtained loan funds in large amounts on the money market through a connection 
they had with Patrick & Co., later Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited. The 40 
State Electricity Commission of Victoria for its part placed funds out on loan also 
through a connection with Patrick & Co., later Patrick Intermarine Acceptances 
Limited. It appears from the accounts that were kept by Patrick & Co. and Patrick 
Intermarine Acceptances Limited, and that have been produced on discovery, that 
Patricks treated moneys they received from the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria as deposits with them by the State Electricity Commission of Victoria and 
when, having received such funds, they on-lent the funds, to use an expression that 
is used in a number of documents, to people such as First Leasing & Finance Limited, 
in their own accounts they treated that transaction as a deposit by them with First 
Leasing & Finance Limited. 50
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So they kept two deposit accounts, one in the name of State Electricity Com­ 
mission of Victoria and one in the name of First Leasing & Finance. There was, of 
course, a margin in it for Patricks. The rate of interest that they were paying the State 
Electricity Commission of Victoria was lower than the rate of interest they were 
receiving from First Leasing & Finance Limited and that apparently is a common 
way in which operators on the money market carried on their business and made a 
profit.

Now the basis upon which the transactions in question were conducted, that 
is leading up to August 1973 and the August 1973 transaction, in substance involved 

10 First Leasing & Finance Limited entering into a borrowing arrangement with Patrick 
& Co., Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited, on the security of a letter of credit 
issued by the First National Bank of Boston in favour of Patrick & Co., later Patrick 
Intermarine Acceptances. But when Patricks raised the money from the State 
Electricity Commission of Victoria, the First National Bank of Boston's letter of 
credit was not good enough for the State Electricity Commission of Victoria and 
Patricks procured the bank to issue to the State Electricity Commission of Victoria 
letters of credit in its favour offering the bank as security—and I might say the only 
security for these transactions—the letter of credit from the First National Bank of 
Boston; and the expression that was used to describe the nature of the security that the 

20 C.B.C. Bank was getting was that it was issuing its own letter of credit to the State 
Electricity Commission of Victoria against a back-to-back letter of credit from the 
First National Bank of Boston.

Now your Honour will be referred in due course to various textbooks on letters 
of credit which indicate that the expression "back-to-back letter of credit" is a very 
common one and it is commonly understood in the normal kind of transaction in 
which letters of credit are in fact used, that is transactions under which the letters of 
credit are set up as a means of payment of a supplier, usually in an export-import 
transaction, and in that context the expression "back-to-back letter of credit" is a very 
well known and well understood one; and in one sense what this case is about is to 

30 determine what the legal consequences of a back-to-back letter of credit are in a case 
like this where letters of credit are being used for a purpose somewhat different than 
the purposes with which the courts are familiar, and I am not aware for my part of any 
case in which this question has fallen for consideration before today.

His Honour: In the import-export situation are there usually two letters of credit 
or is the back-to-back the goods against the letter of credit or the document?

Mr. Gleeson: I will read your Honour a passage from a book "The Law Of 
Bankers Commercial Credits" by Gutteridge & McGrath p. 163, "The benefit of an 
irrevocable credit may be made available to a third party . . .". The books seem to 
suggest that the normal case in which in the ordinary letter of credit situation a back- 

40 to-back arrangement operates is where the supplier in whose favour the original letter 
of credit was raised is himself purchasing goods from another supplier and he wants 
to use the letter of credit that has been issued in his favour at the request of his own 
customer as security for the contract, pursuant to which he is obtaining the goods 
that he is on-selling.

Now there is evidence to the effect that the first transaction of this nature 
involving these parties took place in April 1969 and that involved a sum of money 
of half a million dollars and Patricks approached the bank and told the bank that 
they were arranging a borrowing from the S.E.C.V. and that they required from the 
bank the issue of a letter of credit in favour of the S.E.C.V., the security for which 

50 was to be a back-to-back letter of credit issues by the First National Bank of Boston, 
and after some discussion that arrangement was accepted and in due course the First
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National Bank of Boston's letter of credit arrived in favour of Patrick & Co. and the 
bank issued a letter of credit, $500,000, in favour of the S.E.C.V.

Now the parties between them sought to tie the First National Bank of Boston's 
letter of credit in with the C.B. Bank's letter of credit by a contractual device which 
they worked out for themselves without getting legal assistance, of adding to the 
standard form of requisition for the issue by the bank of a letter of credit, an extra 
paragraph which in effect contained a promise by Patricks that in the event that 
there was a drawing by the State Electricity Commission of Victoria on the C.B.C. 
Bank's letter of credit, Patricks would deliver to the C.B.C. Bank the First National 
Bank of Boston's letter of credit together with the appropriate documents necessary 10 
to enable a drawing on that letter of credit.

Now that was the contractual device that the parties worked out for themselves 
to give effect to their back-to-back arrangement. The significance of the $500,000 
transaction in early 1973 for this case is probably only that in all later transactions, 
including the August 1973 transaction, they simply followed the precedent of the 
contractual arrangements that they had worked out on that occasion; and at various 
times various letters of credit were issued by the bank. At one stage the bank had a 
contingent liability of I think up to $7 million pursuant to transactions of 
this nature, in every case the sole security of the bank being, and being expressed to 
be, the back-to-back letter of credit by the First National Bank of Boston. 20

The next relevant piece of history, because it ties in with the August 1973 
transaction, was that in August 1973 Patricks did one of these deals; they used 
to describe them in their own books as special deals and they did special deal No. 3 
and this case is about a transaction which is described in the books and records of 
Patrick Partners as special deal No. 3. Special deal No. 3 began in August 1969 and 
special deal No. 3 involved an amount of money of $H million and the basis on 
which the transaction was being conducted was the by then familiar basis of a borrow­ 
ing by Patrick Partners of $H million from the S.E.C.V. on certain terms and 
conditions and at a certain rate of interest and, to use the expression used by the 
parties, the on-lending of the identical amount of money at a slightly higher rate of 30 
interest.

His Honour: Lending it to First Leasing?
Mr. Gleeson: Lending it to First Leasing. It is inaccurate but convenient to say 

that the term of the loan was four years. I say it is inaccurate because there were 
some fairly complicated arrangements between the parties involved as to renewal or 
review of the transaction at various intervals during that period of time, but in the 
events that happened the loan remained outstanding for four years and the letter of 
credit was for the maximum possible term which was four years; therefore, subject 
to any views to the contrary that may be put, it is probably convenient as far as we 
are concerned to rise above the detail of the arrangement between the parties about 40 
repayment of the loan and treat it as a loan for four years.

His Honour: Was the transaction one which S.E.C.V. knew involved First 
Leasing or was it simply a matter of Patricks acting as some kind of principal?

Mr. Gleeson: Whether at the time of the transaction in 1969 S.E.C.V. knew that 
their money was going on to First Leasing is not entirely clear. One thing that is 
abundantly clear is that in the transaction that we are here concerned with, 
the August 1973 transaction, the S.E.C.V. and First Leasing knew the stages in the 
transaction and indeed it appears that at about the same time First Leasing borrowed 
some money direct from S.E.C.V. But there are documents which make it obvious 
that First Leasing knew, at least by August 1973, that the source of the funds that it 50 
was getting was the S.E.C.V.
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His Honour: What it would do was it would go to Patricks and say, "I have got 
money to lend, so many years, so much interest. We want the security of a local 
bank's backing of the loan"?

Mr. Gleeson: Yes.
His Honour: So it would get a letter of credit signed by the Commercial Bank?
Mr. Gleeson: A letter of credit from the Commercial Bank.
His Honour: Which would say no more than that it would pay if there was 

default?
Mr. Gleeson: In effect, that is right. It would pay if there was default by Patrick 

10 &Co.
His Honour: And the loan to the S.E.C.V. was made by Patricks?
Mr. Gleeson: The loan to First Leasing was expressed to be made by Patricks.
His Honour: And the borrowing by Patricks from S.E.C.V.?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes, your Honour. The position is not entirely clear as to earlier 

time but certainly by 1973 in a situation where First Leasing well knew that the 
source of the funds was S.E.C.V., they just did not mind Patricks being involved or 
Patricks taking out a profit or commission.

His Honour: And the S.E.C.V. can look to Patricks as principal?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes. 

20 His Honour: To repay?
Mr. Gleeson: That is what they did.
His Honour: And in default of them to the bank?
Mr. Gleeson: The S.E.C.V. have taken various stances on that. They wrote a 

letter to Patricks which is in evidence in this case because they sent a copy to the 
bank when in the middle of last year Patricks' financial difficulties became known, 
in effect asserting I think that Patricks were a mere agent in the transaction; and your 
Honour will remember that a gentleman from the S.E.C.V. turned up when this 
matter originally commenced, wanting to argue or stating that he wanted to argue that 
the contract he had was between himself and First Leasing. He has been rendered 

30 content in the meantime by the payment bv the bank on its letter of credit.
As I say First Leasing in fact through another broker, J. B. Were & Sons, in 

which transaction I think the broker was manifestly acting merely as an agent, made 
a large borrowing from S.E.C.V. in August 1973 on its own account, and the docu­ 
ments produced on discovery by First Leasing make it obvious that well before August 
1973 First Leasing knew that the source of these funds and the source of the $li 
million was the S.E.C.V.

But, your Honour, in August of 1973 there was this borrowing of $H million 
for four years and an on-lending. The loan fell due in August of 1973 and it was in 
fact repaid. Indeed the explanation may bs that there was some delay about getting 

40 the extension of the letter of credit from First National Bank of Boston. But the 
position that existed in August 1973 when that four years was up was that after some 
hesitation S.E.C.V. and Patricks and First Leasing negotiated from their different 
points of view what is sometimes called a roll-over of that loan, again on the basis that 
the S.E.C.V. was to be secured by the C.B.C. Bank's letter of credit and that the 
bank's security was to be a back-to-back letter of credit issued by the First National 
Bank of Boston.

But apparently because there was some delay in making the precise arrangements
with the First National Bank of Boston or for whatever reason—I do not think it
matters—the loan actually had to be repaid and indeed the bank extended to First

50 Leasing something very akin to what your Honour has seen in other documents in
another case called Daylight Cover. For a day or two, First Leasing was put in funds
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in an amount of in excess of $ 1 million by the bank to enable it to repay this loan. 
Then the loan having been repaid, as was always intended to happen, it was in effect 
renewed so it was always intended to happen (I mean people knew was going to 
happen at the time of the repayment) and what the First National Bank of Boston 
did on this occasion was the only aspect of the transaction that was different from the 
August 1969 arrangements.

There was once again a request or a requisition for the issue of a letter of credit 
with this standard form of par. (j) in it sent by Patrick Intermarine to the bank. There 
was once again a letter of credit issued by the bank to the S.E.C.V. but the difference 
on this occasion was that instead of issuing a fresh letter of credit in favour of Patrick 10 
& Co., the First National Bank of Boston issued a document extending the 1969 letter 
of credit. It referred by number to the 1969 letter of credit. It extended the letter of 
credit for the contemplated term of the loan which was two years and it changed the 
name of the beneficiary of the letter of credit from Patrick & Co. to Patrick Intermarine 
Acceptances Limited.

His Honour: You want the letter of credit?
Mr. Gleeson: We want more than that, your Honour. We want a worthwhile 

letter of credit and not an illusory letter of credit because what we want to prevent 
happening is First Leasing paying Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited and 
Patrick Intermarine taking the $1.5 million and depositing it with some other bank, 20 
and that is what is threatened will happen.

His Honour: You want to be paid out by the American bank?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes.
His Honour: To be considered as a secured creditor for the $1.5 million you 

paid, is that right?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes, that is right. To use an expression that is apparently some­ 

times used, we want to activate the letter of credit.
His Honour: What is said against you? Mr. Lockhart says you are not a secured 

creditor and he wants the money for the general purposes of Patrick Intermarine?
Mr. Gleeson: That is right. 30
His Honour: What does Mr. Meagher say about that?
Mr. Gleeson: Mr. Meagher, as I understand it, says that for reasons of commerce 

relating to things that happen in the United States, not for any particular legal reasons, 
he is most anxious that the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit should not 
be activated. He just wants First Leasing to pay Patricks or to pay the Court. I do 
not think Mr. Meagher minds who First Leasing pays. His principal anxiety is that 
the vehicle for payment be not the letter of credit.

Mr. Meagher: That is so, your Honour.
Mr. Gleeson: And the reason why he cares about that is a matter personal to 

First National Bank in the sense that it relates to their own business. 40
His Honour: And First Leasing will do what the bank wants, being half -owned 

by them?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes, your Honour.
His Honour: But First Leasing I take it simply does not care who it pays. It is 

willing to discharge its liability to whoever it ought to?
Mr. Gleeson: I think First Leasing is substantially more than half-owned by the 

bank now but that is First Leasing's attitude.
His Honour: So the main dispute is between you and Mr. Lockhart as to whether 

you are entitled to have the benefit of this letter of credit and set off against what you 
paid? 50

Mr. Gleeson: That is so.
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His Honour: He is saying it is simply a matter of it being paid to Patrick Inter- 
marine and indeed you would become an unsecured creditor.

Mr. Gleeson: Of course we alternatively say that we have a charge or an assign­ 
ment of the benefit and that is owing by First Leasing to Patrick Intermarine. Also 
we claim as an alternative form of security rights in relation to the fund itself.

Mr. Meagher: If it is convenient to my friend and your Honour to interrupt now,
the attitude of First Leasing is twofold. Firstly it wishes to pay the debt. It does not
particularly care who its creditor is provided it can get an acquittance on payment,
but it does very much want to be in a position to pay on the due date because if it

10 does after the due date then the letter of credit on the Boston bank can be called.
His Honour: When is the due date?
Mr. Meagher: The due date was 15th August, 1975. That has been extended 

until a date which I am not quite certain of.
His Honour: Pursuant to the arrangement that was made here?
Mr. Meagher: Yes. I do not know what the current extension date is.
Mr. Gleeson: 14th August, 1976.
Mr. Meagher: It does want to pay whoever your Honour tells us our creditor is 

and it does want to do that on or before the due date.
His Honour: And it wants to do that principally for reasons associated with 

20 its parent?
Mr. Meagher: That is so, yes, and for a subsidiary reason. It does not want to be 

known as a defaulter.
His Honour: I do not think anybody would really think it was a defaulter if they 

knew what the facts were.
Mr. Meagher: But the main reason is the reason your Honour said.
His Honour: The main contest is really between Mr. Gleeson and Mr. Lockhart?
Mr. Meagher: True. If there were any mechanics whereby that contest could be 

conducted in such a way that the Boston bank was not called on, I would seek leave 
to withdraw.

30 His Honour: I take it some thought has been given to that and no means have 
been found?

Mr. Gleeson: Yes, at the interlocutory proceedings that problem was raised too. 
The difficulty is that on one view of the matter—it is only one view of the matter but 
it has got to be considered a real possibility—this is a case where the legal rights of 
the parties may depend upon the actual procedures that are followed in relation to 
their carrying out their contract. I suppose it is always unfortunate when a situation 
like that arises.

His Honour: You mean First Leasing repay Patrick Intermarine and Patrick 
Intermarine get the money?

40 Mr. Gleeson: Yes, subject to our argument about charge or assignment or trust 
or whatever is the proper nature of the right we have. But unless we were prepared 
to put all our eggs in that basket, it would be dangerous for us not to pursue our 
attempt to force the payment to be made by the activating of that letter of credit.

His Honour: Do you say the steps necessary to activate it have already occurred?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes.
His Honour: Or will only occur if certain further steps are taken?
Mr. Gleeson: They have already occurred subject to the question of whether or 

not as a matter of contract between the parties involved First Leasing and Patrick 
Intermarine are contractually entitled now in the situation that has arisen in effect 

50 to walk away from the bank and make their own arrangements as between them­ 
selves; because if they are entitled to do that subject to this argument of charge or
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assignment or some proprietary interest in the fund, they are setting at naught and 
rendering illusory and valueless that which the bank was offered as security because 
the letter of credit, according to its terms or according to one construction of its 
terms, only operates in the event that there is no payment by First Leasing to 
Patrick Intermarine Acceptances, and if Patrick Intermarine Acceptances and First 
Leasing are now contractually entitled to walk away from the bank and make their 
own arrangements as between themselves, the security which the bank was offered 
and which no one denies it has is just a worthless piece of paper.

His Honour: Do you make any claim against First Leasing for damages in that 
regard? 10

Mr. Gleeson: We seek to establish a contractual right against First Leasing for 
us to prevent them doing that. Because they have not yet done it, no question of 
damages has arisen. We are trying to intercept it. Indeed that was the reason for 
the urgency of the interlocutory proceedings.

His Honour: Might not you say if you cannot intercept it, and that is plain so 
that it has to be paid in the way they contend for, they are in breach of some con­ 
tractual relationship with you?

Mr. Gleeson: Yes, we would say that.
His Honour: Are you going to say that in these proceedings?
Mr. Gleeson: We have alleged the relevant contract in these proceedings. We 20 

have alleged they are contractually bound not to do that. I think what I have sought 
in these proceedings is a declaration that would be in aid of that but we have not yet 
sought damages.

His Honour: Maybe that question ought to be left open?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes.
Mr. Gleeson: Could I hand your Honour a bundle of documents which are 

either documents that are annexed to affidavits that are to be filed in the present 
proceedings, or documents produced by one or other of the parties on discovery. 
My learned friend, Mr. Lockhart, would want me to say to your Honour that in 
relation to a number of the documents in this bundle which are, as it were, internal 30 
documents of First Leasing or the First National Bank, he will be objecting to their 
tender as against him.

Mr. Lockhart: And communications between either the Boston Bank or First 
Leasing and your clients, Mr. Gleeson.

Mr. Gleeson: Those objections will fall to be determined.
Mr. Meagher: I will be taking a similar objection to documents that do not 

seem to concern us.
Mr. Lockhart: We have only had a chance to glance at the bundle very briefly 

this morning and we may—in fact, I am certain—want to add documentation to it, 
assuming much of it goes into evidence, so when your Honour does read it, I ask 40 
your Honour to have in mind it will be supplemented by further material. Your 
Honour will see gaps as your Honour reads through it.

My learned friend has completed his opening address, as I understand it. He 
is basing his case, as we see it from what he said, upon an assignment of the deed or a 
charge over the debt from First Leasing to P.I.A.L. or he may be seeking some 
charge over the letter of credit itself. That, as I understand it from what he said, 
is the basis upon which he puts this case. His pleading or statement of claim covers 
many matters, traverses wide avenues of the law. They go wider than what he said 
in his opening address. I wonder if it could be made clear by him as to whether he 
is relying on what he said in the opening address or in the statement of claim. 50
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Mr. Gleeson: Both, I am relying on every possible cause of action that could be 
defined from the statement of claim. If I could direct your Honour's attention briefly 
to some of them before going to the affidavits.

(Bundle of documents referred to handed to his Honour, but not as a tender)
The first of the documents is an interesting document: it actually finds its way 

into an affidavit of Mr. Blackett, whose document it is. It is the Genesis of all these 
transactions, the telephone call to Mr. Blackett, perhaps I should explain to your 
Honour who Mr. Blackett was at the time: he was not the manager of the Sydney 
office at the time and therefore, technically, probably he was not the right person for 

10 Mr. Alien to ring, but he had previously been the manager of the Sydney office and 
in that capacity Mr. Alien knew him and Mr. Alien dealt with him, so that when 
Mr. Alien had this request to make, he got in touch with Mr. Blackett who had had a 
promotion.

This document is a memorandum of a conversation that is referred to in Mr. 
Blackett's affidavit. Your Honour will see in that document that the letter of credit 
to be issued by the First National Bank of Boston is said to be a letter of credit in our 
favour, and your Honour will learn that it was at a later time when it became apparent 
that the letter of credit was to be in favour of Patrick & Company that they had 
decided that that paragraph (j) would be included in the requisition for the C.B.C. 

20 Bank's letter of credit. Your Honour will learn that the way par. (j) came about was 
that it was, as it were, worked out by some officers in the appropriate department of 
the bank and communicated to Patricks, who accepted it, and then ultimately put 
before Mr. Blackett, who accepted it as an appropriate way of dealing with the 
problem. Your Honour will notice the opening words of the third paragraph of 
the memorandum.

His Honour: It does suggest there was some.
Mr. Gleeson: Yes, your Honour. The next document in the bundle is the First 

National Bank's letter of credit for the $500,000 loan that I told your Honour about, 
and this is a form of document that was repeated in later documents, and your Honour 

30 will see that it is an irrevocable letter of credit in favour of Patrick & Co. available 
by drafts drawn on the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited for the 
amount in question; and your Honour will see that as a condition of drawing on 
the letter of credit, paragraph numbered 3 says that "drafts must be accompanied 
by a statement that the amount in question was not paid when due and has not since 
been repaid". So the draft requires, for its operation, evidence that the amount due 
from First Leasing to Patrick & Company was not paid.

There is further correspondence, and if your Honour goes to the document of 
8th April 1969, your Honour sees the origin of this par. (j) which is a term of the 
requisition from Patricks to the bank for the issue by the bank of the letter of credit 

40 and it says, "We undertake that in the event of drawings being made under this 
credit, we will immediately lodge with the bank a draft and accompanying docu­ 
ments in terms of First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit."

His Honour: The last line of my (j) is not copied.
(Originalof (j) tendered)

Mr. Meagher: We object to it in so far as it is tendered against us.
His Honour: I think I will have to deal with these objections at the end. I think

I had better say now these documents are received subject to any objections that
either you or Mr. Lockhart may eventually wish to argue in relation to them. If that
looks likely to get you into trouble on a matter of proof, Mr. Gleeson, you can tell

50 me and I will have to decide the point.
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(Tender of requisition admitted subject to Mr. Meagher's objection and marked
Ex. A.)

Mr. Meagher: May I take it from your Honour's ruling that so far as I am 
concerned there is no need for me to take similar objections when further documents 
are tendered.

His Honour: I would like to say that but I think perhaps we had better not be­ 
cause I do not want to put Mr. Gleeson in a position where he needs a link where I 
receive something subject to objection and I find I should not have, and he is without 
some evidence.

Mr. Gleeson: In going through this file, your Honour, you will see the actual 10 
letter of credit that the bank issued is dated 9th April 1969 and it authorises the 
State Electricity Commission of Victoria to draw on Patrick & Company at sight for 
any sum not exceeding $500,000 purporting to cover unpaid principal amount of loan 
made to Patrick & Company, and the draft must be accompanied by a statement of 
the S.E.C.V. certifying that the draft amount represents the unpaid principal amount 
of a loan made by the Commission to Patrick & Company, and that payment has 
been demanded and not received. That was the document that issued pursuant to the 
requisition that is Ex. A.

His Honour: The substantial difference between this type of credit and the one 
that is more familiar is that the bank would be expected to be called on to pay in the 20 
import/export situation.

Mr. Gleeson: Exactly.
His Honour: The problem that Mr. Meagher foreshadows would not arise. You 

pay against the document.
Mr. Gleeson: Yes, your Honour.
His Honour: But here you pay against this condition.

(Bank's copy of letter of credit dated 9th April 1969 tendered)
His Honour: What is the distinction between the two letters of credits in this 

regard Mr. Gleeson? What was the condition, if any, on the First National Bank's 
letter. 30

Mr. Meagher: I make the same objection to that.
(Tender marked Ex. B)

Mr. Gleeson: When your Honour ultimately sees the forms of letter of credit 
issued by the First National Bank of Boston in relation to the relevant transaction, 
your Honour will find it, for example, in this bundle against the date 14th August 
1969. I could answer the question more easily by tendering the original of the letter 
of credit the subject of this action which cOmes from the possession of the bank.

His Honour: When you say the bank you mean—?
Mr. Gleeson: The C.B.C. bank. 

(Original of letter of credit tendered without objection and marked Ex. C) 40
Mr. Gleeson: Your Honour will see from that document that the letter of credit 

is opened in favour of Patrick & Company by drafts drawn on the Commercial Bank­ 
ing Co. of Sydney Limited for $1,500,000 and the drafts must be accompanied by a 
statement signed by an authorised officer certifying that the amount in question was 
not paid when due and has not since been repaid to or collected by Patrick 
& Company.

Mr. Meagher: And the last words of the next paragraph are important too.
Mr. Gleeson: "The promissory note or other evidence of the indebtedness in 

respect of such loan". It, in other words, envisages a drawing under the letter of 
credit in the event of non-payment of the loan by First Leasing. 50

Q. Where does that appear?



41

Mr. Gleeson: Only from the words that we have just referred to, your Honour 
—that the loan has not been paid and that—

His Honour: So it is default by First Leasing that is contemplated?
Mr. Meagher: Yes.
Mr. Gleeson: Contemplated by this document, although what is contemplated 

by the requisition to the bank for the issue of the letter of credit is default by Patrick 
& Company.

His Honour: That is what I was looking for.
Mr. Gleeson: Par. (j), but in relation to the requisition for the letter of credit, 

10 par. (j) says, "We undertake that in the event of drawings being made under the 
letter of credit. . .". Now, there is only one way there could be a drawing under the 
letter of credit set up by the C.B.C. bank and that is default by Patricks.

His Honour: Yes, but is it right to say that the Commercial Bank is looking at 
default by Patricks and the First National Bank of Boston was looking to default by 
First Leasing.

Mr. Gleeson: I think that is generally correct, yes, your Honour; but it is also 
right to say that what the C.B.C. Bank was given as security for the issue of its own 
letter of credit and as being a back-to-back arrangement was the letter of credit from 
the First National Bank of Boston, and if your Honour turns to the August— 

20 His Honour: Might it not be said by Mr. Meagher that he is not liable because 
First Leasing has not defaulted?

Mr. Gleeson: Yes, he will say that, your Honour, but we will be submitting that 
it is plain that in August 1973, when we come to the relevant document First Leasing 
knew and First National Bank of Boston knew that the First National Bank of 
Boston letter of credit was being used as a back-to-back letter of credit to be put 
together with the bank's letter of credit, and indeed, I mentioned in opening, your 
Honour, this was the way the affiliate of the American bank was able to have access 
to the Australian money market, this offering of First National Bank of Boston's 
letter of credit as back-to-back arrangements with the local bank's letter of credit was 

30 an important part of the way in which commercially the local affiliate of the First 
National Bank of Boston was enabled to have access to the sort of moneys that were 
available to be lent by institutions like the State Electricity Commission of Victoria.

In relation to the knowledge of the parties, your Honour, if your Honour goes 
through this bundle, for example, to a document which was—

His Honour: I am sorry to interrupt you, but bearing in mind what we have just 
said about the condition of the American bank's letter of credit being payment by 
First Leasing, and bearing in mind the relationship between those two companies, 
why couldn't First Leasing simply go on extending the period of the letter of credit 
so that it was never—the bank was never to be contemplated? 

40 Mr. Gleeson: Only because—
His Honour: I am only thinking aloud. Don't answer it now if you don't want 

to. Maybe I need some more facts.
Mr. Gleeson: My reaction to that would be, only because one would have to 

appoint the parties in some way to the transaction in respect of which this letter of 
credit was issued, and it would be just as wrong for them to do what your Honour 
has suggested as it would be, so we would suggest, for them, in the events that it 
now occurred, to walk away from the transaction.

His Honour: That is what you meant when you used that expression earlier?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes, your Honour. If your Honour goes to a document of 7th

50 March, 1973, that was produced on discovery by First Leasing and First National
Bank of Boston—they made a joint discovery—the initials F.I.R. no doubt stands
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for Mr. Reinehr, Mr. Frank Reinehr, there is no dispute about that. And it is perfectly 
obvious from this document that First Leasing and First National Bank of Boston 
knew that the S.E.C. of Victoria was the source of the $1.5 million that had been 
loaned for 4 years in 1973; indeed, there is an interesting description of the role of 
Patrick Partners when it says the loan is on F.L.A.'s book, because Patrick Partners 
then, your Honour, when one comes to the August 1973 arrangements, which are the 
ones that are critical in the present case, if your Honour goes to a document produced 
on discovery by Patrick Partners, dated 15th August 1973, with some handwriting 
and the words "David Nicholl" in the corner—that is one of the documents that 
came into existence at the time of the repayment of the loan which I mentioned to your 10 
Honour was repaid and then renewed. Document D 301 was looking at.

His Honour: 15th August?
Mr. Gleeson: Yes, 15th August.
His Honour: Could you tell me what the opening words are?
Mr. Gleeson: "We refer you to the terms and conditions of the loan"—a letter 

from Patrick Partners to the Secretary of the State Electricity Commission.
His Honour: I think that is D23.
Mr. Gleeson: It says, "We refer to the terms and conditions of the loan of $1.5 

million from you to Patricks", and it finishes up, "The irrevocable letter of credit you 
are holding as security". D.30 is the same as the D23; the only significance of D30 is 20 
it has more material on it, but I don't know at the moment what that material is. I am 
afraid there is a little interruption in the chronological sequence, but if your Honour 
goes to a document of 14th August, which is after a couple of documents of 15th 
August, your Honour sees the actual requisition that is relevant to the present case.

His Honour: Is that the 16th August?
Mr. Gleeson: No, your Honour, it is 14th August, 1973. 

(Requisition for local documentary credit No. L.D.973 dated 15th August 1969,
tendered: objected to by Mr. Meagher: marked Ex. D.)

(Local documentary credit requisition dated 14th August 1973 that led to the issue 
of credit No. L.D.1436, which is the relevant one in the present case, tendered: 30 

objected to by Mr. Meagher on the same basis: marked Ex. E)
Mr. Lockhart: I object to that in relation to the liquidator Mr. Hosking, simply

His Honour: Assuming he stays a party?
Mr. Lockhart: Assuming he stays a party.
His Honour: We can note that you would object to any evidence against him.
Mr. Lockhart: Any evidence at all against him.

(Irrevocable letter of credit L.D.973 dated 16th August, 1969, tendered: same 
objection by Mr. Meagher: marked Ex. F)

His Honour: Would it be possible for a situation to arise, Mr. Gleeson, where it 40 
was right for Mr. Meagher's client, First Leasing, to pay Mr. Lockhart's client, but 
nevertheless right also for you to, in the same way, claim that the First National 
Bank ought to pay you?

Mr. Gleeson: Yes, particularly, of course, and this is one of the things that is no 
doubt leading my learned friend Mr. Meagher to seek some assurance by way of 
acquittance, should he pay Mr. Lockhart's client.

Mr. Meagher: Or anybody else.
Mr. Gleeson: Or anybody else, particularly if the State Electricity Commission 

of Victoria were right when they were asserting that Mr. Lockhart's client was a mere 
agent or mere intermediary, then anyone who paid Mr. Lockhart's client would do 50 
so at his own risk, but it may also be a possible result of the contractual arrangements
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between the parties that the C.B.C. Bank is entitled to say to the First National Bank 
of Boston "You are liable to pay us under this letter of credit, the relevant events 
having happened, and nothing that is done between First Leasing and Patrick Inter- 
marine Acceptance can defeat that right."

His Honour: I suppose in another situation Mr. Meagher might have, as I think 
he foreshadowed a little while ago, claimed to be entitled to payment by the bank 
because he had to pay.

Mr. Gleeson: Yes, your Honour.
His Honour: That was the basis upon which I entered into the arrangement. If 

10 I were called upon I could look to the First National Bank—
Mr. Gleeson: To put it another way, as par. (j) of the requisition to the docu­ 

mentary letter of credit, we entered into this transaction on the basis that if there was 
a drawing on our letter of credit there would be a drawing on the First National Bank 
of Boston's letter of credit; otherwise the promise that Patricks gave us was illusiory. 
(Copy of plaintiff's irrevocable letter of credit dated 16th August, 1973 No. L.D.1436

tendered: same objection by Mr. Meagher: marked Ex. G) 
(Copy of notice of extension of letter of credit from the First National Bank of Boston

dated 15th August 1973 tendered, without objection, and marked Ex. H.) 
Mr. Gleeson: I will read the affidavit of Norman Harley Blackett of 8th August, 

20 1975.
Mr. Meagher: To save my learned friend the nuisance of objecting to everything 

piecemeal, we would object to the whole of this affidavit as against our client.
His Honour: I will admit it subject to that objection, but Mr. Gleeson, if there 

is any problem of proof as distinct from substance, it is up to you to separate it out so 
that I can deal with it.

Mr. Lockhart: I object to par. 4, to the words "pursuant to my agreement with 
Mr. Alien", and similarly in par. 6.

His Honour: I will come to that.
(Affidavit read: objection by Mr. Lockhart in par. 4 as mentioned: not pressed) 

30 His Honour: It can be noted that the words in par. 4 of the affidavit "pursuant 
to my agreement with Mr. Alien" are objected to and I reject them. 

(Same objection in par. 6 by Mr. Lockhart as noted)
His Honour: Again I reject the words "pursuant to my agreement with Mr. 

Alien".
NORMAN HARLEY BLACKETT

Sworn andexamined:
Mr. Gleeson: Q. Mr. Blackett, in your affidavit you referred to a conversation 

that you had with Mr. Tim Alien on 19th March, 1969. Do you recollect that? A. 
Yes.

40 Q. Will you look at the document that I show you. Is that document a note that 
you made of the conversation or at about the time it happened? A. Yes.

Q. There is some typing on that document and also some handwriting? A. Yes. 
Q. Whose is the handwriting? A. The handwriting is mostly mine. 
Q. Are there initials under the typing? A. Yes. 
Q. Whose initials are they? A. Those are my initials.
Q. Which of the handwriting is not yours? A. In the column "Yes" and noted 

"J.C.W."; otherwise it was all my handwriting or typing.
Q. Who is "J.C.W." A. Mr. Watson who was then manager of our international 

department.
50 (Notes made by witness tendered; objected to by Mr. Meagher: subject to Mr.

Meagher's objection, marked Ex. J)
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Q. Par. 5 of your affidavit, you gave evidence of a telephone call that 
you received from Mr. Alien on 8th May 1969? A. Yes.

Q. Will you look at the document I show you. Is that a note that you made of 
the conversation at the time and does it bear your initials? A. Yes. 
(Second note made by witness tendered; same objection by Mr. Meagher; marked

Ex. K)
Q. Do you recollect whether at any stage, in one or other of these conversations 

with Mr. Alien, he said anything to you about the requirements of the State 
Electricity Commission of Victoria in relation to letters of credit? A. Yes.

Q. When did he say that to you? A. At the telephone conversation on the 19th 10 
March, 1963 (sic).

Q. Can you tell us what he said to you about that? A. He said that—at that time 
your Honour, he had not mentioned or identified the parties concerned. He said that 
the lending company required a clean letter of credit from the bank as security for a 
loan which it was to make in this transaction.

Q. Did he say anything to you about local banks and overseas banks? A. Yes, 
he informed me that, or said that if our bank would issue a local letter of credit in 
favour of the lending body, that our security would be a letter of credit from the 
First National Bank of Boston.

Q. In par. 4 of your affidavit you, having previously given an account of your 20 
conversation with Mr. Alien, said the bank issued a letter of credit in favour of the 
State Electricity Commission of Victoria in the sum of $500,000 (shown Ex. A). 
(Letter dated 8th April, 1969 from the Bank to Patrick & Co. called for: produced: 
tendered together with memo for the telegraphic department dated 9th April 1969, 
a copy of a telex to Melbourne office of the bank dated 9th April 1969 and a copy 
of a letter dated 9th April 1969 from the plaintiff to Patrick & Company tendered: 

objected to by Mr. Meagher: subject to objection marked Ex. L.)
Mr. Gleeson: Part of that bundle of documents is a memo for the telegraphic 

department dated 9th April 1969; that is an internal bank memorandum.
Mr. Lockhart: I object to the 9th April 1969 memo as being an internal docu- 30 

ment, and the telex.
His Honour: It is not signed by this witness?
Mr. Lockhart: No. And the telex of the 9th April.
His Honour: What do you say about those documents, Mr. Gleeson?
Mr. Gleeson: There is in evidence the requisition from Patrick & Co., Ex. A, 

for the issue of a letter of credit, and we would submit that it is open to the bank to 
prove in evidence what it did in satisfaction of an answer to that request.

His Honour: But surely only on an objective basis. I think I should reject those 
two documents, with the result that Ex. L will simply be two letters from the Com­ 
mercial Banking Co. of Sydney to Patrick & Company dated 8th and 9th April 40 
1969, respectively.

Mr. Gleeson: Q. Mr. Blackett, you recollect that you gave evidence of a con­ 
versation you had with Mr. Alien on 19th March 1969, and then you said in your 
affidavit that the bank issued a letter of credit? A. Yes.

Q. You have in front of you the document which is the requisition? A. Yes.
Q. For the issue of the letter of credit. There is some handwriting in the margin 

of that document. Whose handwriting is that? A. To the best of my knowledge it is 
Mr. Gillespie's.

Q. Who is Mr. Gillespie? A. Mr. Gillespie was an officer in the overseas depart­ 
ment of the bank at that time. 50

Q. In relation to the issue of the letter of credit, did you have some discussions
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with people in the overseas department of the bank about the form of the First 
National Bank's letter of credit? A. Yes.

Q. Subsequent to those discussions was something done about the form of the 
requisition for the letter of credit that was to be signed by Patrick & Company? 
,4. Yes.

Q. Can you tell his Honour how it came about in terms of the events that 
actually happened that par. (j) which is in the document in front of you is in the 
document? (objected to by Mr. Lockhart and Mr. Meagher.)

His Honour: Mr. Lockhart, why do you object?
10 Mr. Lockhart: I object because, by being asked how it came about, he may be 

giving an answer relating material quite beyond his own knowledge.
Mr. Gleeson: Q. I only want to ask you what role you played in the matter?
Mr. Meagher: 1 object on a different basis from Mr. Lockhart, it has got nothing 

to do with my client.
His Honour: The general basis?
Mr. Meagher: Yes.
His Honour: That will be noted.
Mr. Gleeson: Q. Did you yourself see the form of requisition for letter of credit 

that was signed by Patrick & Company? A. Yes.
20 Q. Did you yourself see the form of letter of credit that was actually issued by 

the First National Bank of Boston? A. I believe I did, Mr. Gleeson, but I can't say 
definitely.

Q. In whose favour was the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit? 
A. In favour of Patrick & Company.

Q. You gave evidence of a conversation that you had with Mr. Alien about the 
letter of credit being issued in your favour, in favour of the bank? A. Yes.

Q. When you ascertained that the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit 
was in favour of Patrick & Company what did you do?

Mr. Meagher: I object to this. It will certainly slow up proceedings if I object 
30 to every single sentence.

His Honour: Yes, I think we can stop. I am concerned that Mr. Gleeson will 
land himself in some evidentiary problem. I think we can note that Mr. Meagher 
objects to evidence of this kind as against his client.

Witness: To the best of my knowledge the matter was referred to me by our— 
either our international or overseas department, and in view of the fact that the First 
National Bank of Boston was in favour of Patrick & Company we decided that it was 
necessary for the requisition, for the local letter of credit to be established in favour 
of the lending company, which would be signed by Patrick & Company to be suitably 
worded to tie in the— 

40 Mr. Lockhart: I object to this, your Honour—"We decided that".
Mr. Gleeson: Q. Are you talking about a decision you took? A. Yes.
Mr. Lockhart: I object to it unless it is something he wrote.
His Honour: It is not a question of what he decided but a question of what he 

did or said.
Mr. Gleeson: Q. You have told us I think that it came to your notice that the 

First National Bank letter was in favour of Patrick & Company? A. Yes.
Q. What did you do about that? A. I asked the—either the international depart­ 

ment or the overseas department to see what could be done about the matter.
Q. Did they report back to you that something had been done about the matter? 

50 ,4. Yes.
His Honour: I don't think he should tell us what.
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Mr. Gleeson: Q. They reported back to you? A. Yes.
Q. Subsequently did the requisition from Patrick Partners (sic) issue in the form 

of the document in front of you? A. Yes.
His Honour: Q. Where was, for instance, the Bank's letter of credit kept—by 

the bank, by your bank? A. Your Honour, I can't answer that, at that time.
Mr. Gleeson: Q. Were the bank's solicitors consulted about the form of that 

requisition? A. Not to my knowledge.
(Following documents produced on discovery by First defendants called for: 

copy letter dated 9th April 1969 from Patrick & Co. to First Leasing, copy 
letter dated 9th April 1969 from Patrick & Company to the S.E.C.V., a re- 10 
ceipt on Patrick & Co. letter head apparently signed for First Leasing dated 
9th April 1969, letter from the bank to Patrick & Co. dated 9th April 1969, 
copy letter from Patrick & Co. to the bank dated 9th April 1969 and a 
document headed "Terms and conditions, special deal No. 1": produced:

tendered)
Mr. Lockhart: I object to one of them.
Mr. Meagher: I object to all but two. I do not object to the letter of 9th April 

1969 from Patricks to First Leasing or to the receipt of 9th April 1969 signed by 
somebody on behalf of First Leasing.

Mr. Lockhart: I object to the one marked for discovery purposes. B. 10, it is white 20 
foolscap size, on the basis it has not, at least as yet, been identified.

Mr. Gleeson: I would ask my learned friend to identify it then. If it was not 
identified it was because it was not in the affidavit of discovery.

Mr. Lockhart: I am told it was discovered and is identified in the document for 
discovery. I am just checking as to how it was. It is described apparently as a bundle, 
and the bundles were simply dealt with in that way. I object to it; it was a document 
produced by us on discovery but has not been identified.

His Honour: But you are obliged to identify it.
Mr. Lockhart: In due course it will be going in in any event, but I would want 

your Honour to know what it is from the person in question before it goes into 30 
evidence. It makes no sense to your Honour if your Honour sees it now.

His Honour: Why can't I let Mr. Gleeson administer an interrogatory on the floor 
of the court and ask you what it is.

Mr. Lockhart: He would not have to do that. I object, your Honour, on the basis 
it is simply an internal note of one of the members of Patrick & Company, as they 
then were, clearly related to the loan of $500,000 that was arranged in April 1969, 
but that does not make it admissible; it is simply a note within Patrick Partners.

His Honour: I will have a look at it.
Mr. Lockhart: It is not very significant, frankly, but it is simply not admissible, 

I would submit to any issue in this case, being an internal note. 40
His Honour: I propose to admit all documents. Those not excluded by Mr. 

Meagher, subject to his general objection. They will be Ex. M.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

Mr. Lockhart: Q. You have Ex. A in front of you, and you have given evidence 
as to that marginal note? A. Yes.

Q. In Mr. Gillespie's handwriting? A. Yes, I believe so, yes.
Q. Is Mr. Gillespie a gentleman who, in April 1969, was in the accounts depart­ 

ment of the bank? A. No, in the overseas department.
Q. Overseas department? A. Yes.
Q. Your note reads, doesn't it, "accounts have added item (j)" A. "Accountees" 50 

I think it is.
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Q. Accountees—ees. Was there a department in the bank in 1969 called 
Accountees department? A. No.

Q. What does the word "accountees" mean? A. Well, I must confess it is the 
first time I saw the word itself, but obviously, I think in the context of this, it is 
Patrick & Company; that is only a deduction.

Q. Item (j) is added at the bottom of the document; Ex. A was a form of words, 
I think you have said, that was suggested by the bank to Patrick & Company. Isn't 
that right? A, I didn't say "suggested" Mr. Lockhart.

Q. It was the bank's wording, Item—A. It was agreed to. Whether it was agreed
10 —whether it was suggested—done by the bank or Patrick & Company because I

believe that at that time there were some discussions with Patrick & Company so—
Q. Anyhow, you don't know, is that right, who the accountees are, but you 

think it might have been Patrick & Company? A. Well, only from deduction, yes.
Q. Just let us be clear about what the note says; it is not easy to decipher. Is it 

"Accountees have added item (j)" as it is not easy to match with First National Bank 
of Boston", followed by the words "Boston account"? A. Boston, yes.

Q. What is the next symbol? A. Letter of credit.
Q. L/C? ,4. That's right.
Q. S 10971, is it? A. Yes. 

20 Q. What is the next word? A. Owing to—
Q. —different— A. —documentation.
Q. Documentation? A. That's correct, yes.
Q. That form of words which is in Ex. (j) is a form of words that has been 

carried across to all subsequent requisitions of Patrick & Company and P.I.A.L. where 
they have requisitioned your bank for a letter of credit, save for the identification 
of the particular numbering in the letter of credit, is that right? A. I understand that 
is the position.

His Honour: I do not think he had anything to do with 1973.
Witness: That is correct, your Honour.

30 Mr. Lockhart: Q. When did you cease to have anything to do with Patrick & 
Company's dealings with the bank in relation to letters of credit? A. I could not 
answer that, Mr. Lockhart.

Q. Can you tell us the year? A. Well, my difficulty, your Honour, is that Mr. 
Alien could quite easily have rung me on the phone, telephoned me in connection 
with a letter of credit matter, and it could have been 1969, it could have been 1971, 
it could have been other times. I would not like to be pin pointed and this is—

Q. This is the final word you had with Mr. Alien regarding letters of credit issued 
by the bank?

His Honour: Q. When did you retire? A. 1972, your Honour. 
40 Q. 19127 A. ~2, yes.

Mr. Lockhart: Q. When in 1972? A. 14th April 1972.
Q. You gave evidence this morning, in answer to a question of Mr. Gleeson's 

about a conversation with Mr. Alien on 19th March 1969, do you recall that? A. Yes.
Q. You said this this morning, that Mr. Alien said to you that "Our security 

would be a letter of credit from the First National Bank of Boston"? A. Yes.
Q. Is that, as you best recall it, the words that he used, or words to that effect? 

A. Words to that effect.
Q. You are, I gather, as a banker, experienced in relation to matters concerning 

letters of credit? A. No, I don't profess to be, Mr. Lockhart.
50 Q. When the expression "letter of credit in favour of the bank" is used— A. 

Yes.
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Q. —you take that to mean, don't you, a letter of credit issued by a banker, 
other than yourself, where your bank is named as beneficiary? A. Yes.

Q. Have you any knowledge of occasions when brokers in the world of finance 
in Sydney have acted as a mere intermediary in the sense of an agent only where 
they have brought together the lender and brought together the borrower, but them­ 
selves play no role as principal? A. Yes, I have, but this is only hearsay only.

Q. You have had some knowledge of it but only through hearsay? A. Yes.
Q. Have you had any experience yourself where your bank is concerned of a 

letter of credit to a lending body and in turn your bank received the letter of credit 
from another bank in favour of your bank, so that the lending body lends direct to 10 
the borrower, not being a broker, the lending body taking as his security your bank's 
letter of credit and you taking as your security a letter of credit from the borrower's 
bank in your favour? A. I have had no personal knowledge of that.

Q. But you know of that occurring, do you? A. No, I can't say that I do.
Q. You just don't know? A. Just don't know.

(Luncheon adjournment)
His Honour: Q. You are bound by the oath you took before lunch. Do you 

understand? A. Yes, sir.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. (Approached) I show you a document. Is it in Mr. Gillespie's 

handwriting? A. I am not an expert but I would agree it is his in my opinion. I don't 20 
know.

Q. You think it is Mr. Gillespie's? A. In my opinion it is his but I am not sure.
Q. Well, you have seen his handwriting before, haven't you? A. I have seen it on 

this requisition this afternoon. I haven't seen his handwriting for 5 or 6 years I would 
imagine.

(Agreed that the pencil handwriting is Mr. Gillespie's on Ex. 1)
(Local documentary credit requisition tendered against the plaintiff only and admitted

as Ex. 1)
Q. You told his Honour before the luncheon adjournment, as I recall it, that 

the letter of credit that came back from the Boston Bank No. SI0971 dated 28th 
March, 1969 was referred to the Overseas Department, is that right? A. It came back 30 
—did you use that term?

Q. You tell me now. It came into your possession, did it? A. It came to us. It did 
not come back to us. We only received it once, yes.

Q. Did the letter of credit from the Boston bank No. SI0971 come into your 
possession? A. Into the bank's possession?

Q. Your own physical possession? A. No, not that I recall.
Q. At any rate, you referred a question to the Overseas Department? A. Yes.
Q. What was the question you referred? A. To the best of my recollection—can 

I give an explanation, your Honour, just here? 40
Q. Look, can you answer it as to what the question was referred to then or not? 

If not, I will not press you to answer it? A. It was referred to me in the nature that 
they received the credit and they referred the matter to me in the first place and we 
discussed it.

Q. The Overseas Department referred the matter to you and you referred it back 
to them, did you? A. We discussed it. It was the Overseas and the International 
Departments.

Q. Is that the same Department? A. No, they are separate departments.
Q. Did you have any discussions referable to the letter of credit that was 

established by your bank in favour of the Electricity Commission of Victoria in 50 
April 1969? You know the one I am referring to, do you? A. Yes.
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Q. With anyone from Patrick & Company other than Mr. Alien. A. None to 
my knowledge and I don't know that I discussed it with Mr. Alien so far as that 
letter of credit was concerned.

Q. You could have had a discussion but you do not recall having one, is that 
right? A. I can't recall one.

Q. Would you look at Ex. K. That is your note of the conversation with Mr. 
Alien on 8th May, 1969, is it? A. Yes.

Q. Do you see in the second paragraph you have recorded this: "He was 
advised also that we would need to see the terms of the backing credit from the 

10 First National Bank of Boston before we would issue our own credit and Mr. Alien 
agreed that this would be the position." A. Yes.

Q. May I take it that to the best of your recollection the words that you used 
were "backing credit from the First National Bank of Boston"? A. Yes, I would 
say this would be correct.

Q. You would have regarded it as understood, what was said by he to you and by 
you to him? A. Yes.

Q. First leasing Australia Limited was a customer of your bank, was it not? A. 
Yes.

Q. Do you know when it first opened its account? A. No, I have no knowledge of 
20 that.

Q. Was it a customer, as you recall it, throughout the whole of your term 
as Assistant General Manager of the bank? A. No, I couldn't say.

Q. It is correct, isn't it, to say that the charges for the bank's establishing the 
letter of credit in favour of the Electricity Commission of Victoria, that is Letter 
of Credit LD 920 dated 9th April, 1969, the one I have been talking about? A. The 
date again would you mind?

Q. 9th April, 1969? A. Thank you.
Q. Those charges were debited by the bank to Patrick & Co, were they not? A.

I haven't any evidence that they have but I assume. This would be usual practice.
30 Q. And the Commission charged was $2,500 per annum, was it not? A. No,

it was one quarter of one per cent per annum. That was the first credit. The second
credit was 2,500.

Q. (Approached) I show you copy of a part of Ex. L and you see the reference, 
do you, to the letter of 9th April, 1969 from the bank to Patrick & Co, the reference 
to debiting their account 75 cents for the cost of a telegraphic advice? A. Yes.

Q. And $1,250 being "our commission charge"? A. Yes.
Q. Is that the quarter of one per cent? A. That would be the amount that we 

agreed on.
Q. And that would be the charge for your establishing the letter of credit in 

40 favour of the State Electricity Commission of Victoria? A. That would be correct.
Q. Is it also correct to say that in relation to the letter of credit that 

was established by your bank in favour of the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria a little later in 1969, namely, 16th May, 1969, by Letter of Credit 936— 
do you know the one I am referring to? A. I haven't seen that one but I understand 
that is correct.

Q. Do you mean you understand that whenever your bank established a letter of 
credit in favour of the Electricity Commission of Victoria that where Patrick & Co. 
were involved it was their account that would be debited with the commission charges 
of the bank? A. That would be my understanding, yes.

50 Q. And the percentage of a quarter of one per cent is a percentage per annum, 
is it not? A. No, that is upon negotiations. That could happen on only one occasion.
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I am sorry, the quarter per cent or the 15 per cent?
Q. The quarter of one per cent? A. No, that was a per annum basis, yes.
Q. During the life of the letter of credit? A. That's correct.
Q. What other costs were there, if any, that were charged to Patrick & Co by 

the bank for establishing letters of credit in favour of the Electricity Commission? 
A. I assume there would be telegram costs. Those would be the main costs in this 
particular case plus the Commission charges, the establishment fee.

RE-EXAMINATION
Mr. Gleeson: Q. (By leave) When Mr. Alien telephoned you in March 1969 I 

think at that time you were not actually the Manager of the Sydney office of the 10 
bank? A. That is correct.

Q. But you had been the manager of the Sydney office of the bank? A. Yes.
Q. And you had known Mr. Alien in that capacity? A. Yes
Q. He then for some reason rang you instead of ringing the manager? A. Yes.
Q. And you were content to deal with him on that basis? A. Yes. 

FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION
Mr. Lockhart: Q. You said before the luncheon adjournment that so far as you 

can recall the bank did not consult its solicitors? A. Yes.
Q. Over the matters relating to that note J to the form of requisition for the 

establishment of a letter of credit? A. Yes. 20
Q. May I take it that not only were your bank's solicitors not consulted but, so 

far as you know, advice was not sought from any legal department that you have in 
the bank on that matter? A. That would be correct.

(Witness retired & excused) 
ROBERT DENNIS WHITHAM 

Sworn and examined
Mr. Gleeson: Q. Is your full name Robert Dennis Whitham? A. Yes.
Q. Do you live at 3 Glencester Court, Bulleen in Victoria? A. Yes.
Q. You were employed by the defendant First Leasing & Finance Ltd from 

May 1973 until December 1974 I think? A. Yes. 30
Q. What was your position with that company? A. I was Administration and 

Funding Director.
Q. During your time with the company I think thtat the shares in First Leasing 

were owned as to 50 per cent by the First National Bank of Boston and as to 50 per 
cent by interests connected with the Reinehr family? A. Yes.

Q. Who was the man principally in charge of the business of First Leasing? 
A. Mr. Frank Reinehr.

Q. Did First Leasing occupy in Melbourne a group of offices that provided 
accommodation not only for it but for the First National Bank of Boston and other 
subsidiary or related companies of the bank? A. Yes, it did. 40

Q. Did the Sydney firm of stockbrokers of Patrick Partners have an office in 
Melbourne at that time? A. Yes.

Q. Did Patrick Intermarine also have an office at their offices? A. I assume so.
Q. Did you from time to time in your capacity with First Leasing communicate 

with persons from Patrick Partners and Patrick Intermarine? A. Yes.
Q. Who was the person in charge of the Melbourne office of Patrick Partners? 

A. Roy Course.
Q. May we take it that your dealings with Patrick Partners on behalf of First 

Leasing and Patrick Intermarine were usually over the telephone? A. Yes.
Q. And who would you normally speak to? A. Owen Grogan. 50
Q. What was the main business of First Leasing in the time you were with it?
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A. Financial Leasing.
Q. Do you mean by that leasing of equipment and motor vehicles and the like? 

.4. Yes.
Q. And the role of a financier? A. Yes.
Q. I think you have told us that you were the Administration and Funding 

Director of First Leasing while you were there. What was the source from which 
First Leasing used to obtain its funds for the purpose of its business? A. Two sources. 
One principal, the other subsidiary. The main source of money came through money 
market and broking circles. Occasionally there was a flow of money from clients. 

10 Q. In relation to the latter comment that you make, do you mean that from 
time to time big clients of First Leasing if they had spare money available them­ 
selves might put it on deposit with First Leasing? A. Yes, I mean that.

Q. You made a remark about the money market. Could you just explain to his 
Honour what you mean by the money market, what it was and how it operated? A. 
Well, the money market—I'm trying to think of the right word—corners comes to 
my mind but I don't know if it is the right word. The money market dealers have 
access to sources of funds. Having established that funds are available, they then seek 
to place those funds on behalf of the lender and take a commission out of the middle.

Q. Out of the middle? A. Yes, they introduce the lender to the borrower for a 
20 commission.

Q. Did First Leasing itself from time to time engage in money market operations 
of the kind that you have described as well as looking to the money market for a 
source of its own funding? A. No.

His Honour: Q. From what you have said I suppose, as you understand it, the 
relationship might be one of principal and agent between the borrower and the 
broker and, likewise, between the lender and the broker or the broker may be a 
principal? A. I have always been of the opinion that the broker was the agent.

Q. And acted only as an agent? A. Yes.
Mr. Gleeson: Q. When First Leasing used to look to the money market to 

30 obtain funds for its ordinary business operations, what did it have to offer as security 
for loans that it was obtaining? A. The support of the First National Bank of Boston 
through their making available a letter of credit.

Q. Was that the general form of security that First Leasing would provide when 
it sought this funding? (Objected to by Mr. Meagher: question withdrawn)

Q. Apart from the particular transaction that we are looking at in this case, were 
there other borrowings by First Leasing on the security of letters of credit from the 
First National Bank of Boston? A. Yes.

Q. And in relation to activities in the money market at the time you were with 
First Leasing were you aware of limitations that existed in relation to the acceptability 

40 of letters of credit from a foreign bank? A. Yes.
Q. What were those limitations? (Objected to by Mr. Meagher and Mr. Lock- 

hart: objections withdrawn)
Q. During your time at First Leasing were you aware that a number of 

institutions such as the State Electricity Commission of Victoria, who provided the 
source of funds that went on to the money market, would not accept as security a 
letter of credit issued by an overseas bank? A. Yes, I was aware of that.

Q. In cases such as that, bearing in mind that you told us that the main support
that First Leasing had in this fund raising was its support from First National Bank,
did First Leasing and First National Bank have a practice as to how they overcame

50 that problem? (Objected to by Mr. Meagher—question allowed) A. Would you mind
repeating that.
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Q. In such a case did First National Bank of Boston and First Leasing have a 
practice as to how they overcame that difficulty? A. First Leasing did.

Q. What was the practice? A. That was to seek a back to back arrangement.
Q. Is the expression "back to back arrangement" one that was in common usage 

in the money market in 1973? A. Yes.
Q. What did you understand it to mean—(Objected to by Mr. Meagher— 

question allowed) A. I understood it to mean that if I provided a local bank with a 
Boston letter of credit that in turn I would be issued with a local bank letter of credit.

His Honour: Q. What do you mean if you provided the local bank with a 
Boston letter of credit? A. If, through the resources of First National Bank of Boston 10 
a letter of credit was established in favour of a local bank, that local bank would in 
turn make their letter of credit available to my nominee.

Q. You were talking about the letter of credit from the Boston Bank in favour 
of the local bank? A. Yes.

Q. It was to be the beneficiary? A. Yes.
Q. In those circumstances who would hold that letter of credit? A. The local 

bank.
Mr. Gleeson: Q. In a situation such as you have described, what would be the 

commercial purpose for which the back to back arrangement would be made? A. 
To have access to funds otherwise unavailable. 20

Q. Funds from whom? A. From institutions whose charter prohibited them from 
accepting the overseas letter of credit as security.

Q. Did you understand the S.E.C.V. to be one such institution? A. Yes, I knew 
that.

Mr. Gleeson: I call for inter-office memorandum dated 7th March, 1973, pro­ 
duced on discovery by Mr. Meagher's clients (produced).

Q. I show you a document said to be a memo dated 7th March, 1973. Do you 
recognise the ink writing at the bottom of the document? A. Yes, I do.

Q. Whose writing is that? A. Frank Reinehr's.
Q. Whose initials are "F.I.R."? A. Francis lan Reinehr. 30
Q. Whose initials are "R.J.A."? A. Ronald J. Ashbolt.
Q. Who is Ashbolt? A. He was at that time the administrative manager of First 

Leasing.
(Document tendered—objected to by Mr. Lockhart)

His Honour: I will admit it subject to your objection, Mr. Lockhart. 
(Document admitted and marked Ex. N)

Mr. Gleeson: Q. Were you aware prior to August 1973 that there was a loan of 
$1.5 million to First Leasing that fell due for repayment in August 1973? A. Yes.

Q. It being a loan that had originally been made in 1969? A. Yes.
Q. Were you aware of the source of the loan funds? A. Yes. 40
Q. What do you know to be the source of the loan funds? A. S.E.C.V.
Q. Did you then, during or prior to August 1973, have some discussions with 

somebody from Patrick Intermarine with respect to repayment or renegotiation of the 
loan? A. Just a very short time before the loan was due to be repaid I had discussions 
with Owen Grogan.

Q. What did you say to Mr. Grogan and what did he say to you? A. I think he 
started the conversation. He rang me to say that the loan which was expected to be 
repaid was not now needed to be repaid, provided First Leasing wished to continue the 
loan. The point of the rate was discussed and I indicated to Owen Grogan that I 
would just think about it for a short time and come back to him and let him know 50 
what we were going to do. After negotiating the rate I remember we adjusted the
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rate downwards because I was aware of what S.E.C.V. were charging for that type of 
money.

Q. How did you become aware of that? A. Because I was arranging a $2 million 
loan through J. B. Weir & Son of Melbourne for First Leasing from S.E.C.V.

Q. At the time this loan with which we are concerned in this case fell due for 
repayment and you were negotiating the renewal of the loan, at the same time you 
were negotiating through Weir's for a loan from the S.E.C.V.? A. Yes.

Q. I am sorry, I interrupted you? A. Being aware of what I was doing through
Weirs, I was able to negotiate Patrick's commission downwards a fraction to make

10 the two loans come together as to rate and, after discussion at First Leasing, we
agreed to roll over the $1.5 million. I indicated that to Owen Grogan. We discussed
security.

Q. What was said about security? A. I asked Owen if he needed a new letter of 
credit from him from the First National Bank in full and he said he did not think 
that was necessary, that all that was necessary was to amend the existing letter of 
credit, to insert "Patrick Intermarine" in place of "Patrick & Company" and to 
change the description of the terms of the new borrowing.

Q. The existing letter of credit in that context was the one that was issued in 
1969? A. Yes.

20 Q. It actually became necessary to repay the $1.5 million in August 1973 I 
think? A. Yes.

Q. How did that come about? A. The documentation from Boston was fraction­ 
ally late, I cannot recall precisely, but it was a day or two days late and without the 
facility made available from the C.B.C. there would have been a lack of security for 
that short time of the money not being repaid.

Q. What was this facility that the C.B.C. made available? A. It was what I call 
an overnight facility to enable us to cover the security situation until such time as 
the letter of credit issued out of Boston.

Q. Do you mean by that that First Leasing in fact repaid the amount of the loan 
30 and to enable it to do that it was extended for a short term, what you call an over­ 

night facility by the Commercial Banking Company? A. Yes.
Q. First Leasing I think was a customer of the Commercial Banking Company in 

Melbourne? A. Yes, for quite some time.
Q. What ultimately happened so far as you were concerned with respect to the 

August 1973 transaction? A. The letter of credit arrived, the money was received.
Q. When you say the letter of credit arrived, you mean the document extended 

the letter of credit? A. Yes, the amended letter of credit, or rather the amendments 
arrived. They were acceptable; the money was exchanged and the CBC was 
reimbursed.

40 Q. At the time when you arranged this August 1973 transaction that you have 
told us about, what was your understanding as to what, if any, use was being made 
of the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit—(Objected to by Mr. Meagher 
—question allowed) A. My understanding of it was that it would have to be used in 
a back to back arrangement to enable the borrowing to be made.

His Honour: Q. The beneficiary was Patrick Partners and Patrick & Co? A. 
Yes.

Q. How did you envisage it being done? It was not the CBC? A. No, 
it was Patrick.

Q. Would you have any chance of enabling your understanding to be fulfilled?
50 A. To enable the money to flow to us SECV would require the Australian letter of

credit, therefore if Patrick Intermarine in this case was getting the Boston letter of
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credit, as my understanding is, they would need to use it in some way to obtain 
the Australian letter of credit to make the funds flow.

Q. But you did not know how precisely? A. No, I did not.
Q. And you did not turn your mind to that question? A. No, it was more on the 

assumption as to what was going on generally in the market.
Q. Were there letters of credit that came from the First National Bank of Boston 

and which made banks, such as the CBC, their beneficiary? A. Yes.
Mr. Gleeson: I call for some lists of documents produced on discovery, being 

lists of letters of credit. (Produced)
(Three documents: (1) Headed "F.L.A. borrowing as at June 4th, 1974"; 10 
(2) Headed "List of letters of credit issued by F.N.B.B. on behalf of F.L.A. as at 
April 11, 1974"; (3) headed "F.L.A. letters of credit issued by F.N.B.B. Boston

September 11,1974" tendered.)
Mr. Lockhart: I object to the three documents on the basis they are not 

admissible against my client.
His Honour: Subject to Mr. Lockhart's objection the three documents will be 

admitted and marked Ex. O.
Mr. Gleeson: I call for discovery documents D.27 and D.28—(produced). 

First Leasing—(produced).
I call for letter dated 15th August, 1973 from Patrick Partners to First Leasing 20

(Letter dated 15th August Patrick Partners to First Leasing tendered and marked
Ex. P)

(Two documents produced on discovery by the first defendant, both bearing date 15th 
August, 1973, both being copies of a letter written on that date from Patrick Partners 
to the State Electricity Commission of Victoria, but one of them having some hand­ 

writing on it that the other does not have, tendered and marked Ex. Q) 
(Undated documents produced on discovery by the first defendant being discovery 
documents D.27 and D.28 tendered—objected to by Mr. Meagher—tender

withdrawn) 30 
CROSS-EXAMINATION

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Do I understand you to say that you regarded the role of 
Patrick and Co. in relation to the loan from Patrick & Co. to First Leasing, which is 
the subject of the letter of credit from the Boston Bank in favour of Patrick & Co. 
dated 13th August 1969 number 11085, the role of Patrick & Co. was that of a mere 
agent? A. I have not considered that document, because I was not employed by First 
Leasing in those days.

Q. In relation to the letter of credit no. 1346, which was as it were the roll over 
letter of credit issued by the Boston Bank on 10th August 1973 of PIAL, do you 
regard the role of P.I.A.L. as merely that of an agent and not as a principal? A. I 40 
did.

His Honour: Q. In every case? A. I don't understand what you mean by every 
case.

Q. Well, wherever they negotiated a loan at this time? A. No, I thought the 
question refers specifically to the negotiations that I was involved in.

Mr. Lockhart: Q. But you regarded that negotiation which led to the letter of 
credit of 16th August 1973 from the Boston Bank as being really only a rolling over 
of the letter of credit that had been established on 13th August 1969? A. Yes.

Q. The only difference that you thought applied was that the beneficiary was 
different, in that in the 1969 arrangements it was Patrick & Co., under the 1973 50 
arrangements it was P.I.A.L. and that the amounts were different because of an
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interest differential, is that right? A. Yes.
Q. You said to his Honour words to the effect that in August of 1973 that you 

had before you the requisite material that enabled you to determine what the interest 
was that was being charged by S.E.C. against Patrick & Co. under the August 1969 
loan, is that right? A. No.

Q. You learnt that the source of the moneys that were loaned by Patrick & Co. 
to First Leasing in August of 1969 was the State Electricity Commission of Victoria 
is that right? A. Yes.

Q. When did you first learn that? A. June or July, 1973. 
10 Q. From whom did you learn it? A. I am unable to say.

Q. You mean you don't remember? A. No.
Q. Do you mean you have no recollection now of who it was that told you or 

how you learnt it? A. No, I don't have any recollection.
Q. Are you certain of that? A. Yes, that is my recollection.
Q. That you have no recollection? A. Yes.
Q. It is not that you just do not want to reveal the source, is it? A. No.
Q. Are you sure of that? A. Yes.
Q. In the money market where a broker is, as a principle, lending money to 

his borrower it is regarded as very important that he keeps secret the identity of the 
20 lender to him, is it not? A. Yes.

Q. You had discussions with officers of the Commercial Banking Company in 
August 1973 did you not? A. Yes.

Q. Those discussions related, did they, both to the rolling over of the loan from 
Patrick & Co. to First Leasing in August of 1969 and to the loan negotiated by J. B. 
Weirs? A. Yes.

Q. You told an officer of the Commercial Banking Company in Sydney in August 
1973, did you not, that the loan of Patrick & Co. to First Leasing, which had been 
established in August 1969 which was to be rolled over was one that—(withdrawn.)

Q. You told an officer of the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney in 
30 August 1973, did you not, that the loan that Weirs had negotiated from the S.E.C. 

of Victoria direct to First Leasing was one that ought to be the subject of a broker­ 
age payment to Patrick & Co. or P.I.A.L., did you not? A. No.

His Honour: Q, When did you leave First Leasing? A. December 1974.
Q. Of course, if you be right in your understanding, you would expect First 

Leasing simply to repay the S.E.C.V., and not worry Patricks or the bank about it? 
A. The reason I answered as I did was for a different reason. 
(His Honour indicated he wished to pursue that matter. Mr. Lockhart consented.)

Witness: Is this the question as to whether I thought it was an agency arrange­ 
ment? The reason I answered as I did was that to me it was simply another borrowing 

40 of one and a half million arranged through traditional or usual sources coming into 
First Leasing. I knew the money was from S.E.C.V. I simply regarded it as money 
coming from S.E.C.V. to First Leasing. Patricks, or Patrick Intermarine as it was, 
then, were the intermediaries. In my mind at that time that was all I considered and 
then when I was examining the funding situation of First Leasing I added that money, 
to the individual money we obtained from the S.E.C.V. because to me that was the 
S.E.C.V.'s exposure to First Leasing and meant that it was unlikely that there would 
be additional funds from that source and, therefore, I would concentrate on 
subsequent borrowings in another area.

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Do you mean that you were looking at the role of Patrick & 
50 Co. of P.I.A.L. as being an intermediary in the sense of an agent only, looking at it 

as a layman, is that what you say? A. What is the alternative to a laymen?
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Q. Are you aware of whether the legal consequences of what occurred in August 
1969 in relation to the establishment of the loan to Patrick & Co. to First Leasing 
and the letter of credit from the Boston Bank to Patrick & Co. may have had a 
radically different consequence from that which you understood as being the role of 
Patrick & Co. being merely an agent, or didn't you consider that? A. I don't think I 
considered that at the time.

Q. Have you considered it since? A. Yes.
Q. What is your view now? A. That from First Leasing/Boston point of view 

the letter of credit was issued to Patricks.
Q. And when First Leasing made any repayments under the loan established in 10 

August 1969 and rolled over in August of 1973, to whom would the payments be 
made by First Leasing? A. To Patricks.

Q. Not to the state electricity commission of Victoria at all, would they? A. No, 
to Patricks.

Q. Because, as you saw it, in 1973 the lender to First Leasing was Patrick & Co. 
is that not right? A. No, that was not as I saw it.

Q. I am sorry, P.I.A.L.? A. No, that was not as I saw it. You are asking me 
what I have understood since that time.

Q. Since that time, then, do you understand that the lender to First Leasing from 
the rolled over loan August 1969 to August 1973 was not the State Electricity 20 
Commission of Victoria but P.I.A.L.? A. Yes.

Q. And payments of interest under that loan were made periodically by First 
Leasing were they not? A. Yes.

Q. And they were made to Patrick & Co. or P.I.A.L., were they not? A. I 
cannot answer, I don't know.

Q. (approaching witness.) I show you this letter, which is a copy of a letter 
dated 28th September 1973 to P.I.A.L. and that is a copy of a letter written by First 
Leasing, is it not? A. Yes.

Q. Whose initials are S.C.B.? A. Shirley Brighteak.
Q. Was she a clerk in First Leasing in September 1973? A. Yes. 30
Q, That clearly enough indicates does it not, that interest was paid by First 

Leasing to P.I.A.L. for the quarter end 30th September 1973? A. Yes, it does.
Q. It is on the loan that I have been asking you questions about, is it not? A. It 

certainly looks like it.
Q. I show you a copy of the letter of 28th December 1973, from First Leasing, is 

it not, to P.I.A.L.? A. Yes.
Q. Are they your initials, R.C.W.? A. No.
Q. Whose are they? A. Robert Wettenhall.
Q. Having read that, would you agree with me that the interest payment of 31st 

December 1973 was paid by First Leasing to P.I.A.L.? A. Yes. 40
Q. That too relates to the loan we have been discussing? A. It looks like it.
Q. I show you a copy letter of 18th July 1974 from P.I.A.L. to the secretary of 

First Leasing. Do you see that? A. Yes.
Q. Were you with First Leasing at that stage, July 1974? A. Yes.
Q. You see what its contents are, do you? A. Yes.
Q. That too relates, as you understand it, to the loan that we are discussing? A. 

Yes.
Q. I show you a copy letter of 16th August 1973 from P.I.A.L. to the secretary, 

of First Leasing, discovery reference D35. Do you see that? That is directed to your 
attention, is it not? A. Yes. 50

Q. Whose signature is that at the bottom above First Leasing's printed name?
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A. I cannot be certain it looks like Ron Ashfelt.
Q. That letter states, among other things, does it not, "that we" (that is P.I.A.L.) 

"confirm a loan negotiated with you today as follows" and set out a loan of 1.5 
million dollars, a rate of interest and a term fixed to 14th August 1975? A. Yes.

Q. It states, does it not, that as security for that loan P.I.A.L. acknowledges 
having received an irrevocable letter of credit no. SI 105 from the First National Bank 
at Boston with P.I.A.L. as beneficiary, that is right, is it not? A. Correct.

Q. It draws attention as to how interest is to be paid? A. Yes.
Q. And asked if you are in agreement to sign the attached duplicate and return 

10 it, is that right? A. Correct.
Q. And that was done, was it not? A. Yes.

(Mr. Lockhart returned to the bar.)
Q. In fact, before the loan we are discussing was rolled over in 1973, there was 

in fact a repayment of principal by First Leasing to P.I.A.L. was there not? A. No.
Q. Do you deny that? A. No, I think you are slightly mixed up with your 

Patricks are you not? P.I.A.L. was not involved then.
Q. In 1973? ,4. Yes.
Q. Was there a repayment of the 1.5 million that was owing by First Leasing 

to Patrick and Co. under the loan established in August 1969, a repayment to Patrick 
20 Partners in August of 1973? A. Yes.

Q. Then there was a fresh advance of a million and a half on P.I.A.L. to First 
Leasing soon thereafter? A. Yes.

Q. And it was that advance that was covered by the letter of credit from the 
Boston Bank no. SI 1085? A. I cannot be certain of the number. It was the same 
number as the original letter of credit. It was a continuance of the letter of credit.

Q. Were you aware in August 1973 if the interest rate that was chargeable by
S.E.C. Victoria to Patrick & Co. under the August 1969 loan differed from the
interest rate that was being charged by Patrick & Co. to First Leasing under the loan
to it from Patrick & Co. in August of 1969? A. No, I did not know the rate of the

30 earlier transaction.
Q. Do you now know? A. No.
Q. Do you know if the interest under the loan from S.E.C. to Patrick & Co. was 

payable on the same or different days as the loan from Patrick & Co. from First 
Leasing? A. I am sorry what was the question?

Q. Do you know if the interest payable by Patrick & Co. to S.E.C. Victoria under 
its August 1969 arrangements was payable on different days to the interest payable 
by First Leasing to Patrick & Co. under the loan established in August of 1969? A. 
No, I would be unaware of that situation.

Q. I suppose, for all you know, the loan from S.E.C. Victoria to Patrick & Co. 
40 that we are discussing might have had a provision allowing—(withdrawn.)

Q. Are you aware of whether the loan in August 1969 from Patrick & Co. to 
First Leasing was one, the repayments of which could be accelerated before the due 
date by Patrick & Co.? A. The reason I am taking my time there is that I am not 
certain about this, but I think there was some condition of the first borrowing that it 
may have been terminated prior to August 1973.

Q. Terminated by Patrick & Co.? A. Yes.
Q. You don't know whether there was any such term in the loan arrangement 

between S.E.C. Victoria and Patrick and Co. do you? A. No.
Q. (witness shown Ex. P.) That is a letter you have seen before is it not? A. Yes. 

50 Q. Indeed was it you who authorized the payment to Patrick & Partners of the 
money therein referred to $1,514,101.03? A. Quite likely.
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Q. Can you help us more than that or not? A. I really cannot help you it may 
have been Frank Reinehr if it was not myself. It would have been either Frank 
Reinehr or myself.

Q. So one or other of you authorized the payment to Patrick Partners of that 
sum I mentioned, which the principal sum plus the final interest payment of 
$14,101.037/4. Yes.

Q. Mr. Reinehr was he the managing director in August 1973 of First Leasing? 
A. Yes.

Q. It was your view, was it not, in August 1973 that if first Leasing, should de­ 
fault in the loan from P.I.A.L. to it that was made in August 1973 the person who 10 
could have recourse to First Leasing for its default would be P.I.A.L., is that so? A. 
Yes.

Q, Not the State Electricity Commission of Victoria could it? A. No.
Q. No payments whatever were made, were they, by First Leasing to the State 

Electricity Commission of Victoria in relation to the loan of one and a half million 
dollars from P.I.A.L. to First Leasing established in August 1973? A. I could not 
answer that without an examination of the records there.

Q. You know of no such payment, do you? A. Not to my memory.
Q. Can you really have any doubt as to whether there could have been pay­ 

ments made by First Leasing direct to the State Electricity Commission of Victoria 20 
referable to the loan of one and a half million dollars established in August 1973 
where the lender was P.I.A.L. and the borrower was First Leasing? A. The only 
reason—I agree it is unlikely. The only reason it may be is if it was a request to do 
so.

Q. Request by whom? A. P.I.A.L.
Q. Without the authority of P.I.A.L., it was your view that no such payment 

could have been made is that right? A. Yes.
Q. You don't suggest, do you, that P.I.A.L. was not a principal in its loan of 

that one and a half million dollars to First Leasing in August 1973? A. Now or then?
Q. We will take now first? A. No, they appear to be the principal. 30
Q. There is no doubt about it, is there, in your mind? A. I don't know that I am 

really confident to answer that.
Q. Do you mean it may be a legal question? A. Yes.
Q. Was there any doubt in your mind back in August 1973 as to whether the 

principal in the loan from P.I.A.L. to First Leasing was P.I.A.L.? A. It was not a 
question of doubt, it was a question of whether I considered I was simply borrowing 
money from the S.E.C.V. through Patricks.

Q. But, in fact, you had no contractual arrangement in relation to that loan of 
any kind with the S.E.C. of Victoria, did you? (withdrawn.)

Q. You mentioned earlier in your evidence a loan was negotiated by Weirs 40 
which came to fruition at about the same time as the loan from P.I.A.L. to First 
Leasing in August of 1973? A. Yes.

Q. That also was for a million and a half dollars, was it not? A. Two million.
Q. That was a loan, was it not, that was in fact made direct by the S.E.C. to First 

Leasing? A. Yes.
Q. The lender, as you understand it, was S.E.C. and the borrower First Leasing? 

A. Yes.
Q. May I take it that any payments of principal or interest that have been made 

under it have been made by First Leasing so far as you know direct to the S.E.C.? 
,4. Yes. , 50

Q. Weirs performed the role of a pure broker, did they not? A. Yes.
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Mr. Lockhart: Q. They acted as a catalyst in bringing the two parties together, 
is that right? A. Yes.

Q. And they received for that a brokerage fee? A. Yes.
Q. They received a brokerage fee and P.I.A.L. did not receive a brokerage fee, 

did they, in relation to the loan by them to First Leasing in August 19737/4. The rate 
was structured for the 1.5 million. As the base rate that I knew was negotiating with 
S.E.C.V., the cost as I understood it of a back-to-back letter of credit plus Patricks' 
commission which came to a total sum which would equate what I had organised 
through Weres. 

10 Q. Is that in your view an answer to my question. A. Yes.
Q. The only moneys that were paid by First Leasing to P.I.A.L. in relation to the 

August 1973 loan were payments of principal and of interest, is that so? A. Yes.
Q. There was no money paid as a brokerage fee whatever, was there? A. You 

would have to work those calculations out. There was 8.7 per cent, wasn't it, from 
memory from those documents?

Q. Did you discuss the calculations with anyone from P.I.A.L.? A. Yes.
Q. Who? A. Alan Grogan.
Q. They were not discussed as brokerage fees though, were they? They were 

discussed as interest, were they not? A. The final answer was interest. The method 
20 of calculating the rate included a percentage to Patricks.

Q. In effect a profit margin? A. Yes.
His Honour: Q. Did you know what that was at the time? A. Yes.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. And you found out from whom? A. By deduction and by 

discussion because—
Q. Discussion with whom? A. Alan Grogan.
Q. What did he tell you referable to that matter? A. It was a matter of my 

deduction knowing the base rate that was necessary to attract S.E.C.V. money, 
adding to that what I knew to be the cost of a back-to-back for First Leasing and 
establishing the differential—adding to that what I had paid Weres as brokerage and 

30 arriving at a sum and saying to Alan Grogan that if the deal were to proceed that he 
had to either match that or come very close in relationship to what he was first 
offering, and the only thing that could be altered was the Patrick commission.

Q. Did you make these calculations on paper? A. Quite likely, yes.
Q. Do you have that paper with you? ,4. No.
Q. What did you do with it? Did you destroy it? A. Yes, well, I couldn't 

remember but it is the type of thing I would throw in the wastepaper tin.
Q. I want you to tell his Honour as best you recall it what you and Mr. Grogan 

discussed referable to that matter? A. It is a repetition of what I have said that one of 
the aspects of rolling-over the li million was the rate. I knew what I had paid to 

40 S.E.C. through Weres and I knew what the cost of a back-to-back letter of credit 
was for First Leasing. I knew the brokerage that I paid Weres. That came to a total 
cost of borrowing through Weres and I was prepared to pay that for the other 
accommodation. Therefore there would have been discussions between Alan Grogan 
and myself to negotiate a rate, a comparable rate.

Q. Do you mean when you say there would have been such discussions that there 
were? A. Yes, my memory is that there was.

Q. A discussion? A. Yes.
Q. Are you sure it was with Mr. Grogan? A. My memory is Mr. Grogan.
Q. Could it have been Mr. Strutt? A. The name doesn't mean anything at all. 

50 Q. Whoever it was you spoke to did he say to you that P.I.A.L. could lend the 
money to First Leasing for two years at 8.7 per cent? A. That would have been
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eventually but wouldn't have been initially because I remember negotiating the rate 
down. I can't remember by how much but.
(Mr. Lockhart called for a bank memorandum of 1st August, 1973, reference B33 on

discovery.)
Q. Just read that document that I show you—it is two pages—through to your­ 

self if you would.
(Mr. Gleeson objected to the witness being cross-examined on a document which was

not his own document.)
His Honour: He can be shown the document and asked a question.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. Just read that through to yourself if you would, Mr. Whitham. 10 

(Document, as called for above, produced)
Q. You may find that the document now produced by Mr. Gleeson on p. 2 which 

has some handwriting is a little clearer than the original. Otherwise it is very difficult 
to read. (Document produced handed to the witness) You have read that document, 
have you? A. Yes, I have.

Q. Having read it can you tell me if you had any discussions with a bank officer 
in August of 1973 in which you said words to the effect—
(Objected to by Mr. Gleeson on the grounds that the witness is now being cross- 

examined on another's document)
His Honour: I always think this is difficult. I think the fear one always has is 20 

because—I do not say it is a version opposite to what is in a document that has been 
given by the witness but he may be intimidated by the very sight of a document in 
front of him. My practice is to allow it to be done but I usually tell the witness what 
I have just said. In other words, Mr. Whitham, just because you have read something 
in a document which is not yours and which may—I have no idea whether it does or 
not—conflict with what you have said, there is no reason for you not to stick to your 
guns if that is what your real recollection is. In other words Mr. Lockhart is putting 
to you a contrary version.

Witness: Yes, I have already seen it.
His Honour: It is a matter for you what you say in answer to his questions so long 30 

as it is, to the best of your recollection, the truth.
Mr. Lockhart: I will perhaps re-phrase it.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. Mr. Whitham, did you in August 1973 have a discussion with 

an officer of the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney in which you discussed 
the proposal by First Leasing to borrow money from the State Electricity Commis­ 
sion of Victoria which had been organised by J. B. Were & Son? A. Yes.

Q. And did you say to the bank officer something to the effect that it was not 
proposed by First Leasing to bring Patricks into those negotiations? A. I don't see 
how the question could have arisen. Patricks weren't involved in the negotiations. It 
was Weres. 40

Q. Did you say to the bank officer, "But should the offer be successful in 
relation to the Were loan that First Leasing were prepared to pay brokerage to 
Patricks because Patricks were responsible in putting together the previous deals 
and effecting the initial introductions"? A. No.

Q. Or words to that effect; you deny that? A. Yes, I do.
Q. Of course the loan that was organised for Weres was successful in the sense 

that it did come about, didn't it? A. Yes.
Q. And brokerage was not paid by First Leasing to Patrick Partners, Patrick & 

Co. or P.I.A.L., was it? A. As far as I was concerned there was never any considera­ 
tion of that because they just weren't involved. 50

Q. I put it to you that the bank officer to whom you spoke perhaps expressed
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concern that Patricks were not receiving some remuneration in relation to the new 
loan because they had been the initial introducers of the State Electricity Commis­ 
sion for Victoria to First Leasing? A. No, I don't understand that at all.

Q. Now, Mr. Whitham, the loan that was organised by Weres, that was a loan 
by S.E.C. Victoria to First Leasing direct for $2 million, was a loan which was the 
subject of a letter of credit being issued by the Commercial Banking Company of 
Sydney in favour of the S.E.C. of Victoria, was it not? A. Yes.

Q. Because that is what the S.E.C. of Victoria requested? A. Yes.
Q. And in turn the First National Bank of Boston issued a letter of credit in 

10 favour of the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney, did it not? A. Yes.
Q. And that is because, isn't it, there is no intermediary who is a principal in 

the transaction as you understand it? A. Yes.
Q. And that is the usual practice, isn't it, when a broker who introduces parties 

to a loan is merely a broker and in no way principal? A. Yes, that is correct.
Q. And where a broker is in truth not only the broker but also the principal it is 

the general practice, is it not, as was followed here with the August 1969 loan and 
letters of credit that was rolled-over in 1973? A. If I may answer that just a little 
differently?

Q. Please do. A. To receive moneys we would follow the request of the broker
20 as to security arrangements. I don't think we would have been thinking about these

matters that are now under consideration. So if we were requested by Weres to give
the credit to the S.E.C.V., we would have. If we had been requested by Patricks to
make it out to them, we would have.

Q. I appreciate that but if the broker who introduces the parties to the loan is 
not a mere agent but in fact is interposed as a principal—you follow what I mean, 
do you? A. Yes.

Q. Then isn't the usual practice that where letters of credit are involved a letter 
of credit will issue from a bank in favour of the lender, backed by a letter of credit 
issued by a bank in favour of the broker acting as principal? A. Look, I'm sorry, I 

30 lost that. Would you mind repeating that?
Q. Isn't the usual practice where the broker in fact is a principal—you follow 

that?/!. Yes.
Q. That if letters of credit are used a letter of credit issues from a bank to the 

lender? A. Australian bank you are talking about? Any bank?
Q. We will confine it to an Australian bank, an Australian bank to the lender, is 

that right A. Yes.
Q. And that is the lender to the broker as principal; you understand that, do you? 

A. Yes.
Q. And isn't the usual practice in that situation that where there is then a loan- 

40 on by the broker as principal to the ultimate borrower, that is backed by a letter of 
credit from a bank in favour of that broker? A. If I were a principal in that situation I 
would require the letter of credit to myself as principal.

Q. That is if you were the broker as principal? A. Just if I were the principal, you 
know. If I was the principal and the broker it would be the same answer.

His Honour: Mr. Lockhart, I have some difficulty about the use of the word 
"bank" in your question. It seems to me that is the very thing that it is not.

Mr. Lockhart: I see what your Honour means.
His Honour: I am not sure it is altogether fair to wrap that up.
Mr. Lockhart: Perhaps I will cover it again.

50 Q. In the situation I have been describing to you, Mr. Whitham, where the 
principal is the broker who advances the money on to the ultimate borrower—do
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you understand that? A. Yes.
Q. Would the usual practice be there that he required a letter of credit from a 

bank to be issued in his favour? A. Well, if he had any sense he would, yes.
Q. Because if the borrower defaults he can have recourse against the bank that 

issued the letter of credit in his favour? A. If nothing else happened in the interim, 
yes, because that is a clear situation that there is no interposition of any other party, 
is there? That is the purpose of your question?

Q. That is right, yes. A. Yes, if that is the purpose of the question he would go 
back to the issuer of the letter of credit.

His Honour: Q. Did you deal with a number of brokers or were they mainly 10 
Weres and Patricks? A. We didn't have very much dealing with Patricks. Weres, Inter- 
Company Money Markets and Money Market Dealers.

Q. What about other brokers? A. I'm sorry, I missed the question. No, there 
aren't too many brokers in the business in Melbourne.

Q. So when you talk generally in the way Mr. Lockhart has put it to you, you 
are really talking about the difference between Weres and Patricks, are you? A. Yes, 
probably. Yes, I think so; and by "brokers" do you mean sharebrokers?

Q. Yes. A. Yes, I can't remember any other sharebrokers we dealt with except 
Patricks and Weres.

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Of course there was a loan also, was there not, to First Leasing 20 
by Australian Gas Light Company in about September of 1973? A. Yes, there was.

Q. And was that a direct loan by the Gas Light Company to First Leasing? A. 
Yes.

Q. And a loan organised by a broker? A. Not a sharebroker.
Q. Not a sharebroker? A. No.
Q. But— A. But a broker.
Q. But anyhow someone in the financial community who brought the parties 

together? A. Yes, a large part of this market is outside the sharebroking fraternity.
Q. And the broker is I.C.M.M. whoever they may be? A. Yes, Inter-Company 

Money Markets. 30
Q. And that was in turn covered by letters of credit, was it not? A. Yes.
Q. Again a letter of credit from Commercial Banking Company of Sydney in 

favour of the Gas Light Company? A. I can't remember but if that was what they 
required, that is what would have been required.

Q. And the Boston bank again gave a letter of credit in favour of the 
Commercial Banking Company of Sydney? A. If that is what happened, that is what 
would have happened.

Q. Do you recall? A. No, I can't recall whether there was a back-to-back for 
that particular transaction.

Q. What do you mean by back-to-back? A. The Boston letter of credit was issued 40 
to the C.B.C. and the C.B.C. issued theirs to the lender.

His Honour: Q. So this was not back-to-back in this particular instance? A. It 
could well have been. You know, I simply can't recall that.

Q. If the Boston letter was to Patricks and the Commercial Bank's letter was to 
the S.E.C.V. it was not back-to-back in your terms? A. I see what you mean except 
that I regard that technique as back-to-back and call it as such. Is that a satisfactory 
answer? It is the technique of replacing an overseas letter of credit with an Australian 
one that I call a back-to-back arrangement.

Mr. Lockhart: Q. (Approaches witness with Ex. O) I show you Ex. O, Mr. 
Whitham, and the first document in that exhibit is dated llth September, 1974. You 50 
see that? A. Yes.
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Q. Who prepared that, do you know? A. Yes, from the initials it was 
the representative of the First National Bank of Boston.

Q. That is B.J.H.? A. Yes, Bruce Haddow.
Q. I show you the second sheet. It has some initials in ink, initials on the bottom 

right-hand corner. Do you know whose they are? A. Yes, they are mine.
Q. Did you prepare that document? A. Yes.
Q. That is the document headed "List Of Letters Of Credit Issued By F.N.B.B. 

On Behalf Of F.L.A. As At April 11, 1974", and on the third document, the last 
sheet there, it has some initials on the bottom right-hand corner. They are yours 

10 also, aren't they? A. Yes, they are.
Q. I show you on that last sheet a reference to Australian Gas Light? A. Yes.
Q. Being the fourth from the bottom in the top group. You see that? A. Yes.
Q. Repayment date? 18.11.74. A. Yes.
Q. An amount of $1 million? A. Yes.
Q. Letter of credit No. S12782? A. Yes.
Q. And the broker is described as I.C.M.M.? A. Yes.
Q. Does that assist you in indicating whether or not that loan was one that was 

the subject of a letter of credit from the Boston bank in favour of the Commercial 
Banking Company? A. No, it does not.

20 Q. It is a Boston bank letter of credit, isn't it? A. No, the heading of the page is 
"F.L.A. Borrowings".

Q. But the S number that precedes the number? A. I see.
Q. Does that indicate to you it is the Boston bank? A. It does.
Q. So that does indicate it is a Boston bank letter of credit? A. There were no 

other letters of credit supporting our loan so it had to be. They would all be Boston.
Q. I think you say Mr. Reinehr was the managing director of First Leasing? A. 

Yes.
Q. Is he still the managing director of First Leasing?^. No.
Q. Is he still, do you know, employed by that company? A. No.

30 Q. What had been your experience before you joined First Leasing in 1973 in 
relation to the money market if any, Mr. Whitham? A. Going backwards I was 
twelve months as the National Finance Controller of E. A. Watts and had a small 
amount of dealings in that year. In the fifteen years preceding that I was at various 
positions including that of Deputy Chairman of Robert Hutchison Holdings Limited 
where we had a considerable money market operation.
(Mr. Lockhart called for balance sheets and profit and loss accounts of First Leasing 
Australia Limited for the years ended 30th June, 1969, to 30th June, 1974. Mr. 
Meagher produced one such document for the year ended 31st December, 1974, and

stated that if others came to hand he would produce them.)
40 Q. (Approaches witness) I show you a document produced by First Leasing 

Australia Limited on discovery headed with that company's name "Borrowing 
Schedule As At August 10, 1972". Do you see that? A. Yes.

Q. You see a list of lenders set out? A. Yes.
Q. And do you see one Patrick Partners, $1,500,000 Australian, maturity date 

15th August, 1973 ? A. Yes, I do.
Q. It lists a number of other people as lenders, does it not? A. Yes. 

(Borrowing schedule of F.L.A. as at 10th August, 1972, admitted without objection
and marked Ex. 2)

Mr. Meagher: Q. Mr. Whitham, you were never a director of First Leasing? A. 
50 No.

Q. On quite a number of occasions when you were there First Leasing made
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borrowings from Patricks where Patricks made it clear that it was acting only as 
agent for a principal, isn't that so? A. During the time I was there?

Q. Yes. A. I can't recall.
Q. Can you recall when you were there seeing documents from Patricks relating 

to loans made in the period before you were there in circumstances where it was clear 
Patricks were acting as agent? A. No, I have no recollection of those.

Mr. Whitham: Q. In the J. B. Were borrowing the letter of credit was made out 
to Commercial Banking Company of Sydney, wasn't it? A. Yes.

Q. (Approaches witness) I am showing you one of the three documents which is 
part of Ex. O, the document headed "F.L.A. Borrowings At June 4, 1974"? A. Yes. 10

Q. There are some initials and a date at the bottom. The date is 4th June, 1974? 
/I. Yes.

Q. Are they your initials? A. Yes, they are.
Q. At that stage in relation to the 1973 loan of $1.5 million you were under the 

impression that Patricks were acting only as agents, is that right? A. Yes, I hadn't 
given any other thought to the situation.

Q. But that is why you described the lender as being the Victorian S.E.C. in 
that document? A. Yes, I think in answer to the question asked by his Honour that I 
indicated that I was—you know, that I regarded it as S.E.C. money and it meant my 
exposure out of 11.69 million to the S.E.C. was 3.5 million which was fairly sub- 20 
stantial in percentage terms and I just always regarded the money as S.E.C. money. 
It was the way I thought about it.

Q. In fact in 1974 once in the office when you referred to that transaction as 
being the S.E.C. loan you were corrected and told it was a Patrick loan, weren't you? 
A. Was I? I have got no recollection. I'm sorry, but I haven't.

Q. You have stated that fact yourself, haven't you? A. I don't believe so.
(Witness retired and excused)

(Letter from P.I.A.L. to First Leasing of 16th August, 1973, copy letter from First 
Leasing to P.I.A.L. of 28th September, 1973, and 28th December, 1973, and P.I.A.L. 
to First Leasing of 18th July, 1974, admitted without objection and marked Ex. 3) 30 
(Bank minute of 1st August, 1973, admitted without objection and marked Ex. 4. 
Mr. Lockhart stated that this document was not being tendered against Mr. Meagher's

clients.) 
(Further hearing adjourned to 11.30 a.m. on Monday, 5th July, 1976.)
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(Affidavit of Mr. Thompson sworn 6th August, 1975, read by Mr. Gleeson.) 
(Noted that letter of credit SI 1085 has at all material times been in the possession

of the plaintiff.)
(Noted that annexure M to Mr. Thompson's affidavit of 6/8/75, which is also Exhibit 
H, was first received by the C.B.C. Sydney Limited but forwarded by them to the 
defendant Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited which has continued to hold it 
since that time. It is agreed that with the original the C.B.C. received a copy which 

10 it retained in its possession.)
(Noted that the handwriting which appears on annexure P is not part of the document

annexed to the affidavit.)
(Affidavit of Mr. Thompson sworn 11th August, 1975, read by Mr. Gleeson.) 

(Original of annexure A to above affidavit tendered, admitted without objection and
marked Exhibit R.)

(Affidavit of Donald Lex Webb sworn llth August, 1975, read by Mr. Gleeson. Mr. 
Lockhart indicated that he would be objecting to certain of the annexures. Mr. 
Gleeson did not read para. 9, last paragraph of para. 11 or para. 12, nor annexures

A,B,C,DandE.)
20 DONALD LEX WEBB

Sworn and examined:
Mr. Gleeson: Q. Is your full name Donald Lex Webb? A. Yes. 
Q. You swore an affidavit in these proceedings? A. Yes.
Q. You said in para. 11 of your affidavit that on or about 15th August, 1973, you 

prepared a memorandum for the Board of Directors of the Bank. Do you remember 
that? A. I do.

Q. Would you look at the document I show you, and is that the memorandum? 
A. That is the memorandum, yes.
(Above document tendered, admitted without objection and marked Exhibit S.) 

30 Q.I show you a document; is that a copy of a letter that you wrote to the Reserve 
Bank on 14th August, 1970? A. Yes, it is a copy.
(Above letter tendered; objected to by Mr. Lockhart and Mr. Hamilton; shown to his 
Honour. Tender pressed and admitted under s. 14B of the Evidence Act and marked

Exhibit T.)
CROSS EXAMINATION:

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Just look at Exhibit S, would you, please? I just want to draw 
your attention to the last paragraph on the bottom left hand side where it has "match­ 
ing . . . irrevocable credit." Do you see that? A. Yes.

Q. That memorandum was prepared by you, was it? A. It was prepared by me. 
40 Q- It was clear to you when you wrote it, was it, that there was to be a letter of 

credit issued by the First National Bank of Boston with the beneficiary as Patrick 
Intermarine Acceptances Limited for $1,500,000? A. When it was prepared I did not 
know whether there would be a fresh letter of credit or an extension to the existing 
letter of credit in favour of Patrick & Co.

Q. Whether it was a fresh letter of credit or an extension of the letter of credit 
established by the Boston Bank in August, 1969, it was clear to you that the role of 
the Boston Bank was that it was an issuer of a letter of credit with the beneficiary 
as Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited? A. Yes.

Q. And that had been clear to you ever since at least 1st August, 1973, had it 
50 not? A. That is so.

Q. I show you Exhibit 4. You might just like to read that through to yourself.
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(shown). Have you read that to yourself? A. Yes.
Q. That memorandum records, does it, your recollection on 1st August, 1973, 

of the interview which you describe in that document? A. It does.
Q. At the time you prepared it was it accurate to the best of your knowledge 

and belief? A. This minute?
g.Yes. A. Yes.
Q. Do you still regard it as accurate? A. It was prepared on the same day.
Q. At a time when you regarded it as correct? A, Yes.
Q. And looking at it now, is there anything in it which you wish to alter? A. No, 

in my opinion it is still an accurate record. 10
Mr. Lockhart: I call for a bank memorandum of 1st August, 1973, marked 

for discovery B30. Whilst it is coming I will go on with another matter.
Q. Mr. Webb, in 1973 were the First National Bank of Boston and the 

Commercial Banking Company of Sydney banks that had a number of dealings one 
with the other? A. Of this nature?

Q. Well, generally first? A. Yes.
Q. And also there were occasions, were there not, when the First National Bank 

of Boston would send letters of credit established by it in favour of Australian Resident 
Beneficiaries to you as the advising banker? A. That is so.

Q. And with instructions to advise the beneficiary named in the Boston Bank's 20 
letter of credit? A. Yes.

Q. That was your understanding of what occurred, was it not, in relation to the 
letter of credit established in 1969 by the Boston Bank in favour of Patrick & Co, 
SI 1085 dated 13th August, 1969? A. Yes.

Q. Together with the extension No. S12647 dated 14th August, 1963, A. Yes, 
although I was aware that the matter of credit issued in 1969, by the First National 
Bank of Boston was held in trust, or was in safe custody at a branch of the bank.

Q. You say was held in trust or was in safe custody? A. Was in safe custody.
Mr. Gleeson: I produce the document called for.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. You mentioned either in trust—you mean in trust for the 30 

beneficiary or in safe custody for the beneficiary? A. In safe custody.
Q. The beneficiary being Patrick & Co. and then later Patrick Intermarine 

Acceptances Limited? A. Yes.
Q. Would you look at the document the officer now shows you, please, marked 

"Discovery B30", dated 1st August, 1973? Did you prepare that? A. I did.
Q. And that of course relates to a different transaction, doesn't it? A. It does 

relate to a different transaction.
Q. With the lending, isn't it, as you understood it, by the S.E.C. Victoria direct 

to First Leasing of what became I think $2-million? A. It was an amount less than 
$3-million. 4Q

Q. In which, as you understood it, Patrick & Co. or Patrick Intermarine Accept­ 
ances Limited played no role? A. No, it was my understanding if First Leasing 
Australia were successful in obtaining a portion or all of the funds that was indicating 
to us by First Leasing Australia that they would pay a brokerage to Patrick Inter­ 
marine Australia.

Q. Was that not because they acted in and about that particular loan but be­ 
cause they had initially acted as broker to transactions going back to 1969 involving 
the lending of money by S.E.C. Victoria to Patrick & Co.? A. Because Patrick & Co. 
were instrumental in introducing S.E.C. and First Leasing Australia in 1969. 50

Q. In other words as you describe in your memorandum Exhibit 4? A. That is 
so.
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Q. It was your understanding, was it, on 1st August, 1973, that there would in 
fact be a letter of credit issues by the First National Bank of Boston with your bank, 
the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited, as the beneficiary? A. Yes.

Q. Is that why you have described in the document in front of you, about the 
middle of the document, "Irrevocable letter of credit in our favour for $3-million"? 
A. That is right.

Q. And it is the SB-million which in fact became after further discussion a lesser 
figure? A. Yes.
(Above document tendered, admitted without objection and marked Exhibit 5.) 

10 Q. The bank charged commission, did it not, on the extension of the letter of 
credit issued by your bank in favour of the S.E.C. Victoria in May of 1969 and as 
extended—I withdraw that.

In August of 1973 you know that your bank issued a letter of credit in favour of 
the State Electricity Commission of Victoria, is that right—that is Exhibit G—a 
commission was charged in relation to that, was it not? A. Yes.

Q. And debited to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited? A. Yes.
Q. Was that something in the order of $3,750? A. The first twelve months' fee, 

if I remember rightly, was charged at the time the credit was issued. I just can't recall 
what the amount was.

20 Q. Did you calculate it on a percentage basis? How did you calculate it, as what? 
A. I think it was .25 of 1 %.

Q. On an annual fee? A. Yes.
Q. And I think any relevant telegraphic charges that were incurred were also 

debited to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited's account? A. Yes.
Mr. Hamilton: No questions.

(Witness retired and excused.)
(Case for the plaintiff closed subject to the further tender of documents.) 

(Bank's letter of credit in favour of the State Electricity Commission of Victoria, 
dated 16th August, 1973, tendered, admitted without objection and added to 

30 Exhibit G.)
CASE FOR THE FIRST DEFENDANT

OWEN JAMES GROGAN
Sworn and examined:

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Is your name Owen James Grogan? A. Yes.
Q. Do you reside at 2 McNaught Street, Beaumaris, Victoria? A. Yes.
Q. Are you a merchant banker by occupation? A. Yes.
Q. I think you are a merchant banker in the employ of Intermarine Australia 

Limited, are you not? A. That is right, yes.
Q. Was that company known by a different name previously, namely, Patrick 

40 Intermarine Australia Limited? A. Yes.
Q. Was the name changed to the present name in about February of 1975? A. 

Yes.
Q. I think there were substantial Patrick interests holdings in that company 

earlier were there not? A. Yes.
Q. Are the people who now own shares in the company Marine Midland Bank 

of New York and the Toki Bank Limited, a Japanese Company? A. That is right.
Q. You have been, have you not, in the employ of what is now known as Inter­ 

marine Australia Limited since about August, 1971? A. That is correct.
Q. Were you seconded by that company to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances 

50 Limited at the time you first joined it? A. Yes, that is correct.
Q. In 1971, and did you remain so seconded until about the middle of 1974?
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A. That is correct.
Q. What was your position once you were 

Acceptances Limited? A. Victorian Manager.
Q. What were your duties? A. I was responsible for the operations of Patrick 

Intermarine Acceptances Limited in Victoria.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. Responsible to whom, Mr. Grogan? A. The executive director 

of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances, for that part of the business that I was responsible 
for to Mr. Davie in Sydney.

Q. D-A-V-I-E? A. That's right.
Q. Did you have discussions during the period 1971 to 1973 with officers of 10 

First Leasing Australia Limited? A. Yes.
Q. Who were those officers? A. Primarily Mr. Ashbolt and one other person 

whose name I can't recall, but primarily Mr. Ashbolt.
Q. Do you know a Mr. Whitham, Mr. Robert Dennis Whitham? A. I didn't—I 

don't recall the name apart from a question put to me by Mr. Brian Watson—Wilson, 
on Friday as to whether I knew this gentleman, and I said No, I didn't; that is the last 
time I have heard of his name.

Q. Did you have any discussions with any officer of First Leasing Australia Ltd 
relating to the rolling-over of a loan by Patrick & Company or Patrick Intermarine 
Acceptances Limited to First Leasing Australia Limited which had been in August 20 
1969? A. I had discussions with an officer of First Leasing in regard to a loan which 
was to be secured by letter of credit. Whether specifically the loan originated in 1969 
or not, I don't recall.

Q. When do you recall the discussions? A. In—I had a meeting with the 
managing director of First Leasing.

Q. Mr. who? A. Mr. Frank Reinehr, I think, on 27th February, 1973.
Q. Pausing there for a moment, I think you have a diary note of that meeting, 

do you not? A. Yes, I have.
Q. It is in Melbourne, I gather? A. Yes.
Q. But you have made arrangements to have it sent up here by some rapid means, 30 

is that right? A. Yes.
Q. Did you use that diary note to assist you to remember the date of the con­ 

versation? A. Yes.
Q. What, as best you recall it, was said by you to him and he to you, in that 

discussion? A. The total discussion?
Q. Yes? A. I had a meeting with Mr. Reinehr with Mr. Davie. The purpose was 

to continue the relationship of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited with First 
Leasing and three basic matters were discussed: (1) The question of any subsequent 
underwriting in regard to fixed interest issues that First Leasing may have; (2) to 
request that First Leasing add Patrick Intermarine Acceptances's name to the list of 40 
approved borrowers for the lending of First Leasing's surplus funds in the short-term 
money market; and (3) the matter of a letter of credit deal established—No, arranged 
by Patrick Intermarine Acceptances was brought up by Mr. Reinehr who asked 
whether the SEC—State Electricity Commission of Victoria—were likely to roll-over 
a letter of credit that had been established, and I—due for maturity, I think in August 
1973. I was not aware of the deal at that particular time; I think Mr. Davie answered 
that question.

Q. Do you recall what was said? A. Only that discussions would take place with 
the SEC.

Q. It was he, was it, who first raised the name of the SEC in that conversation? 50 
A. Yes.
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Q. Did you make any response to that statement? A. No, it wasn't a matter that 
I was familiar with. Mr. Davie would have made the response, if response was made, 
which I think it was.

Q. But you cannot recall? A.—which I think it was.
Q. Can you recall what else was said in that conversation, as best you can 

recollect it? A. No, no, I can't.
Q. Did you have then the discussions with anybody else than Mr. Reinehr re­ 

ferable to the rolling-over of the 1969 loan of $1.5-million? A. That is the one that 
matured in August 1973?

10 Q. Yes? A. Yes, it was my responsibility to complete the documentation as far as 
First Leasing was concerned, and I had a discussion or discussions with staff of First 
Leasing.

Q. Who did you have the discussions with? A. Well, to the best of my 
recollection it was Mr. Ashbolt. He was the principal person with whom I dealt at 
First Leasing.

Q. Can you recall what your discussions were with him referable to that subject 
matter? A. No, it was just one of a number of deals that we were doing in the short- 
term money market, I had had a number of continuing relationships with First 
Leasing, primarily through an inter-company market.

20 Q. I think you have seen this in chambers this morning, have you not, Mr. 
Grogan. I show you pp. 35 and 36 of the transcript. Just read, if you would, from 
the second question from the top, to yourself, and then over to p. 36 to just before 
it says, "Mr. Lockhart called for a bank memorandum." (Witness reads.) You have 
read those pages, have you, Mr. Grogan? A. Yes.

Q. You see that there is recorded there a conversation Mr. Whitham says took 
place with a Mr. "Alan" Grogan and you have read the substance of what he says? 
A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us, in general terms first, whether you agree or disagree with the 
words attributed to you in any discussions with Mr. Whitham or any officer of First 

30 Leasing Australia Limited? A. Yes. Well, I can't recall that Mr. Whitham was the 
officer I was dealing with; I had thought it was Mr. Ashbolt; I don't recall Mr. 
Whitham's name. As far as the substance of the transcript is concerned, I have no 
recollection at all. There was generally a matter of negotiation in such deals as this 
particular one; there could have been that type of discussion, but I have no recollection 
of it.

Q. Do you recall if the person to whom you spoke told you what First Leasing 
had paid to SEC of Victoria, through Were's, at an interest rate? A. No.

Q. When you say "No" do you have any recollection? A. I have no recollection 
of that statement at all.

40 Q. Do you mean by that that you simply have no recollection or you think it 
likely or unlikely it was said? A. I don't recall the statement and whether it was said 
or not. I have no recollection.

Q. Mr. Grogan, where a person is acting as a broker in the money market in 
Australia but acting as a principal as distinct from a "mere" broker—A. Mmm.

Q. —is it important to preserve the anonymity of the identity of the lender when 
talking with the borrower, and vice versa? A. As principal?

Q. As principal? A. Well, normally the situation does not arise where it is of any 
interest to either party; when a money market dealer acts as a principal, he borrows 
funds and his treatment of those funds is of no interest to anybody, apart from him- 

50 self. The on-lending of those funds is always anonymous, as opposed to the inter­ 
company market where a money market dealer acts as broker and takes a commission
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where both parties know each other—
Q. And both parties have direct contractual nexus? A. Yes.
Q. Is it regarded by you as important where the broker is acting as a principal 

that he does not reveal to the lender who the on-borrower is and does not reveal to 
the person to whom he is lending the monies who the person is from whom he is 
borrowing the money? A. I would think it would be unprofessional; I think it is very 
important not to disclose.

Q. Why? A. Because the relationship between the borrower and the money 
market dealer is a professional one where the banker or the money market dealer is 
borrowing funds on its strength of its reputation, and then its ability to on:lend, it 10 
has an ability, a skill in the money market to compete with other dealers, and I don't 
think it is at all professional to discuss borrowers and lenders in that context.

His Honour: Q. But I suppose these things have a habit of getting out? A. I 
can't answer that one, your Honour, because one can deduce a source of funds, but 
in my procedures I would not agree that that information should get out.

Q. No, but whether you agreed or not, it sometimes does, I suppose? A. Perhaps, 
yes, perhaps.

Q. What do you mean it is unprofessional; you mean unprofessional because you 
revealed the source, and therefore they may deal directly next time, or do you mean 
something ethically wrong with it? A. No, I think—I don't think there is anything 20 
particularly ethically wrong with it. I think it does preserve a relationship with both 
parties, and it does not encourage one party going direct to the other party, which can 
happen; this may be the extent of one's professionalism.

Q. In other words, if it gets out, you may lose business? A. Yes.
Q. And that is what you mean by not being professional? A. Yes, to a degree, 

yes.
Q. What else do you mean? A. The other matter that I am concerned with is that 

one does hope to have a certain skill, and if one tells everybody what your skill is, 
then there certainly is no mystery involved with it; I just don't think it is very correct.

Q. Do you mean "correct" in an ethical sense or "correct" in what I understand 30 
your definition of professional sense? A. I think in a professional sense; perhaps I 
could modify that perhaps and also in an ethical sense.

Q. Why would it be unethical? A. Well, I think that the nature of money market 
dealer is—and also banking generally—is very competitive and if everybody was to 
know each other's business, it would be down-grading one's own organisation.

Q. You mean your own company? A. Yes.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. Did you have any discussions with any representatives of First 

National Bank of Boston referable to the rolling-over of the letter of credit of 13th 
August, 1969 No. SI 1015 which became, in due course, the Boston letter of credit 
S1267 of 14th August, 1973 ? A. No. 40

Q. Did you have any discussions referable to that same subject matter with any 
officers of the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited? A. No.

CROSS-EXAMINATION:
Mr. Hamilton: Q. You say, Mr. Grogan, that you had a meeting on 27th 

February, 1973, when you saw Mr. Frank Reinehr in company with Mr. Davie? A. 
Yes.

Q. Where did that meeting take place? A. In Mr. Reinehr's office in Melbourne.
Q. Mr. Davie, I think, was normally stationed in Sydney? A. Yes.
Q. You say that at that meeting it was Mr. Reinehr who raised the subject of this 

transaction in which the SECV was involved; is that correct? A. Yes. 50
Q. And that you had not heard of that transaction before that time. A. To the
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best of my knowledge, yes.
Q. It was spoken of clearly as if it were an existing transaction at that time? A. 

Yes.
Q. Although, do I take this to be correct, you did not know at that time that it 

dated from 1969, or when it dated from? A. Not to the best of my knowledge, no.
Q. The transaction, when it was spoken of by Mr. Reinehr was spoken of in 

terms of a roll-over of an existing transaction? A. The possibility of a roll-over, yes.
Q. The source of Mr. Reinehr's interest seemed to be whether or not the SECV 

funds that were involved would continue to be available when the existing arrange- 
10 merit came to an end? ,4. Yes.

Q. You spoke about the two markets; the markets were your merchant banker 
or principal to principal, and dealings by merchant bankers in the inter-company 
market, is that correct? A. Yes.

Q. So far as the inter-company market is concerned, did you have dealings with 
First Leasing Australia on the inter-company market? A. Yes.

Q. That is you acting on behalf of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited? 
A. Yes.

Q. Did they go on over some period of years? A. Yes.
Q. They were often in the inter-company market? A. Yes.

20 Q. You, on a number of occasions, acting on behalf of Patrick Intermarine 
Acceptances Limited as broker in such transactions in which First Leasing Australia 
Limited was involved? A. Yes.

Q. As I think you have already said, those were transactions where your 
company, Patrick Intermarine Acceptances, took a brokerage fee? A. Yes.

Q. These otherwise were transactions where the principal and interest payable 
on the loan were paid directly by First Leasing Australia Ltd. to the lender and not 
to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd.?/4. Yes.

Q. The only moneys that came to Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd. direct, 
were its brokerage fees? A. Which were paid initially, yes.

30 Q. Were transactions of that sort in which First Leasing Australia Ltd. was 
involved sometimes secured transactions? I am thinking in particular, secured by bank 
letters of credit? A. No.

Q. Have you seen transactions in the inter-company market where there has 
been security by way of letter of credit? A. I have negotiated for them. I can't recall 
one specific one, but they certainly can happen and may happen.

Q. When they do happen is the security in the name of the broker or the name of 
the person producing the money? A. The name of the person providing the money.

Q. That is the broker's lender client? A. Yes, that's right.
His Honour: Q. As you understand it, who gets the benefit of the security? A. 

40 The borrower—the lender.
Mr. Hamilton: Q. That is the broker's client? A. Yes.

(Mr. Gleeson called for some handwritten notes produced on discovery by the first 
defendants as discovery document No. D20 (produced.))

Mr. Gleeson: Mr. Grogan, would you look at the documents that I show you, 
being handwritten notes, discovery documents D20. First of all, do you recognise the 
handwriting on those notes? A. No, I don't.

Q. Having those documents in front of you and I draw your attention to what
is written under the date "13th August 1973" the second line on that page, does that
assist you on the question of whether or not you had a telephone conversation on or

50 about 13th August, 1973, with the person whose name might have been known to
you as Whitton? A. No, it doesn't, I don't recall that name at all.
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(Handwritten notes produced: tendered: objected to by Mr. Lockhart and Mr.
Hamilton: tender withdrawn.)

Q. Was there a David G. Nicholl in Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd. office? 
A. Yes.

Q. I show you what I suggest is a copy of a letter written by Mr. Nicholl to the 
secretary of First Leasing Australia Ltd. on 16th August, 1973, headed "Attention 
Mr. R. D. Whitham." Would you look at that letter. Have you seen the original of a 
copy of that letter before? A. Well, Mr. Nicholl should have or would have referred 
it to me.

Q. That is a letter that was written from your office to First Leasing confirming 10 
this transaction, isn't it? A. Right.

Q. It is addressed, you see, for the attention of Mr. Whitham? A. Right.
Q. Do you still say you have no recollection of Mr. Whitham in relation to this 

matter? .4. Yes.
(Original of above letter produced and tendered: Noted it is identical with the copy

which is part of Ex. 3.)
Q. I think you have told us when you were giving an account of the meeting that 

took place with Mr. Reinehr on 27th February, 1973, that Mr. Reinehr asked 
whether the SECV was likely to roll-over the letter of credit? A. Yes—roll-over the 
—not for them to roll-over the letter of credit, but whether they would be lending 20 
funds against the security of the letter of credit.

Q. I had thought you had used in your evidence the expression "roll-over the 
letter of credit"? A. I would have said it in error because the SEC were providing the 
cash.

Q. Is there an expression called "roll-over the letter of credit"? A. Yes, well, 
normally a letter of credit expires on due date and a new one is drawn, but the term, 
it could be used very loosely; for example, if one had a continuing deal where a letter 
of credit was to be re-established, then one could say the letter of credit was to be 
rolled over, but it would be a loose term rather than an accurate one.

Q. Yes, but even though it may be perhaps a loose use of language, it would not 30 
be a surprising expression? A. No.

Q. To hear somebody say "roll-over the letter of credit"? A. No.
Q. You would understand what they meant? A. Yes.
Q. What would you understand it to mean? A. The extension of the original 

letter of credit.
Q. It would be an appropriate expression to use in relation to an extension or a 

renewal of a loan that was secured by a letter of credit, wouldn't it? A. Yes.
Q. It would also be an appropriate expression to use in the case of a loan where 

the transaction was secured by two back-to-back letters of credit? A. Yes.
Q. What do you understand the word "nexus" to mean? A. Nexus? 40
Q. Nexus? A. I don't understand it; I know the word but 1 can't give a definition 

to it.
Q. My learned friend Mr. Lockhart put a question to you in which he used that 

expression and you assented to what he said. Do we take it you were not entirely 
sure what he meant when you assented? A. Yes.

Q. I show you one other document, a copy of a document which was discovery 
document No. 25. It does not bear a date and it may be that it is a draft of a letter 
that was ultimately written, Mr. Grogan, but I show you what appears to be a letter 
or a draft of a letter from Patrick Partners to First Leasing. In the top right-hand 
corner there are the words "Copy to PIAL Melbourne. Attention Mr. O. Grogan", 50 
and in the body of the letter are the words, "attention Mr. Robert Whitton". Would
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you have a look at that. Do you remember seeing a letter like that? A. No. I don't 
remember that.
(Original or copy of letter in those terms called for: Mr. Gleeson said he understood 

a letter in similar but not in the same form is part of Ex. B.)
Q. Having seen that document, does that refresh your recollection as to whether 

you had dealings with Mr. Whitham in relation to this transaction? A. No, it doesn't 
at all. I just don't recall that name.

Q. Certainly your position now is that not only do you have no recollection of Mr. 
Whitham but you also have no recollection of a Mr. Whitton—correct? A. Yes. 

10 (Witness retired.)
(Luncheon adjournment.) 

ON RESUMPTION:
(Uniform Customs and Practice of Documentary Credits referred to in some of the 
exhibits tendered by Mr. Gleeson deemed to have been tendered as it appears at

p. 649 of Paget 1962ed.) 
TIMOTHY RICHARD WIGRAM ALLEN 

SWORN AND EXAMINED:
Mr. Lockhart: Q. Is your full name Timothy Richard Wigram Alien? A. It is.
Q. Do you live at 1 Wolseley Crescent, Point Piper? A. Yes, I do.

20 Q. You, in 1969 and through to 1973, were a partner of Patrick & Co. and later 
Patrick Partners, is that so? A. Yes, I was.

Q. Stock and share brokers? A. Yes.
Q. As a member of that firm, were you in charge of its money market operations? 

A. I was, yes.
Q. Did that involve, amongst other things, the borrowing and lending of money? 

A. It did.
Q. By the firm? A. Yes.
Q. Do you recall when Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd. was incorporated? 

A. It was some time in 1971, Mr. Lockhart, I am not sure of the date. 
30 Q. Did it take over the money market operations which had previously been 

conducted by the firm itself? A. Yes, it did.
Q. What was your position in the company Patrick Intermarine Acceptances 

Ltd.? A. I did not have a position in the company Patrick Intermarine Acceptances.
Q. But you continued, did you not, to negotiate certain loans of funds to Patrick 

Intermarine Acceptances Ltd. and on-lending of funds by it to others? A. I had what 
you might call a "watching brief", Mr. Lockhart, but that would be all.

Q. Did the firm Patrick & Co. act in various money market transactions some­ 
times, as you understood it, as a principal, sometimes as a mere broker? A. Yes, it did.

Q. What is the distinction between the two, as you understood it? A. My 
40 distinction between the two is that the principal is the man who is liable on each 

side of the loan, whereas an agent, there is no liability, no direct liability.
Q. Reference has been made in evidence to what are called special deals Nos. 

1, 2 and 3? A. Yes.
Q. Special deal No. 1 was, if I may direct your attention to it, a loan by the SEC 

of Victoria to Patrick & Co. of $500,000? A. Yes, I recall that.
Q. With a letter of credit from the Commercial Banking Co. of Sydney in favour 

of the SEC of Victoria? A. Yes, that is correct.
Q. And an on-lending of funds by Patrick & Co. to First Leasing Australia 

Limited? A. Yes, that is correct.
50 Q. With a letter of credit issued by the First National Bank of Boston in favour 

of Patrick & Co. as beneficiary? A. Yes, I recall that.
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Q. Did you have any discussions with any officer of First Leasing Australia 
referable to the setting up of the loan from Patrick & Co. to it? A. Yes, I would 
have had discussions with Mr. Reinehr.

Q. Did you tell Mr. Reinehr when you had those discussions that the original 
source of the funds had been SEC of Victoria? A. No, I didn't, Mr. Lockhart.

Q. Did you have discussions at or about the same time with representatives of 
the SEC of Victoria? A. Yes, I did.

Q. With whom did you have the discussions? A. A man called Mr. Shears, Mr. 
Bill Shears.

Q. Did you mention to him or anybody else in the State Electricity Commission 10 
of Victoria that the funds the Commission was lending Patrick & Co. would be on- 
lended to First Leasing Australia Ltd.? A. No, I did not.

Q. Special deal No. 2 as it has been called was the loan of $1.5-million by the 
State Electricity Commission of Victoria to Patrick & Company? A. Yes, I believe 
that is the position.

Q. The on-lending of that equivalent sum of money to First Leasing Australia? 
A. A similar sum of money, yes.

Q. Did you have discussions with anybody on behalf of First Leasing in 
establishing that loan by Patrick & Co. to it? A. Yes, again I would have had discus­ 
sions with Mr. Reinehr and possibly a woman whose name I don't recall, who could 20 
have been Mr. Reinehr's secretary.

Q. Did you tell Mr. Reinehr or the woman to whom you have referred at any 
stage during those discussions that the money had, as an initial source, the State 
Electricity Commission of Victoria? A. No, Mr. Lockhart.

Q. Did you have discussions in relation to that same transaction, special deal 
No. 2, with an officer or officers of the State Electricity Commission of Victoria? A. 
Yes, I did.

Q. With whom? A. Mr. Shears again.
Q. Did you tell him at any stage who Patrick & Co. were on-lending funds to? 

A. No, I did not. 30
His Honour: Q. Did you borrow funds and on-lend them generally? that is to say, 

you would borrow a particular sum of money and perhaps lend it in ways that could 
not be connected with your borrowing sources? A. Yes, often, your Honour, and we 
borrowed, as principal, from the SEC, on numerous occasions on a weekly basis.

Q. And lent it perhaps to half a dozen borrowers? A. Sometimes lent it out and 
sometimes invested it ourselves in Government Bonds which would then be used as 
security to secure the loan from SEC.

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Was that the position through from 1969 to 1974? A. Well, 
1969 to 1971 or 1972, yes; 1974 I would have been personally more or less out of 
the picture because it would have been PlAL that was doing the borrowing. 40

Q. Coming to what has been called special deal No. 3, I wish to draw your 
attention to that. That was the loan from the SEC of Victoria to Patrick & Co. of 
$1.5-million?/4. Yes.

Q. And the lending of $1.5-million by Patrick & Co. again to First Leasing 
Australia? A. Yes, I remember.

Q. And again with two letters of credit involved. With whom did you have 
discussions in First Leasing referable to the establishment of that loan? A. Again it 
would have been Mr. Reinehr.

Q. Did you tell him or anyone else in First Leasing that the initial source of 
funds had been SEC of Victoria? A. No, I didn't. 50

Q. With whom did you have discussions at SEC of Victoria referable to that
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transaction? A. Again, Mr. Shears.
Q. Did you tell him that the moneys were to be on-lent to First Leasing Australia? 

A. No, I didn't Mr. Lockhart.
Q. Did you take part in any of the discussions referable to what has been called 

the rolling-over of that last-mentioned loan of $1.5-million under special deal No. 3 
which took place in 1973? A. No, I believe I had one discussion with Mr. Reinehr but 
most of my discussions would have been with Mr. Davie who would have then taken 
over the technical details of the rolling-over of the loan with an officer, presumably 
of First Leasing. 

10 Q. Mr. Davie being with Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd.? A. Yes.
Q. From time to time requisitions were submitted by Patrick & Co. to the 

Commercial Banking Co. of Sydney for the issuing of letters of credit in relation to 
loans from the SEC of Victoria to Patrick & Co., is that not so? A. Yes, that is correct.

Q. (Approached with Ex. A.) This is a copy of a requisition form of 8th April, 
1969, produced by the bank, Mr. Alien. If you would just look at that. I draw your 
attention to what is note (j) at the bottom in type, do you see that? A. Yes, I do.

Q. Can you tell his Honour what role, if any, you played in the drafting of that 
note? A. I would not have played any role at all in the drafting of the note itself.

Q. Do you know who did, beyond the note (j), Mr. Alien? (objected to by Mr. 
20 Gleeson.)

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Do you know if anybody in Patrick & Company played any 
role in the drafting of Note J which I have just showed you? A. I know they didn't 
play any part in the drafting of Note J.

Q. Why is it that you say that? A. It was a requirement put on us by the bank.
Mr. Gleeson: I take it my objection covers this?
His Honour: Yes.
Witness: It was a condition put on us by the bank preparatory to them drawing 

a letter of credit in favour of the S.E.C.
His Honour: Q. Could you tell me, Mr. Alien, what you understood it meant? 

30 A. What I understood Note J meant?
Q. Yes. A. I thought that that was their requirement to convince them that they 

were in a position to issue a letter of credit in favour of the S.E.C. in favour of 
Patrick Partners or Patrick & Company as it was then.

Q. I am sure that is right but I wonder if you yourself had formed any views as 
to what it meant when you first saw it? A. I know we had a lot of discussion as to 
what exactly it meant because it did not appear to be extremely clear in its wording, 
your Honour.

When I say "we" I mean myself and Mr. Davie or others in our office but we
assumed, rightly or wrongly, that as it was the bank's requirement that that placed

40 them in the position that they required to be vis-a-vis the issuing of the letter of credit.
Q. Whatever that position was? A. Whatever that position was.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. Requisitions in the same form of the inclusion of Note J then 

followed in relation to the other special deals that I have referred to, did they not? 
A. Yes, I think they would have. Making an assumption now, I think they would have 
been got from the initial one rather than each time provided by the bank.

Q. I want to take you to the affidavit of Mr. Blackett sworn on 8th August, 1975. 
Do you have Mr. Blackett's affidavit? A. Yes, I do.

Q. Just read to yourself please if you would pars. 2 and 3. A. Yes.
Q. Tell his Honour if you disagree with anything that is related there as

50 conversations arid what it is. A. The only part I disagree with is the suggestion that a
letter of credit be made in favour of the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney
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and not in favour of Patrick & Company.
Q. Just identify it a little more precisely. Do you mean in par. 2 the third line? 

A. Yes, the words "in its favour".
Q. And what about par. 3? A. The words "in our favour".
Q. Otherwise do you agree in substance with what he relates? A. Yes, I do.
His Honour: Q. What did you understand by a "back-to-back letter of credit" in 

those circumstances? Let me show you what I mean. You take par. 3. According to 
you, I am to read it, "before the bank issues the local letter of credit we will require 
that the letter of credit from the First National Bank of Boston is established and it 
will have to be in the nature of a back-to-back letter of credit." 10

What did you understand by a back-to-back letter of credit in that context? A. 
The bank issuing a letter of credit in favour of a lender at the instigation of a party 
against the existence of a letter of credit in favour of the requesting party.

Q. But wouldn't that rather indicate that if the Australian bank were called upon 
to pay it could have recourse to the foreign bank's letter of credit? A. I would have 
assumed so, yes, your Honour.

Q. I appreciate that you say that the words "in our favour" were not used but 
was there any difference in your understanding of what was said to you from what 
there would have been if those words had not been used? A. Yes, quite strongly.

Q. In what way? A. I had to make sure that Patrick & Company was secured 20 
against the money that they were lending to First Leasing and, if the letter of credit 
had not been in favour of Patrick & Company, then Patrick & Company itself would 
not have been secure so it was necessary for the transaction, for the letter of credit, 
to be in favour of Patrick & Company.

Q. But I just wondered how the expression in your understanding of what was 
going on "back-to-back" fitted in? A. I think it does. It is a letter of credit that I 
requested in favour of or that was in existence in favour of Patrick & Company and, 
because of this letter of credit which would have put Patrick & Company in funds, we 
asked the bank if they would issue a letter of credit in favour of S.E.C. on our account 
and the fact that we would have received the funds would have presumably offset 30 
any drawing on the letter of credit that the C.B.C. had issued.

Q. All as long as your company stayed solvent? A. I must admit that possibility 
had not crossed my mind at the time.

Q. It probably didn't cross anybody's mind. A. No, I don't think it did, your 
Honour.

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Who did you regard as being entitled to call on the letter of 
credit issued by the First National Bank in favour of Patrick & Company as 
beneficiary in the event of default of the borrower, firstly? A. Patrick & Company.

Q. Anybody else? A. No.
CROSS-EXAMINATION: 40

Mr. Meagher: Q. Would you look at this bundle of five documents. Are they 
copy letters written by you to First Leasing relating to Special Deal No. 1 and Special 
Deal No. 2? A. They are certainly my signatures, yes.

(Bundle of five copy letters tendered and admitted as Ex. 6)
Q. I hand you a letter from First Leasing to Patricks of 22nd May, 1969. Is 

that a letter received by you at Patricks from First Leasing? A. Yes, it is. 
(Letter from First Leasing to Patrick & Company of 22nd May, 1969, tendered and

admitted as Ex. 7)
Q. I show you another bundle of copy letters. Tell me, are they copies of letters 

sent by you on behalf of Patricks to the State Electricity Commission? A. Yes, they 50 
are.
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(Bundle of copy letters sent from Patrick & Company to the State Electricity Com­ 
mission tendered and admitted as Ex. 8)

Q. Would you look at this letter of 26th May, 1969, from the State Electricity 
Commission of Victoria. Is that a letter received by you in Patricks from them? 
A. Yes, it is.
(Letter from State Electricity Commission of Victoria to Patrick & Company of 26th 

May, 1969, tendered and admitted as Ex. 9)
Q. In the 1969 transactions you dealt with Mr. Reinehr? A. Yes, I did.
Q. Apart from his secretary or some other lady, no one else in First Leasing that 

10 you can remember? A. No, not to my recollection.
Q. And you had no direct dealings whatever with the Boston Bank? A. Yes. On 

numerous occasions I spoke to the representative of the Boston bank when he was 
in Australia.

Q. In relation to these transactions? A. In general, about the type of transaction 
that was going on.

Q. In dealing with First Leasing in the 1969 transactions there was no mention 
that you were acting as agent, was there? A. No.

Q. And you did not disclose at any stage to Mr. Reinehr the source of the funds 
which you were on-lending to First Leasing? A. No, I didn't.

20 Q. All payments of interest and principal in respect of the 1969 transactions 
were made to Patricks? A. They were.

Q. You never told S.E.C. Victoria that you were acting as an agent? A. No, I 
didn't.

Q. You never told Mr. Reinehr that if Patricks defaulted in its obligation to repay 
S.E.C. Victoria the Commercial Bank would have an automatic recourse against 
the Boston bank? A. I certainly can't recall having told him that, no.

Q. And you never told anyone else that in First Leasing, did you? A. No.
Q. Patricks on occasions did act as agents, didn't they? A. Yes, they did.
Q. And on those occasions was a brokerage fee always charged? A. On every 

30 occasion I can remember, yes.
Q. Referred to specifically as a brokerage fee? A. Yes.
Q. On every occasion that Patricks did clearly act as agents would interest have 

been paid to the principal direct? A. On every occasion that I can think of 
the borrower would have paid the interest to the lender.

Q. And the principal would have been repaid to the lender direct? A. Yes. We 
probably would have carried the cheques.

Q. And whatever security there was for the loan would be made out in the name 
of the principal? A. Yes.

Q. In 1969 you never showed Mr. Reinehr copies of any of the letters of credit 
40 issued by the bank in favour of the S.E.C. Victoria? A. No, I wouldn't have.

Q. And you never showed Mr. Reinehr copies of the requisitions you had put 
into the bank requesting the issue of a letter of credit? A. No, I didn't.

Q. In talking to Mr. Reinehr you never suggested that it might be his company's 
duty not to repay on the due date? A. Certainly not, no.

Mr. Gleeson: Q. (Witness shown Ex. A) (Approached) Mr. Alien, Ex. A bears 
the signature of Mr. John Keir. Do you see that? A. Yes, I do.

Q. He was a member of the firm of Patrick & Company at the time the document 
was signed? A. Yes, he was.

Q. Did you read Ex. A before Mr. Keir signed it? A. I can't recall.
50 Q. Were you aware of the terms of Ex. A before it was sent by Patrick & Com­ 

pany to the bank? A. Yes, I was.
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Q. In particular, were you aware of the terms of par. (j) of Ex. A before it was 
sent by Patrick & Company to the bank?/I. I was.

Q. You have been asked some questions about your understanding of the con­ 
tractual position. Did you believe that you understood par. (j) before it was sent by 
Patrick & Company to the bank? A. Yes, I did.

Q. And did you believe that it contained an undertaking on the part of Patrick 
& Company to do something in a certain event? A. Yes, I did.

Q. That event was there being a drawing under the letter of credit to be 
established by the bank? A. Yes.

Q. In that eventuality, Patrick & Company was to do something? A. That's right. 10
Q. And what it was to do was to lodge with the bank certain documents? A. 

That's right.
Q. And the documents were those referred to in par. (j)? A. Yes.
Q. Now, I suppose you understood that there was a reason why in that event 

Patrick & Company were undertaking to take that step? A. Yes, I did.
Q. And the reason why Patrick & Company were undertaking to take that step 

in that eventuality was to enable the bank to do something? (Objected to by Mr. 
Lockhart and Mr. Meagher; allowed).

Q. I think my question might not have been as clear as it should have been. To 
come back again, you agree that your understanding was that Patrick & Company by 20 
par. (j) was undertaking that in the event of a drawing being made under the 
C.B.C.'s. letter of credit Patrick & Company was going to lodge some documents with 
the C.B.C. Bank? A. Yes, I do.

Q. It was your understanding, was it not, that the reason why Patrick & Com­ 
pany was going to lodge those documents with the bank was to enable the bank to do 
something with the documents? A. That's right.

Q. And it was your understanding that what the bank was going to do with the 
documents was to draw on the letter of credit set up by the Boston bank, wasn't it? 
A. It was going to pay out to us on the letter of credit.

Q. I direct your attention to par. (j). A. Yes. 30
Q. You see that in an event there described you were undertaking to lodge with 

the C.B.C. Bank a draft and accompanying documents
Mr. Gleeson: Q. Is the expression "back-to-back letter of credit" a common 

expression in situations like this? A. I think it is, yes.
Q. And it is one that you used in your discussions with Mr. Thompson? A. Yes. 

Might I say these are probably not or at the time were not very often done, so, in 
1969 it would not have been a word that was very freely used.

Q. You thought you understood what it meant? A. I thought I understood what 
it meant.

Q. What did you understand it to mean in your discussions with Mr. Thompson? 40 
A. The issuing of a letter of credit in favour of a lender against the existence of a letter 
of credit in favour of the requesting party, in this case Patrick & Company.

Q. When you say "against the existence of" do you mean, amongst other things, 
upon the security of? A. That would depend entirely on the deal, on the requirements 
of the bank or on the requirements of the person issuing the letter of credit.

Q. But the use of the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit in a back- 
to-back arrangement such as this was intended to provide security to the C.B.C. Bank, 
wasn't it? (Objected to by Mr. Lockhart; allowed).

Q. Is that right? A. The existence of the letter of credit certainly provided the 
C.B.C. with security, yes. 50

Q. And, indeed, in the discussions that Mr. Thompson had with you, he made it
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plain to you, did he not, that the C.B.C. Bank was looking for the security of a letter 
of credit from the First National Bank of Boston? A. Yes.

Q. You have told us about some general discussions that you had with 
representatives of the First National Bank of Boston about this kind of transaction 
generally. May we take it that amongst other things you discussed with them the fact 
that you were using the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit in a back-to- 
back way? A. Not necessarily, no.

Q. Well, you say "Not necessarily". You did not withhold from the First National 
Bank of Boston information as to the manner in which you were dealing with their 

10 letter of credit, did you? A. I don't think the word "withhold" really comes into it.
Q. Well, you were using their letter of credit, weren't you? A. Yes, sometimes.
Q. And you were using their letter of credit as security for an arrangement that 

you had that the C.B.C. Bank be bankers? A. In the second place, yes. In the first 
place, we were using it as security for the money we lent their clients.

Q. But you were using the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit as 
security for your arrangements with the C.B.C. Bank? A. Yes, we were.

Q. Did you regard that as being material information of interest to the First 
National Bank of Boston? A. No, I didn't.

Q. Did you regard it as being material information of interest to First Leasing? 
20 A. No.

Q. But you knew, didn't you, that the device of using back-to-back letters of 
credit was one of the ways in which this Australian affiliate of the American bank was 
gaining access to Australian sources of money? You knew that, didn't you? A. I don't 
believe it was.

Q. Did you in fact in any discussions with Mr. Reinehr make reference 
to the fact that the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit was being used 
by you as security for an arrangement you were making with your bank? A. I don't 
believe I would have. I certainly don't recall having done so.

Q. Was that because you assumed that he would have realised that that was 
30 happening? A. No, I didn't see that it was—

Q. None of his business? A.—that it was particularly of his business. We were 
providing money for his clients against the security of a letter of credit. So far as we 
were concerned, that is what we wanted and what he wanted.

Q. And you did not regard it as being any business of either First Leasing or the 
First National Bank of Boston that you were using the First National Bank of Boston's 
letter of credit as security for your own arrangements? A. Not specifically, no.

Q. Well, in general terms? A. In general terms, it may, technically, have been 
necessary to advise them in certain instances of the fact that we used it in discussions 
with the potential lender but I don't recall ever having done so.

40 Q. You regarded it as being within your authority to use it as security for your 
arrangement with the bank, didn't you? A. Oh, certainly.

Q. And what was it that you regarded as giving you that authority? A. The fact 
that the letter of credit was made out in favour of Patrick & Company and we were 
using it as security for a loan to First Leasing.

Q. And you were also using it as security under your arrangements with the 
bank, weren't you? A. Which particular case are we talking about? This $H million 
one?

Q. This $H million Special Deal No. 3? A. Certainly it was the existence of that 
that was the reason for the C.B.C. drawing the letter of credit, yes.

50 Q. And you were using the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit as 
security in your arrangements with the C.B.C., weren't you? A. Yes, we were using
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it as security.
His Honour: I do not fully understand the sense in which you say that; using it 

in which sense as a security? A. Without the existence of the letter of credit, your 
Honour, the C.B.C. would not have issued the letter of credit to the S.E.C. so, in that 
form, of course, it was used as security. It was not taken as an individual document 
and mortgaged, if you like, but the fact that it was there was the security for the bank 
because they knew that if we could not pay the S.E.C. or if we were not paid by First 
Leasing then we would receive $H million from the First National.

Mr. Gleeson: Q. But, Mr. Alien, the bank not only required that there be a letter 
of credit from the First National Bank of Boston but they required a promise by you 10 
that in the event referred to in par. (j) you would draw on that letter of credit. That 
was plain to you, wasn't it? A. Sorry, Mr. Gleeson?

Q. The bank not only required the existence of a letter of credit but they required 
a promise by you to draw on the letter of credit in the event referred to in par. (j)? 
A. I think that's correct. Yes, they did.

Q. And you said in your evidence when my learned friend Mr. Lockhart I think 
was asking you some questions that one of the things that the bank was looking for 
as security was an arrangement under which the First National Bank's letter of credit 
would put Patrick & Co. in funds in a certain situation? A. That's right, yes.

Q. And you understood it to be a necessary part of that security that once 20 
Patrick & Co. were put in funds in that eventuality they would deposit those funds 
with the bank? That was plain, wasn't it? A. No, not necessarily.

Q. It wasn't much use to the bank to have Patrick Partners put in funds unless 
Patrick Partners applied those funds in a particular way, was it? A. We had a very 
large turnover in our money market. I mean, we would have paid out $ 1 i million to 
the S.E.C. on the day that it was due. We would have been debited with that amount 
of money. We may have used the A.N.Z. Bank or the Bank of New South Wales to do 
that.

Q. If you paid out $li million to the S.E.C.V. there would not have been a 
drawing under the bank's letter of credit? A. Not under the C.B.C.'s letter of credit 30 
but under the First National Bank's letter of credit.

Q. The event that the C.B.C. Bank was interested in and the only event that the 
C.B.C. Bank was interested in was the drawing being made under its letter of credit, 
wasn't it? (Objected to by Mr. Lockhart: question withdrawn)

(Objection as to understanding taken by Mr. Lockhart.)
Mr. Gleeson: Q. I am asking you about an answer you gave to my learned 

friend Mr. Lockhart about Patrick & Co. being put in first under the First Nation 
Bank of Boston's letter of credit. It is plain, is it not, that the event that par. (j) is 
talking about involves default by Patrick & Co.; that is plain, is not it? A. Yes.

Q. For whatever reason the situation to which par. (j) is addressing itself is that 40 
Patrick & Co. is a defaulter? A. Yes, it has not paid.

Q. It has not paid the State Electricity Commission? A. That is right.
Q. When you say that the bank was looking to see that Patrick & Co. would be 

put in funds under the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit, that eventuality 
to which this arrangement is addressing itself is happening in the context of Patrick 
& Co. being a defaulter, is not it? A. Yes, it is.

Q. What I am suggesting to you is that in a situation where Patrick & Co. is a 
defaulter an arrangement under which Patrick & Co. is going to be put in funds by 
some third party provides a security to the bank only if Patrick & Co. applies those 
funds by putting them into its account with the bank; that is plain, is not it? A. Yes, 50 
that seems quite plain.
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Q. You never understood that in the event to which this paragraph is addressing 
itself, that is Patrick & Co. being a defaulter, if Patrick & Co. got $1.5-million from 
the First National Bank of Boston it was to be at liberty to go back and pay that 
$1.5-million into the ANZ Bank or the Commonwealth Bank? A. The thought never 
occurred to me that Patrick & Co. would default. I can only say I never thought of it.

Q. This clause is about what is going to happen in the event that Patrick & Co. 
does default, is not it? A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever tell Mr. Reinehr that the source of the $1.5-million involved 
in special deal No. 3 was the State Electricity Commission of Victoria? A. I certainly 

10 do not recall ever having told Mr. Reinehr that.
Q. It became apparent to you at some stage that Mr. Reinehr knew that? A. Yes.
Q. When did it first become apparent to you that Mr. Reinehr knew that? A. As 

far as I can recollect it was some time either late in 1972 or early 1973.
Q. Do you recollect the occasion on which it first became apparent that he knew 

that? Was it a meeting or a telephone-discussion? A. I have a feeling Mr. Davie told 
me.

Q. You may have got the information about Mr. Reinehr's state of knowledge 
indirectly? A. From somebody else. I may have got it from Mr. Reinehr. I remember 
being surprised at the time.

20 Q. What I want to suggest to you is that during 1969 you became aware that Mr. 
Reinehr knew that the State Electricity Commission of Victoria was the source of 
these funds. Do you disagree with that? A. Yes, I do.

Q. In the records that were kept by Patrick & Co., later Patrick Partners, in 
relation to special deal No. 1 and special deal No. 2 and special deal No. 3 the 
amounts of money in question were recorded as being on deposit, were they not? 
A. I cannot recall.

Q. You are not familiar with the accounting kept? A. No, not really.
Q. (Ex. Q. handed to witness.) Would you look at Ex. Q. I think you will notice 

on one of the documents there is some handwriting. Do you see that? A. Yes. 
30 Q. Do you know whose writing that is? A. No, I am not certain. It is certainly 

not mine.
Q. You disagree in part with some evidence that Mr. Thompson has given of 

conversation that you had with him. Do you recollect that? You have in front of you 
an affidavit? A. I thought that was Mr. Blackett.

Q. You disagree in part with the evidence given by Mr. Blackett in that affidavit? 
A. Yes, I do.

Q. Do you have any note or record of the conversation referred to in that 
affidavit? A. No, I do not, not to my knowledge, although I have not searched 
diligently for any notes or records.

40 Q. Where would you search if you were asked to search diligently for such a 
note or record? A. In the dungeons of Grace Bros.

Q. There are documents belonging to Patrick Partners or Patrick & Co. that 
may relate to the matter that are in storage? A. That may relate to the matter. I have 
no knowledge of any specific documents.

Q. You have no note of the conversation, and may we take it no other record of 
the conversation? A. I do not know whether there is or is not.

Q. There is nothing that you have to assist your recollection of the conversation? 
,4. No.

Q. Except Mr. Blackett's own affidavit? A. And my knowledge of the transaction. 
50 Q. May we take it, if you had not read Mr. Blackett's affidavit you would not 

even have as good a recollection of the conversation as you now have? A. That is not 
correct.
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Q. What is your recollection of what the conversation was? A. I would not have 
recalled the conversation. I would have recalled the terms of the discussion but not 
the conversation.

Q. What is your best recollection now as to the conversation? A. I do not have 
a recollection of the conversation at all.

His Honour: Q. Do you remember having a conversation with him about this 
matter? A. Once again I spoke to the CBC possibly three or four times a day for three 
years. I certainly cannot recall a specific conversation about this specific loan, I did 
many deals with the CBC, and many deals with regard to letters of credit. I may have 
spoken to Mr. Blackett a dozen times on this particular deal. 10

Mr. Gleeson: Q. Have you seen other records? Have you seen Mr. Blackett's 
record of this conversation? A. No.

Q. Upon what do you base the statement that you disagree in part with Mr. 
Blackett's account of the conversation? A. My total knowledge and memory and 
what I was doing at the time.

Q. You have no particular knowledge of the conversation? A. No.
Q. May we take it when you disagreed with the words "in your favour" for 

example you were not giving evidence of a recollection of the conversation but you 
were merely intending to convey to us that you do not believe you would have said 
that? A. No, I am saying I definitely would not have said that. I am saying I definitely 20 
did not say that.

Q. Do you understand the difference? A. I do understand the difference.
Q. It is one thing to say you remember a conversation and the conversation did 

not include those words, and it is another thing to say, "If I did have a conversation 
with him on a particular occasion, I certainly would not have said that because that 
is not the kind of thing I would have said." A. If I was discussing something that was 
black I certainly would not at that conversation have said it was white.

Q. Which of those two situations is it, the former or the latter? May we take it 
that you do not remember the conversation with Mr. Blackett about which he speaks 
in his affidavit? A. No, I do not recall the conversation. 30

Q. You do not recall anything about it? A. I recall speaking to officers of the 
bank and arranging the deal.

Q. But you have no better recollection than that? A. No. I spoke to Mr. Blackett 
often. I cannot recall whether it was Mr. Blackett specifically I spoke to on this 
particular deal.

Q. So far as your recollection goes you could have had no communication with 
Mr. Blackett about this deal at all? A. With Mr. Blackett particularly, yes.

Q. Is that right? A. That is right. It is unlikely.
Mr. Lockhart: No questions.

(Witness retired.) 40 
JOHN WILLIAM STRUTT 

sworn and examined:
Mr. Lockhart: Q. You live at 1 Cooper Street, Paddington? A. I do.
What is your occupation? A. Departmental manager.
Q. In August 1973 were you employed by Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd. 

as manager of that company? A. I was.
Q. When did you first commence employment with that company? A. 1st 

February, 1973.
Q. When did you leave their employ? A. I left the liquidator's employment in 

March of this year. 50
Q. In general terms what were your duties as manager of that company? A. I
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was responsible for the day to day activities of the company's money market operations 
in all centres.

Q. Which are those centres? A. Sydney, Melbourne, Brisbane and Perth.
Q. Do you know of Mr. Whitham of First Leasing Australia Ltd.? A. I have 

spoken to Mr. Whitham on the telephone I believe, from my notes.
Q. Did you speak to him about August 1973? A. I believe so.
Q. Did you speak to him referable to the rolling-over of a loan that had been 

made by Patrick & Co. to First Leasing in August 1969? A. I spoke to him about the 
re-negotiation of a loan.

10 Q. The re-negotiation of a loan by Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd.; is that 
right? ,4. Correct.

Q. This was a telephone call? A. Yes.
Q. Can you recall what he said to you and what you said to him? A. No, I cannot 

really. I spoke to Mr. Grogan, our Melbourne manager, who communicated with 
him. I believe I spoke with him from notes I have referred to. There would be several 
conversations I believe; two, anyway.

Q. Can you recall the subject matter of those conversations? A. Not specifically.
Q. Did you play any part in the making of the loans by Patrick & Co. to First 

Leasing Australia in 1969? A. None at all.
20 Q. Can you recall discussing with anyone on behalf of First Leasing the interest 

rate at which the loan to be made by Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Ltd. was to 
be made in August 1973? A. Again referring to these notes—

Q. Do you have your notes with you? A. Somebody here has them.
Q. Are these the notes marked D.20 that you are referring to? A. They are.
Mr. Lockhart: May Mr. Strutt refer to his notes?
His Honour: Yes.
Mr. Lockhart: Q. Using your notes, can you assist us with whom you had a 

conversation referable to the subject matter of interest on the loan Patrick Inter­ 
marine Acceptances Ltd. to First Leasing Australia? A. I think Mr. Whitham's name 

30 crops up first here. "Bob Whitton" is a name I have here. I mention the rate. This 
letter on 14th August 1973; I mentioned a rate of 8.7.1 have written his name there.

Q. Do the notes assist you to recall what was said by the two of you? A. My 
recollection is that most of my conversations took place with Mr. Grogan. The initial 
conversation was specifically that either himself or myself would do all the negotia­ 
tions and that no other member of the staff, apart from Peter Davie, the executive 
director, would have anything to say. The conversations I had with Mr. Grogan are 
intermingled in my thoughts with the conversations I had with Mr. Whitham. I know 
I did speak to Mr. Whitham. I believe the initial discussions indicated the rate we 
would be looking at would be too high for us to go ahead with a re-negotiation of the 

40 loan.
Q. Can you recall anything further about the discussions with the aid of your 

notes? A. I did do a calculation, that was the opening one, and this is the second one. 
I calculated a rate which I believed would be around 9 per cent by the look of it. 
It seemed that the parties could not get together because it was too high for him. 
I believe that was the essence of the conversation, that the rate we were looking at 
was initially too high. That would have been the first conversation I had with him.

Q. Did you have a subsequent conversation with him? A. I believe that is the
second conversation referred to on the fourth foolscap page. I have underlined Mr.
Whitton's name. I told him we could do it at a rate of 8.7. That was offered because

50 the SEC dropped their rate to us. You may have noticed from these notes I mentioned
that the SEC said they could get a rate of eight and a quarter per cent from another
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source. Our negotiations were based on that eight and a quarter from the SEC. Sub­ 
sequently they dropped it . 1 per cent, and we dropped our margin, and we started to 
talk positively from that point.

Q. Did you reach agreement about an interest rate in that conversation you are 
referring to? A. On 14th August it appears we got down to tin-tacks.

Q. (Mr. Webb's affidavit of llth August, 1975 handed to witness.)
Q. Would you read to yourself pars. 7 and 8. In par. 7 Mr. Webb is referring 

to a conversation on or about 10th August, 1973, with an officer of Patrick Intermarine 
Acceptances Ltd. Do you see that? A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall having a discussion with Mr. Webb on or about that day? 10 
A. I do.

Q. You see what he relates as to what was said in par. 7? A. Yes.
Q. Do you agree or disagree with any part of that? A. I agree with it entirely.
Q. In par. 8 you see that he refers to a conversation on or about 13th August, 

1973. Have you read that? A. Yes.
Q. Did you have a discussion with him on or about that date? A. I did.
Q. Do you agree or disagree with what he says as to the substance of the con­ 

versation? A. I agree.
Mr. Gleeson: Q. I think you said in your evidence that Mr. Grogan 

communicated with Mr. Whitham; is that right? A. My instructions were specific that 20 
either myself or Mr. Grogan should handle the dealings with all parties, other than 
Mr. Davie, at all times.

Q. Is it your belief that Mr. Grogan spoke with Mr. Whitham? A. I believe it 
was either Mr. Grogan or his money-market operator, Mr. Nicholl.

Q. I understood you to say in your evidence in a context where the word "him" 
meant Mr. Whitham, Mr. Grogan communicated with him? A. Yes, I believe he did.

Q. Indeed, the notes you have in front of you record that there was a telephone 
communication between Mr. Grogan and "Mr. Whitton"? A. Yes.

Q. Whether it is spelled as "Whitham" or "Whitton" it is the same man, is not it? 
A. I am quite sure. 30

Q. You may take it from me the correct way to spell the name is "Whitham". 
Your notes record that there was a telephone conversation between Mr. Grogan and 
Mr. Whitham? A. That is right.

Q. Those handwritten notes that you have in front of you are at least in part 
notes of your discussion with Mr. Grogan rather than notes of a discussion that you 
had with Mr. Whitham? A. Yes. They are.

Q. Do I understand that you cannot now separate out in your own mind the 
parts, if any, of those notes that record a conversation you had with Mr. Whitham, 
and the parts that record conversations that you had with Mr. Grogan in which 
matters that were discussed between Mr. Grogan and Mr. Whitham were noted? A. 40 
I agree it is difficult, but I do know that I spoke to Mr. Whitham.

Q. Did you actually negotiate with Mr. Whitham? A. I believe I was involved in 
the final negotiation in a telephone call with Mr. Whitham, as shown in these notes. 
I believe that discussion took place between himself and myself.

Q. It was obvious to you in the course of these discussions that Mr. Whitham 
knew that the source of the funds in question was the SECV? A. No, it was not.

Q. Mr. Whitham was putting pressure on you to reduce your rate, was not he? 
A. No, he was not. My view was after the initial discussions that the existing loan 
between Patrick & Co. and First Leasing would be retired and would not be renewed.

Q. Because? A. Because the rate was too wide. 50
Q. The rate was too high? A. Yes.
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Q. That is the interest rate that you were asking for and the interest rate they 
were prepared to pay were too far apart? A. Correct.

Q. Mr. Whitham made it clear to you, did he not, that there could not be a deal 
unless you reduced your interest? A. I do not know how he made it clear. His rate 
was obviously well below that which we could accept. Yes, he must have made it 
clear.

Q. Is it your understanding or belief that the discussions that Mr. Grogan had 
with Mr. Whitham were also negotiating discussions?

Q. Because that is what Mr. Grogan told you? A. Yes.
10 Q. Do you remember how many times Mr. Grogan spoke to Mr. Whitham accord­ 

ing to what he told you? A. I do not know the exact number. I believe he spoke 
several times. I know he must have spoken several times.

Q. Was it Mr. Grogan's practice to report to you the detail of his discussions 
with Mr. Whitham or would he merely tell you what the ultimate upshot of the dis­ 
cussions was? A. He would inform me the facts I should know.

Q. You would not know one way or the other whether what he was telling you 
was everything that had passed between him and Mr. Whitham or only the ultimate 
effect of it? A. The important facts were related.

Q. Do you remember Mr. Grogan telling you that Mr. Whitham had indicated 
20 to him that he, Mr. Whitham, had some knowledge of the rates that the SECV were 

prepared to take, and used that as a bargaining weapon? A. No, I have no knowledge 
at all.

Q. (Approaches). In relation to those handwritten notes in front of you, are 
they all in your handwriting or are some of them in other people's handwriting? 
A. This is the initiating one; this is the first document; and that is in the handwriting 
of Peter Davie.

Q. The document that is partly in black ink? A. No, that is pencil, is not it?
Q. Partly in black ink and partly in pencil, is Mr. Davie's document? A. That is 

Mr. Davie there, and the rest is me.
30 Q. The words in pencil are Mr. Davie's words, and the rest is in your writing? 

A. Yes.
Q. In relation to the remainder of the documents? A. All of them are mine; 

everything.
Q. I think you have told us in relation to the negotiations for the August 1973 

transaction it was you and Mr. Grogan who did the negotiating on behalf of Patrick 
Intermarine Acceptances? A. Yes.

Q. Is your evidence that the man, and indeed the one person who did 
the negotiating on behalf of First Leasing, was Mr. Whitham? A. I believe Mr. 
Whitham was one of the people. I have written the name of Mr. Wettenhall there. 

40 I do not know who Mr. Wettenhall is. I must have spoken to him. That name 
appears there. I can recall speaking to someone other than Mr. Whitham. I recall 
speaking to an executive of that company who was in Sydney occasionally.

Q. May we put it this way, the person from First Leasing with whom PIAL had 
most contact in relation to the negotiations for the August 1973 transaction was Mr. 
Whitham? A. I believe so.

Mr. Lockhart: No questions.
(Witness retired.) 
PETER DAVIE, 

Sworn and examined: 
50 Mr. Lockhart\ Q. Is your full name Peter Davie? A. Yes, Mr. Lockhart.

Q. Do you live at 357A Edgecliff Road, Edgecliff? A. Yes.
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Q. Are you a money market executive by occupation? A. Yes.
Q. Were you a director of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited in 1973? 

A. Yes, I was.
Q. Can you recall when you first became a director of that company? A. As 

far as I remember it was in approximately May or June 1971.
Q. Did you remain a director, until when? A. Until I resigned at the beginning 

of April 1976.
Q. What were your duties—I withdraw that. Were you in addition to being a 

director, did you hold an executive office in Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited? 
A. I was in charge of the domestic money market operations and as such I instructed 10 
the manager as to the operations of the company.

Q. You played—what role did you play in the making of a loan in August 1973 
by Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited to First Leasing Australia Limited of 
$1,500,000? Do you recall the loan I am referring to? A. Yes, I do.

I was aware that the loan was coming up for—the loan from Patrick & Company 
to First Leasing was coming up for maturity and it was necessary for me to either have 
the loan discontinued or, alternatively, to make further arrangements, and I instructed 
Mr. Strutt to take charge of negotiations with First Leasing Australia and instructed 
him that only he or Mr. Grogan were to deal with that company.

Q. Did you have any discussions referable to the making of that loan with Mr. 20 
Reinehr of First Leasing Australia? A. There were discussions earlier that year 
between myself and Mr. Reinehr.

Q. That is earlier than August 1973? A. Yes, but I do not remember the sub­ 
stance of them now.

Q. Did you have any discussions with Mr. Reinehr in August 1973 referable to 
that loan? A. Not as far as I recall.

Q. Can you recall having discussions with any person who was an officer of 
First Leasing Australia other than Mr. Reinehr in or about August 1973? A. No, not 
that I recall (shown Ex. M).

Q. (Approached) Would you look please in Ex. M at the last document, it is 30 
marked in red "B.10". Can you tell us who prepared that document? A. That 
document was prepared under my instructions as a summary sheet for a file which 
contained details of what was called special deal No. 1.

Q. And it refers to borrower as First Leasing Australia Limited, is that right? 
A. Yes.

Q. And Lender as State Electricity Commission of Victoria? A. Yes.
Q. What was intended by those references when you authorised the preparation 

of that document? A. These transactions—transactions of this type were rather 
different to the remainder of the transactions in our money market operations, in 
what was then Patrick & Company, and I decided to isolate the documents dealing 40 
with each of these transactions and to include a summary sheet setting out briefly 
the basic information in order to enable anybody who was looking at the file in the 
future to know what the subject matter was without going through the whole of the 
correspondence in the file.

Q. What did you intend by the borrower First Leasing Australia? Borrower from 
whom? (Objected to by Mr. Gleeson; allowed) A. Borrower from Patrick & 
Company.

Q. And the lender State Electricity Commission of Victoria? A. Lender to 
Patrick and Company.

Q. Would you cast your eye a little further down the page, after the amount 50 
$500,000 and the time of twelve months; you see under "Lender" 6.50 per cent and
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under "Borrower" 7.25 per cent per annum. You see that? A. Yes.
Q. What were those interest rates under those respective headings intended to 

indicate? A. The 6.5 per cent under "Lender" is the per annum rate of interest that 
Patrick & Company was paying to the State Electricity Commission of Victoria.

Q. And the other, the 7.25? A. The 7.25 per cent per annum is a rate of interest 
which First Leasing Australia was paying to Patrick & Company.

Q. Now did you have any conversation with any officer or officers of the State
Electricity Commission of Victoria referable to the making of a loan of $1,500,000
in August 1973 by Patrick Intermarine—I am sorry—in reference to the loan to

10 Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited in August of 1973 of $1,500,000? A. I
don't recall any conversations.

Q. Who was Mr. Course? A. Mr. Course was the second senior partner in Patrick 
& Co., and later Patrick Partners and he was the Resident Partner in Melbourne.

Q. Did he have any role to your knowledge in the conduct of the money market 
operations of Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited whilst you were with that 
company? A. No.

Q. Or money market operations of Patrick & Co. prior to the taking over of its 
money market investment by Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited? A. Yes, he 
had a certain role there in that many transactions that took place in Melbourne for 

20 1973 were settled through the Melbourne office of Patrick & Co. and it was a normal 
arrangement that Mr. Course would be kept informed as to what was required even 
though he delegated responsibility for carrying out settlements to one of his staff.

Q. (Approached). Look at this document C.I8 that I show you; do you see it is 
headed "Terms and Conditions Special Deal No. 2", and it has the borrower First 
Leasing Australia Limited, Lender State Electricity Commission of Victoria, and an 
amount, and then a reference to three columns headed "Time" "Lender Per Cent" 
"Borrower Per Cent". Do you see that? A. Yes.

Q. What do those three columns indicate—first of all, did you prepare that 
document? A. That document was prepared under my instructions. 

30 Q. What do the three columns that I have just referred to indicate? A. This 
particular deal was written on a basis whereby the borrowing rate of Patrick & Co. 
from the State Electricity Commission of Victoria and the rate at which they were 
lending the money to First Leasing escalated as time passed and the time column 
indicates the dates at which the rates changed.

Q. For example, the first entry is, "12.M." What does the "12M" stand for? 
A. That means twelve months after the commencement of the loan. We were borrow­ 
ing money from the State Electricity Commission at 6.25 per cent and the money was 
being lent to First Leasing Australia at 6.75 per cent.

Q. And is the same principle followed throughout the balance of those three 
40 columns? A. Yes.

(Above document tendered, admitted without objection and marked Ex. 10)
Q. Was Ex. 10 prepared on the same basis as the document that is described 

inB.10,Ex.N?/l. Yes.
Q. Reference has been made to these transactions of Special Deal No. 1, Special 

Deal No. 2 and Special Deal No. 3. Do you know why they are called special deals? 
A. Yes, I do.

Q. What was the reason? A. I was an assistant to Mr. Alien and was responsible 
for the firm's records of all these transactions and as these deals were rather complex 
and out of the normal type of transaction that we carried out, I decided to institute 

50 special filing arrangements for them and as a result of that they became called special 
deals and numbered from 1 to 12 or 15. (Witness shown Mr. Webb's affidavit of 
11.8.75)

In the Supreme 
Court of New 
South Wales 
Common Law

Division
Commercial

List

No. 10

Plaintiff's 
Exhibits



88

In the Supreme 
Court of New 
South Wales 

Common Law
Division

Commercial
List

No. 10

Plaintiff's 
Exhibits

Q. I think you have read a copy of this before, haven't you, Mr. Webb's 
affidavit of llth August 1975? A. Yes, I have.

Q. Just look at paragraphs 4 and 5 if you would and read them through to your­ 
self again?/!. Yes.

Q. Now I take you to par. 4 first. Do you recall any discussion with Mr. Davie 
on the telephone about July 1973? A. With Mr. Webb?

Q. I am sorry, with Mr. Webb? A. I don't recall the particular conversation.
Q. Do you disagree with anything he says? A. Not in par. 4.
Q. What about par. 5? A. I have difficulty in believing that I would have said, 

"A matching letter of credit", otherwise I don't disagree with it. 10
Q. Why is it you have difficulty in believing you said that, "Matching"? A. When 

I was discussing these matters I tried to be as precise as I could be in my description 
of the documentation involved and "matching" was not an expression which I would 
have normally used in this context.

Q. What do you understand by matching in relation to letters of credit? A. I am 
not familiar with the expression in connection with letters of credit but if it was put 
to me what did it mean I would think that it meant that the amount of money in one 
credit matched the amount of money in the other credit. I was not accustomed to using 
it myself.

Q. We know that the letters of credit issued by the C.B.C. in favour of the S.E.C. 20 
of Victoria were of a different amount from those issued by the First National Bank 
of Boston. Is that what you are referring to? A. That was normally the arrangement, 
yes.

Q. One includes an interest component and the other did not, is that so? A. That 
was the normal arrangement.

Q. Did Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited from the time you joined it on­ 
wards sometimes engage in some money market transactions as a mere broker and 
other times as a principal? A. Yes.

Q. What is the distinction between the two as you understand it? A. As a broker 
the transaction would involve the identity of one party being revealed to the other 30 
party and that payments of principal and repayments of principal and payments of 
interest would be made direct between those two parties.

Q. What remuneration did the broker receive? A. Normal remuneration was a 
quarter per cent, although sometimes it did go as high as a half per cent.

Q. What was your understanding as to the role of the company Patrick Inter- 
marine Acceptances Limited where it acted as a principal? A. It was careful not to 
reveal the identity of borrowers and lenders one to the other.

Q. Can you recall a discussion in February or March of 1973 in Melbourne 
with Mr. Reinehr and Mr. Grogan being present? A. Yes, I have a vague recollection 
of that discussion. 40

Q. What is the best of your recollection that you can give as to what was said? 
A. Well, the best recollection that I have is the subject which was to do with lease 
syndication and my recollection of other matters that were discussed is very hazy.

Q. You do not have any note of your own? A. No, I have no notes.
Q. Do you have any recollection of any discussion with Mr. Reinehr in February 

or March of 1973 or thereabouts over the telephone in addition to that one where 
Mr. Grogan was present in Melbourne? A. I have no particular recollection. I am not 
saying that there were not such conversations but I do not recall them.

Mr. Meagher: No questions.
CROSS-EXAMINATION: 50

Mr. Gleeson: Q. Mr. Davie, I want you to have a look at Ex. Q which comprises
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two documents and on the bottom of the second document there are some hand­ 
written notations. Do you recognise the writing? A. Yes, I do.

Q. Whose writing is it? A. It is Mr. David Thorpe.
Q. You remember being asked some questions about par. 5 of the affidavit of Mr. 

Webb and you said that you do not think that you would have used the word 
"matching" to describe the letter of credit there referred to. What term would you 
have used? A. If I had used any term at all I would have said using a back-to-back 
arrangement.

Q. And the reason you deny, or you do not think you used the word "matching" 
10 is because it was your custom to be precise in relation to such terminology? A. I tried 

to be.
His Honour: Q. What motivates a dealer in the money market to act as a broker 

or to act as a principal? What are the considerations? A. The motivation really starts 
with the borrower normally coming to a dealer and saying that he wishes to borrow 
money for a certain period and the dealer will then go out as either agent or principal 
in order to try and find those funds.

If in fact he can set himself as a principal the margin that he can make on the 
overall transaction is normally greater than that which he can make—than when he 
acts as a broker.

20 Q. About .5% you said? A. Well, it varies because in some transactions it is 
possible to make perhaps a margin as high as one per cent.

Q. But as a broker it is about .5 did you say? A. Yes, the maximum margin 
normally made by a broker is .5, and the normal margin is .25 per cent per annum.

Q. So you prefer to act as a principal if you can? A. It depends on the company, 
your Honour. Some companies prefer to deal as brokers because then they are free of 
risk; others prefer to make the additional margin and accept the risk.

Q. But you did both apparently? A. Yes, but the brokerage type of business was 
a minor activity as far as Patrick Intermarine Acceptances was concerned.

(Witness retired and excused) 
30 (Subject to the tendering of documents case for the First Defendant closed).

CASE FOR THE THIRD AND FOURTH DEFENDANTS.
(His Honour informed counsel for the Defendants that he would like an explanation

as to why they had not complied with his direction to furnish affidavits.)
FRANCIS IAN REINEHR,

Sworn and examined:
Mr. Meagher: Q. Your full name is Francis lan Reinehr? A. Yes.
Q. You live at 603 Nepean Highway, Carrum? A. Yes.
Q. You are a company director? A. Yes.
Q. Might I ask you initially some questions about First Leasing. I think the 

40 First National Bank of Boston at some stage in the sixties became the owner of half 
the issued capital of First Leasing? A. Correct.

Q. When was that? A. That was in December 1969.
Q. Prior to December 1969 the capital was owned by whom? A. It was owned 

by two companies, Expansion Finance Australia Pty. Limited, which was an invest­ 
ment company for the Reinehr family, and another small proprietary company—I 
cannot recall its name now—which was the family company of one of the other 
directors, a Mr. Hamilton—Mr. Wheelton, Hamilton Wheelton, Hamilton is his first 
name.

Q. And I think your company owned 82 per cent? A. It would be approximately. 
50 Q. Mr. Wheelton's family owned 18 per cent? A. Correct.

Q. In December 1969 the First National Bank of Boston acquired a half interest
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and I think that reduced your holdings from approximately 82 per cent to 371 per 
cent? A. Correct.

His Honour: What is the relevance of that, Mr. Meagher?
Mr. Meagher: My learned friend Mr. Gleeson referred to some of this in opening, 

your Honour, presumably to base some argument that the Boston Bank would have 
known anything that First Leasing knew. I cannot see any other reason and since 
my learned friend opened I assumed it was going to be relevant on some basis.

Q. I think you are not now connected with First Leasing? A. No, I am not.
Q. You are aware, are you not, that in 1969 certain moneys were made avail­ 

able on loan by Patricks to First Leasing? A. Correct. 10
Q. I think you agree that in the first instance it was half a million dollars, in I 

think April 1969, and thereafter an agreement to lend $3,000,000 in May 1969, in 
two parts, the first part in May the second part in September? A. I think it was August; 
correct.

Q. You now know that the source of those funds was the S.E.C. of Victoria? A. 
Yes.

Q. Did you know that in May—A. Can I—?
Q. Sorry? A. I was not aware in actual fact until today that the first $500,000 

was from the S.E.C. I was aware of the two lots of $1.5 million.
Q. When did you first become aware that the two lots of $1.5 million— A. I 20 

can't recall exactly but it would have been some time after the first transaction of 
$1.5 million. It could have been over a six month period, it could have been shorter, 
I just can't pin when this may have been.

Q. But to summarise that, it was after May 1969 and it might or might not have 
been after August 1969? A. Correct.

His Honour: Q. How did you hear? A. Your Honour, I believe I was told by 
Mr. Tim Alien in a telephone conversation whereby he let slip that the funds came 
from a Victorian semi-governmental institution and I possibly said "The S.E.C.?" and 
either by his—either he said "Yes" or by his reply I was to my own mind sure it was 
from the S.E.C. 30

Mr. Meagher: Q. Is there any way you can now fix the date of that conversation? 
A. No, there is not.

Q. Could it have been after the end of 1969? A. It could have been, yes.
Q. In all the 1969 transactions did you regard yourself as dealing with Patricks 

as principal or as agent? A. As principal.
Q. In your negotiations with Patricks was it ever suggested to you that First 

Leasing might be under obligation to make default in its payments? A. No, it was not.
Q. As far as the 1969 transactions were concerned, did you personally conduct 

those negotiations with Patricks? A. Yes, I did.
Q. As far as you know did any other person in First Leasing other than you have 40 

any part in it? A. The major negotiations would have been done by myself. There 
could have been other people on my staff carrying out various aspects associated with 
the transaction but nothing of material fact.

Q. As far as you were concerned with whom did you conduct your negotiations? 
A. Tim Alien.

Q. I think it is clear that you personally did not negotiate with Patrick Inter- 
marine Acceptances Limited on the 1973 transaction? A. No, I did not.

Q. Did the Commercial Banking Company ever complain to First Leasing, as far 
as you know, that the Boston Bank's letters of credit were inappropriate in any way? 
A.'No. 50
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CROSS-EXAMINATION:
Mr. Lockhart: Q. Mr. Reinehr, you said that you believed it was Mr. Tim Alien 

who told you that the S.E.C. was the source of the funds. Do I gather from what you 
said in answer to Mr. Meagher's question that he may have simply told you it was a 
Victorian institution and that you having other information may have put two and 
two together and said, "Ah S.E.C. Victoria"? A. I would have said that but he would 
have confirmed it to me or I would have taken that my guess was correct.

Q. That your guess as being the S.E.C. was correct? A. Yes.
Q. But the initial statement of the actual name of the body may have been— 

10 A. It could be mine as I mentioned earlier. I can't recall exactly the terms of the 
conversation but I believe it was along those lines.

Q. Were you ever shown by Mr. Alien or anybody else from Patricks or Patrick 
Intermarine Acceptances Limited a Commercial Banking Company letter of credit in 
favour of the State Electricity Commission of Victoria? A. No.

Q. Or any requisition by Patricks or Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited to 
the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney in favour of S.E.C. Victoria? A. No.

Q. Did you requisition the First National Bank of Boston to issue its letters of
credit referrable to the borrowings by First Leasing Australia from Patrick & Co. and
Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited? A. I can't recall exactly. Probably I would

20 have. If I didn't do it myself it would have been someone else doing it under my
instructions.

Q. But that requisition in any event was by your company not by Patricks? A. 
Yes, by ourselves requesting a letter of credit per telex to the First National Bank of 
Boston.

Q. When did First Leasing Australia first become a customer of the Commercial 
Banking Company of Sydney, do you recall that? A. We have to go back a little 
further. First Leasing Australia Limited was initially a subsidiary of Reinehr Industrial 
Lease and Finance Limited and its relationship with the C.B.C. Bank would possibly 
go back to, I would say within an accuracy of one year, 1961 or 1962. 

30 Q. The company grew considerably, did it not, in the period 1969 to 1972 or 
19131 A. Yes, it did.

Q. Would it be correct to say—I do not want to be offensive to you, but it was a 
fairly small customer in about 1969 and became a big customer in about 1973? A, 
This would be correct.

Q. Did its capital increase substantially in that period? A. No, it did not.
Q. It increased in what way? Borrowings? A. When you say "capital" I 

immediately think of paid capital. It increased from $10,000 to $100,000 paid capital 
in that period.

Q. Also did the amount of its borrowings increase considerably in that period? 
40 A. Total assets, yes, it did, assets and liabilities.

His Honour: Q. I gather you mean the amount of business it was doing became 
very much greater? A. Yes, it did, yes, your Honour.

Mr. Lockhart: Q. Do you know why it was that the First National Bank of 
Boston in relation to the transactions in issue here nominated the Commercial Bank­ 
ing Company of Sydney as its advising banker? A. It did not nominate, I nominated, 
or First Leasing would nominate the advising banker.

Q. Now this was either on the instruction of the lender or, alternatively, if there 
was not an instruction we would try and do it ourselves or influence it to the C.B.C. 
Bank. 

50 Q. Because it was your banker? A. Correct.
Q. Do you recall which of those two situations applied in the case of the letter
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of credit that was issued by the Boston Bank No. SI 1085 on 13th August 1969 in 
relation to the loan for a million and a half dollars? A. It would have been at the 
request of Patrick Partners.

Q. And what of the later one S.I 1011 of 13th May 1969? A. The same.
Q. And the earlier one again of 28th March 1969 S.10971 for some $536,250? 

A. That one I can't answer but I would assume—I can't answer exactly but I would 
assume it would be the same.

Mr. Gleeson: Q. Mr. Reinehr, I think you said that at all times that we are 
concerned with and some time before that First Leasing was a customer of the C.B.C. 
Bank? A. Yes. 10

Q. And I think you were aware yourself through 1969 and right up until 1973 
that Patricks were a customer of the C.B.C. Bank? A. Yes, I was aware of that.

Q. That is Patrick & Co., and it later changed its name to Patrick Partners, and 
also Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited? A. I can't answer the last two, I can 
only speak of Patrick & Partners.

Q. In any event, as far as you were concerned you were aware that the C.B.C. 
Bank was the banker for Patrick & Co.? A. Yes.

Q. And Patrick & Company had in fact—had they made that clear to you right 
from the outset? A. I would assume so, yes.

Q. It would be your normal practice, wouldn't it, at a very early stage of any 20 
significant business relationship with somebody like Patrick and company to find out 
who their bankers were? A. Yes, that is quite correct.

Q. And you found out in the present case at a fairly early stage of your business 
association with the Patrick people that their bankers were the C.B.C. Bank? A. Yes, 
that would be correct.

Q. Whenever it was that you became aware that the source of the loan funds 
in question was the S.E.C.V.—and you have given us the best of your recollection 
about that—may we take it that having that knowledge you then either knew or 
assumed that the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit was being used in a 
back-to-back security arrangement by Patricks? (Objected to by Mr. Meagher; 30 
allowed) A. Yes, I would have. I would not have known the details but I would 
have known or assumed that our letter of credit had some significance.

His Honour: Q. That is rather different from saying you assumed that it would 
be used in a back-to-back arrangement with the C.B.C. Bank, which is what Mr. 
Gleeson put to you? A. I thought my reply—

Q. "Assume" has some significance? A. Yes, I thought my reply was, your 
Honour, and certainly this was my intention, I knew the letter of credit was of 
significance to Patrick & Partners. Now to take it further I cannot comment other 
than that.

Mr. Gleeson: Q. Just coming to the August 1969 transaction relating to the 40 
$1,500,000, may we take it that when the letter of credit from the First National 
Bank was issued in favour of Patrick Partners you either knew or assumed that 
Patrick Partners would make some use of that letter, they would not just sit there 
and keep it? (Objected to by Mr. Lockhart; pressed on the authority of the First 
National Bank and First Leasing to Patrick Partners; Mr. Lockhart informed his 
Honour that he would not be making any submission on that "authority"; question 
rejected.)

Q. Are you familiar with the expression back-to-back letter of credit? A. Yes.
Q. What do you understand that expression to mean? A. One letter of credit 

is issued in favour of a beneficiary and that beneficiary obtains a similar letter of credit 50 
to enable him to borrow funds to support the first letter of credit.
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Q. At some stage did you become aware that Patrick & Company had made a 
back-to-back letter of credit arrangement with the C.B.C. Bank? (Objected toby Mr. 
Meagher; rejected).

Q. May we take it that so far as you were concerned when that First National 
Bank of Boston letter of credit was issued in August 1969, whether or not Patrick 
and Company chose to use it for the purposes of a back-to-back letter of credit 
arrangement, or some similar purpose, was a matter that did not concern—was their 
business? (Objected to by Mr. Meagher; allowed) A. It did not concern us.

Q. As far as you were concerned they were entitled to do that if they wished, 
10 correct? A. Correct.

Q. And the same applies to the August 1973 extension? (Objected to by Mr. 
Meagher; allowed) A. Correct.

Q. Now can I take you to your state of actual knowledge as at August 1973. As 
at August 1973 you in fact knew that the State Electricity Commission of Victoria 
was the source of the $1.5 million in question? A. Yes.

Q. I think you told us at all material times you knew that the C.B.C. Bank was 
Patrick's bankers? A. Yes.

Q. As at August 1973— A. Excuse me, Patrick Partners' bankers.
Q. As at August 1973 did you in fact know that there was an arrangement be- 

20 tween Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited and the C.B.C. Bank in relation to 
the First National Bank of Boston's letter of credit? A. Yes, I did know there was 
some arrangement.

Q. You knew that there was some arrangement between the C.B.C. Bank and 
Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited in relation to the letter of credit that was 
being extended in August 1973 by the First National Bank? A. I knew there was 
something. What that was I did not delve into because it was not our business.

His Honour: Q. Why would not you in that state of knowledge simply go to the
S.E.C.V. and do a deal directly? A. First off in the money market business it is
necessary to act correctly at all times. That could be construed as acting incorrectly

30 or improprietrally so far as our relationship with Patricks would have been concerned.
The other reason would be that the S.E.C. was not allowed to lend funds with­ 

out acceptable securities and an overseas letter or credit was not an acceptable 
security.

Q. But you could have procured a local one, couldn't you? A. Yes, we could.
Q. So it was more to do with what you believed to be the ethics of the money 

market? A. And I think what was happening at that time. Patricks approached us 
first and we would tend to explore all transactions to its ultimate. If it did not make 
sense to us we would not go ahead, we would possibly look for another. I would say 
at that time it made sense. 

40 Q. You mean if the interest was too high you would go somewhere else? A. Yes.
Mr. Gleeson: Q. When did you first learn that the S.E.C.V. was not allowed to 

lend funds on a foreign bank's letter of credit? A. This was common knowledge in 
the market place I would say some six or nine months before August 1973.

Q. It was common knowledge? A. Yes.
(Witness retired and excused) 

(Further hearing adjourned to 10 a.m. Tuesday, 6th July, 1976).

In the Supreme 
Court of New 
South Wales 

Common Law
Division

Commercial
List

No. 10

Plaintiff's
Exhibits



94

LOCAL DOCUMENTARY CREDIT REQUISITION

Font M». 4.
Office u»e only.

THE COMMEr?CIAL BANKING COMPANY Qf SYDNEY LIMITED. ..............8th..April................... 19 69.
(Haralnaftar callad ' 'tha Bank*  )

343 George Street,

We hereby request you to open on our account by ...........*...^w...^T..................... an irrevocable credit subject to
(Mall or talairaph)

Uniform Customs agd PracLic*ipr Documentary Credits (1962 RevsJ9t)> J£ternational Chamber of Commerce Brochure

No. 222.uthorising.......Jb#^.../.........^
(Full name of beneficiary)

(Pull address)

*r.o B-,
C.I.F.. etc.

to draw on us for any sum or sums noi exceeding in all 4^: $500 ,,000 ...... (..*J

....... unpaid principal ..mount
available by their drafts at......................................................sight purporting to covenBrww-tw*.!*.................................

The drafts must be presented for negotiation not later than . .. Y.C.r .APT.Vr?.................... 19 7.9......aad nua. be
accompanied by the following documents relating thereto:  

'Add other -Cim.ainuM.niM. Stata»ant of Stata EUctrlcity Coanmliiion of Victoria 
re^uSeT* certifying that tha draft a-rount rapraaanta tha unpaid principal amount

of a loan Bada by tha CnaMtaaion to Patrick & Con-pany and that payment
haa baan daaandad and not racalvad.

Additional instructions (if anyl: - JNegotJa^lon/8 under thla credit ara raatrlctad to tha 
Commercial BanklngV^Wmlted, Melbourne. Drawing*) under thla credit 
must nof ba made prior to 6th April, 1970. 
Plaaaa hand<BMwUM« €6 our representative on application on tha morning

In conaidaratlon of NlaBanV    Tabnahlna; thia credit wa naraby aeraa with tha Bank    followa:-

A. Natthar tha Bank nor ita amenta ahal! b« undar any liability In raapact of loaa or daaiag* ariatna; or raiultlna;: 

(i) Froai any  rror. onUaalon or dalay In tha tranimlaalon or dalivary or daeodkaa; of any aMaaaa;a (whalhar lttara.1, 
ui coda or In cyphar) by mall, talaeraph or othvrwiaa or in Iha tntarpratation of or coaapllanca with any inatructioaj 
or aiandata howaoavar auch arror, oniaaion or dalay ahall hava arlaan ar baan cauaad.

(it)froai any fault, arror or miataka aa to tha quantity, luallty, natura. valua. conaujnnwM or dallvary of tha ftooda, or aa to 
tha amount of tha ahippara', rail or carrlara' cnarfaa tharaon or tharafor or aa to tha validity, anforcvability.afficacy, 
aufficiancy. (anuinanaaa or accuracy of any draft, involca, bill of lading, inauranca policy or cartificata or othar 
dociMvanta. or any andorsaaMnt or naiotiatlon of or titla to any auch docuaMnt.

To accapt on praiantatlon and pay at murlty tha dr.In drawn undar or in Intandad or purportad coayllanca with tha cradlt 
or thia raqulaltion tocathar with: -

(1) Bank Intaraal for any parlod by which tha data of oaynant by tha Bank pracadai tha data of our payaiant to tha Bank .and 

r conwiiaaion of ( %) on tha amount of tha cradlt. and 

l uaual Bank char«aa.

eluding
Ussion banking and other charges expenses and interest and we will not do or omit or suffer to be done or omitted any 
rr or thing which might prejudice the value or existence of the said security. We will pay to tha Bank anymoneys 

received by ua under any insurance of the foods which moneys until so paid shall be held by us in trust for the Bank. 

Immediately upon the Bank's request, to do, and procure the doing of. all such acts and to sign, endorse, execute 
and/or deliver, and to procure the signature, endorsement, execution and/or delivery of, all such authorities, tranafera, 
deeds and /or documents aa the Bank may require in order to perfect its title to the foods and/or documents and/or 
to vest the same in and/or deliver the same to any purchaser from the Bank and/or to recover any insurance moneys 
payable or paid in respect of loss of or damage to the goods.

E . In the event of default being made by ua in any of our obligations to the Bamk the Bank may without notice to us sell, 
by public auction or private treaty, dlspoae of or otherwise deal with the goods or any of them (whether landed or not) 
as and when it may think fit and collect and give receipts for any amounts due or to become due under any Insurance 
Policy or Certificate and apply the proceeds first in or towards payment to the Bank of an amount equal to any charges 
and expenses made or .itemed by the Bank in obtaining poe session of, landing, storing, reconditioning and/or disposing 
of the goods and second in or towards payment of all or any moneys for the time being owing by ua to the Bank or hereby 
 greed to be paid by ua without prejudice to all or any of the Bank's rights against ua or any other party and we will on 
demand pay to the Bank any deficiency with bank interest thereon until payment.

f . The Bank its Agents and each negotiating Bank are respectively authoriaed without reference to ua and without being 
1 inkle for any act or omission to give effect to thia request in such manner as in Us or their opinion maybe moat convenient 
or expedient.

G . To indemnify and hold the Bank its servants and agents harmless and free from liability in respect of all loss and damage 
(including coats and expenses incmred by any of them in resisting claims by third parties) arising or resulting from the 
negotiation of drafts or any other act, matter or thing done or omitted to be done in actual or In intended or purported 
compliance with this request and with any latter of credit issued in consequents thereof.

H . This agreement shall continue im force not wit hat ending any chaMge in the constitution of any firm or ceempamy referred to

I-

J. Va undartaka that In tha avant of dra^nj7>aUDlaring aada undar thla cradit, 
va will laaiadlataly lodga with tha Bank a draft and accompanying docuMnta 
iii t^Lmw 01 First Rational B«nk of Boaton, Doacou, Lac car of Cradlt no. S1Q971 
for an amount not laaa than that raquirad to .Mat tha dr airing (a) undar tha 
cradit roquaatad in thla raqulaltlon. Tmi/2 i^ithfullT

(APPLICANT'S ADDRESS TO SC STATED MLOW SIGN4

If this r*a.u*»t is mad* by two or nora parti**, thair obli«atlona shall ba joint and savaral. Thro«.-|houl this docu 
sinculnr numbar shall includ* tha plural and vica varaa.

A Requisition for Local Documentary 
Credit 8.4.69
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DOCUMENTARY LETTER OF CREDIT —— FORM No. «. ' "> 

,_.-.-,-.-.-—— —— -. —————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————— • ————————— *

CONFIRMATION OF CREDIT ESTABLISHED BY TELEGRAPH

THE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY, LIMITED j
!

SYDNEY, 9th April, '9 69.' \
New South Wale>. I

IRREVOCABLE CREDIT { 
No. LD.920.

We hereby authorise STATE ELECTRICITY COMMISSION OF VICTORIA, 15 WILLIAM ; 
STREET, MELBOURNE, VICTORIA. ————————————————————————————————————————— j

to draw on Patrick and Company, 2 Caatlereagh Street, Sydney, N.S.V. • ——— j

at """""" ———————— " — " sight for any sum or gums not exceeding in all »A5OO ,OOO* OO* ( Five |

hundred thousand dollars* — ——— — ——————————————— Australian currency) j

purporting to cover EKES? E&T ************ unpaid principal amount of loan made ] 
to Patrick & Company, 2 Caatlereagh Street, Sydney* • ——— - —— • —————————— j

i
j XpCXXXXXXXXXXXXX^XXXjCKXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXKK)CXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|BC I

j j
j for account of PATRICK & COMPANY. ————————————————————————————————————— I

j The draft(s) drawn under this credit must be accompanied by the following documents relating ! 
thereto: — j

Statement of State Electricity Commission of Victoria ! 
certifying that the draft amount represents the unpaid j 
principal amount of a loan made by the ^mmis3ion to i 
Patrick & Company and that payment/He^, b**n demanded ! 
and not received.

ii

Additional instructions (if any) :—- _ . , ^_ j ^ _ „ * ,
Negotiation's) under this Credit are restricted to The Commercial

Banking Company of Sydney Limited, Melbourne* 
Drawing(s) under this Credit must not be made prior to 6th April,

1970.

I

Drafts must be presented for negotiation not later than 8th April, I <f?O and forwarded j 
j to our HEAD ' omcejOBDBfc together with relative documents forSMHpHHk/payment. j

Drafts must be enfaced with the number, date and place of issue of this credit and the negotiating ! 
Bank must record the amount of each draft on the back hereof. I

THE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY. LIMITED, hereby engages with the j 
drawers, endorsers and bona fide holders of drafts drawn under and in compliance with the terms of this ! 
credit, that such drafts shall meet with due honour upon presentation. I

| 
W. G. CARMAN E. A. FLANDERS j

Countersigner. pro* Manager. j

Subiec* to Up form GjsTom* «nd Pr.ctic. for Oocum«ntarv Credit* (1962 Revision), tntarrwtion*! OiMnb*r of Commcrc* Brochure No. 222 I

j

B Copy of Irrevocable Letter of Credit 9.4.69
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fht FIRST NATIONAL BANK •/ BOSTON
INTERNATIONAL DIVISION

BOTTOM. MAMACHUOTTI, U.S.A.Aust
LETTER OPCBBDIT NO.S-11085 Dote August 14,1969 
Patrick and Company 
G.P.O. 2850 
Sydney, Australia

W« mmmmmr *pn> com IRREVOCABLE LBTTBR »r CRBDIT m *••» MVM ATAIUBU «r YWB
 » Commercial Banking Company of Sydney, Ltd. Sydney, Australia

One Million Five Hundred Thousand Australian Dollars ..... 

' * First Leasing Australia, Ltd. Melbourne, Australia

Your statement signed by an official authorized to sign on your bank 
account certifying that:

The draft amount represents the unpaid principal amount plus accrued
interest (which may be drawn in excess of the credit amount, at a
rate not exceeding 7.625$ Per Annum and inclusive of stamp duties,
if applicable) of a fixed loan to November 15,1970 made by you to
First Leasing Australia, Ltd.
Thatsuch amount was not paid when due and hasnot since been repaid
to or collected by you.
The promissory note or other evidence of the indebtedness in respect
of such loan.
This credit is also available on the first day of each succeeding
quarter beginning on February 15,1971 at an interest rate agreed upon
between yourselves and First Leasing Australia, Ltd. but not to exceed
7.625% Per Annum for any period during the life of the credit provided
we have been advised by authenticated cable through Commercial Banking
Company of Sydney, Ltd. Sydney, Australia dispatched at least 60 days
prior to the first day of each succeeding quarter that you have demanded
payment of the above mentioned loan or portion thereof from First Leasing
Australia, Ltd. and that such amount was not paid when due.

MUTT MOT! BBAB «*•» IM MOB «•• 61AVM "DmAWW !)•••• LBTTBB «T CnM* N*. S~ 1 1 085

August 14,1969 •» THB FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON, BMW, MM*."

N*.

. wyv nn TBBIM 9f
August 15,

ds
C Letter of Credit issued by First National 

Bank of Boston 14.8.69
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LOCAL DOCUMENT* .f <.Jntfl REQUISITION ^

THE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYL'

3U3
(H«r.in«ft.r c.li.d "the Bank")

Str»«t r

Form No. 4.

-tMITED,

Office use only.

. .1.5.$!*. .t.. 19.P.9f

We hereby request you to open on our account by ... an irrevocable credit subject to
(Mail or teleBraph) 

Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits (1962 Revision), International Chamber of Commerce Brochure

No. 222 authorising S tM« JEJL^C 1^^
(Full name of beneficiary)

....
(Pull •ddrcii)

to draw on us lor any sum or sums not exceeding in all $ 1 »5QQ t QQQ».P.O,.....l.Qne. million .

.hundred., thousand, dollars. ....... ............................................................. AH».trnl.iiw»......curr«c.y)

available by their drafts at........
(Usance)

unpaid principal of
sipht purporting to cover vn+Stwwt* . ................................

loan ..nad.e to Patrick A Company, 2 Castlereagb. ...Street., Sydney.
("Merchandise" or brief description of good*)

*Shipped, 
railed, etc.

The drafts must be presented for negotiation no I later than . 
accompanied by the following documents relating thereto: —

. 1 9. . 7.J.. .d mu.t be

*Add other 
documents 
required.

COT M-hi nix* Statement of State £lectrici,ty Commission of Victoria 
certifying that the draft amount represents the unpaid principal 
amount of a fixed loan to IJ/ll/^O made by the Commission to Patrick 
* Company and payment of -the loan has been demanded and not received. 
This credit is also available on the first day of each suceeding 
quarter beginning on February 15th, 19"7! provided The Commercial 
Banking Company of Sydney Ltd., Sydney have been notified immediately 
that State Electricity Commission of Victoria have demanded payment 
of the loan or portion thereof from Patrick A Company and that such 
Additi...i «..n.c.i... (if any), - N.KOtiatlon/. und.r this credfI'tfre^alrYoVed 
to The Commercial Banking Company 'of Sydney Limited, Melbourne.

COST OF TELEGRAM

\

i (

In consideration of the Bank establishing (hie credit we hereby agree with the Bank as follows: —

A. Neither the Bank nor Its agents shall be under any liability in respect of lorn* or damage arising or resulting: —
(I) Prom any error, omission or delay In the transmission or delivery or decoding of any message (whether literal, 

In code or In cypher) by mail, telegraph or otherwise or In the Interpretation of or compliance with any instruction

(II)from any fault, error or mistake as to the quantity, quality, nature, value, consignment or delivery of the goods, or as to 
the amount of the shippers' , rail or carriers' charges thereon or therefor or as to the validity, enforceabillty, efficacy, 
sufficiency, genuineness or accuracy of any draft, invoice, bill of lading, insurance policy or certificate or other 
documents, or any endorsement or negotiation of or title to any such document.

B To accept on presentation and pay at maturity the drafts drawn under or in intended or purported compliance with the credit 
or this requisition together with: -

(I) Bank Interest for any period by which the date of payment by the Bank precedes the date of our payment to the Bank,and
(II)a commission of ( %) on the amount of the credit, and

(lli>U usual Bank charges.
and so to do notwithstanding that for any reason whatsoever, any such draft or other documents herein mentioned shall 
not be genuine or shall be or become invalid or payment or recovery of any money thereunder or the performance of any 
contract thereby created or evidenced be or become delayed postponed or impossible. Further if we fail to accept any 
draft negotiated by the Bank or be excused from acceptance thereof on any ground whatsoever, we will pay to the Bank 
at the branch or office first abovementloned on demand the amount paid by the Bank.

C . The Bank shall hold the above-mentioned documents and goods as a continuing security by way of pledge Independent 
of and additional to any other security held by the Bank for payment of all moneys payable by us to the Bank including 
all commission banking and other charge* expenses and Interest and we will not do or omit or suffer to be done or omitted any 
act matter or thing which might prejudice the value or existence of the said security. We will pay to the Bank any money a 
received by us under any Insurance of the goods which moneys until so paid shall be held by us In trust for the Bank.

D . Immediately upon the Bank's request, to do, and procure the doing of, all such act* and to sign, endorse, execute 
and/or deliver, and to procure the signature, endorsement, execution and 'or delivery of, all such authorities, transfers, 
deeds and /or documents as the Bank may require in order to perfect its title to the goods and/or documents and ''or 
to vest the same In and/or deliver the seme to any purchaser from the Bank and /or to recover any insurance moneys 
payable or paid in respect of loss of or damage to the goods.

I . In the event of default being made by us In any of our obligations to the Bank the Bank may without notice to us sell, 
by public auction or private treaty, dispose of or otherwise deal with the goods or any of them (whether landed or not) 
as and when it may think fit and collect and give receipts for any amounts due or to become due under any Insurance 
Policy or Certificate and apply the proceeds first in or towards payment to the Bank of an amount equal to any charges 
and expenses made or Incurred by the Bank in obtaining poasesalon of, landing, storing, reconditioning and /or disposing 
of the goods and second In or towards payment of all or any moneys for the time being owing by us to the Bank or hereby 
agreed to be paid by us without prejudice to all or any of the Bank's rights against us or any other party and we will on 
demand pay to the Bank any deficiency with bank interest thereon until payment.

F . The Bank Its Agents and each negotiating Bank are respectively authorised without reference to us and without being 
liable for any act or omission to give effect to this request in such manner as In Its or their opinion maybe most convenient 
or expedient.

O . To indemnify and hold the Bank its servants and agents harmless and free from liability in respect of all loss and damage 
(including costs and expenses incurred by any of them in resisting claims by third parties) arising or resulting from the 
negotiation of drafts or any other act, matter or t^ing done or omitted to be done in actual or in intended or purported 
compliance with this request and with any letter of credit issued in consequence thereof.
This agreement shall'continue i 
herein.

force notwithstanding any change In the constitution of any firm or company referred to

I. If this r.qu««t i. mad. by two or mor. parties, th.ir obligation* .hall b. joint and t.v.ral. Throughout thi* docufn.m th. 
• insular nufnbar shall includ. th. plural and vie. v.r.a.

J We undertake that in the event of drawing/• being made under 
this credit we will immediately lodge w£th the bank a draft 
and accompanying documents in terms of First National Bank of 
Boston, Boston, Letter of Credit Nos. S.11O85 for an amount 
not less than that required to meet the drawing(s) under the 
credit requested in this Requisition. /i

Yeurs faithfully.
DK *FO Tf* V M. faTlKaf D A M r(APPLICANT'S ADDRESS TO BE STATED BELOW SIGNATURE) *f^«J-^R * l/UMl'ANI.

D Requisition for Local Documentary 
Credit 15.8.69
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LOCAL REQUISITION

T.I Tfc. kUmMr,
THI COMMCMCIAL SANKINC COMPANY OP SYDNIY LIMITCD,

(HorolnoAor callod "tko Bank")

Office nme oily.

14th August
....... ...... ,,,. 1973

343 George Street, Sydney, N.S.W.
We hereby reque«t you to open on our accout by ........ T'.J.Wir*Pn.. ................. u irrevocablo credit oibiect t' 1 ' >~ ' '

Uniform Cuslomi ud Prnclice for Docgmeitnry Credit* (1962 Reviiiol), Internal ionil Chamber of Commerce Brochare

NO. 222..ihori.i.g.....S.iUi.t*..El.ec.tr1.c.1.tar...CQmmls>1o|)..M..yiC.t»^^
(Full naa» of bonoflclnrr)

1.5 S.iti^.t....Ml^.urne.f..V1c....3ppp..X'...
y

(Foil oddreio)

, ,. . .. $1,500.000.00^, On* million five hundredo draw on ua for any sam or aums not exceeding in all ........,...........-,..............(,........^.................................................

thousand dollars ./ Australian C ._.K
. unpaftf principal of

•F.O.B.. available by their drnfln al ........................................ ..-height purporting lo cover VJUtteUUaX*...............................
C.I.F., otc. (Uoance)

of.

y)

('•MarehondlBo" or brlof doicrlptlo. of |oodo)

^

•ihlppod. 
rolled, otc.

of............ .. Brig-tun"1 *«• V.

The drolls must be presented for negotiation not Inter thnn T^^* 19 and mnnl be 
accompanied by the following documenla relating therelo: —

UttM«XKKX«Xfl«
Statement of State Electricity Coaalsslon of Victoria certifying that the 

draft amount represents the unpaid principal amount of a fixed loan to 14th 
August. 1975 made by the Commission to Patrlck-IntermaHne Acceptances Limited 
and payment of the loan has been demanded and not received. Negotiation/* 
under this credit are restricted to The Com»trc1a1 Banking Company of Sydney 
Limited. Melbourne. •

Additional instructions (if any): —

Vv-'

consideration of the Bank establishing this credit we hereby agree with the. frank a* fallows!—

Neither the Bank nor its agents shall be under any liability In respect of loss or rlssWgT arising or resultingi—
(1) Pros* any error, omission or delay In the t/eass»lsstoe. or delivery or decoding of any a.e*sag* (whether literal,

in cade or in cypher) by Mil, telegraph or otherwise or la the interpret at ion of or compliance with any taetruetlaa,
or mandate howsoever such error, emission or delay shall have arlseat-or been caused.

(li)fromi any fault.error or mdstahs as'to the quantity, quality, nature Rvalue, coo* ignmsnt or delivery af the goed*, ar aa ta 
the esjpua* of the shippers', rail or carrier* chargee thereon of therefor or as to the validity, eaferceabUlty,efficacy, 
sufficiency, genuineness or accuracy ef any draft, invoice, bill of lading, insurance policy or certificate ar oth*« 
document*, ar any endoraeajent or negotiation of or title to any such docuajont.

To accept on presentation and pay al .maturity the draft* d*ewn under or in intended or purported compliance with the credit 
or this requisition together Wlthi -

(1) Baak ( lntereet for any, period by which the date of payment by the Bank precede* the date of our payment to the Bank.and
(il)a commiselon of ( %) oa the amount of the credit, and
(ll!)aU usual Bank chat***.

and so to do notwithstanding that far any reason whatsoever, any such draft ar ether documents bereta mentioned ehatt 
not be genuine or shall be or become Invalid or payment or recovery of aay 0.0*0y thereunder or the piffmrnaa-Ti af aay 
contract thereby created or evidenced be or become delayed poatpaand or imnoaemk*. further if we faU ta accept any 
draft negotiated by the Bank ar be excused from acceptance thereof on any grams** whatsoever, we will pay ta the Bank 
at the branch or office first aboveMotioned on demand the lainunt paid by the Bank.

. The Bank shall hold the stove-ewntloned documents and goads as a i iallM.su aacwlty by way of pledge tadipindim 
of and additional lo any other security held by the Bank for payautat of all meewys parable by ua ta the Baa* taMUnttae. 
all commission banking and other charges empenses and Interest aayJ we will not do or omit ar suffer to be done or emaued aa* 
act mutter or thing which .Might prejudice the value or existence of the said security. We wt*t pay ta the Baa* aav.aaa.trs 
received by us under aay insurance of the goods which moneys until so paid shall be he id by ua In truat /ar DM Baa*.

. limmsdlatslr upon the Bank'* request, to do, and procure the doing of. all such acts and ta *lgn, endorse, eaeeute 
and/or deliver, and to procure the slganture. endorsement, execution and/or delivery of, all such author It lee, transfais, 
deeds and/or document* aa the Trnk may require la order to perfect Us title ta the goads and/ar documents asMl/ar 
to vest the sasM In and/or deliver the same to aay purchaser from the Bank and/or te recover any taeurenee money* 
payable or paid in reaped of loss of or damage to the goad*.

. In the event of default being ma ill by ua in any af our obligation* te the T~ntr the Bank nuiy wtthaut notice la ua sail, 
by public auction or private treaty, dlspoae of or otherwise deal wtth the good* ar aay of them (whether I* mi eel ar net) 
a* «nd when it stay think fit and collect ettd'give receipt* for any amount* du* ar lo became due lewder buy aM.waa.ra 
Policy or Certificate tend neatly the proceeds first in ar towards payment te the Bank af an ameuM equal to any charges 
and ••peases sta.se or Incurred by tho Bank In o«4al«tag possess ion af, tandtag, storing, recendttlaa.u«j asm/or dlepeelea; 
of the goods and second i* er towards payment af all ar any memvy* far the time being owing by ua ta the Bank ar hereby 
agreed to be paid by ua without prejudice te all or aaiy af the Bank's rights agataet ua ar aaty ether party and we will e« 
demand pay to the Bank any deficiency with bank interest thereon until payment
The Bank It* Agent* and each negotiating Bank are respectively authorised withe** reference to ua end withe* be sag 
liable for any act or omission to give effect lo this request In such nusasnr aa hi its or their *f>lnieei may ha meat eeejveaiewJ 
or expedient

. Ta Inaemntfy and hold the Bank its servants and agents ••••!••• and free from liability In respect sf all lea* and liniigi 
(kmcludlag coat* and expense* lacurred by any of them la re* Is ting claims by third parties) arts hag ar resulting from the 
negotiation of drafts or any other act. metier or thing dee* or oeattted ta be dene ta actual ar ta Inteaded ar purported 
coe.pllance with this request and with any letter ef credit Issued ta conaeauense thereof
This agreement shall continue ta fete* notwUhacandlng any change ta the ceewtltutlen ef any firm ar eesBaamy lefottod te 
hereta.

I

J.
• tklo ro^uoot lo nudo kr two or more portleo. tkok> obltaallona ofcall bo joint nnd oororal. Tnr.««k.»l tkla do.om.ot tko
• ta«iilnr iiiiinl ir »all Inclod. tbo plural ond rleo «oroa.

We undertake that In the event of drawlng/s being made under this credit 
we will limedlately lodge with the baWV'tlWt and accompanying documents 
1n terms of First National &nk of Boston, Boston, Letter of Credit Nos.
to be supplied,for an amount
drawlrvg/s under tht crtdlt n qutsttd In this

PATRICK
(APPL)CAHT*S>

E Requisition for Local Documentary 
Credit

not less than that required to meet the

LIMITED

14.8.73



LOCAL DOCUMENTARY LETTER OF CREDIT ——— FORM NO. 4.

THE COMiMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY, LIMITED i

IRREVOCABLE CREDIT
No. , , jr, -.

SYDNEY, 15th August, 191-9.
New South Wales.

We hereby authorise STATE 2LECTRICITY COMMISSION OF VICTORIA, 1.5 WILLIAM 
STRE.2T, MELBOURNE. ————————————————————————————————————————————•————— 

to draw on Patrick t: Company, 2 Castlereagh Strcot, Sydney, N.S.W. 2000.

at ————————————— sight for any sum or sums not exceeding in a)! £-' 1 . 5 *'' « O')O» OQ One

million, five hundred thousand .AUBtrv. li.vn currency)

purporting to coverjHat)t!*9clHekx.j<.xxxxxxxx>x unpr:i:i principal of loan nade to 
Patrick & Company, 2 Castlorea^h Street, Sydney. ——————————————

xasx

for account of PA THICK & COMPANY

The draft(s) drawn under t!vs credit must be ,-.ccr>,-np :iniec! by the following documents relating 
thereto:—

Statement of State Electricity Commission of Victoria certifying that 
the draft amount represents the unpaid principal amount of a fixed 
loan to 1 r V !Tovember, 1 •? ) made by the C0m£asion to Patrick & 
Company and payment of the loan has beeif dJMurataed and not received. 
This credit is also available on the^f^M^wjr of each suceedlng 
quarter beginning on February 15thjX"L37lV>r^vided The Commercial 
Banking Company of Sydney Limited^ fS^n fry/have been notified 
immediately that State V 
demanded payment of the lo 
Company i-n-1 that such rmou 
must reach the Cotnnierci. 
not later thun 7 ' days 
succeeding the one

of Victoria have 
thereof from Patrick & ! 

o^-j,^ paid when due. Such ddvice j 
irrfe.-'Cotnppny of Syriney Limited, Sydney ! 
o/'the first day of the quarter j

v.?,s ii;'Jc

Additional instructions (if any) :—

Negotif«tion(s) under this credit are restricted to The Commercial 
Banking Company of Sydney Limited, Melbourne.

I Drafts must be presented for negotiation not later than 1 5th August, ( g 73. anj forwar<jed 
j to our Head ——————— office/Juuut* together with relative documents for Xd^f^X^t /payment.

• Drafts must be enfaced \v;;h the number, date and place of issue of this credit and the negotiating
• Bank must record the amount of each draft on the tack hereof.

T! -E COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY, LIMITEH. hereby engages with the
drawers, endorsers and bona fide holders of drafts drnwn under and in compliance with the terms of this 
credit, that such drafts shall meet with due honour upon presentation.

C. S. KENNEDY w Q CARMAN 

Countersign Pr °* Manager.

Subject 'o Uniform C L jt Cm* and Pric^ca for Documentary Credlti (1962 Ravition), lntvn.tion.1 Chttnbcr of Comm»rce Broehur. No. 222

F Copy of Irrevocable Letter of Credit 15.8.69
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P. 123B. LOCAL DOCUMENTARY LETTER OF CREDIT —— FORM No. 4.

Ui .,^U'iATro:J OJ* CIl^iJlT L',.VfAHL;;SfU,

THE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY, LIMITED j
16 th August, 73 • 

SYDNEY, 19
New South Wales.

IRREVOCA£L£,CREDIT
No.

We hereby authorise -''VAVc, tiL^O 1'Hj.CJ. TY Ci.. 1'U.S 1O.V t,V V'LCTOKLA, 15 rftLi.CAM
iUNL,. VXO. 3OOO. ———————:———————————————'

to fir-w im J* trick-rnter.siariii* Acceptances Limited. 5 cirenhan Street.Sydney. N.S.rf. r> >OO. ———————————————i——————————————-

ut "sight for :cny sum or sums not exceeding in all * ' • *T* Una

raillion«.f ive hundred thousand dollars. ———————————— Australian
I currency)
i , , -.'OTfyf.Tr.T'* 3PC unpaid principal of loan made to t'atricI purporting to cover inVofr? TflSf , , , oT~ *^ .. ' , _______________j intorrnttrine Acceptances Limited, 3 ireanam btreet, bydney, •———•————————

to

w Lrmxu. ——i for account of

j The draft(s) drawn under this credit must be accompanied by the following documents relating
! thereto:—

tameut of istate electricity Coiaais-ion of Victoria certifying; 
! that the draft amount reproaeats tlie unpaid principal amount of 
! a fixed loan to 1'lth August, 1975 inado/Tj^; the Coi.*.iit»uion to 
j fatricte—Intoriaarin* Acceptancoa LimiXe*^ aQ>t payueiit of tiie loan 
j has been tie, landed and not roceive^t

Additional instructions (if any):—
:.:etfotiation(a J tui<ier tiii» cr«uit uro restricted to i'lio Cof.unercia L

a,; Coiii|>any of Sydney Limited, 'lelLtourne*

Drafts mu^-.bfljjfesented for negotifttiftfofiipt later than ' "* xidibcxxxand forwarded j
| to our office/brancn together with relative documents for acceptance/payment. j
i I
| Drafts must be enfaced with the number, date and place of issue of this credit and the negotiating '
j Bank must record the amount of each draft on the back hereof. I
j THE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY, LIMITED, hereby engages with the |
j drawers, endorsers and bona fide holders of drafts drawn under and in compliance with the terms of this J
j credit, lliat such drafts shall meet with due honour upon presentation. !

| L. A. FARRAND c s KENNEDY 

! C'ountersigner. Man:i»i-r.
I Subject to Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credit! (1962 Revision), International G.amLer of Commerce Brochure No. 2?2

i

G Copy of Plaintiff's Irrevocable Letter of 
Credit 16.8.73
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON
POST OmCf IOX 17M, IOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02105 U.SA

—— A*9«*t IS, If73

r
Patrick and Company 
9.9.0. 2t50 
Sydaay, Australia

n r

RE: Ora LETTEB or CBBCT NO. B-llOll 

CENTLEMBM:

WE HAVE AMENDED OUB CAFTKMIEB CBEDIT IN THE FOLLOWING MANNEB:

if ieiary is
121 Kxhibitioa Str**t 

i, Victoria,

ALL OTHEB CONBRIONS BEMA0 UNCIANCO.

Q CoNrnitoic otrn CABLE OF TOBAT

G ADTMED BY AIB MAIL

Q ADVISED BY AIH MAIL MMBCT TO BENEFICUBY

G PLEASE FOBWABD THE ATTACHED LETTEB OF AMENDMENT TO THE BENEFICIABY.
G THE OBICINAL LETTEB OF AMENDMENT HAS BEEN FOBWABDED TO THE BENEFICIABY AND NO ACTION ON votm FABT

IS NECESIABY.

D i>n COPY POI iAMK ADD

H Copy of Notice of Amendment of Letter 
of Credit from First National Bank of 
Boston 15.8.73
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19th March, 1969.

\h\v
\

\7

HEAD OFFICE 
PATRICK A CO.

Mr. Tim Alien rang and advised that his firm is 

considering a transaction under which tlm. is to be borrowed 

from an Australian company and re*lent to another Australian 
company.

The lending company is seeking security by way of 

bank Letter of Credit and Mr. Alien asked whether we would be 

prepared to issue a Clean Credit for tlm. for a period of 

12 months less one day, in favour of the lending company (at 

this stage unnamed), against security of a Letter of Credit 

in our favour issued by The First National Bank of Boston, 

also what would be our charge for the issuance of the Credit.

There would appear to be little risk involved in 

the business and it is recommended that we favourably consider 

the proposal on the basis of charging a fee at the rate. Aof*2l 

Ifo per annum during the currency of the facility.,»

J Diary Note made by Norman Harley 
Blacket 19.3.69
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8th Nay, 1969.

PATRICK A COMPANY

Mr. Ti» Alien rang and advised that his fir* is 
considering a further transaction involving tl.5e». to be 
borrowed froei an Australian organisation and re-lent to another 
Australian cosjpany. He asked whether the Bank would establish 
a Letter of Credit in favour of the lending company virtually 
as security, the Bank to hold as its security a Matching Letter 
of Credit froa The First National Bank of Boston.

The period of the loan would be for four years and 
Mr. Alien was advised that we would be prepared to enter into 
the cosmitBent, our fee for which would be t2.50O per annu*, 
plus 15O^ for any negotiations under the Credit. Hs was advised 
also that we would need to see the teras of the backing Credit 
fro* The First National Bank of Boston before we would issue our 
own Credit. Mr. Alien agreed that this would be the position.

It appears that the transaction will be similar, 
except for the term of the loan, to that relating to our aesio. 
of 19/3/1969. In this case the actual asiount of the Credit 
required was tSOO.OOO. as against the original request for tlsi.

K Diary Note made by Norman Harley
Blacket 8.5.69
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PMTM. AMUItt - 
•OX 17M. O.P.O.. 
STONIT. N.S.W. tMI.

i: 1-OtO

The Secretary* 
Patrick and Co.* 
2 Caatlereaffh Street* 

H.S.V. 2OOO.

Doar Sir*

Tbo First National Bank of Boston* Boston* 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. S-1O971 
^n favour of Yo"T*selves for e'A536*23O.oo.

Further to our letter of 31st March* 1969 end at the 
request of The First National Bank of Boston* Boston* we enclose 
original of the abovesMntioned Letter of Credit dated 28th 
March* 1969.

Ve shall be pleased if you will acknowledge receipt of 
this credit in due course.

Your

L Letter from Plaintiff to Patrick & Co. 8.4.69
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9th April, 1969. 
341

OVERSKAS 
WGC : MA

The Secretary, 
Patrick & Company, 
2 Caetlereagh Street,
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 20')').

Dear Sir,

In terns of your requisition dated 8th Instant, we 

have established the undermentioned Letter of Credit by tele­ 

graph through our Melbourne offIce:- 

Credit No. amount. In favour of. Expires.

LD.92O. $A5OO,OOO.oo. State electricity 8th April, 1970.
Commission of 
Victoria.

We have debited your account S-.75£» (seventy-five cents) 

for cost of the telegraphic advice ana $1,2y>.oo« (One thousand, 

two hundred and fifty dollars) being our coimiaaion charge.

Yours faithfully,

W. G. CARMAN 

pro Manager.

Copy of letter from Plaintiff to 
Patrick & Co.

9.4.69
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TRA

9th April. 1969.

The Manager,
First Leasing Australia Limited.
Suite 2.
73 - 79 Riverside Avenue,
SOUTH M3L30URHE 3205

Dear Sir, Attention - Mr. P.I. Reinehr

We advise having today handed you a cheque for che suet of $500,000 
to be held on deposit at the rate of 7%7» per annum to the 
6th April 1970.

If suitable we would prefer interest payments to be made on the 
accepted quarterly rests, namely. 30th June, 30th September, 
31st December and the final payment being due on repayment on the 
6th April. 1970.

Against this deposit we confirm receipt of Letter of Credit No. 
S10971 dated 28th March. 1969 from The First National Bank of 
Boston in our favour.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T. R. Alien

M Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to !
Second Defendant I 9.4.69
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if\

TRA

9th April, 1969.

Th« Secretary,
State Electricity Connission of Victoria,
15 William Street,
MELBOURNE

Dear Sir, Attention - Mr. ».W. Shears

We confirm having today received the sum of $500,000 to be held 
on deposit with this firm until the 6th April, 1970.

Interest is to be paid on the 30th June, 30th September, 
31st December and the 6th April for amounts accrued up to and 
including these dates at the rate of 6%% per annum.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMKfcKY

T. R. Alien

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 9.4.69
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PATRICK * LEVY
• ICMAMO M.ALLIN

M ». L. DOWLINO
N M.COUKSC

'M 7 «0» ATM"

I SI QUEEN STREET 
MELBOURNE. 3OOO

JA.KCIK
K.A NOSS

W J CDWAHOS
J.S.COONCR

J

MCMBCMS Or TM« •YBNCV STOCK CXCHANOC LIMITED eo IMI (• LIN») 

*» NORTHBOORNE AVENUE
CASTI-EREAGH STREET . 2000 

o.^.o. •OK«MO.«roM«v.«ooi TCL» IO7.7

TCLCPMOMC XOIIVIXC LIN«>
lai KEIRA STREET

WOLLONGONG ISOO
TCLCrHOHC WOU. C-BBOO

TCLCCKAHS * CA

ROSDALC

A. WOLLONOONG

Melbourne 
9th April 1969

Received from PATRICK & COMPANY, Melbourne, 

$500,000 (Five hundred thousand dollars).

First Leasing Australia Limited

Receipt signed by Second Defendant 9.4.69
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BOX 254C, 0 . P O. ,
MELBOURNE, CI.

TELEPHONE: 63-751 t EXT.

I
(K)

251-257 COUUNS STREET

Overseas.
.l*h..A.P.ril, 1969.

The Secretary, 
Patrick ^ Company, 
150 Queen Street, 
KET.BOURT^E. 3000.

Tear Sir,

Our Sydney Office, Irrevocable Credit
No. LL.920 for A^500,000.00. in favour
of Sfete Electricity Commiss.ion of Victoria
on account of Patrick & Company, Sydney.

As requested by our Sydney Office we enclose original 

of the abovementioned Letter of Credit,

/
Yours faithfully,

Letter from Plaintiff to Patrick & Co. 9.4.69
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9th April. 1969.

The Manager,
The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited.
343 George Street
SYDNEY

Dear Sir

Re: The First National Bank of Boston. Boston. 
Letter of Credit No. S10971 in favour of 
ourselves for $536,250.00._________

Further to your letter of the Sth April, we acknowledge receipt 

of the above Letter of Credit as requested.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T. R. Alien

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Plaintiff 9.4.69



Ill

TERMS AHD CGHDTTTC

Borrower t First Leasing Australia Limited.

Lender t State Electricity Conlssion of Victoria.

Aaount : $500,000.00

THE
12 months 6.50* 7.25* p.a. 

Fixed to 6.4.70.

Letter of Credit - C. B. C. Co. of Sydney, Ifelbouzne. 

Charges for Bank L/C • 0.25* P» •• 

Penal rate to Lender - Hil

rate to Bonuner — 111

Document headed "Terms and Condi­ 
tions, Special Deal No. 1"
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Patrick-Intermarine (Australia) Ltd, per Peter Davie, informed 
today that the SEC will require repayment of each one of the 
tl.5 million loans now on FLA's books ex Patrick Partners.

The loans will be repaid when they become due as per the 
terms of the original agreement. According to Peter Davie 
the SEC stated to him that they are caught in a fund squeeze 
at the moment but expect to have excess funds by August 1973 
and will be pleased to offer the funds firstly to FLfl.

Peter Davie also mentioned that Patrick Partners will be happy 
to fund short term, whether by bills or intercompany loans, 
any moneys FLA may require to build up to the $3 million 
repayment.

N Inter office memorandum prepared in 
the office of First Leasing Australia 
Limited 7.3.73



F.L.A. BORROWUiGS AS AT JUNE 4, 1374

Koover
Kor.sar.to
Koovor
Lysaglit
Zcston Financial (S.G.I.O.)
Boston Financial
Carr fastener
Uysr E.ncz-ri

Jervo.'s Sulphates 
Killi.:xs ?.r>£ Birrell 
S.::.stZKlian Cos Light 
Cjzr ?x stcir.cr 
Australian Gas Light 
F.C. Fixsnsas
Stute Ileo-crJcity Commission 

Electricity Consults ion

Bruce Crattley Crane Sorvices

Expansion
t'i-shland Plant Hir«
Levis
Love '
l.'hcadon

Kzturity By Month*

Juna 1971
July
/.ugust
Se^tenter
October
November
January 1975 onwards

Repayment
Data

23.6.1974
25.7.1974
15.7.1974
29.7.1974
1.8.1974
28.8.1974
23. 8. 1974
30.8.1S74
29. 8.1.974
2Z.3.1974
4.9.1i<74
4.10.1974
23.11.1974
13. U. 1974
24. -1.1975
21.3.1975
14.8.1975

5£
Amount

500,000
1,200,000

500,000
750,000
500,000
500,000
450,000
500,000
160,000
40,000

14 0,000
1,000,000

700,000
1,000,000

2 SO, 000
2,000,000
1,500,000

L/C
No.

S12306
0131

S12648
0139

Stand-by
S1230S
S11751

0146
0145
.I/A

S12737
SI 1961
S12732

S12647
SI 108 5

Broker

Call
Call
Call
9.6.1974
30.6.1974
19.6.1974
Call

$11,690,000

5,000 
24,000
4,OCO 

40,000
5,000
2,000 

10,000

911,780,000

590,000
2,450,000
2,150,000

140,000
1,000,000
1,700,000
3,750,000

$11,780,000

9.25
10.0
8.25
9.5

14.0
9.0
9.0

Direct 
Direct 
Diract 
Direct 
Direct 
Direct 
Direct

O Copy of document headed "FLA 
Borrowings as at June 4th 1974".



LIST OF LETTERS Of CREDIT JSSPgQ BY PMBB

OR BEHALF OF FIA AS AT APRXL 11, 1974.

Repayment Date

27.5.1974

26.11.1974

25. J. 1975

15.7.1974

23.0.1974

30. (. 1974

23.11.1974

14.0.1975

21.0.1975

4.10.1976

10.11.1976

Broker

Wallace

ICMM

living

JCMM

Direct

Were

Direct

Patrick

Were

ICMM

ICMM

Beneficiary

Wallace

Boover Australia Pty. Tdmlted

Monsanto

Hoover Australia Pty. Limited

Carr Fastener

Myer Sapor itan

Carr Fastener

Patrick Jntenaarine Acceptance ltd. 
(Lender 3 S.E.C. of Victoria;

Commercial Bankina Co. of Sydney ltd. 
(lender* S.f.C. of Victoria;

Coaaercial Bankina Co. of Sydney ltd. 
(Leader t Australian Cas Light Co. ltd.;

Original Tern

24 MontAs

12 Months 
(Break June 23;

12 Months 
(Break at June, Sep., Dec.;

12 Months

12 Months

12 Months

Broken Period*

24 Months

24 Months

36 Months 
(Break at 12/24 X.)

36 Months 
(Break at 12/24 M.;

Basic Jb|te

7.75

10.25

10.25

10.25

0.25

0.25

10.00

0.7

0.375

9.125

9.75

9.13*

1/C Mo.

S 12000

S 12306

0131

S 12640

5 12305

S 11751

S 11961

S 11005

S 12647

S 12727

S 12702

Principal Anount

500,000

500,000

1,200,000

500,000

450,000

500,000 H
-£

700,000

1,500,000

2,000,OCO

1,000,000

1,000,000

#9,050,000.

(Budoetted triad down as at April JO, 1974

Copy document headed "List of letters 
of Credit issued by FNBB on behalf of 
FLAasat 11.4.74."

$9,900,000)
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FLA LETTERS OF CKEaiT ISSUED BY FNBB BOSTON
0

September 11, 1974.

BENEFICIARY NAME

Carr Fasteners Pty Ltd.

Commercial Banking 
Company of Sydney

Hoover Pty Ltd

Commercial Banking 
Company of Sydney

Commercial Banking 
Company of Sydney

Carr Fasteners Pty Ltd.

Patrick Intenurine
.Acceptances Ltd.

National Bank of
Australasia Ltd.

Hoover Aust. 

FLA Letters of

Coomercial Banking 
Company of Sydney

Commercial Banking 
Company of Sydney

Commercial Banking 
Company, of Sydney

Commercial Banking 
Company of Sydney 
(John Protheroe etc.)

CBC

CBC

Monsanto Aust.

Wallace Brothers Finance

CRF.DIT NO.

S-12305

8-12647

S-12306

8-12782

8-12727

S-11961

8-11085

S-11751

8-12648

Credit Issued

0174

0145

0146

0147

0139

0140

0131

0125

AMOUNT
AUS $

4507000

2.325.451.39

500,000

1.000.000

1,000.000

700.000

1.500,000

500,000

500.000

by FNBB, Nassau

600,000

40,000

160,000

140.000

750.000

250,000

1,200.000

500,000

DATE OF 
ISSUANCE

Nov. 21, 1972.

Aug. 14, 1973.

Nov. 21. 1972.

Mov. 9, 1973.

Oct. 1, 1973.

Jan. 13, 1972.

Aug. 14, 1969.

Sept. 3, 1971.

Aug. 15, 1973. 

Branch

Aug. 16, 1974.

May 31, 1974.

May 31. 1974.

June 4, 1974.

Apr. 23, 1974.

Apr. 24, 1974.

March 22,1974.

Feb. 25, 1974.

DATE OF 
EXVIRY

Aug.

Aug.

Dec.

Mov.

Oct.

Mov.

Aug.

Aug.

Aug. 

Feb.

Sept.

Sept.

Sept.

May 6

May 1

Apr.

June

30, 197'

21, 197:

3, 197'

19, 197<[

9, 197'

23. 197;'

14, 197.'

30, 197'

22, 197' 

26, 197!

5, 197'

5, 197'

7, 197.

, 1975.

, 1975.

2, 1975

7. 1974

BJH/dl

«
i-t

ft. A 'J&. ,'
Copy of document headed "FLA letters 
of Credit issued by FNBB Boston as at 
11.9.74."
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Patrick Farthers
• MCMKra Of THC tVONCV STOCK EXCHANQE UMITEO -f

- M. H. L. DOHN.MO1(1 QUEEN STREET, MELBOURNE. MOO TELEPHONE *0>l<f (• LINES) 
lllSSwwrn OJ.O. BOX STJD. MELBOURNE. 1001. TELEX I01S4 TELEGRAMS t CABLES • ~ ~
*JL A.MIN
• T. R. ALUM

ItlMIUMOl

XLOONMN
NL X f ONAMM
M. I. lAUMi irOMIY. WMNMMt CANMIWA. WOCIONOOMQ.
A.MMT
P. OAVW
H. N. OOTTLMMf H

15th August, 1973.

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited, 
379 Col 11ns Street. 
MELBOURNE. 3000.

Attention: Mr. Robert WMtton

Dear Sir,

We confirm the termination of the loan negotiated on 15th August, 
1969 between Patrick and Company and yourselves which takes effect today.

We acknowledge receipt of your cheque for $1.514,101.03 being the 
principal sum plus final Interest payment of $14,101.03.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK PARTNERS.

R. N. GottHebsen.

P Letter from Patrick Partners to First 
Leasing Australia Limited 15.8.73
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2123
PATRICK PARTNERS

15th August, 1973

The Secretary,
State Electricity Commission of Victoria,
15 William Street.
MELBOURNE. VIC. 3000

Dear Sir,

We refer you to the terms and conditions of a loan of 
$1,500,000 from you to Patrick and Company on the 15th August, 
1969. Patrick and Company lodged with you as security an 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit from the Commercial Banking Company 
of Sydney Limited In favour of yourselves for the principal 
amount of the loan.

We now confirm the termination of the loan, and accordingly 
enclose Bank Cheque for $1,528,687.50 being the principal sum 
plus final Interest payment of $28,687.50 which we would thank 
you to accept 1n exchange for the Irrevocable Letter of Credit 
you are holding as security.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK PARTNERS

Q Two copies of a letter from Patrick 
Partners to Fourth Defendant 15.8.73
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PATRICK PARTNERS

15th August, 1973

The Secretary,
State Electricity Commission of Victoria.
15 William Street,
MELBOURNE. VIC. 3000

Dear Sir,

We refer you to the terms and conditions of a loan of 
$1,500,000 from you to Patrick and Company on the 15th August, 
1969. Patrick and Company lodged with you as security an 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit from the Commercial Banking Company 
of Sydney Limited 1n favour of yourselves for the principal 
amount of the loan.

We now confirm the termination of the loan, and accordingly 
enclose Bank Cheque for $1,528,687.50 being the principal sum 
plus final Interest payment of $28,687.50 which we would thank 
.you to accept 1n exchange for the Irrevocable Letter of Credit 
you are holding as security.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK PARTNERS

SjP.Ci
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,-f
HEAD OFFICE

12th August,1969

PATRICK A COMPANY

• this Office
• Castlereagh and Hunter 

Streets Branch
• Queen Street Melbourne
• Vollongong Branch

Cr.$93, 7k7

Dr. 25
Dr. 62,785
Cr. 1O

(a* at 8/8/69) 
(as at 6/8/69)

Net Cr.t30.947

• this Oflice 
Trust A/c Cr.tl60.798

Daylight Cover Facility

9 Castlereajdi and Hunter Streets Branch - up to an amount of t2.OOP.OOP 
outstanding at any one time during any one day.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Outstanding under our Letter of Credit No.LD92O
in favour of State Electricity Commission of / * &<• 
Victoria for ..,...•Aii«!A%jLlAi« • • * 5OO,OOO •£ 
to expire 8/Vl97O*<€emm^BtaicttLng Letter 
of Credit from the" First National Bank of 
Boston No.S-10971.

Outstanding under our Letter of Credit No.LD936 , „, , 
in favour of State Electricity Commission of ' / - " • 
Victoria for ....... «e^.«>xaxi« • 1,5OO,OOO '.'
to expire 15/5/1973HBflavliaTpning Letter
of Credit from the "Fi ret National Bank of
Boston No.S-11011. ________

tz.ooo.ooo
The firm has requested today that we establish a further 

letter of creuit in favour of the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria for an amount ot tl.5OO.OOO for M term of four years, 
commencing Friday 15th next as security for loan to be made by the 
Commission which will be on-lent by Patrick A Company to a company 
in Australia.

Security for this liability will be, as bet ore, a matching 
letter of credit from the First National Bank of Boston.

Our fee to be at the rate of l/6th£ per annum - equal to 
t*.5OO per annum plus 15 cents % for any negotiations under the 
credit.

AS TOt Agreeing to the above request.

R Plaintiff's internal memorandum 12.8.69
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Corporate Services 

15th August, 1973.

PATRICK-INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED 

O Castlereagh & Hunter Streets Branch

owned by Patrick Corporation Limited and

' ned by Patrick-Intermarine (Australia) Limited

*Shareholders - Patrick Corporation Limited 50$

Algoma Pty.Ltd. 1O%

Marine Midland Bank (U.S.A.) 2O#

The Tokai Bank Limited (Japan) iO%

Banque de L'Union Europeenne (France)
10*

Head Office - 5 Gresham Street, SYDNEY. 

Established in 1971

STING FACILITIES

Endorsement Limit
f1,OOO,OOO for bills of exchange 
presented to the Bank, accepted 
or endorsed by Patrick- 
Intermarine Acceptances Limited. 
Maximum usance to be 13O days 
and one roll-over to be 
permitted at the Bank's 
discretion (i.e. maximum term 
12 months)

PROPOSED FACILITIES

Bill Endorsement Limit $1,OOO,OOO 
for bills of exchange presented 
to the Bank,accepted or endorsed 
by Patri'k-Intermarine Acceptances 
Limited. Maximum usance to be 18O 
days and one roll-over to be 
permitted at the Bank's discretion 
(i.e. maximum term 12 months).

That the Bank issue a local 
documentary letter of credit in 
favour of the State Electricity 
Commission of Victoria for 
11,500,000 for a period of 2 years

Unlimited JAS Guarantee of 
Patrick Corporation Limited 
ft Patrick-Internarine (Aust) 
Limited

PLUS
Where appropriate, letter of 
lodgement from applicant 
company over security taken 
by Patrick-Intermarine 
Acceptances Limited from its 
clients. The Bank to have 
the right to accept or reject 
any Bill submitted for 
endorsement.

Unlimited J&S Guarantee of Patrick 
Corporation Limited A Patrick - 
Intermarine (Aust.) Limited 

PLUS

Where appropriate, letter of 
lodgement from applicant company 
over security taken by Patrick- 
Intermarine Acceptances Limited 
from its clients. The Bank to 
have the right to accept or reject 
any Bill submitted for endorsement.

Matchine irrevocable Letter of 
Credit Tor $A1,5OO,OOO in favour 
of Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances 
Limited for a period of 2 years 
issued by the First National Bank 
of Boston, Boston. U.S.A.

S Plaintiff's internal memorandum 15.8.73
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14th August, 1973

The Manager, 
Exchange Control, 
Reserve Bank of Australia, 
Martin Place,
SYDNEY. N.3.W. 3OOO

Dear Sir,

We refer to our telephone conversation of today with 
your Mr* King in which the writer explained that a loan of 
*1,5OO,OOO from the State Electricity Commission of Victoria 
to First Leasin* of Australia Limited and arranged during August 
1969, for four years fixed by our customers «•* Patrick & Co. is 
maturing on August 15, 1973» and the parties involved now wish to 
roll-over the facility forvja further two years to mature on 14th 
August, 1975".

The proposed facility will be similar to the one 
previously entered into i.e. The First National Bank of Boston 
vill establishm irrevocable letter of credit for $1,5OO,OOO 
through this Bank in favour of Patrick-Inter-marine Acceptance 
Limited (company now HRgeSftg all money market activities for the 
Patrick Group of companies). The ultimate borrower in Australia 
is First Leasing Australia Limited, Melbourne.

This Bank in turn will issue a matching local irrevocable 
letter of credit in favour of the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria for *1,5OO,OOO.

We regret we have been unable to locate that port of our 
Sydney Office file pertaining to your Banks interest in the facility 
entered into in 1969* However we enclose copies of the oversea 
and local irrevocable letters of credit covering that transaction 
to assist you with your deliberations.

Ve would be grateful if you would let us have your 
deoislon in this matter by telephone before noon tomorrow.

Thanking you.
Yours faithfully.

D.L.C ___ 
Sub Manager 
Corporate Services.

T Copy of letter from Plaintiff to Reserve
Bank of Australia 14.8.73
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INTEROFFICE CO M M U N I CiA T I O N 

February 3, 1971

To: Mr. ̂ 'arrcnjuY Olmstcd, Executive Vice 
Mr. George C. Riclcor, Senior Vice Pre;

President 
President

Subject: FLA Report

The purpose of this report is to assist you in informing the BOFC Board 
of Directors about seven important areas in FNBB's relationship with First 
Leasing Australia.

1. Present FLA funding

(A) In borrowing short and lending long FLA incurs a risk of not being 
able to roll over short tern borrowings, but the writers believe that, 
barring an extraordinary liquidity crisis, FLA is adequately prepared to 
neet any rollover crises. The following schedule shows that the arcount 
to be refinanced over any two month period is never greater than $2.4 
million and FLA has taken the precaution of purchasing standby loan 
facilities totaling $2.4 million from reputable Australian lenders.

USES: Funds employed in Leasing Operations A$11.3MM

Funds put out in short term loans

SOURCES: Funds not to be called (i) 
(Verbal agreement only)

Funds to be refinanced (ii)

(i) Patrick —— A$

Mt. Isa ——

Darling — -

FLA/FNBB/BOFC ——

Sundry ——

A$

3.0MM

1.0

.8

.6

.2

5.6MM

(ii) FEB

MAR

APR

MAY

JUN

(30Z at call)

600

600

1000

——

1000

JULY

AUC

SEPT

OCT

NOV 

DEC

1.5MM 
A$12.8MM

A$ 5.6MM 

7.2
A$12.8MM

1400

. ———

290

200

1000

U Copy of Inter office communication 
prepared in First National Bank of 
Boston 3.2.71
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Leasc receivables/residuals will be coming in at $350,000 per month. It 
is expected that this will be used to write new business but, together with 
A$500,000 in FLA call loans out, can be considered additional protection.

(B) The danger of a cost-price profitability squeeze is real but not 
imminent. To avoid the squeeze a concerted effort is now being made 
to write leases at a flexible rate (to date less than 5Z of outstandings 
are on a flexible rate basis). Also, FLA continues to look for long 
term money and both F1A and FNBB are maintaining maximum close contact 
with the money market.

(C) The high leverage factor leaves minimal cushion for bad debts, and 
cost price squecr.es, but in real terms the low capitalization does not 
affect FLA's operations today except for lack of window dressing. Capital 
must be increased before FLA can borrow in a conventional manner in 
Australia. More on this in 12. Nevertheless, in the meantime, FLA is 
protected by the good asset value of its leases and like Banker's Leasing, 
FLA is looking no the pet worth of its lessees.

2. Future Funding

FLA has five methods to improve its funding situation and to reduce its depen­ 
dence on FNBD guaranties,direct loans and standby lineo of credit. We antici­ 
pate that all five methods will be used concurrently. Initial reaction has 
been favorable, both in Australia and the U. S. A. In Australia, there are at 
least three sizeable entities that are enthusiastic about Numbers 1-3 and in 
the USA five banks have expressed considerable interest in Numbers 3 and 4.

1. FLA sells outright a percentage of a lease asset. In this case, the 
buyer receives cash flow from leasing and pays tax on total income 
less depreciation. There is no recourse to FLA or FNBB. A prin Ipal 
and agent agreements, similar to that already tried and proven by RILF 
and its underwriters, will be used.

The next four funding methods will be achieved under the auspices of the FNBB- 
FLA $15,000.000 credit line agreement. Please note that Exhibits 2 and 3 
contain this document and FLA's informal non-legal summar- of the documents.

2. A lendor lends to FLA using FNBB as an intermediary and takes a 
percentage share in F1JRB debenture. There is no recourse to FNBB 
except that of a fiduciary responsibility to insure that proper and 
normal control is maintained over FLA assets.

3. A lendor nay le_nj_ funds directly to FLA against the specific asset 
backing of leases which, at FNBB's discretion, have been assigned 
to the lendor from the FNBE debenture. In this case, there would .be 
a substitution of assets in the FNBB asset pool. That is, lease 
assets arc replaced by cash and at a later date this cash is used to 
buy new lease assets for .1 lessee of similar caliber to that which 
was released from the debenture.
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4. U.S. and foreign banks may share in FNBB standby letters of credit 
using a pari passu percentage of FNBB/FLA debenture as collateral 
or if necessary, specific asset assignment.

5. FLA continues, to try to change its borrowings backed by FNBB L/C 
from short to long term maturities.

The question of capitalization continues to t>« thorny. We are almost certain 
that the Reinehr and Wheeltorr interests will never be able to cone up with 
significant blocks of increased capital. However, it is our hope that we may 
establish a decent track record for FLA in terms of experience, profitability, 
dividends, and adequate reserves before we are forced to take the drastic step 
of inviting additional invectors to take an equity position in the company. 
We would hope that by December, 1973, wo can be prepared to have an offering 
of a debt-equity package to the public at a substantial premium. Nevertheless, 
we are resigned to the fact that if the desired and expected track record does 
not materialize by the end of 1973, we oust be ready to alter our long range 
capitalization plans. This may mean inviting a selective group of private 
investors to take equity positions in FLA and therefore diluting the FNBB 
and/or Reinehr interests without a premium.

3. FKBB Credit Function

The Australian desk has the final approval on FLA credit decisions and the norc 
difficult credit questions are reviewed by CCR. Detailed credit policy state- 
Bents have been issued to FLA and individual files on all lessees are maintained 
in Boston. To date FLA has not incurred any bad debts, although a reserve has 
been sot up. (The portfolio is currently being reviewed by SMB of the interna­ 
tional credit corcmittee under the auspices of CCR as a matter of general policy.)

A. Concentration of Asset Risk

FLA has written large amounts of business with C. J. Coles ($2.8MM) and K-Mart 
($2.1MM). This high concentration is intended to cxpidite largo scale partici­ 
pation of thece two excellent lessees. It is now a matter of policy that in the 
future FLA will not concentrate more than 20Z of its outstanding leases with any 
new lessee.

5. FNBB Fees

a. BOFC receives a dividend froa FLA, (in 1970 this was only $A9,288). 
b. Fees are received for our Letter of Credit exposure, aegrc&atins 1.5Z

on our L/C exposure for funds used in leasing and .52 on the L/C
exposure on funds not used In leasing. 

c. Interest on the FNBB loan of $550,000 is calculated at 1Z over prime
and interest on the BOFC loan is at prime.

In excess of $200,000 was remitted from FLA to FNBB in 1970.
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6. Peracwan Wright - 7 year lease

This is a unique deal which FLA entered into with Boston approval because it 
has a return in excess of 122, good security and most Importantly, an excellent 
chance of being underwritten by an insurance company. It is jointly under­ 
stood that no similar transactions will be written until this deal han been 
underwritten successfully. It has been examined in depth by Steve Bavaria at 
the request of OCR.

7. Residual Risk tfi FLA

In all cases FLA lessees must guarantee the residual value of their leases. 
This requirement is defined in Paragraphs 6, 7, and 13 of the FLA Master Lease 
Agreement which will be found in Exhibit 6.

B. L. Moyer 
International Officer

Edward C. Reybitz 
International Division
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MEMORANDUM

TO: Linda Juleff 

FROM: Nick Christian 

RE: Special Deal No. 3.

April 20. 1970.

Special Deal No. 3 runs from 15th August, 1969 to 15th November. 
1970, and is then open to renegotiations for a further period of 2 years 
and 9 months.

The S. E. C. of Victoria has loaned $1,500, 000 to Patrick & Co. 
at 6. 25% per annum against a Bank Letter of Credit.

Interest to the S r. C. Victoria is payable quarterly on the 15th day 
of November, February, May and August and on repayment in 
November (if the loan is concluded).

Patrick fc Company have lent this money on to First Leasing Australia 
Ltd. for the same period and with the same option to renew. The 
rate is 6*75^. per annum and the security is a Bank Letter of Credit.

Interest is pr.yable to us on tha

The interest rates rise for each quarter that the loan continues and 
back interest is due for the period of the preceeding loan at the higher 
rate — see the file for rates.

V Copy of Internal memorandum pre­ 
pared in office of Patrick Partners i 20.4.70
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PATRICK R LEVY PATRICK & COMPANY ISIOUtENSTRMT.xoo
N R COURSE TILfFMONt 

FAHOBtRTSON MEMSCRS OF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED W114I BLINtll

37,OL«N ST«E ,. 
2 CASTLEREAGH STREET SYDNEY 2OOO WIMAtrt. 4000

TfLWNOMt Jl Sl*>

..——— "^———— ••- O P O BOX 2SSO SYDNEY 1001 TCLEX 107S7 43 NOHTHtOUHNC AVtNUC
„ . CITY CANBERRA. W01 

J.A.KEIP TELEPHONE Z O3I» (IS LINES) TILITHONI CAN*. *4MM» 
HA NOSS

W.J.EOWARDS TELEGOAMSiCABLES -ROSOACE )•! KEIRASTRtET. 
J.S CORNER WOLLONCONC. JSOO

M. E. BAUMC SYDNEY 0HIS6ANE CANBERRA MELBOURNE WOLLONGONG. TILI^MONi WOLL 2-MOO. 
(. W. CLEARY

7 AVENUE ERNKTlNt 
BRUSSELS 5 BELGIUM

TELE^HONC 4»«1S1/2

May 14, 1970.

The Manager,
Commercial Banking Co. of Sydney Ltd.,
343 George Street,
SYDNEY. N. S. W. 2000.

Attention; Mr. D. W. McClymont. 

Dear Mr. McClymont:

I refer to a recent telephone conversation between yourself and 
Mr. Christian in which Bank Guarantees and Letters of Credit 
were discussed.

Patrick & Company have previously arranged a substantial volume 
of back-to-back Letter of Credit deals through the Commercial 
Ranking Co. of Sydney whereby Patrick & Company have obtained 
an Irrevocable letter of Credit from yourselves against the 
security of a third party's Irrevocable Letter of Credit in favour 
of Patrick & Company.

We are now interested in arranging transactions of a somewhat 
Biniilj^r type in which Patrick & Company would obtain an Irrevocable 
Bank Guarantee from a borrower in favour of ourselves and would 
ask you to raise an Irrevocable Letter of Credit against the security 
of this Bank Guarantee. The Irrevocable Letter of Credit would give 
the lender of funds the right to draw against Patrick & Company in 
the event of default when repayment was due.

The probable period of the deals would be from 6-9 months and the 
amounts involved from half-a-million to one million dollars or 
more

...12

W Letter from Patrick & Co. to Plaintiff /</. ^ 7o
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We would be grateful if you would give consideration to this 
proposal. Please do not hesitate to contact the writer if you require 
any further information about this matter.

T.R. ALLEN.
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22nd M»y, 197O.

Act.M.

Maaara. Patrick and Company,
C.P.O. Box 2850,

I, ;,«.v South Valaa. 2OO1. Attention Mr. T.H.

. Allan,

In raaponaa to yoor lattar of l4th May, wa 
adrlaa that tha oattar outlload baa baan 

at ttla Offiaa.

Va vavlt yvafar to eonai4ar tba raqnaat a^alnat 
a«itabla bajric** taMk«to-ba«k Lattar of Cvatfit, ratbar 

tiata a» tfaa taais af • Cvurantaa.

MkUat «M »a«H aat aatiaiyata any

(». V.

Copy of letter from Plaintiff to 
Patrick & Co. 22.5.70
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LOCAL DOCUMENTARY CREDIT REQUISITION

To: The Mnnootr,
THE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY O^YDNEY LIMITED.,

(Hereinafter called "theflfnk'*)

Credit No. .Tr 
Office use only.

.19..

We hereby request you to open on «a^iccount by ................................................ an irrevocable credit subject to
(Mail or («l.,r«ph)

Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits (1962 Revision), International Chamber of Commerce Brochure

frgxfr , J*x* MSrt* /.....^.*<6&6wfa/'......................
' (Full name of beneficiary)/

No. 222 authorising....

(Full address)

to draw on us for any sum or sums not exceeding in all ffirf£Q.@.r .GO.&...

.... c urrency)

available by their drafts at.i •sight purporting to cover eMMM

f .A ,<ii!^» .^^
("Merchandise" or brief description of good*) /? j?

. 
raiUd. «tc. (Country) (City or town of despatch)

(Destination)

The drafts must be presented for negotiation not later than . 
accompanied by the following documents relating thereto: —

must be

Additional instructions (if any): -

fbi c onsJBarat ion of the Bank establishing this credit we hereby agree with the Bank as follows:—

A. Neither the Bank nor its agents shall be under any liability in respect of loss or damage arising or resulting:-
(1) Fro* any error, omission or delay in the transmission or delivery or decoding of any aMssage (whether literal,

in code or in cypher) by mail, telegraph or otherwise or In the interpretation of or coaBpllance with any instruction
or mandate howsoever such error, omission or delay shall have arisen or been caused.

(ii)from any fault, error or mistake as to the quantity, quality, nature, value, consignment or delivery of the goods, or as to 
the amount of the shippers' . rail or carriers' charges thereon or therefor or as to the validity, enforceability, efficacy, 
sufficiency, genuineness or accuracy of any draft, invoice, bill of lading, insurance policy or certificate or other 
documents, or any endorsesMnt or negotiation of or title to any such document.

B • To accept on presentation and pay at maturity the draft* drawn under or in intended or purported compliance with the credit 
or this requisition together with: -

(I) Bank interest for any period by which the date of p*rs»ent by the aaaJk precedes the date of our pe,vw«enC to the Batak^nd

(II)a commission of ( %) on the amount of the credit, and
(ili)all usual Bank charges.

and so to do notwithstanding that for any reason whatsoever, any such draft or other documents herein mentioned shall 
not be genuine or shall be or become invalid or payment or recovery of any money thereunder or the performance of any 
contract thereby created or evidenced be or become delayed postponed or impoes.ble. Further if we fail to accept any 
draft negotiated by the Bank or be erne used from acceptance thereof on. any ground whatsoever, we will pay to the Bank 
at the branch or office first above mentioned on deatand the • mount paid by the Bank.

C The Bank shall hold the above-mentioned documents and goods as a continuing security by way of pledge independent 
of and additional to any other security held by the Bank for payment of all atoneys payable by us to the Bank Including 
all commission banking and other charges expenses and interest and we will not do or omit or suffer to be done or omitted any
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FIUST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

BORROWING SCHEDULE AS AT AUGUST 1O, 1972

Lender

Robert Hutchinson

Thiess Holdings

First National Bank of Boston

Capel Court Securities
(Bills accepted by Bank of New Zealand)

Carr Fastener

National Nominees

Myer Limited

State Government Insurance Office,
Queensland

Hoover Australia Limited

Vinegardner Pty. Limited

Carr Fastener

Abegg Holdings

Hill Samuel Australia

Australian International Finance
Corporation

Patrick Partners

Darling & Co. Limited

Patrick Partners

Vine Nominees Pty. Limited

Veatralian International

Tradax (Australia) Pty. Limited and/or
Capel Court Corporation

Colonial Sugar Refining Co. and/or
Wallace Bros. Finance (Australia)

First National Bank of Boston

First National Bank of Boston

First National Bank of Boston

Amount
(Auet. I )

200.00O

350,000

1,430,254

30O,OOO

5OO.OOO

67.2OO

5OO.OOO

l.OOO.OOO

5OO.OOO

l.OOO.OOO

5OO.OOO

500,000

3OO.OOO

5OO.OOO

1,5OO,OOO

300,000

1,5OO,OOO

2OO.OOO

1,165,OOO

l.OOO.OOO

5OO.OOO

95,000

14O,OOO

112,000

^L

¥
Maturity date

24 hour call

7 day call

August 25, 1972

September 4, 1972

October 13, 1973

October 29, 1972

October 31, 1972

November 22, 1972

November 24, 1972

December 14, 1972

January 13, 1973

January 31, 1973

March 19, 1973

March 27, 1973

May 15, 1973

August 10, 1973

August 15, 1973

September 1O, 1973

February 16, 1974

April 5, 1974

May 31, 1974

2. Copy of Borrowing Schedule to 
Second Defendant 10.8.72
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ARii^ aCOir'TAiSlCES LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN NEW SOUTH WALES)

128 Exhibition Street. Melbourne, Victor!*. Australia. 3000

CORRESPONDENCE:
TCLEPHONS QJ>.0. Box 21177 
9390M SYDNEY BRISBANE PERTH UMboutnt. Vie. 3001

16th August 1973

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
379 Collins Street/
MELBOURNE 3000

Attention; Mr. R.'J. W

Dear Sir,

We confirm a loan negotiated with you today as follows:-

Amountt $1,500,000.00

Rate* 8.7% p.a.

Termi Fixed to 14th August, 1975.

As security for this loan, we acknowledge having 
received an Irrevocable Letter of Credit I}o_._jS^1108j>, 
from the First National Bank of Boston, Boston, U.S.A., 
with Patrick-Interraarino Acceptances Limited named 
as beneficiary.

Interest on this loan is payable quarterly on the 15th 
day of November, February, May and August until repayment.

If you are in agreement with the terms and conditions, 
as detailed above, pleasa sign the attached duplicate 
copy of this letter and return to us.

Yours faij^fully,,
US ACCEPTANCES LIMITED,,-Kpr PATRiOK-isra/uv;f\)^>.M:

^^^uavid G. Nicoll ̂ ^"{ / . We are in agreement with the
Money Market Mancqar"v terms and .conditions^ as detailed

above. /-

For an on behalf of 
First Leasing Australia Ltd.

3. Copy of letter from First Defendant
to Second Defendant ! 16.8.73
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SCBivaf 28th September, 1973

Patrick-Inter»arine Acceptances Liaited, 
G.P.O. Box 2117T, 
MELBOURNE Vie., 3OO«

Dear Sir,

We have pleasure enclosing our interest cheque for the 
quarter ended 3Oth September, 1973 calculated as follows:-

Principal Rate Froa To Interest 

$1,500,000.00 8.7% 16/8 30/9 16446.57

Yours Sincerely,

Shirley G. Brideoak. 
Accountant.

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to First Defendant 28.9.73
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RCV/a* 88th December, 1973

Patriek-Intereiarine Acceptance* £td., 
G.P.O. Box 3117T, 
MELBOUR» 3OO1

Dear Sir,

We have pleasure in enclosing our ch*qu« for $32,893.15 
r«pr«Mnting interest for the quarter *nding 31st D«c«mb*r, 
calculated a* follow*t

Principal Kato Period Aa»unt 

$1,900,000.00 8.7% 1/10 to 31/12 $32,893.15

Nay we take thia opportunity to wish you the compliment* of 
the aeaaon and to thank you for your continued aupport of our 
organisation.

Tour* Faithfully,

. C. wot tenhallfffifAccountant

Copy of letter from Second Defendant
to First Defendant 28.12.73
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PATRICK-INTERMAPJNE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED

241-3686 
241-3162

Patrick House. S Gresham Strttt. Sydnty

UELBOURNt BRISBANE 
PERTH

Secretary, 
I'lrst Leading /uostralia Limited, 
379 CDLLina Street, 

V1C 3000

CORRESPOHDENCE: 
P.O. Box R146. Royal Exchange, 
Sydney. N.S.W. 2000. 
Telegrams: "Pates" Sydney. 
Telex: 25566

18th JUly, 0374.

Dear Sir,

Deposits with Patrtck-Intermarine Acceptances Limited

For audit purposes, our auditors, Messrs. Coopers & Lybrand, Chartered 
Accountants of 6 O'Connell Street, Sydney, would like you to confirm directly 
to then the following details as at 30th June, 1974:-

1. Deposit balance:

2. Term of Deposit:

3. Interest paid to:

4. Securities held:

$1,500,000.00

Fixed to 14.8.75 9 8.70% P.A.

Not Applicable

letter of Cteedit

We would be grateful for your confirmation on the attached duplicate 
of this letter as early as possible. A self addressed envelope is enclosed for 
your convenience.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK-INTERMmNE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED

The above details are hereby confl

Signed Date July 19, 1974

Position held Chief Accountant.

(Being an authorised signatory)

Please DO NOT detach from above letter.

Copy of letter from First Defendant
to Second Defendant j 18.7.74
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CORPORATE SERVICES

1st /ugust, 1973.

FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED 

Interview this office today -

Present - R. T. Vhitham - Administration & Funding
Director

L. D. H. Kerans ) „ . 
D. L. W.bb ) Bank '

and Mr A. F. Thompson was present briefly during
th« interview.

***

Mr Whit ham, through an introduction previously 
mad* with Mr Searle, Melbourne Office, called to see whether 
the bank would be interested in the following proposal.

First Leasing Australia Limited has been offered
$5 million for three years by the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria at a rate to be determined but Mr Vhi^bMienvi sages some­ 
thing around 1% per annum. S.E.C. require a' Dank iet'tVr of credit. 
The conpany is interested in bidding for $3 million only.

Although the market is aware of the availability
of these funds, Mr Vhitham believes that SEC would like First Leasing 
to secure the business because of two similar transactions arranged 
several years ago and of the smooth settlement at the

The previous transactions were arranged through
this bank (Sydney Office) with Patrick A. Company the intermediary j 
SEC the lender and First Leasing the borrower. The bankfc charge 
was .6% per annum on a letter of credit basis matched by the First 
National Bank of Boston.

On this occasion it is not proposed by First
Leasing to bring Patricks into negotiations, however, should the 
offer be successful, First Leasing are prepared to pay brokerage 
because Patricks were responsible in putting together the previous 
deals and effecting the initial introductions.

We were told confidentially that First National 
Bank: of Boston is charging 1.5^ p*r annum and First Leasing is 
looking for a fee from us of .25^ per annum.

We said we viewed the proposal favourably and on 
receipt of balance sheet information would follow the matter up 
with our Lending Committee. A degree of urgency naturally dees 
exist.

Other points raised at the meeting were s-

(l) First Leasing Australia Limited - not listed 
owned First National Bank of Boston 
Reinehr Family Melbourne.

(2) First National Bank of Boston to set up a funding company 
for the leasing company. First Leasing currently has a 
$18 m.A. letter of credit limit with First National Bank 
of Boston with usage |A13 million.

4. Plaintiff's Internal Minute j 1.8.73
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(3) Reserve Bank advise that the letter of credit facility is not 
subject to the two-year embargo or the 2$% deposit 
requirement.

(k) The Australian Federal Government has placed a three months 
injunction order on the establishment of the funding 
company, hopeful of setting up before end of this year.

(5) Operations of First Leasing & Reinehr Industrial Lease & 
Finance Pty Ltd could amalgamate under new name of 
"Reinehr LeasingLtd". **

(6) Reinehr Industrial Lease operating 1^/15 years & First 
Leasing around 6 years.

(7) Current annual sales of the group is $15 million and
is anticipated sales in five years will be $9O million.

(8) Group 1 s bankers have recently been realigned and through an old 
Reinehr family banking connection at our Melbourne Office 
the CBC will be bankers in N.S.V. and Victoria. Ve 
understand certain arrangements have already been 
introduced both at our Sydney and Melbourne Offices to 
augment the new proposals. The National Bank, because 
of a close relationship with the First National Bank 
of Boston, will be the group's bankers in Queensland.
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,KANCM

Connection 
1st August, 197'1 Customer 15 vein

CORPORATE SERVICES

Interest Rite
Fee .25%

NAME

ACTIVITY

DIRECTORS

PRESENT 
POSITION

I'nlal Bank Liabilities 
l:> include O/D Debt 
nr limit whichever is 
'lit greater. T. I., and/ 
>r I-.D.L.. Billl.imU, 
I'olal Contingent 
I (abilities including 
cate finanqf.)

PROPOSED

SECURITY 
(Summary 

only)

PURPOSE

COMMENTS
(to include 

reference to 
associated business)

QB&W8XCKS- 

rt/tniitt t» hard

BENEFITS
(new accounts 

to be obtained A 
reference to credit 
funds A overseas 
exchange content)

FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
5O# owned by First National Bank of Boston *. 5O# owned 

. by Reinehr Family (Melbourne)

F.I. Reinehr, J. H. Lewis, L.P. Smart, W. Olmsted (1st NB) 
M. Wolfe (1st N.B..) G. Pheylan (1st N.B.) _________
Contingent liability of $1,5OOiOOO outstanding under our letter 
of credit N<S. LD973 in favour of the State Electricity Commission

"''8/73 backed by a matching letter of 
issued by First National Bank of Boston.

of Victora to expire
-" cv4Qi » Sydney Office

Reinehr Industrial Lease &. Finance Pty Ltd - in the process of 

• St. Kilda Road Branch ( tranaf ̂ ^^iT
• ToUl Bank Lilbilities S ____A/cs Dr $32,059

Total Credit Bilincei S 65.29'< (9 accounts)
Total Limits $ Term Loin $

reducing by $ p.i. repiyible $ p.a. 
That we issue a Local Documentary Letter of Credit in favour of 
the State Electricity Commission of Victoria for $3,OOO,OOO for 
a period of three years.

Contingent Lilbilities * Totil Bink Liibilitiei S

Irrevocable Letter of Credit in our favour for f3,OOO,OOO for 
three years issued by the First National Bank of Boston, 
Boston, U.S.A.

General funding of the company.
First Leasing borrows both on a secured and unsecured basis and
currently has a $A18 million Letter of Credit line with the
First National Bank of Boston of which |A13 million has been
utilised.

Thn company wishes to bid for $3 million three year money which the
State Electricity Commission of Victoria has available.
SKC require security by way of an Australian bank letter of credit
The availability of the funds is known in the money market sphere)
however, we are informed that SEC would like First Leasing to
secure the business because of similar transactions arranged four
years ago. On that occasion the deals were put together by
Patrick Corporation through this bank on a back-to-back letter
of credit basis as now proposed. Patrick Corporation will not
be brought into this arrangement although First Leading is
prepared to pay them brokerage as the company was instrumental
in arranging the initial introduction.
The Reserve Bank has advised the company that the letter of
credit facility would not be subject to the two-year embargo
or the 25/6 deposit requirement.
First Leasing is looking for a bank letter of credit charge of
not greater than .25$ per annum on the full line.
We are iniorinSCT tnat prox iT-aoniiy ior tnis year ior First 
Leasing is approximately the same as 1972 (fl^S.OOO) and th« 
assets/liabilities position is virtually in line with the 
previous year. 1973 audited accounts will be available by 
31st August, 1973.

Income at .25$ per annum - $7.5OO.* r'-

Recommended.

5. Plaintiff's Internal Minute 1.8.73
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•£££:.;££, PATRICK a COMPANY
M M L DOWLINO TCLECMOMC

N R COURSE MEMBERS OF THE SYONCV STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED *° "*' '• L|M">
F M A^tcORATMN *" NOWTHBOURNE AVENUE

M TVALLE*N M 2 CASTLEREAOH STREET. SYDNEY. 2OOO
MCMMIW Or THC _oner »TOCK »»CMA»OC uonco . «OX 1»»O SVONCV tOOl TIXIX SO7«7...

J A KCIH l«l KEIRA STREET 
R.A NOSS TCUCM4OHC I-O>I*(» LINES) WOLLONOOMO *BOO 

*. J /COWARDS T«l.«PMO»l WOU. <-S»OO 
J.S.CORNCR- ____

TCLCaitAM* * CABLES
ROSOALC

•VOMCT. MCLVOUMMC
CAMSCAHA.WOI.I.ONOONO

12th May, 1969.

Th« Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
Suite 2,
73 - 79 Riverside Avenue,
SOUTH MELBOURNE 3205

Dear Sir, Attention - Mr. F.I. Relnehr

We confirm below details of deposits totalling $3,000,000 from this 
firm as arranged by telephone last week.

The sum of $1,500,000 will be placed on deposit with you by this firm 
on the 15th May, 1969 and an additional $1,500,000 to be deposited on 
the 15th September, 1969 under the following terms and conditions.

Security is to be by way of an Irrevocable Letter of Credit from the 
First Rational Bank of Boston in favour of this firm covering the 
principal sums only. No withdrawal of funds to be made before funds 
have been in your hands for a period of 15 months and thereafter no 
sum in excess of $1,500,000 to be withdrawn at any one time, (it is / 
understood that calls of $1,500,000 may be made in successive months.)

^

( Interest is to be paid on an ascending scale with each quarterly pay- _. 
ment of interest being mede at the rete applicable to that quarter ea 
set out below plus the additional Intereat due for past periods due to 
the sfep up in Interest rate.

6. Letter from Patrick & Co. to Second
Defendant 12.5.69
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Interest Rate if 
Deposit Remains

12 months
15 •oaths
18 Months
21 months
24 months
27 aonths
30 months
33 months
36 months
39 months
42 months
45 months 7.55% /f7> / /
48 months 7.625%/jYr^ 7-^

Should the above agree with your understanding of the arrangements 
negotiated by telephone, we would appreciate your confirmation at 
your convenience.

Tours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T. R. Alien
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PATMICK * LEVY
RICHARD H.ALLCN

MR L.DOWLING
NR COURSE

r.A.ROSCRTSON
M A.MCORATM

T.H ALLCN
MCMBCHS or THE

TOHCY STOCK CXCHANOC LIMITED 

J A KCIM,
m A.NOSS

W J COWARDS 
JS COMNCR

PATRICK & COMPANY
MEMBERS OF THC SYDNEY STOCK CXCHANOC LIMITED 

2 CASTLEREAGH STREET. SYDNEY. 2OOO

O fO BOX S«BO. SYDNEY. 1OOI TELEX ZO7B7 

TCLCPHONC » 03I» (M LINE*)

TCLCOMAM» * CAMLCS "ROSOALE" 

• VONCV. MCLBOUHNC. CANttEHI«A.WOi.LOMOONO

BO-1141 (» LINKS)

43 NORTHBOURNE AVENUE
CITY CANBERRA XeOI 

TCLCPHQNC CANB.4-O3*B/««

l«l KEIRA STREET
WOLLONGONG ZSOO

TCLC^HONC WOLC 2-S9OO

7 AVENUE ERNESTINE 
BRUSSELS S BELGIUM

23rd May, 1969.

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
Suite 2,
73-79 Riverside Avenue,
SOUTH MELBOURNE. 3205

Dear Sir, Attention; Mr. F.I. Reinehr

Further to our letter of 16th May, 1969 with regard to a deposit of 
$1.5 million, I would like to confirm that any call made on this 
deposit under the terms and conditions laid out in our letters of 
12th May and 16th May, 1969 is subject to notice of sixty days prior 
to the date of repayment.

Yours faithfully, 
COMPANY

T.R. Alien

Letter from Patrick & Co. to Second
Defendant 23.5.69
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PATRICK R.LEVY
RICHARD H.ALLCN

M .R I. COWLING
N R COURSE

r. A. ROBCRTSON
M.A.MCORATH

TR ALIEN
MCMBCRS Or THE

• VDNCV STOCK IKCHAHOt LIMITCO

J A KCIR
R A NOSS

W J COWARDS
J S CORNER

PATRICK a COMPAN ,
MEMBERS OF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITCO 

2 CASTLEREAGH STREET. SYDNEY. 2OOO

O P O.BOX MSO.BVPNCY. SOOI TELEX 1O7B7

TELEPHONE 1-09IB(1B LINES)

TCLCOIIAMS * CABLES *ROSOA1_C" 

•VOMCX MCLROUMMC. CAMMMAA.WOHOMOONO

IBI OUEEN STREET
MELBOURNE 9000

TCLCPMOMC

43 NORTHBOURNE AVENUE
CITY CANBERRA. ZCOI 

TCLCPHONC CANB.4-OMB/B*

IBI KEIRA STREET
WOLLONGONG. ZBOO

TCLCPMOMC WOLL X-99OO

7 AVENUE ERNESTINE 
BRUSSELS S BELGIUM

16th May, 1969.

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
Suite 2,
73-79 Riverside Avenue,
SOOTH MELBOURNE 3205

Dear Sir, Attention - Mr. F.I. Reinehr

Further to our letter of the 12th May, we would like to confirm a loan 
to you today of $1,500,000 and receipt of security in the form of an 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. S11011 dated 13th May, 1969 from The 
First National Bank of Boston, Boston.

The terms and conditions of this loan are as stated in our letter of 
the 12th May, 1969 with the following exceptions:

1. Quarterly dates of withdrawal are to deemed to have begum from the 
15th May, 1969 although interest of course will accrue only from 
today's date.

2. It is agreed that no withdrawal of funds be made before the 
15th August, 1970.

Further to the above loan, we confirm that we have today accepted on 
same-day call deposit the sum of $1,500,000 to accrue interest at the 
rate of 51 per annum from today's date.

Tours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T. R. Alien

Letter from Patrick & Co. to Second 
Defendant 16.5.69
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16th May, 1969.

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
Suite 2,
73 - 79 Riverside Avenue,
SOUTH MELBOURNE 3205

Dear Sir, Attention - Mr. F.I. Reinehr

Further to our letter of today's date, we would like to confirm ar­ 
rangements whereby this firm reserves the right to withdraw the 
deposit of $1,500,00 made today on 24 hour's notice any time 
between the 15th November, 1969 and the 15th August, 1970.

However, should this occur, the interest rate due and payable by 
First Leasing will be at the rate of 3% per annum for the term of 
the deposit.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T.R. Alien

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Second Defendant 16.5.69
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PATRICK R LEVY

M • L OOWLINO
NO COURSE

T A ROBERTSON
M.A.MCORATM

T R ALLCN 
MCMBCHB OF TMK

J A KEIft
• A NOSS

W J COWARDS
J S CORMCR

PATRICK a COMPANY
MEMBERS OF THC SVONCV STOCK CXCHANOC LIMITED

2 CASTLEREAGH STREET. SYDNEY. 2OOO

o PO BOX *B»O SYDNEY, tooi TCLCX tors?
TELEPHONE I 03ISM1S LINES)

TCLCOMAMS « CA»LC» 'ROSDA1, F~ 

•VONCV MCLBOUMMC. CAMVCftftA. WOi-LOMOONO

191 OUCCN STREET
MELBOURNE. 3OOO

TELEPHONE

43 NORTHBOURNE AVENUE
CITY CANBERRA *eOI 

TELEPHONE CANB.4-O3eS/*«

!•! KEIRA STREET
WOLLONGONG. ZSOO

TELEPHONE WOLL Z-5OOO

7 AVENUE ERNESTINE 
BRUSSELS 5 BELGIUM
TELEPHONE «»-SIS(/»

15th August, 1969.

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
379 Collins Street,
MELBOURNE 3000

Dear Sir, Attention - Mr. F.I. Reinehr

We would like to confirm a loan to you today of $1,500,000 and receipt 
of security in the form of an Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. S-11085 
from the First National Bank of Boston, Boston. The terms and conditi­ 
ons of the above loan are as follows.

Withdrawal of funds may be made at three monthly intervals dating from 
today's date subject to sixty day's notice being given and also subject 
to the first withdrawal not being made prior to the 15th November, 1970.

Not withstanding the above, this firm reserves the right to withdraw 
this deposit any time between the 15th February, 1970 and the 15th 
November, 1970 on 24 hour's notice subject to accepting an interest 
rate of 3% per annum for the term of the deposit. Interest is to be 
paid on an ascending scale with each quarterly payment of interest 
being made at the rate applicable to that quarter as set out below 
plus the additional interest due for past periods due to the step up 
in interest rates.

Interest Rate If 
Deposit Remains

'l2 months ,c 6.75% fty/0
15 months MtH> 6.85% ///ft

" J 18 months , •-.# 6.90% - //-
' 21 months y/JV 6.95%

24 months ,-A/v. 7.00%
~; 27 months/"- > 7.10%

30 months *•«--*• 7.20%

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Second Defendant 15.8.69
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33 months 7.307.
36 months 7.407. 7>
39 months 7.457.
42 months 7.507. / i
45 months 7.557. ?! 7 }
48 months 7.6257. ' ~

Should the above agree with your understanding of the arrangements 
regarding this loan, we would appreciate your confirmation at your 
convenience.

It is further agreed by this firm that any withdrawal of funds be 
restricted to the sum of $1,500,000 in any quarter, this deposit 
being part of a total of $3,000,000 under these arrangements.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T. R. Alien
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
H*mi Omee: Legal A Central Hotue, 379 Collint St* Melbourne 3000. Phone U3871

Addrwc: R*ln*hr liMboum*. Interstate OfHcM — Adatokto. Brlabane, Sydney

FIB/ej 22nd May, 1969.

Patrick & Company, 
2 Castlereagh Street, 
Sydney, 2OOO.
a.P.O. BOX 2850,
SYDNEY. 2001.

Dear Sir,

For the attention of Mr. T.R. Alien

Reference your letter of 12th May, in connection with the de­ 
posit of 11,500,000 taken down by us from Friday, 16th May.

•e agree with the term* of your letter but notice you fail to 
mention that withdrawal at the quarterly rest is subject to 60 
days notice, as discussed in our 'phone conversations. 
Would you please forward a letter to us confirming the 60 days 
notification.

All other aspects in your abovementioned letter are agreeable 
and acceptable to us.

2 6 BAY 1969 A... Yours fai

: ii ! o

M ' !!

_ '3

PRL

JAK

..tSiASCH

UNA

iy(
/

SCRIP

FAI

DAK

AGO'TS.

_*^--
F.I. Beinehr 

Director

7. Letter from Second Defendant to 
Patrick & Co. 22.5.69
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12th May, 1969.

The Secretary,
State Electricity Commission of Victoria,
15 William Street,
MELBOURNE 3000

Dear Sir, Attention - Mr. N.W. Shears

We would like to confirm arrangements made last week with regard to 
loans totalling $3,000,000 with this firm.

The sum of SI,500,000 is to be lodged with Patrick & Company on the 
15th May, 1969 and an additional $1,500,000 is to be lodged on the 
15th September, 1969 under tha following terms and conditions.

Security is to be by way of an Irrevocable Letter of Credit from the 
Commercial Banking Co. of Sydney Limited in favour of the State 
Electricity Commission for the principal amounts of these loans and 
It is agreed that no funds are to be called until they have been 
lodged with the firm for a minimum of 15 months. Notice of any call 
is to be on the basis of 60 days prior to the date of repayment; 
such date to be at Intervals of three months from the date of deposit 
of the funds or the first working day thereafter. It Is agreed that 
the State Electricity Commission restrict their calling 'o $1,500,000 
at any one time. However, it Is understood that the entire sum may 
be called In two successive quarters.

Interest Is to be paid on an ascending scale with each quarterly 
payment of Interest being made at the rate applicable to that quarter 
as set out below plus the additional Interest due for past periods 
due to the step up In increased rate.

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 12.5.69
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Interest race
if Deposit Remains

12 month* 6.25%
15 months 6.257.
18 months 6.307,
21 months 6.35%
24 months 6.40%
27 months 6.45%
30 months 6.55%
33 months 6.60%
36 months 6.70%
39 months 6.75%
42 months 6.80%
45 months 6.85%
48 months 6.90%

Should the above agree with your understanding of the arrangements 
negotiated by telephone, we would appreciate your confirmation at 
your convenience.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T. R. Alien
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TIA

16th May. 1969.

Tha Secretary.
State Electricity 0& iaaion of Victoria,
IS Ullli«a 8tra«t,
MELBODRHK 3000

Dear Sir, Attention - Mr. M.W. Sbaara

Furtbar to our lattar of the 12th May. 1969, v« would liSca to confii 
that wn have today received tha mm of $1.500.000 to be lodged on 
deposit with thia fini uador tha torn* and condition* expressed in 
our previous lottor.

V* «lso advise having forverded an Irrevocable Lattar of Crodit 
iaavad by tha Coamwreial Banking Co. of Sydney Llaltad in favour of 
youraalvoa.

Thia depoait 1« aubjoct to tha following anandninta to tha tama in 
our lottor of tha 12th May.

1. Tha firat call of funda and aubaequant quarterly roata are
to date from the 15th May, 1969 although funda vera not actually 
lodged until today'a date.

2. However, the S.R.C. reaervea the right to call these funds on 
24 hour's notice any tine between the ISth Hovoober, 1969 and 
15th August, 1970, on the understanding that the rate of Interest 
payable by Patrick 4 Conpany ia to be reduced to 31 for the term 
of the depoait.

Tours faithfully, 
PATRICK 4 COMPAMr

T. K. Alien

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 16.5.69
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TIA/abc

Attention; Mr. M.W. Snaara 19th May, 1949.

The Secretary.
Stata Electricity CoaBtiaaioa of Victoria,
15 WllliaB Street,
MKLBOOIHl. VXC. 3000.

Dear Sir,

Further to our l«tt«r of May 16th, we would Ilka to confirm an 
alteration of call depoait arrangement* applying to tha loan of 
$1.5 •lllloa mad* on tha 16th May, 1969, to thl« firm. Thoaa 
now arraagaMats ara to roplaa* tha tana In tha laat paragraph 
of oar lattar of that data.

"•ovavar, Patrick & Company raaanraa tha right to rapay thaaa 
fuada to tha Stata Klactrlolty Coaalaalon of Victoria on 24 
hour* motlca any tlaa aftar tha 16th May, 1969, to tha data 
on which thay ara callad by tha Stata Electricity Coawiaaloa 
OB tha undarvtandlns that tha rata of Intaraat payable by Patrick 
& Coapany In tha avant of auch rapayaant la to be at tha rata of 
8X par mmtm for tha total tana of tha dapoalt".

Yowra faithfully, 
PATRICK 4 COMPANY

T.K. Allan

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 19.5.69
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15th Aafuat. 1M9.

Tho foaroeary.
teat* klooerloley Coaalaaloa of Victoria.
IS Wlllaa Straot.
MfMOOMaT 3000

Oaar Sir, Attoatloa . Mr. •.»..

Further eo your loceor of tko 2fek May aad our lottora of cko 12th, 
loth aad 19tk Nay, uo would like eo coBfim roaolpt today of a loaa 
froa you of |1,500,000 agalMe «kiak vo aaViaa kavtag Ioigo4 with 
you aa aoeurlty aa Irrovoaakla Lactor of Craalt froa eko Caaiwrclal 
Baaklag Ceafiay of tyoaoy tUdtatf ta favour of youroalvoa for tko 
prlaalval aamac of ckla loo*.

Wa agrao tko tana aad eoaJittoaa of tko akovo loaa to ko aa 
follom:

Wekoranal of fvntm aay ko aa4a at tkroo awatkly latanrala froa 
today's data aabjaet eo M day'a aoelco kolag glvaB a*d alao avkjoot 
to tko flrae wlekdrawal aoe kolag ••*• prior eo tko 13th •ovoakor, 
1970. Hocvltkataadlag tko akovo, tkla flm rooorvao tko rlgkc to 
roaoy tkoao foaia to eko ttata Iloetrlelty CaaMaaloa of Vlatorla 
oa 24 hour'a aoeleo aay tla» latwaaa 15th AiHjoat. 1970 aad 15th 
•n»aa>tr, 1970 OB tko Madaratoadlac that tho rate of latoroot payaklo 
hy tkla firm la tko ovoat of rock prior ropayaoat la to ko at tko 
rato of 81 par aaaua for tko tarn of tko dopoalt.

latoraat la to ko paid oa aa aaeoadlas aealo with oaeh ouarearly pay- 
aoat of latoroat hoAac •**• at tko rato applleahlo to that ouartor aa 
aot oac holov ploa tko additional latoraat duo for paat porloda duo 
to tho atop up la laeoroat ratoo.

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 15.8.69
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Duration of lataraat tata 
FayaHaDa»o*tt 

Heath*
12 6.251
15 6.251
18 6.301
21 4.351
24 6.409
27 4.451
30 4.331
33 6.601
36 6.701
39 6.731
42 6.801
43 6.831
48 4.901

It !• further uad*rstoo4 that ng call aa4« by tha Coajalaaioa shall 
h« raatrtet*4 to tba •«• of $1,300,000 la may OM ^tartar ondar tha 
agrMamt la your lattar of tha 2teh May, 19*9 vhlah takaa aota of 
a total of $3,000.000 iaaoalt with tha flra la this aana«r.

Tour* falthfally,
* coMnunr

T. t. Allan
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No. 
41J-14I3

Telex 3 1153

Cmtle out Tel. Address:
-ELECTROCOM"

MELBOURNE

STATE
ELECTRICITY 
COMMISSION
OF VICTORIA

NWS:EDS
Ttltfkamt: 

Eaeiuxm Ate... .224.2..

Had Oftce,
MONASH HOUSE,

15 WILLIAM STREET,
MELBOURNE, 3000.

26th May, 1969.

Messrs. Patrick & Company, 
Stock & Sharebrokers, 
2 Castlereagh Street, 
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2000.

Attention: Mr. T. R. Alien

Dear Sirs,

Referring to your letters of the 12th, 16th and 19th May, 196", 
I confirm, for the Commission, the arrangements made between Mr.T.R. 
Alien and the Loans and Investments Officer (Mr. N.W. Shears), for the 
lodgement with your Firm of $3, 000, 000, with settlement of $1, 500, 000 
on 16th May, 1969, and $1, 500, 000 on 15th September, 1969, each deposit 
to be secured by Irrevocable Letter of Credit from the Commercial Banking 
Company of Sydney Limited in favour of the Commission.

Interest on the deposits is to be paid to the Commission on an 
ascending scale, and each quarterly payment of interest shall be made at 
the rate applicable to that quarter as set out below, plus the additional 
interest due for past periods due to the step-up in interest rate:

Interest Rate PayableDuration of Deposit 
(months)

12
15
18
21
24
27
30
33
36
39
42
45
48

Subject to the funds remaining on deposit for a minimum period 
of 15 months the Commission shall have the right to call for repayment on 
the basis of 60 days' notice prior to the date of repayment, which for this 
purpose shall be at quarterly intervals from the respective dates of 15th May 
and 15th September, 1969, or the first working day thereafter. It is agreed, 
however, that the Commission shall restrict such calling to $1, 500, 000 at 
any one time, but that the entire sum may be called in two successive 
quarters.

6.25
6.25
6.30
6.35
6.40
6.45
6.55
6.60
6.70
6.75
6.80
6.85
6.90

6.00
6.10
6.15
6.20
6.25
6.30
6.40
6.45
6.55
6.60
6.65
6.70
6.75

9. Letter from Fourth Defendant to 
Patrick & Co. 26.5.69
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Patrick & Company shall have the right to repay the funds on 
giving 24 hours' notice to the Commission, in which case the rate of interest 
shall be 8% per annum for the total term of the depoait.

Although settlement of the first $1, 500. 000, in terms of this 
agreement, was made on 16th May, 1969, against receipt of Irrevocable 
Credit No. LD. 936 from the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney 
Limited, the first call of funds and subsequent quarterly rests shall be 
deemed to date from 15th May, 1969.

Yours faithfully.

J. U Pepprf 
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER
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- A

12m
15»
18m
21m 
24m
27»
30m
33m
36m
39m
42m
45m
48m

Litter of Credit C. B. 
(, 

Ch"Tures by '^nV for ^/C,

6.25
6.25
6.30
6.35 
6.40 i( * •>•
6.45
6.55
6.60
6.70
6.75
6.80
6.85
6.90

C. Co. of Sydney, Melbourne.

1

Borrower* first Leasing Australia Limited.
Under i State Electricity Commission of Tictoria.
Aaount t $1,500,000.00

LKKEBR % BOHR01EH

6.75
6.85
6.90
6.95
7.00
7.10
7.20
7.30
7.40
7.45
7.50
7.55
7.625

0.25^B*a> for short periods, 2/3rd of 0.25j£p> a, for long periods. 

Penal rate to Lender ( if repaid at immediate notice) 

Bfo.m. for whole period IT repaid at 24 hours notice. 

Penal rate to borrower (if called at 60 days notice) 

3jt p. a. for whole period.

10. Terms and Conditions Special Deal
No. 2 Undated
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CALL KJSVURT

FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
MR. P. REINEHR 27TH FEBRUARY, 1973.

I visited with Peter Davie primarily to discuss a twelve month 
loan fro* the S.E.C., secured by letterof credit which is due 
for repayment at the end of April and to also apply for 
Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances to be an approved borrower of 
unsecured money. Reinehr is to consider this last request.

First Leasing are to for* a new company with the First Boston 
Bank called First Boston Financial Corporation and are contem­ 
plating issuing a prospectus and having the issue under-written.

I expressed interest in the under-writing but Reinehr stated 
that they have had discussions with another party who will have 
first preference. However, he did not close the door and I 
will take the matter up with then at a later date.

OMEN J. GROGAN.

11. Diary Note | 27.2.73
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r/ie FIRST NATIONAL RANK -/ BOSTON*
. J NTJ'.KN AT.! C :••:.'. ". mVf:'!."'": . t !\r : 'S '!''!

Bo./; ON. nl/s:. ^."''.^KTT~, r.;,,:'. A.

UF.TTJfiM OF-. CREDIT SO. S-1Q9M 
P:' trick ;• Co. 
? Cast U.rr-:agn Sir cot 
Sydney , ' U7,tra : i ; ;

V/a HKRT.i'v OS-UN DUB IT REVOCABLE LETTER or- C;!iJ'~>lT IM vooit KAYCK .«VAIT.AB:.>: jiy YOUR ;>];.-, ••Tf !-•„« !•.
oy Lo;.',,;UTC i a 1 3cnx : ng Co . of Sydney, Ltd. Sydney, Australia

t.1 ,...., ......... BtOHT FOH ANV StllM OX t.UM.T NOT KXCKEUFNd IN TOTAL

Five Hundred Thirty Six Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Australian Dollars . 

I-OR ACCOUNT oir First Leasing Austrolia, Ltd. Melbourne, Australio

MOST Di3 ACCOMPANIED BY!

Your statement addressed to First National B-.. n!\ pf Boston, Boston, 
Msssechuseits and signed by any officer or officers as ore authorised 
to sign on your account, certifying:

(1J that the dr^ft amount represents the u no a id principal amount 
plus accrued interest (to be coitiputed it a rate not excueciinci 
7 \/4 ca per emnum and inclusive of stamp duties, if applicable) 
on o loan made by you to First Leasing Australia, Lid.

(2) that such loan or loons was made available to First Leasinc 
Australia, Ltd. by ycur arranging payment to First Leasing 
Australia, Ltd. Finance .iccount ~>i Tho Commercial Banking' 
Company of Sydney, Ltd. Sydney, Australia.

(3) that such amount v/as not paid v/hen due and has not since been 
repaid to or collected by you.

The promissory note or other evidence of the indebtedness in respect 
of such loan.

Certificate from your Bankers certifying that the signatory or 
signatories, to the statement and accompany i ng draft are as 
authorised to opsrale on the Company's Bank Account.

EACH DRAFT MUST B«/>tt UPON i'lS FACE THE CLAUSE "DRAWN UNDE.1 L-KTTF.R OK CRF.DIT No. S" 109/1

i»TM> March 28,iyd9 OF THE Kinsx NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON, BOSTON, MABB."
EXCEPT so FAR AS OTHERWISE ExpnEvsty STATRD HBREIN. THIS LETTEU OF CRKDIT is SIIBJKCT TO THE "UNIFORM Cce- 
TOMB AND PRACTICE FOR DOCCI'ENTAUY CREDITS (1062 REVISION), IN'IIUINATICNAI. CiiA-.ioEn OK COMMEKCB HnocHiiiiT 
No. 22?".

WE HEREBY AORER WITH YOU THAT DRAFTS nn«WN UNDKR AKO !N TOMPLIANCB WITH THE TKHMS OF THIS LETTER OF

CREDIT WILI. BE DULY HONORKD IF PRESHNTZD TO THE ABOVE MKNTIONKD DUAWF.S IJAJCK OH on iiEFoue April 9 , i 3 /I
but not prior to April 2, 1970.

1 II.
' VERY

1i

12. Copy of letter of Credit of Third 
Defendant addressed to Patrick & Co. 28.3.69
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The Secretary, 
Patrick and Co.? 
2 Castlereagh Street* 
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2OOO.

Dear Sir,

T>- " __„ national Bank of Boston, Boston, 
irrevocable Letter of Credit No. S-1O971 
in favour r of Youraelvea for fA536,250.00,

We confirm our telephone conversation of today, in 
which we advised having received cabled advice from The First 
National Bank of Boston, Boston, concerning the abovementioned 
Letter of Credit:-

•AIHMAILING OUR IRREVOCABLE CREDIT S-1O971 FOR AUSTRALIAN 
DOLLARS 53625O FAVOUR PATRICK AND CO TWO CASTLEREAGH ST 
SYDNEY COVERING LOAN OF FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LTD AT 7- 
PER CENT ANNUM PAYABLE ON OR BEFORE APRIL NINETH 197O BUT 
NO PRIOR TO APRIL SECOND 1970 ADVISE BENEFICIARY".

Ve shall advise you further in due cour

You

Letter from Plaintiff to Patrick & Co. 31.3.69
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AOMCSS LETTCMS TO
•oi «»4C, a.P.O..

MILIOUimi, Cl.

: »J-T«M CIT.

Overseas.

T
(K)

WITH WHICH It AMALVAMATKD

181 -1ST COLLINS »T»IIT

The Secretary, 
Patrick ft Company, 
150 Queen Street, 
MELBOURNE. 3000.

Dear Sir,

Our Sydney Office, Irrevocable Credit 
No. LL.920 for A*500,000.00. in favour 
of Sbte Electricity Commission of Victoria 
on account of Patrick & Company, Sydney.

As requested by our Sydney Office we enclose original
of the abovementloned Letter of Credit,

/
Yours faithfully,

Copy of letter from Plaintiff to Patrick 
&Co. 9.4.69
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EDIT— — F " P M No

257 -
a. SYDNEY. :

IRREV 
No.

CREDIT

MELBOURNE, 9th April, 1969.

c> tate Electricity Comraiasion of Victoria, 15 WilliamWe hereby authorise strout,\ Mel

to draw on Patrick and Company, 2 Castlereagb Stroet , Sydney.

at ————— sight for any sum or sums not exceeding in all A$500, 000-0& . ( Five

hundred thousand dollars Aus tralian
currency)

purporting to cover ir?v?rr&?:t?^z:xzx:a:xz;lc;s:'c8:f3CZ Unpaid prirripal amount of loan 
made to Patrick and Company.

of*

for account of Patrick and Company.

The draft(s) drawn under this credit must be accompanied by the^ following documents relating 
thereto:— J

CJlTfiri ff(*S t'l * F * fnT' &if!t*\ 3 77 i

Statement oft^dtate i/loctricity Conmiiasion of Victoria 
certifying that the draft amount repre^Qts the unpaid 
principal amount 'of a loan i:iade by (yaw-commission) t
Patrick and Company and that payme 
and not received.

daman ed

Additional instructions (if any) :—t-
negotiation (a) uiuier tUis Credit are restricted to the
Commercial hank i-iiy Company of oydney Liraitod, Melbourne.
Drawings) undor ;this Credit must not be made priorj to 
6th April, 1970. : ; '

DrafU must be presented for negoHruion nbt later than • APri|l» 
to our head

19 70 'and forwarded
ofrice/b?;i"rirn; together with relative documents for -5?

1 !!
Drafts must be enfaced with the,iiumber, date and place of issde of j this credit and! the negotiating

Bank must record the amount of each draft on the back hereof. ! ! I |l

THE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY, LIMITF.D, hereby engages with ths
drawers, endorsers and bonrx tide holders of drafts drawn under; and in compliance with the terms of this 
cr-'Tlit, that such drafts shall meet with due honour upon presentation. '••

R. N. FINNIN 

Countersigner.
I. M. YOUNG

Manager.

Subject to Uniform Cuiioms o.-d Pract,c« fo.1 Oocumontory Credit* (1962 Revltlon), InfetiariOPal Chsntber of Commerce Broch'wa No. 222

Plaintiff's Irrevocable letter of Credit 
addressed to Fourth Defendant 9.4.69
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THA

lit Jul/,

tb* Secretary, 
State Sleotrioity

of Victoria, 
15 VUliM Street,

3°°°

OMtr Sir,

PlMM* find •noloMd oteqgo* for $7,390.41 being intvrwt da* 
•900,000.00 at 6.%1 tnm 9th April to 1«t July, 1969.

Town faithfully, 
PATRICK 4 COMPACT

. H. Allon.

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 1.7.69
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/f/o I

TBi

7th October. 1969.

tb*
8Ut« El»otriaitjr CoMd.Mlon of

Victoria, 
1$ Ullim Strvot,

aooo

air,

KL*mw find moloMd eteqa* for $8,191*78 btlng lnt«r«>t te* on ywnr 
with this fla to and inolnrtlng tte 90th 8^>t«*«r, 19«9.

Toon AdthfnUir,
FARUtCK * CCKPiir

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 7.10.69
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TRA/3N

31 et December, 1969.

The Secretary,
The State Electricity CeeBiseion
of Victoria,
IS Uilliee Street, x
HCLBOURMC...VIC. 3000 £>&. f\J^i 

Attentieni HR. W. SHtARS. 

Dear Sir,

Pleeee find encleeed cheque for $8,191.78 being intereet due on 
your depeait ef $500,000.00 with thie fin to and including the 
31at Oeceetter, 1969.

Youra faithfully, 
PATRICK • COMPANY

T.R. ALLtN.

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 31.12.69
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
Htmi (Mb*; Ugml A Cmmf ff«ue. J7f C«UlM St. MMtmrmt MM. />«MM MM71

SGR/ej 31st December, 1969.

Patrick and Company, • ,., 
2 Castlereagh Street, :
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2000. .. '™™"^™"1""""1"""" . • - ' '" .,-• **•',• • • • *

< f

Dear Sir, — --—_...__ ._....„__,

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for $60,178.08, made
up as follows:-
6 3/4* interest on deposit $3,000,000 1/10 - 31/12 $51 ,041 .10

1 1/4% « » • 500,000 1/10 - 31/12 9,136.98 flC . f

$60,176.06

In addition we also enclose our cheque for $373.29, being 
brokerage due against the two deposits placed with us by Mt. 

,. Isa Mines Limited, i.e. $500,000 for the period 1st October 
I ^^31st December and $500,000 for the period 15th - 31st Dec.

Thanking you, we remain,

Yours faithfully, 
FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

S.G. ROS5 
ACCOUNTANT

enc. (2)

Letter from Second Defendant to 
Patrick & Co. 31.12.69
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34} GEORGE SHEET

15th May,

The Secretary, 
Patrick and Co., 
Box 2850, G.P.O., 
SYDNEY N.S.W. 2001.

Dear Sir,

First National Bank of Boston, Boston, 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. S-11011 
in your favour for A$1,5OO»QOO.________

We confirm our telephone conversation of today, 

advising receipt of the following cable dated 13th instant, 

from the First National Bank of Boston, Boston, concerning 

the abovementioned Letter of Credit:-

"OPENING IRREVOCABLE CREDIT S-11011 FOR AUSTRALIAN DLRS 
1500000 EFFECTIVE 5/15 IN FAVOUR OF PATRICK AND CO 
GPO 2850 SYDNEY AUSTRALIA COVERING LOAN FOR FRIST LEASING 
AUSTRALIA PAYABLE ON OR BEFORE 5/15 1973 ADVISE BENEFICIARY"

We shall advise you further in

MAM JAK TRA RAN

13. Letter from Plaintiff to Patrick & Co. 15.5.69
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Commercial Pantung Company of &ptotep lunttefc
Addren Letters to

Box 2720, GJP.O..
SYDNEY.

._ .. The Manager*
Patrick & Company, 
2 Caatlereagh Street*
SYDNBY f N.S.W. 20OO.

StKbiev oyoney. 16 th Fla*. 69.

IB nplyfag. pboM quote! 
OTEB8BA8 EXPORT CBBDITB.

Dear Sir.
We advite that a credit at ttated heremder hat been eitabUthed m your 

favour.
If you are unable to comply exactly with the termt and conditioni of the credit, 

please advise us immediately.
.Kindly produce thit letter of advice for endonement/of drawings when 

-pretexting document* for negotiation.
Youn

PARTICULARS OF CREDIT ;

fay • First National Dank of Boston* Boston.

IRREVOCABLE

No.; S-11011 dated 13th May* 1969.
On Account of ; First Leasing Australia Ltd.* Melbourne.

8Al,500,OOO.oo. (One million, five 
Amogatj ^^ tbouBRnd dollars, Australian

t » currency ) .
< " The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney 

Limited* Sydney.
Enfaccd ; "Drawn under First National Bank of Boston, Boston* 

Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. S-11O11 dated 13th 
May* 1969".

Drafts payable on or 
before 15th
May> 1973<

Drafts must be accompanied by'—
YOUR STATEMENT signed by an Official authorized to sign on your 
Bank Account certifying that: The Draft amount represents the 
unpaid principal amount plus accrued interest (which may be 
drawn in excess of the credit amount* at a rate not exceeding 
7.625 percent per annum and inclusive of stamp duties* if 
applicable) of a fixed loan to August 15* 19?0 made by you to 
First Leasing Australia Ltd that such amount was not paid when 
due and has not since been repaid to or collected by you. The 
promissory note or other evidence of the indebtedness in respect 
of such loan.
This credit is also available on the first day of each succeeding 
quarter beginning on November 15* 197O at an interest rate agreed 
upon between yourselves and First Leasing Australia Ltd. But not 
to exceed 7.625 percent per annum for any period during the life \ 
of the Credit* provided the First National Bank of Boston* Boston 
have been advised by authenticated cable through The Commercial ' 
Banking Company of Sydney Ltd., Sydney* Australia* dispatched at 
least 60 days prior to the first day of each succeeding quarter 
that you have demanded payment of the abovementioned loan or 
portion thereof from First Leasing Australia Ltd. and that such 
amount was not paid when due.
THIS ADVICE IS BASED ON CABLE INSTRUCTIONS RECEIVED AND IS SUBJ, 
TO AMENDMENT IF NECESSARY ON RECEIPT OF MAIL CONFIRMATION.

' *f^

Copy of letter from Plaintiff advice to 
Patrick & Co. 16.5.69
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THE JCOMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY. LI
257 CoIIins Street.

'"-i:;; MI.AD or-'rrci:. SYDNEY. MELBOURNE, J-6tu May, 1969
Victoria.

CREDIT

•w, , . , . state Electricity ^ocsniasion of Victoria, 15 »illiamWe hereby, authorise _-__Jreot, Tielboiirne* $000,
Patrick and ^-o.-apany, 2 Castlerea^h .Street, oydney.

A U. 500 » 000.

to draw on

at "™"""" "* sight for any sum or sums not exceeding in all

million, five hundred thousand dollars - -

, One I
Australian jcurrency) |

xzxzxzxzzzxzxzxzxzx Unpaid principal amount of loan madepurporting to cover invoice coat or to 1'atrick auu company. I

for account of

origin, to be

Patrick and Company.

from to

The draft(s) drawn under this credit must be accompanied by the following documents relating 
thereto:—

xzxzxzxzxzxzxxs
CoomrnerciaT Invoice(s).

| Statement of Jtate Electricity Commission of Victoria 
I certifying tliat tho draft amount represents the/unpaid principal 

amount of a fixed loan to 15/rf/7O. mado by thjzr y&^Tiission to 
Ta trick and ^onpany and payment of tho loan/UiJ^ tHA^n demanded 
and not received.

stj^ti!»l»6f ar.y)i-kable on tho first day of each exicccoding
qv.aruer befrinaiii^ ou ;vovo;;:ber If>va 1^?0 provided tiie oowt.:«ircial banking 
C';>i: :;..i;iiiy of Sydney Ltu., ,-jydnoy iiavo been notixifcd i;:v,-^alately tUut 
£ trite i-lectrictty Con^fesion of Victoria have ttoniundod payment of tho loan or portion thereof i'rom i'eitrick anti oocipuny una tUat &uch auiouiit 
»"ur> not paid when duo a'.icli titivico wist reacii tho '"cr.ir.orcial i-ianking 
Co"tpany of cyCsioy Limited) £>-yd«iey n-ot later tbau 70 days prior tutiio 
fir.-t day of trie quarior succcedi?;,", tiiu o»it; ii's wli.lci! Ueciand was Kiade« ..*,'iOtiatlon/Q under this credit arc restrJ.cteu to t.: ie Coijcierciai wankiny 

of oycinoy Liv.iited, Me 1 bo urns.
15th May, 73.

j3t be presented for nafljgjglion not later than i^xaioasi forwarded 
*o '3ur office^raiich together with relative documents for acceptance/payment.

Drafts must be .enfaced v.-ith the number, date and place of issue of this credit and the negotiating 
Bank must record the amount of each draft on the back hereof.

THE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY. LIMITED, hereby engages witH the !
drawers, endorsers and bona fide holders of drafts drawn under and in compliance with the teirns of this I
credit, that such drafts shall meet with due honour upon presentation. I

I. M. YOUNG
Countersigner.

P. A. EVANS
/ Manager.

Subject to Unffarm C-jitcmi and Practice tor Docvmantiry Creclili (1962 Ravlllon), Inrurnatioflili Chamber of Cotr.merc. Brachur. No. 222

Copy of Plaintiff's irrevocable Letter 
of Credit addressed to Fourth 
Defendant 16.5.69
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BOX 2720. G.P.O , 

SYDNEY, N.S.W. 200t

TELEPHONE 2 - 0260

343 GEORGE STREET

I6th May, 1 969.

(" IThe Secretary, 
Patrick A Company, 
2 Caatlereagh Street, 
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 20OO.

Dear Sir, '

In terms of your requisition dated today, we have 

established the undermentioned Letter of Credit by telegraph 

through our Melbourne Office:- 

Credit No. Amount. In fay our of« _ Expires.

LD.936. $A1,500,000.00. State Electricity 15th May, 1973.
Commission of Victoria.

We have debited your account $--.75< (seventy-five 

cents) for cost of the telegraphic advice and $2,500.oo.(Two 

thousand, five hundred dollars,) being our commission charge.

l> ' . Yours faithfully,

MiUD

MAM

ADVISERS

PRL

JAK

RESEARC

8HA

TRA

..'' ._.

FAR

RAN

AOC'TS.

Letter from Plaintiff to Patrick & Co. 16.5.69
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APPLICATION FOR COMMERCIAL LETTER OF CREDIT

To: The First National Bank of Boston, 

67 Milk Street, 

BOSTON. MASS. 02110. U.S.A.

26th May, 1969.

We confirm your opening irrevocable letter of credit numbered 

S-11011, the copy of which is attached for Aus. $1,500,000 in 

favour of:

Patrick & Company,

G.P.O. 2850,

SYDNEY. AUSTRALIA

In consideration of your opening such credit, we hereby agree 

that it shall be subject to indemnity agreement dated 1st June, 

1967, the provisions of which are agreed to as defining your 

rights and our obligations.

FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Third Defendant 26.5.69
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343 GEORGE STREET

26th May, 1969.

The Secretary* 
Patrick & Company* 
2 Castlereagh Street, 
SYDNEY. N.S.V. 20OO.

Dear Sir,

First National Bank of Boston, Boston, 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. S-11011 
in your favour for &A1»500»000.oo, 
Account? First Leasing Australia Ltd.

We have today debited your account $A11.9O. for the cost 
of our agents telex sent to us on 15th May, I9t>9 giving full 
details of the abovementioned Letter of Credit .as requested.

Your,

Letter from Plaintiff to Patrick & Co. 26.5.69
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SGR/ej 30th June, 1969.

Patrick & Company, 

2 Castlereagh jtreet, 

SYDNEY. N.J.w. 2000.

Bear -ir,

We enclose our cheque for the sum of ii1,003.42, being interest 

payments as detailed below:-

Ireposit i-.ate i eriod Amount

Sl.^00,000- 6.7b5t. 16th f.ay - 30th June inc. il2.760.27

600,000 7 1/4%. 9th April - 30th June inc. 8,243.15

$21,003.42

Thanking you,

we remain,

Yours faithfully, 

FIRST LtASlWG AUiTKALlA LlhlTEil

F.I. kEINEHK

enc.

M

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Patrick & Co. 30.6.69
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M ft t bO'AUNO
h *• r-«->Mi._-.i: MCMbCRfi Or THE SrOMf.Y STOCK rxo.»N3E UM'fCO

2 CASTLERCAGH STRKE". L'VCNEY SC JO 

BTCC 'Jr̂ " A -' e ' «•'-•'" c »r.. HOV r -.;EC.svnx.:v roo , v.-ir.;: 40747 eit.HouL S*KB.«-O».

w.j rrv.rpnr. ....... ., .-..,, woi.LOt«»ONO.; ;>;

—t- 

PD &R'J'»SC'.!>

4th July, 1969. 
The Secretary,
H.rst Leasing Australia Liaited, 
8th floor, 379 Collins Street, 
1ELBOORNE. 3000

Dear Sir,
Deposits by Patrick & Coispauy.

Our auditors, COCOM Brothers & C.'., 20 - 22 O'Com.cil Street, Sydney. 
have asked uhat yot- confirm to then; th<; foiiov;in^ ct".«iil£ rogarciiag 
the deposits lo^sea v.ith you by this tine .it. the cUise of business on 
30th June, 1969 :

1. Amounts of deposit!-.

2. Derails of any security helo by Patrick o. Co:iiftr.y.
3. Interest-due to ??.trick (, Corapany but unpaid at 20Lh June, 1959.

We would be plcaset! if you could arrange t" forv?ii- d us £ cnpy of the 
letter Lh?t-you scni to Coopor Brothers 6 Co.

Yours faithfully, 
WRICK & COMPACT

(P. Davie).

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Second Defendant 4.7.69
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TEA

15th Aujust,

The Decretory,
Statj -J.Gctri.city Coanlssion of

Victoria, 
15 ,,lliiaa Str et,
i.'.&Bourc:-:. 3000 At t tint ion; I.lr. IT. Vi'» Slioars.

Bear Sir,

Please find enclose cheque for $23,180.65 beiry quarterly interest due 

on your deposit with this firm.

Yours f.ii-chi'ully, 
PAr.JC^ & COM.-'.U.'Y

T. a... Alien.

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 15.8.69
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SGR/ej
28th August, 1969.

Cooper Brother & Co. 

20-22 O'Connell Street, 

SYDNEY. N.S.W.

Dear Sir,

With regard to Patrick & Company, we confirm that they 

lodged $500,000 with us on 9th April 1969 and $1,500,000 on 

16th May 1969. Security held by Patricks is irrevocable 

letter of credit numbered 510971 for an amount of $536,250 

and number 511011 for an amount of $1,500,000.

Unpaid interest to Patrick & Company as at 30th June 1969 

was nil amount. Our cheque drawn on 30th June for the sum 

of $21,003.42 paid total interest due 30th June inc.

Yours faithfully, 

FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

S.G. ROSS 

Accountant

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Cooper Bros. & Co. 28.8.69
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26th November, J969.

The Secretary,
State Electricity Commission of 

Victoria,
' 5 I.'illiam Street, 
MELBOURNE. 3000

Attention Mr. N.W. Shears

Dear Sir,

Please find enclosed cheque for $23,437.50 being quarterly interest due

on your deposit with this firm.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T.R. Alien

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 26.11.69
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15*

ftteto

VUlim StaMt,

Had ODoloood oteqw fair $23,437*50 
Intexvst du» OB your <Ltpo«lt with thi* flat aa at

9. Z.

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 25.2.70
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Hard) 12. 1973

The Secretary,
State Electricity Cormlsslon of Victoria,
15 William Street.
MELBOURNE. VIC. 3000.

Attention Mr. K. Cruise 

Dear Sir,

We refer to a recent conversation between Messrs. Cruise, Oavle and 
Grogan at which discussion took place about a loan of $1,500,000.00 
due for repayment by Patrick-Internarine Acceptances Limited (on 
behalf of Patrick Partners) on 15th f',ay, 1973.

He would be grateful 1f you would Inform us whether we should 
commence negotiations for renewal of this loan or whether the 
Comrfsslon wishes funds to be repaid on due date.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK-INTERMARINF ACCEPTANCES LIMITED

Peter T)a vie 
C1 rector

0.Grogan - Melbourne Office

Copy of letter from First Defendant to
Fourth Defendant 12.3.73
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PATRICK-INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN NEW SOUTH WALES)

128 Exhibition Street, Melbourne, Victoria, Australia, 3000

SYDNEY BRISBANE PERTH

CORRESPONDlhCE: 
Qf.O. Box 211TT 
Holbournt. Vie. 3001

15th May, 1973.

Attention; Mr. R. Ashbolt

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia

Limited,
379 Collins Street, 
MELBOURNE, VICTORIA. 3000

Dear Sir,

We confirm having received a bank cheque for 
$1,513,787.67, made payable to Patrick Partners, 
being repayment of the following:

Principal: 
Interest:

$1,500,000.00 
$ 13,787.67

Yours faithfully,
for PATRICK-INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LTD.

David G. Nicoll V,

Copy of letter from First Defendant to 
Second Defendant 15.5.73
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.
_ C: «..„ iV.»lu j. <-«.-.—

; THE SYONEY STCC* EXCHANGE LIMITED
• K. ;;. i. CK/.M.IKM
• K. K. coo.;:*
• M. A. f.M.KATMA A. K: i.i «T. n AI i?j

M. W. '.!;•(".; 
It A.

2 CASTICHEAGH £T.-Ei7. sroicnr. 1:00
QJjQ. LOX 2i«. SYO.-.EY. Mil. TtUX iSTS7 TELITHOM -/-OiVJ i.-.. ! i:| '•' 

SCIUI- ft ACCOU:.'" ••'• -'-" 
.TEUCRAMS b CAIiLLS "UOULM-'LC"

H. t. fii.'-lA, eunr
». DAVIt
Ik M. CCTTLIiKON

MEUOUKNE. MISTAKE. CANMMA. WOUOtWOWO. PERTH. MUSULS.

The Secrstary,
First Leasing Australia Limited, 
379 Coliins Street, 
BELBOUaMC. VIC. 3000

29th

Attention: nr .

Dear Sir,

Reference is made to the {500,000.00 deposited by PI.I.PI. 
Holdings Limited with your company at e££ p.a. fixed to 6.12.71. 
This deposit was originally made by Patrick Partners on behalf of M.l.H. Holdings Limited. -"~""*""""

As advised by telephone ue wish to confirm that all future money 
market transactions uill be conducted by Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances 
Limited. Ue shall be obliged if you could pay the procuration fees due c- 
the above and all future deposits to Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances Li-.j.-.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK PART&RS

( Peter Oavia )

14. Copy of letter from Patrick Partners to 
Second Defendant 29.7.71
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• MC'/CcllS CF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED
0

. U. H.4. UOIVLIKG 

. N. M. COU.1X 
• U. A.IVCRATH 

JLA.KEIH 
• T. H. AIUN 

ft. If. tllHIiC 
*. A.KOSS
J.». coiir.cn r;. j c3>v/.i:os
M. C. CAUl.-E
A.tunr
f. DAVIE

2 CASTLEHrAGH STREET. SYDNEY. I'M 
(if JO. OOX 2*SO. STD(.EY. 2301. TELEX 20747

MflJOUIINf . MISaANE. CAN8EMA. WOUOMGONO. KHTM.

TtUMioNt 2-03to in Li:-.r:.i
SCRIP ft ACCOUNTS ?H-«SI 1 

TELEGRAMS 6 CABLES "nCSaALC"

MUSSELS. Mfr. 

DO

Tha Secratary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
8th Floor,
379 Collin Street,
HELBOUaNE. V!C.. 3000

29th Duly,1971.

Attention: Mr. Reinehr

Dear Sir,

Reference is made to the 9500,000.00 deposited by M.I.P1. 
Holdings Limited with your company at 8££ p.a. fixed to 11.12.71. 
This deposit uas originally made by Patrick Partners on behalf of fl.I.n. 
Holdings Limited

As advised by telephone we wish to confirm that all future money 
market transactions will be conducted by Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances 
Limited. Ue shall be obliged if you could pay tho procuration fees due on 
tho above and all future deposits to Patrick-Intarmarine Acceptances Lir.ited.

V/
Yours faithfully, 
P/CTRICK

( Peter Oavie )
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PATRICK-.'NTZRMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED
2 Cftllereath Street, i

TEU-THONFS: OOnnKSl'ONUr.NCE: 
221-389S C.P.O. Ik* 3S79. 
221-2636 «Jf«»Ber. N.S.W. 2001 
221-2400

29th 3uly,1971.

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
6th Floor,
379 Collins Straet,
RELBOURrJE. VIC. 3000

Attention: Hr. Reinehr, 

Dear Sir,

We refer to the letter dated 29th 3uly 1971 from Patrick Partners and 
confirm that you are holding a deposit of 5500,000.00 on behalf of n.I.H. 
Holdings Limited at 8^ p.a. fixed to 6.12.71.

The procuration fee due on the above deposit should be paid to Patrick- 
Internarine Acceptances Limited.

A Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK-INTERMARtKC ACCEPTANCES LIHITEO

Copy of letter from First Defendant to I
Second Defendant | 29.7.71
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PATRICK-1NTERMAR1NE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED
2 Cfttlereetk Street.

TELKPHONFS: CQBRrSPONDKNCli: 
221-3395 C.P.O. V^x 3C79. 
221-2606 Sidney. N-S.W. 2001 
221-2400

29th Duly,1971.

Tha Secretary,
First Laasing Australia Limited,
8th Floor,
379 Collins Streat,
MELBOURNE. Vie. 3000

Attention: Hr. Reinehr 

Dear Sir,

Ue refer to the letter dated 29th Duly 1971 from Patrick Partners and 
confirm that you are holding a deposit of SSOO.OCO.OO on behalf of n.I.n. 
Holdir..-;.- Limited at &$% p.a. fixed to 11.12.71.

The procuration fee due on the above deposit shoufd be paid to Patrick- 
Internarine Acceptances Limited.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK-INTE3P.ARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED

o
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If)

KCWwn ?9th July. 1971

P.-'trick Partners, 
2 C;:iitlcrc:-::h Ot,

Dc~r Sire,

We ht'\/e plc-c.nuru in enclosing our cheque for "623.26, being 
brol.-crcr;:: p^yobis en the fallo-.vinr; deposits pieced with cur 
ccrcpany:-

.Knrier AsiQijr.t H&riod ___ _ 

riines Ltd. .5-fJ.U'ij l/4/71-:WS/7i .211..^

1623.:-3

Wo c-poloQio3 for tha dclcy in forworcling this payment.

Ycurs sincaroly,.

R. C. v/ETTCfJHALL 
fCCPUMT/'.f-.'T

Copy of letter from Second Defendant
to First Defendant 29.7.71
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M # EXTRACT OF TELEGRAM RECEIVED FROM

C3UOS AA?n35Q
. ,, _ „ FIRST NATTONAT, BANK 'F BOSTON 

HAbSUAT BSN
nOSTiiN (Mass USA) 

COMMERCIAL BANKING CO OF SYDNEY LTD
b'YJNEY AUSTRALIA

Dated l^/R/^9 - Reed l'j/P
•'- - '; ^7 ,. 

0 « G E i-J T o , L - ' r /
1" I-F.CT VIA TNTLX

TEbT SI 5"l ::>

OPENING OUR IRREVOCABLE LETTF.K OF CREDIT S-110RS FOR AUST HLRS
i,5on,nnn FAVOR PATRICK AND COMPANY n p o ?«5n SYDNEY ACCOLIMT
FIK5T LEASING AUSTRALIA LTD TERMS SAME AS L/C'S-11011 ADVISE 
^ENEFICARY

JMAR INTL L/C ( 0/ , , as .) 

FIRST NATL BANK BSN MASS 

CFM 51509 S-11095 1

CBCOS A 

MAS6NAT BbN 

.. .. .-.*

15. Cable from Third Defendant to 
Plaintiff 13.8.69
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MASSNAT- BSN /7f-

CBCOS

14TH AUGUST 1969 EXTRACT OF TEI.FGRAM DESPATCHED TO

TO - THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON BOSTON
FROM - THE COMMERCIAL BANKING CO. OF SYDNEY LTD, HEAD OFFICE, SYDNEY

REFER YOUR TELEGRAM 13/8/69 CREDIT S-110*5 PATRICK AND CO INFORM 
US FIXED LOAN TO 15TH NOVEMBER 197n CREDIT AVAILABLE EACH 
SUCCEEDING QUARTER BEGINNING ON 1<5TH FEBRUARY 1971 AND VALIDITY 
ON OR BEFORE 15TH AUGUST 1^>73 PLEASE CONFIRM DATES 
BY RETURN TELEX URGENT 81347

(Overseas)

Cable from Plaintiff to Third 
Defendant 14.8.69
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......
C«COS ^35" OF TELeGRAM RECE.VED FROM .NAT dSN FIRST NATIONAL R\KK OK BO.TON '

COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY MUECT VTA IKTLXSYDNEY AUSTRIA

Dated l^/«/(<9 -Hecc! 1 5/^/^P81347 RE YOUR CA3LE 8-14-<S9 OUR CREDIT 3-110^5 WE CONFIRM FIXED LOAM TO NOVEMBER 15 1^70 EACH SUCCEEDING QUARTER FROM FEBRUARY 15 1971 VALIDITY TO AUGUST 15 197? ADVISE BENEFICIARY
LCWBAfJD L/C D£PT
Flf?ST NATL BANK B3N MASS

AA2T350

Cable from Third Defendant to Plaintiff
14.8.69
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Box 27^0, C.P.O., 
SYDNEY.

The Secrot:>ryj 
1'a trie': and Company) 
,'; Cfi s tlcrea,';b ;>troot» 
SVI'>'i^V. 2000.

/'/-" " °
f ' !

i;ue/?
' ' .(\>T

Sydney, 1'ith An;;u.',(;»

In replying, plcano quote : 
OVKKSUAS EXI'OKT CKEDITS.

Dear Sir,

IFc advise that a credit as stated hereunder has been established in your 
favour.

If yon are unable to comply exactly with the terms and conditions of the credit, 
plcii"f. udvifsf! us immediately. 1

Kiiulli/ produce this letter of advice for endorsement of : drawings when 
prcxr.il/ing daeiuncvts for negotiation. /

plin.HCT TO IInn'ORIf f
CoruMr NT Any ( h-fi'n . 
to HAL f MAMnni *->f CpM

I'AKTICULAKS OF CK1CUIT :

'*'C Ann P.JACTICt I'o
tIrvic:uMi. lim.itNA 

t fl.iocnurte No. 22

Yours faith futty\

/onager.

Kst:\blislit'd !>y : I' 

'j i(UiiVO(' AJn,JC

Nntionnl of ;to.«ton, Dostou.

No.: S-l.in;3i> dated 13th Au,;ust, 19^9.
On Account of : Jii^st Li.-nsiii(; Australia Ltd. , relbourno.

1'Alf 500f 000. oo. (ono million^ five 
J hundred tliousaiid dollarsi Australian

currency).
Tho Commercial ilaiikin,; Company of Sydn 

Limitoclj Sydney.
Enfiicfd : "Prai^ii under l''ir.-jt National ;;nuk oj' Uooton, ,'iontor.j 

' Irrovocnbli; Letter ol' Credit No. S-110-5 dated

JJi-rii'to jiay.-il>l(! on or 
«'x '-'-'-'%-' bo/'oi'ij 15 tli AUuUij?!

J "7 3 Drafts at —______—— sight on

.-iciii'riL'iVi.^i'a'ii'iiJx'u YxffiYiy 'ireiJfuttub^L'^.scty W^'iifpl'?citfc;'- i U7floP5xCithtTwisc c s'pceiVn.'d) :- 

DrajE'tr; iim.it i>o accouijianied by :-

YC'il'f STA'J'iCf'iKNT oi/jnod l>y nil Oi'i'icinl an t lie ri;>(>d to r;i.;!i oil yoi.ir 
I'nn!-- Account cor I; if'y i n,™ tint: The drnl t aiiiount r • pro .soul r, "t lie 
nnj),-iid priii'; i.)>n 1 amount plus nc'-ruoil inLoro.st (wiiicli may be 
dr.'iwn in ox'.-oss of Ilio credit ninonnl;) at n ratio nor. oxccodiu,.; 
7,('il' r' percent per annum nnd inclusivo of stamp ''ni;ios» if 
api il L<'.-> l>lc) of a j ixo'l loan to Mov<;mbr>r 1T » I.' 1 '* 1 m.""lo ''V yon to 
J'irst I^on^in;; Australia Ltd that sucli ninoniit v: - not paid uiio;i 
duo and Inr; not. oinco boon repaid to or colleci.pil ijy you. Tlie 
protu i r;r, o ry note or other evidence of the indebtedness i;i re.'spec "f 
ol svicii loan.
Tliis c ro<J i. t is also available on (he irst day oi each ouoceedin 
quarter lie,; Jjinin,', on 1'obruary 15» 19"'' 'at an interest rate n/;ri." 
upon bo tv,",-i 'ii y ou r:;'• 1^'(>s aa<i J'iiv. t l.e'' '. ;i;'; Australia Ltd. Ijur, m 
to rxc'-c'l ?.('.'-'3 percent per annum for any period dnrin,-; tlio lii: 

•<>l (,iie Ci'fdil) provided t!ie i irst \l-iri.o.ml !>IM]' oj 1 . onv.oii» lici.sti 
have IJOIMI a.dvi.sod by nu 1: Uoa t ic > ted rablo tbren ;h i ho Compere in 1 
i'aiil: in.; ('ei.i; 'any ol .'"ydiiey "td.f Sydneyi An :; tra I ia , d enjva tchnci a' 
1.,..i ; -, I. l',() day.a prior '"o I lie I i r.-vt da\ id .-ai-ii ;iiie i »ed i n,; filiarter1 
l.liat vou Live rl i." .i-'Mdod ;>a yi:i!.'ii !; (d tile a I Hi'' (•!. r- II I. i n I n>d Ifiali Or 
eortion i lie r.MI!" f r.-i.i ! i. r.s t Lear-in,; \u.-, 1.1 .\ L ta I .(:•). and that suoli 
amount \-/.i;. not paid when due.

Copy of letter from Plaintiff to Patrick 
&Co. 14.8.69
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f-
15th August, 1969. 

341

OVERSEAS 
VOCtMA

The Secretary, 
Patrick A Conpany, 
2 Castlereagh Street, 

N.S.V. 2000.

Dear Sir,

In terms of your requisition dated today, ire have 

established the undermentioned Letter of Credit by telegraph 

through our Melbourne Offleet- 

Qredit No. Amount. la favour of. Expire*.

LO.973. |A1,500,000.00. State Electricity 15th August, 1973.
CosHBission of Victoria.

Ve have debited your account $-.75* (seventy-five cents) 

for cost of the telegraphic advice and $2,500,00. (two thouaand, 

five hundred dollars,) being our cooralselon charge,

Tours faithfully,

W. G. Carman 
pro Manager*

Copy of letter from Plaintiff to Patrick
&Co. 15.8.69
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(Eammmial fttnktttg (ftompang of Cimttri
Address letters to 

Box 2720, G.P.O., 
SYDNEY.

In replying, please quote: 
OVERSEAS EXPORT CREDITS

Sydney, ....................................................19.
__l4th August* 69.

The Secretary* 
Patrick and Company* 
2 Caatlereagh Street* 
STONEY. 2OOO.
Dear Sir,

We advise that a credit as stated hereunder has been establisK&lt in your favour.
If you are unable to comply exactly with the terms and condtfiorf^of f\fhe credit, 

please advise us immediately.
Kindly produce this letter of advice for endorsement ofAfdwings^vplfen presenting 

documents for negotiation.

SUBJECT TO UNIFORM CUSTOMS AMD PMCTICE FO« 
DOCU«NT»«T CHEDITS (1962 RCVWIDN). IBTERNAT.
lONALCHAMInoFCOHMUCI BUOCHUM No. 222.

PARTICULARS OF CREDIT: 
r Established by: First National B»

IRREVOCABLE

\r*N° s-11085 dated IJth

ft)n Account of: first

Draft* payable on 
^ xfattap: before 15th

\ Drafts at:

Enf

1?73

Ltd.• Melbourne.
$A1.500*OOO.oo. (one •illion* five 
tundred thousand dollar** Australian 

^currency).
The CooBiereial Banking Coarpany of Sydney 
A Linited, Sydney.

r Firit National Bank of Boaton, Boston*
Letter of Credit No. S-11OU5 dated 13th 

9-.

liaEle sets in aupTicale, unress otnerwise specifiear: -

X Draft* nust be aoco»panied by»-

YOUR STATEMENT signed by an Official authorised to sign on your 
Bank Account certifying that: The draft amount represents the 
unpaid principal amount plus accrued interest (which smy he 
drawn in excess of the credit aaountw^t a rate not exceeding

A of a7.625 percent per annum and incluaivA 
applicable) of a fixed lo*n to £MtyY^De 
First Leaving Australia Ltd 
due and has not since bee
preailcsory note or othep

~ ^of such loan.
This credit 1* also''

p duties* if 
197O »«de by you te
wa* not paid when 

collected by you. The 
indebtedness in respect

the first day of each succeeding

X

quarter beginn^aJQon fMHMry 15* 197^ at an interest rate agreed 
upon between yoVraelveV\nd First Leasing Australia Ltd. But net 
to exceed 7.625 neMant per annual for any period during the life 
of the eredit^tirarTded the First National Bank of Boston* Boston 
have been advflfev by authenticated cable through The Coaaieroial 
Banking Company of Sydney *-td.* Sydney* Australia* despatched at 
least 6O days prior to the first day of each succeeding quarter 
that you*have denanded paynent of the aboveawntioned loan or 
portion thereof fro* First Leasing Australia Ltd. and that such 
anount was not paid when due.

THIS ADVICE IS BASED ON CABLE TJJST UCTIONS RECEIVED AND IS SUBJECT 
TO AMENDMENT IF NECESSARY ON RECEIPT OF MAIL CONFIRMATION.

Copy of Plaintiff's letter to Patrick & 
Co. 14.8.69
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APPLICATION' Ve? CCMf^RCIAL LETTER OF CREDIT

"'at :. m»al !3ank oT ooston

««? C''? ' '.T''71 ,;"••••;• ' .•- '•>•• " —, ••>. ' .c r-'" V'Or .". • ) •" lot'.'T C ' Cn" I t ;1 i'x.'TTOj

,-J.L ".." , :. , ....•, -5i •-.'!' • i^1 '- is «',.--t•">••--.rn" •• r ••>•«(. ''1, r •••, .' 1": 

r^v-ji-r '--' -TV" c'- •-:;•! . '-i •! •- - -,-..• , • \ 7 , : •. •-••?•.-, Sydney.

o C o-- «f •-1 r>r- . • •-" ;• v , • - ?.._ 5'jc' 1 crc-oiv, i»'C: i':fc re'>'••>< a r "res 

' . .. :.l 5 : ".;--J. •'.- -s:i. lie 1 , t-< lr,.-.•?.••! : i t•.' 'V'rcv '" vr: "!atod June 1, 

-.'<'•>7, the orfv.; ifiir»r;f; o<" w'-. 5 r v - ," re a^rcetj to as cei"i.nin'i your 

L-':Ls a^u.; our obli«r :" tions .

ACST7ALTA

Copy of letter from Second Defendant |
to Third Defendant ! 18.8.69
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Cablt Address: MASSNAT / Telex Number: 094511

The FIRST NATIONAL BANK of BOSTON
International Division j 67 Milk Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02110

August 14,1969

Commercial Banking Company of Sydney, Ltd.
Sydney
Australia

ro>'£> •* i
15 V

\

^^/

Gentlemen:

Letter of Credit No. S-1 1085
Australi a n 

tor/9 1,500,OOP.00

We are enclosing the original and one copy of the

above-mentioned letter of credit in favor of Patrick and Company 
G.P.O. 2850, Sydney, Australia

and request that you forward the original to the beneficiary 

retaining the copy in your files.

Very truly yours

Authorized Official

P.S. This refers to our cable of August 13, 969

AIRMAIL
O-I202

Overseas offices of The First National Bank of Boston are located in Argentina, Brazil, England, France 
In Nea York City — Bank of Boston International, 2 Wall Street

ds

Letter from Third Defendant to !
Plaintiff ! 14.8.69
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
Head Office; f.i'tjtil *V- Cent-nil tloum, V7.'/ ('ullinx St.. MHlHturnt' :t(HHI. /'/IO/K- ti? 3N7I
falogfaphit Aijrtrnss nriinnh' Mulhournn uiiwr^iHttj Offic ^4 Ado'/iuHt Bnshnnfi, Sydney.

5GR/ej 30th September, 1969.

Patrick &. Company,

2 Castlereagh Street,

SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2DOD.

Dear Sir,

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheques for 147,695.21 and 

$267.12,made up as follows:-

6 3/4$ interest on deposit $1,500,000 15/8 - 30/9 $13,037.67 f/O^

6 3/4% " " " '1,500,000 1/7 - 30/9 25,520.55 //C - SU

7 1/4% " " " 500,000 1/7 - 30/9 9,136.99 //O .

$47,695.21

brokerage on Mt. Isa Mines $500,000 deposit 15/7 - 30/9, 

$267.12.

Yours faithfully, 

FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

S. G. ROSS 

ACCOUNTANT

enc. (2) -7//0/b« - Ri\$9

Letter from Second Defendant to 
Patrick & Co. 30.9.69
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TRA

26th November, 1969. 
The Secretary, 
State Electricity Coonlaalon of

Victoria, 
15 William Street, 
MELBOURNE. 3000

Attention Mr. N.W. Sheara U^I^-^Aj A/0 <

Dear Sir,

Please find enclosed cheque for $23,437.50 being quarterly Intereat due

on your deposit with thia firm.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & COMPANY

T.R. Alien

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co. to 
Fourth Defendant 26.11.69
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SGR/ej

31st Decemb er, 1969.

Patrick and Company, 

2 Castlereagh Street 

SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2000

Dear Sir,

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for $60,178.08, made 

up as follows:-

6 3/4% interest on deposit $3,000,000 1/10 - 31/12 $51,041.10

7 1/4% " " " 500,000 1/10 - 31/12 9,136.98

$60,178.08

In addition we also enclose our cheque for $373.29, being brokerage 

due against the two deposits placed with us by Mr. 

Isa Mines Limited, i.e. $500,000 for the period 1st October - 

31st December and $500,000 for the period 15th - 31st Dec.

Thanking you, we remain,

Yours faithfully, 

FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

S.G. ROSS 

ACCOUNTANT

Copy of letter from Second Defendant
to Patrick & Co. I 31.12.69
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DIT/CS.

25th February, 1970.

The Secretary,
State ELeotr '•. c.'. V, Coomlaaion

• of Victoria, 
15 William Street,trj.j.TtomQUi;. 3000.

Attention! :£:.. Ji'. '.,. Sheum. M ;^~ /y J /

Dear Sir,

Please find enclosed clioque for »>23,437*50 being 
quarterly intsrent due on your dapoait nitJ-. this firm us at 
15th February*

We recret any incorvenienco caused by the dcley in 
forwarding this cheque.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK & CffiS'AMY.

0. I. Thorpe,

Copy of letter from Patrick & Co to 
Fourth Defendant 25.2.70
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SGR/wn 31st March, 197D

Patrick &. Co. , 
2 Castlereagh 5 , 
SYDNEY. N.S.W.

Dear Sirs,

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for the sum of 
£58,869.86, being interest earned as follows -

$3,000,000 6-J-f. interest for the period 1st J-nuary -31st Kerch 

$500,000 TT$ interest for the period lat January -31st March.

Thanking you, we remain,

Yours faithfully,

S. G. R05S 
ACCOUNTANT

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Patrick & Co. 31.3.70
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SGR:wn 30th June, 1970

Patrick & Company, 
2 Casifereagh St., 
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2000

Dear Sir,

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for the sum of 
$66,092.46, being interest earned as follows:-

13,000,000 6i% 1/4 - 30/6 inclusive $50,486.30 
$500,000 B-K 24/4- 30/6 " 7,684.93 
5500,000 7i£ 1/4 - 5/4 " 496.57 
5500,000 B£ 6/4 - 30/6 " 9.424.66

$68,092.46

Also enclosed is our cheque for $856.16, being •«-£ brokerage 
due against the following deposits —

Mount Isa Mines.
£1,000,000 1/4/-30/6/70 S623.28

Patrick &. Company
S50C.OCO 24/4-30/6/70 £232.88

(856.16

Thanking you.

Yours faithfully.

5. G.R05S 
ACCOUNTANT

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Patrick & Co. 30.6.70
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Patrick Partners
• MEMBERS OF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

ZV9
319 (25 LI^ESI* N 5' coSS L̂ ' NG J £*,?Ti!REAGH STREET. SYDNEY. 2000 TELEPHONE 2-0319 (25 Ll^o, 

I M. A. SEoSlTH QP ° BOX 2850' SIDNEY. 2001. TELEX 20757 TELEGRAMS & CABLES "ROSDALE"
J. A. KEIR 

.T. R. ALLEN 
R. W SURGE 
J. S. CORNER 
W. J. EDWARDS 
M. E. BAUME
A BURT MELBOURNE. BRISBANE. CANBERRA. WOLLONQONG 
P. DAVIE 
R. N. GOTTLIEBSEN

30th Jwe. 1977. 
Tli* Secretary,
State Electricity Cewlsslee ef ¥1cter1a. 
IS UlllfM Street. 
KELBOURKE . flC. 3000

Dear Sir.
Re: Oepeslts »1th ratHcfc Partners

Fer audit fNireesas. e»r Avtflters. Messrs. Ceeper 8r«tfe«rt I C».. 
Chirt*r«4 Ac«*mtt»ts of « 0 '€•••• 11 StrMt, Sy^Mjr wowK 
y»« t« cMffra tflrtctly t» tk«« tht f*ll«w1«f 4« tails as at
30th

1. D«M«1t »•!••«•: J1, 500. 000. 00 tl ,

t. Tcra «f d«e»tU: Mm* to U.S. 73 F1n»4 to IS. 8. 73
Int«r«ft S1141M I*t»r*
seal*. seal*.

3. I»tar«lt Ml4 t«: 1I.S.72 U.S. 7?

4. S«c«r1t1«s h«l<: Letter «f Crttflt Letter «f

v« w*nl4 »• frat«f«1 for year e*«f1r»at1«« •« the attacked 
duplicate ef tfalt letter as early as possible. A self-aMre«se4 
•evelepe 1s enclese*1 fer yewr ce»ve«1eace.

Copy of letter from Patrick Partners to 
Second Defendant 30.6.72
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13th July. 1970

Patrick &. Company, 
2 Crstlereagh St.,
SYDNEY. N.5.W.

Dear Sir,

Our Auditors, Arthur Andersen &. Co. of 330 Collins Street, 
Melbourne, are now engaged in the regular audit of our records, 
and in this connection would like you to confirm the details of 
moneys placed on deposit with our company, which are shown in 
our records at 30th June, 1970, as :-

Interest paid to 

30th June, 1970

$1,500,000* 7.625%

Principal Rate of Int. . Term
1500,000 81/4% Fixed to 19/1/71 
S50C.OOO 8% " 2/4/71 " 

51,500,000* 7.625% " 15/8/73 with
3-raonthly break "
provisions after
1 S/8/70 or call 3f;
prior to 15/8/70.
Fixed to 16/5/73 with "
3-raonthly break
provisions after
15/11/70 or call 3?
between 15/2/70 and
15/11/70.

* Of total S>3,000,COD deposit, withdrawal is restricted to the 
sum of 11,500,000 in any one quarter.

If these details Bre in agreement with your records, please sign 
this letter and return it to our Auditors in the attached reply- 
paid envelope.

Yours faithfully, 
FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LTD.

F. I. REINEHR 
MANAGING DIRECTOR.

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Patrick & Co. 12.7.70
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Patrick Pa^ <.*iers
MEMBERS OF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

• M

. M
J. 

. T. 
R. 
R. 
J 
W 
M 
R

R.
R 
A. 
A. 
A 
R. 
W. 
A. 
S 
J.e. w

L. DOWLING

McGRATH 
KEIR 
ALIEN 
BURGE 
MOSS 
CORNER 
EDWARDS 
BAUME
CLEARY

2 CASTLEREAGH STREET, SYDNEY. 2000 TELEPH 
G.P.O. BOX 2850, SYDNEY, 2001. TELEX 20757 TELEGRAMS

MELBOURNE, BRISBANE, CANBERRA. WOLLONGONG. PERTH BRUSSELS.

DNE 2-0319 (25 LINES) 
1 CABLES "ROSDALE"

REF. 

GUR.

14th August, 1970.

The Secretary,
First Leasing Aust, Ltd,
8th Floor,
379 ColUns Street,
W.LBOimNF:. I'1C. 3000.

Dear Sir,

DEPOSITS LODGED BY PATRICK AND COMPANY.

Our Auditors, Cooper Brothers and Company, 20-22 O'Connell 
Street, Sydney, have asked that you confirm to them the following 
details regarding the deposits lodged with you by this firm at 
the close of business on 30th June, 1970:-

1. Amounts of deposits.

2. Details of any security held by Patrick and Company 

We enclose an addressed envelope for your reply.

Yours faithfully,

__ _^ __ 000-
G. V. ROGERS.
ACCOUNTANT.——————— -uoti-

Letter from Patrick Partners to Second I
Defendant I 14.8.70
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OFFICE COPY
Of Accts. Rr

Kt of Tit

Date

No.93850
24; 1270

DATE

Au 8 «.l 2 « ,li
1 L/C o 

ii PA 
Rata

for 
il.ll

0
I

our c 
year

'l
DKSCI1IP1IO\

".ilsiisrv oa Aal >3J-71 )!
AMOINT DUE

'fc.MS.a:,

First Leading 
Wo Ju:>jrao
Australia

Ltd.

Internal office Minute Patrick
Partners I 24.8.70
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SGRtwn Bth September, 1970

Cooper Brothers & Company, 
20-22 O 1 Council Street, 
SYDNEY. N.S.W.

Dear Sirs,

DEPOSITS LODGED BY PATRICK AND COMPANY

This letter is to confirm details of deposits lodged with 
our company by Patrick and Company ae under -

1. Amounts of deposits - $4,000,000.00

2. Details of any security held by Patrick &. Company - 
First National Bank of Boston Irrevocable Letters of 
Credit Nos. 510971, 511011, 511085, 511344.

Yours faithfully.

5. G. ROSS 
ACCOUNTANT

Copy of letter from Second Defendant :
to Cooper Bros. & Co. ; 8.9.70
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SGR:wn 30th September, 1970

Patrick & Company, 
2 Castlereagh St., 
SYDNEY. N.S.W.

Dear Sirs,

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for the sum of 
$76,314.38, being interest earned as follows:-

$500,000 8^% 1/7 - 30/9/70 inclusive $10,397.26
$500,000 8% 1/7 - 30/9 " $10,082.19

$1,500,000 0.10% 15/8/69-30/6/70 " $1,315.07
6.85% 1/7 - 30/9 " $25,898.63

$1,500,000 0.15% 16/5/69 - 30/6/70 " $2,533.56
6.90% 1.7 - 30/9/70 " $26,087.67

$76,314.38

Thanking you,

we remain,

Yours faithfully,

SG. ROSS 
ACCOUNTANT

Copy of letter from Second Defendant ;
to Patrick & Co. ; 30.9.70
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LJ:bw 29th D*cmb«r 1970.

Patrick Partners
2 Castlereagh Street,
SYDNEY N.S.W. 2000

Dear Sirs,

..e have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for the sum of »7^,723.

i 500.00O &..% 1/10 - 31/12/70 inclusive 10,397.25
i 500,000 8 # 1/10 - 31/12/70 " 10,082.19
si.50o.ooo 6.9o/;i/io - 31/12/70 - 26,087.67

.05# 15/8/69 - 30/9/70 " 8^6.56
•11,500,000 6.95*1/10 - 31/12/70 " 26,276.71

.05 16/5/69 - 30/9/70 " 1,033-56

Yours faithfully,

L. J^FFiRo. 
ACCOUNTANT.

Encl.

Copy of letter from Second Defendant
to Patrick Partners 29.12.70
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COPY

December 31,1970

Commercial Banking Company
of Sydney
Overseas Department
343 George Street
Sydney, NSW, Australia

Ref.: Our Letters Of Credit Nos.S-10971, 
S-110II, S-11085, S-11091, S-11344 
In favor of Patrick & Co. for account of 
First Leasing Australia, Ltd.

Dear Sirs:

At the request of the beneficiary we hereby con­ 
firm to you that drafts signed "PatrickPartners 
formerly Patrick & Company are acceptable for drawing 
under the above mentioned credits.

Very truly yours 

Authorized Official

CC: Patrick Partners
First Leasing Australia, Ltd.

LMC/ds

Copy of letter from Third Defendant
to Plaintiff ' 31.12.70
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INTER OFFICE MEMORANDUM

MEMO TOIEO JEFFER5 MEMO FROM: FIR

SUBJECT: ____________________ DATE: 18/1/71

Reference FLA Provision created for Patrick &. Company Loan.

In the FLA accounts as 30/6/70, we showed a provision for 
. 9 interest at !>26,2B6. Would you advise the full interest 

\t. 1/2./0 rate applicable to the two Patrick & Company loans if they 
spll <QJ go to their full period. Also, give the date and amount on 
A which the loans are due. '""

In view of the fact that the current U.S. rate is 6i#, it 
might behove us to replace these Patrick &. Company loans 
with U.S. loans. In all probability, Boston would charge 
a 1.5% premium over and above the rate. This would make 
the loan cost 7.S8%. If however, we could obtain a rate 
lower than the equivalent Patrick rate and such rate equivalent 
to the rate, say, at 30/6/7D, we could write ( back the interest 
provision as additional income into FLA this year.

Would you look at the situation at the 31/12/70 to enable an 
assessment. Any thoughts you have on the matter would be 
appreciated. If this proposal is feasable (I em not sure 
that it is) it would be nice to receive as income the 426,286 
for it would be tax free.

Second Defendant Internal Minutes j 18.1.71



205

REF:LJ/RE 31at March, 1971.

Patrick Partners,
2 Castlereagh Street,
SYDHEI. It-S.H. 2000

Dear Sirs,

He hay* pleasure in enclosing our cheque for the SUM of $63,717.11, 
being interest earned as follows:-

$500,000 8.00* 1.1.71 - 31.3-71 inclusive 9,863.01
$1,500,000 6.95* 1.1.71 - 31.3-71 " 25,705-'*8 

.055* 15.8.69-31.12.70 "13^ -GfcS~ jfcV- 1,035.61
$1,500,000 7«00« 1.1.71 - 31.3-71 " 25,890.41 

.05« 16.5-S9 - 31.12-70 " 5^5 1,222.60
$63,717.11

Tours faithfully.

L. JKFFER3 
ACCOUNTANT

Copy of letter from Second Defendant ;
to Patrick Partners • 31.3.71
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30th June, 1971

Wf/7/

Patrick r; ;-rtnern, 
2 C st lerontjh '•. t, 
SYD!\iLY. .j.^. . 7- * •'•

We hove pleasure in enclosing our cheque for S!60,?58.69, 3</ 
being interest derived rs follows :- .^_|

Amount. '• 'tc. ,7^ i e£iocL.gj^ / Intereot. ''° 

J3T^ ,: •-•:'• b.j I^^TH^^/eTTT" incl. ^JM^-riS ^\1- 3^- ' '

11.5, :.-c.;. rH^-

K/T/71 — T
17,5/7.94
.3,065.76 

1/671-3-/6/71 8,753.4?

Thankinn you,

Yours faithfully,

a.
ACCOUNTANT

Copy of letter from Second Defendant !
to Patrick Partners ! 30.6.71
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RW/3n

i
September

Messrs Patrick Partners, 
2 Castlereagh St, 
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2DDO-

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for 466(001.16 , 
being interest derined as follows -

Amount. R te.

$300,000 8.5? 
$1,500,000 -7-reef' 

.lOtf

$1,500,000

Period.

•1/7/71--

-tncl,1/7/71——30/0/71

3&&-^^
15/B/it - il/Jiffi. - 

«3 '/• i ")i *i I »• /•)( 
lg/0/7t - 30/9/W-- "

Interest

'

. *i

ThsnUing you.

Yours faithfully.

R. C . WETTENHALL 
ACCDUMTMMT

Copy of letter from Second Defendant i
to Patrick Partners 31.12.71
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RCWtMEH 31st . 1971.

Messrs. Patrick Partners,
2 Castlereagh St.,
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2000.

Dear Sirs,

We have pleasure la enclosing our cheque for $68,005.35 being Interest 
derived as follows :

Amount

$1,500,000 

$1,500,000

Rate 

8.51

Thanking you, 

You is faithfully,

R.C. Wettenhall 
Accountant.

Period
L _ a»/i/-)i_
t—-vtfrzrn.

Interest 
~*ffiT?3

ov27•3*

.10% 15/8/69
\

14/5/69 -

Copy of letter from Second Defendant | 
to Patrick Partners 31.3.72
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30th June 1972

Messrs. Patrick Partners, 
2 Cestlereagh 5t, 
SYDNEY NSW 2 DOC

Dear Sirs,

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for ''61,637.63 
being interest derived as follows:

£1,50-:

7.3 r '

.ic r;
7.4'T 
7.4C- 

.05 [, 
7.45','

Period

1/4/7^-15/5/72

15/6/69-15/5/7?
15/5/72-3 :-V6/72
i/4/7?-15/5/72

16/5/69-15/5/7?
15/5/72-3D/6/72

Interest

13.2CC.C:.

4,1?6.0? 

14,293.15 

13,380.80

2,?4y.94 
14,389.7?

"61,637.63

Thank ing you,

Yours sincerely.

R. C. Wettenhell 
Accountant

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Patrick Partners 30.6.72
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Patrick Partners
• MEMBERS OF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

• M. R. L. OOWLING 
. N. H. COURSE 
. M. A. McGRATM 

J. A. KEIR
• T. R. ALLEN 

R. W. SURGE 
J. S. CORNER 
W. J. EDWARDS 
M E. BAUME 
A. BURT 
P. DAVIE 
R N. GOTTLIEBSEN

2 CASTLEREAGH STREET, SYDNEY. 2000 
G.P.O BOX 2850. SYDNEY, 2001. TELEX 20757

MELBOURNE. BRISBANE. CANBERRA, WOLLONGONG

TELEPHONE 2-0319 (25 LINES! 
TELEGRAMS & CABLES "ROSDALE"

30th Jeee. 1972.

The Secretary,
First Leaslee Avstralla Ltd..
8tk Fleer.
379 Cell1»s Street.
HELBOOIHtE. VIC. 3000

Oear Sir,
Re; Deposits fro» H trick

Auditors, Messrs. Cooper Irethers I Co., 
Chartered Accoeataets of € 0'Ceimell Street. Sydeey weald like 
yoe to ceeflrs) directly to the* the fellovle* details as at 
30th Jaae. 1972.

Deposit 1 Deposit 2 

1. BepesU balaace: $1.500.000.00 $1.500.000.00

2. Ter» of deposit: Fixed to 15.5.73 Fixed to IS.8.73
Interest on Interest ea
sUdlef scale. s!1d1e« scale.

3. Interest paid to: 31.3.72 31.3.72

4. Securities held: Latter of Credit Letter of Credit

He wovld be fretofel for your coeflraatloe oe tbe attached 
depllcat* *f this letter as early as possible. A self-addressed 
envelope 1s enclosed for your coeve»1e»ce.

To«rs fa1tbf«11y. 
PATRICK

Copy of letter from Patrick Partners to 
Fourth Defendant 30.6.72
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Patrick Partners
• MEMBERS OF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

• M. R. L. DOWLING 
. N R. COURSE 
. M. A. McGRATH

J. A. KEIR 
.T. R. ALLEN

R. W. SURGE
R. A. NOSS
J. S. CORNER
W. J. EDWARDS
M. E. BAUME
A. BURT
f. DAVIE
R. N. GOTTLIEBSEN

2 CASTLEREAGH STREET. SYDNEY, 2000 
G.P.O BOX 2850. SYDNEY, 2001. TELEX 20757

TELEPHONE 2-0319 (25 LINES)
SCRIP tt ACCOUNTS 28-4511

TELEGRAMS & CABLES "ROSDALE"

MELBOURNE, BRISBANE. CANBERRA. WOLLONOONG, PERTH. BRUSSELS.

c.c. Messrs. Cooper Bros. & Co.

The Secretary,
State Electricity Commission of

Victoria,
15 William Street, 
MELBOURNE. VIC. 3000

31st December, 1971.

Dear Sir,

Re; Deposits with Patrick Partners

For audit purposes, our Auditors, Messrs. Cooper Brothers & Co. 
Chartered Accountants of 6 O'Connell Street, Sydney would like you to 
confirm directly to them the following details:-

1. Deposit balance at 31st December, 1971:

2. Term of deposit:

3. Interest has been paid up to:

4. Securities held:

Deposit 1 Deposit 2

$1,500,000.00 $1,500,000.00

Fxd.to 15.5.73 Fxd. to 15.8.73 
Int. Sliding Int. Sliding Scale
Scale 

15.11.71 15.11.71

Letter of 
Credit

Letter of Credit

We would be grateful for your confirmation on the attached 
duplicate of this letter as early as possible. A self-addressed 
envelope is enclosed for your convenience.

Yours faithfully, 
PATRICK PARTNERS.

Copy of letter from Patrick Partners to 
Fourth Defendant 31.12.71
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riunui r*
• MEMBERS OF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

• " "• in°2£:UNO 2 CASTLEREAGH STREET. SYDNEY. 2000 TELEPHONE 2-0319 I2b LINES! 
: % "; STRATH ° f ° B°X 285Q ' SVONEY ' 2001 TaEX 20757 TELEGRAMS & CAULES "nOSDALE" 

J. A. KEIR
• T. R. ALLEN 

R. W. BURGE 
J. S. CORNER 
W J. EDWARDS 
M. E. BAUME
A. EURT MELBOURNE. BRISBANE. CANBERRA. WOUONOONQ 
P. DAVIE 
R. N. GOTTLIEBSEN

30th June. 1972. 
The Secretary,
State Electricity ComUslon of Victoria, 
15 William Street. 
MELBOURNE, VIC. 3000

Dear .Sir,

Re: Deposits with Patrick Partners

For audit purposes, our Auditors, Messrs. Cooper Brothers I Co., 
Chartered Accountants of 6 0'Council Street, Sydney would like 
yots to conflrta directly to thoa the following details as at 
30th June, 1972.

Deposit 1 Deposit 2

1. Deposit balance: $1.500.000.00 $1,500,000.00

2. Tern of deposit: Fixed to 15.5.73 Fixed to 15.8.73
Interest sliding Interest sliding

scale.

3. Interest paid to: 15.S.72 15.S.72

4. Securities held: Letter of Credit Letter of Credit

We would be grateful for your confirmation on the attached 
duplicate of this letter as early as possible. A self-addressed 
envelope 1s enclosed for your convenience.

Yours faithfully. 
PATRICK PARTNERS

c.c. Cooper Bros. & Co.

Copy of letter from Patrick Partners to
Fourth Defendant i 30.6.72
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Patrick Partners
• MEMBERS OF THE SYDNEY STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

. M. R. L DOWL1NG 2 CASTLEREAGH STREET, SYDNEY. 2000 TELEPHONE 2-0319 (25 LINESI 
I M A. M°GR"ATM G P ° 80X 2850 ' SYDNEY ^ 2°° 1 TELEX 2°757 TELEGRAMS & CABLES "ROSDALE"

J. A. KEIR 
• T R ALLEN 

R. W. SURGE 
J. S. CORNER 
W. J. EDWARDS

A BURT MELBOURNE, BRISBANE. CANBERRA. WOLLONGONG

P DAVIE
R N GOTTLIEBSEN

I0th Jo«*. 1972.

The Secretary,
First L*a>1n9 A«t trail* Ltd..
Sth ri««r.
379 C«11lM StrMt,
KtLBOUtitg. VtC. 3000

D«§r Sir,

«•; 0«Mt1t$ fr*» Ft trick

for a«41t |Mirp«*«s. ««r A«41t*r«, w«tsrt. C«*^«r irothtrt ft C«., 
Ckart*r«4 AccM«t«»ts of € 0'C««Ml1 Str*tt. Sr^My w*«14 11k* 
>M to co»f1ni 41r*ct1y to tko* tko follovloo 4*tatU as at 
SOtli J«M. 1972.

DoootU 1 Doo«1t ? 

1. Doootlt b« !••€•: $1.500,000.00 S1.SOO.OOO.OO

t. Tom of tfoooslt: F1»O4l to IS. 9. 73 Hiotf to 1S.fl.73
Intorost on Interact oa>

teal*. s11tf1»« teal*.

3. Utorott paid to: 31.3.72 31.3.72

4. Soc«r1t1o* bold: Lottor of CrotfU Lottor of Crotflt

tf« would bo gratofvl for yo«r eooflrvatloo o» tfco attacked 
d«»11cate,of th1t latter at early at possible. A self -addressed 
envelope 1s enclosed for year coavenleace.

Yeors fa1t»f«1ly v 
rAT«lCIC

Copy of letter from Patrick Partners to
Second Defendant | 30.6.72
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RCW: RG.
September 29, 1972.

The Secretary, 
Patrick Partners, 
2 Castlereagh Street, 
SYDNEY. N.S.W. 2000.

Dear Sir,

The company is pleased to enclose interest cheque due for the 
quarter, calculated as follows :-

Principal 
;fe( 1 -5"Q^ 1oCC C/ 
$1,550,000.00

Rate

7.30

$1,500,000.00 .10 

$1,500,000.00 7.40

$1,500,000.00 7.45

$1,500,000.00 .05

$1,500,000.00 7.50

Yours sincerely,

Robert C. Wettenhall 
Accountant.

Period

1/7/72 - 14/8/72 

15/8/69 - 14/8/72 

15/8/69 - 30/9/72

1/7/72 - 14/8/72 

16/5/69 - 14/8/72 

15/8/72 - 30/9/72

Interest 

$13,684.93 

$ 4,504.01 

$14,389.72

$32,578.66

$13,777.39 

$ 2,436.99 

$14,486.31 

$30,700.69

$63,279.35

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Patrick Partners 29.9.72
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2P.
6-L

RCW:b» 29t . Ueceaber, 1972.

Patrick Partners,
2 Castle-reach Stre*t,
bYi)N::Y, 2000. N.S.W.

Dear Sir,

We have pleasure in enclosing our cheque for 
561,783.50 representing interest for the quarter 
ending 31st December, calculated as follows:

i'rincipal Rate Pi.riod Amount.

;1,500,000.00 7.40 1.10.72-14.11.72 513,777.39
0.05 15.8.69-14.11.72 S 2,441.11
7.45 15.11.72-31.12.72 J14.486.20 ^ 704<7g

vl,300,OOO.OO 7.50 1.10.72-14.11.72 »13,869.8G
0.05 16.5.69-14.11.7^ i 2,626.02
7.55 15.11.72-«1.12.72 »14.582.83

$61,783.50

Yours faithfully,

C. .vETTENHALL.
Accountant.

encl.

Copy of letter from Second Defendant '
to Patrick Partners 29.12.72
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RCW:meh March 31, 1973

Patrick Partners,
2 Castlereagh Street,
SYDNEY. N.S.V. 2OOO.

Sir,

V* bar* pleasure enclosing our interest cheque for the quarter 
ended March 31, 1973, calculated as follows :-

Principal

(1) 1,500,000

(2) 1,500,000

Rate

7.5%

.05*
7.55*

7.55*
.075*
7.625*

FTOB

1*1/73

15/8/69
15/2/73

1/1/73
16/5/69
15/2/73

To

15/2/73
15/2/73
31/3/73

15/2/73
15/2/73
31/3/73

Days

45

128O

45

45
1370
45

Interest

$13,869.86

$ 2,630.02

$13,962.32

$30,462.20

$13,962.28

$ 4,222.60

$14,101.34

Yours sincerely.

Robert C. Vettenhall 
Accountant

$32,286.22 

$62,748.42

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Patrick Partners 31.3.73
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

AT 1971

L';;rc:;;j Trv.Miipnrt I ty. L.tc!. . 
CfrMi;! i Inv^r.J.ip-M'ilc 
F . fv. L . ». -'..'.-. 15 c-n i, i. arp. 

ahfrt TJ.I7T.-,;.', rty. Ltd.

I», 126. PI-'

Koy«;r Fibro Ccv-p:uiy

Pf.'rr,-,e;v.vn i/rifslit Ltd.

* Let n«; tc.' U.5 .Cul;; idifsr 
Of fie c t ',1;.! r.-.;n U L- r;. 
Letter, to U.S. iV .'.t.intri! 

Heed Office tju

uith

Andcx f'inintj Ltd, 
Apericrn Hcn.ie /-snuranco

:i2.fii.':X% i'J3

.B.C.F.C.
Brckun Hill Pty. Co. Ltd.
Huxton L 2. fi

^r-1 Court Corporc.ticn

Clydchnln
ColtMvi'i! Jt-rcr Kf.f j.nin,;] Co* Ltd. 
tlrinrn FiREuco il InvKKlRcnt 
Exfinnsi-ittn Finance (Aynt*) 
Fox f» Lillio 1'ty. Ltd. 
F.H.C.13.
Hoover ,'uptrj-lie f-ty.Ltd. '

R.I.L.F. fty. Ltd.
R.I.L. ('.•) Pt.v. Ltd.
St. L-..uj:c-nc;f? Tru;.-t » ty. Ltd.

2Sn,o:; Q.oa • 
23i!,fjnC.?:n
'yj'iWt'.Qj

6UD,C!..G.fJ-.:
290 f ru.n.GO
6CO,Oi;D.CQ

l,/icn,n:,r:.j.>
W-, 053.2-3

Sun.coo.r-a
5GC,DCO,'.:- 
04,394.Pa

150 r O!.;G.CO 
<\^io r» : " r* f*n«J -_ VI 9 u v 11 . U t'

?t5'-C,fJi C»CC ;. l
3 f 5r!n,fi.?a.&o' 

I(?3 t M5.e7
24,nc:..!.n

saloLui'jo

Lcn;;o fiinc'n
iariCw Arco-jnt ."ioli.'iicor,

Copy of Accounts of Second 
Defendant Undated
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

31st DECEMBER, 1971

BORROWINGS:
Abegg Holdings.
Australian Convservation Foundation
Hanover & American Home Assurance.
American Home Assurance
BHP Co.
Barclays Nominees.
BOFO
BHP Co.
Capel court Securities.
Carr Fastener 

ii ti
Clydeholme 
C.M.I.
Darling & Co. 
Expansion Finance 
FNBB

Hoover Australia. 
Robert Hutchinson Ltd 
Myer Ltd. 
M.I.M.

II

National Nominees 
ii n

Patrick & Co.

Permewan Wright Ltd.
RILF
RIL(Q)
SGIO
St. Laurence Trust
Swinburns College 

n n
Winegardner Operations. 
Westralian International 9

$500 
100 
350 
200 
500 
200 
114 
600 
300 
400 

1,000
18 

300 
500
85 

500 
140
95 

500 
200 
500 
300 
500 

0
58

300
1,500
1,500

226
24
18 

1,000
50 

100
70

1,000 
600

,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,495
,000
,000
,000
,000
,634
,000
,000
,754
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,600
,600
,000
,000
,000
,449
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000

$14,559,532

USE OF FUNDS

Lendings.
Loans Funds.
Finance ccount Balances.

1,069,560
12,639,670

2

Copy of Accounts of Second j 
Defendant j

$14,559,532

31.12.71
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

31ST JANUARY 1972

LENDINGS

Bartlett Investments Ltd. 
Expansion Finance (Aust.) Ltd. 
FACE Waltons Ltd.

INVESTMENTS:

$100,000 
12,000 
50,000

$162,000

Keyes Fibre Co. 

LAND S BUILDING

247,998

Permawan Wright Pty. Ltd. $1,509,662 
$1,919,660

1. Loans to U.S. Subsidiaries with H.O. Guarantee

2. Loans to U.S. Subsidiaries s Australian 
without H.O. Guarantee

247,998

1,671,662 
$1,919,660

BORROWINGS :

Abegg Holdings Ltd. 
Australian Conservation Foundation 
American International Underwriters 
American Home S Hanover Assurance Coy.

B.H.P. Coy Ltd.
Barclays Nominees Pty. Ltd.
B.O.F.O.
Capal Court Securities
Carr Fasteners
Clydeholm Pty. Ltd.
Darling s Co.
Expansion Finance (Aust) Pty. Ltd.
F.N.B.B.
Hoover Australia Ltd
Myer Ltd.
Mount Isa Mines Ltd.
National Nominees Ltd.
Patrick S Co.
Permewan Wright Pty. Ltd.
RILF Pty. Ltd./RIL(Q) Pty. Ltd.
SGIO Queensland
St. Laurence Trust Pty. Ltd.
Swinburns College of Technology
Winegardner Pty. Limited
Westralien International Ltd.

500,000
100,000
200,000
350,000
200,000

1,000,000
200,000
112,835
300,000

1,700,000
20,134
500,000
65,755
735,000
500,000
500,000

1,000,000
67,200

3,300,000
226,449
42,000

1,000,000
50,000

170,000
1,000,000
600,000

14,555,373

Lendings
Lease Funds
Finance Account Benefits

1,919,660
12,635,710

3

14,555,373

Copy of Accounts of Second 
Defendant 31.1.72
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FIRST LCASILG AUSTRALIA .LIMITED 
?9_th F'-t-ri.!..Tv-. li>: 7?

LENDINGS;

Bartlett Investments Ltd.
Expansion Finance (Aust.) Ltd,
FNCB Wiltons Ltd.
GMAC
Wiltons Ltd.
Clydeholm

'INVESTMENTS:

Keyes Fibre Co. 

LAND R. _EUI_LDI_fjG5.;i

Permewan Wright Pty. Ltd.

100,000
12.000
50,000

300,000
100,000
_3D,rjnij

&592,000

247,990

/£2,349,660

1. Loans to U.S. Subsidiaries with H.O.
Guarantee. 247,998

2. Loans to U.S. Subsidiaries &. Australian
Companies without H.O. Guarantee. Z-lCi] ,

£2,3/19.650

BORROWINGS;

Abegg Holdings Ltd.
Australian Conservation Foundation 
American International Underwriters 
American Homo &. Hancver Assurance Coy.

f f! II (1

B B.H.P. Coy. Ltd.
Barclays Nominees Pty. Ltd.
B.Q.F.C.
Capel Court Securities.
Carr Fasteners
Clydchclm Pty. Ltd.
Darling &. Co.
Expansion Finnncc (Aust) Pty. Ltd.
Falkincr Collins &. Co.
F.N.B.B.
Hoover Australia Ltd.
Myer Ltd.
Mount Isa Kinrs Ltd.
National (Ccminncs Ltd.
Patrick S. Co.
Pernu'w«n V/ri£ht Pty. Ltd.
RILF Pty.Ltd/i.IL(U) Pty.Ltd.
GGILi Quucncli-nd
Swinbmnne CollegB of Technology
Thia;;s Holriincjs Ltd.
V.'ineg£:rdncr Pty. Ltd,
Wustralian International Ltd.

Lendimja. 
Lease Funds

500,000
100, noo
20CJ.DGO 
350,000 
200,000
sob.ono 
200,oon
112,035
3GCi,GGG 

L,700,ODD
19.P34 
500,000
85,755 

500,003 
735.CGO

500,ODD 
'"' 67!200

22C./149 
42,0!JO

170, OCC 
350, ODU

2,349,6^0

Copy of Accounts of Second 
Defendant 29.2.72
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED 

31st MARCH. 1977 .

LEHDINE5

Bartlctt Investments Fty. Ltd.
Clyd.rholm Hty. Ltd.
Elders Finance Co. Ltd.
Exp.-insion Finance Aust. Pty. Ltd.
FNCB V.'altons Ltd.
G.H.A.C.
Robert Hutchinson Ltd.
Waltons Ltd.

INVESTMENTS

Keyes Fibr3 Co. 

LAND &. BUILDINGS

Permewan Wright Pty. Ltd.

100,000
30,000
25,ODD
12,000
75,000
300,COO
615,638
loo.ono

1,257,633

247,998

1.509.66? 

*3,015,258

1. Loans to U.S.Subsidiaries with H.O.Guarantee i247,99B

2. Loans to U.S. i. Australian subsidiaries 
without H.U.Guarantee. 2.767.310 

i3,015,298

BORRO'.VINGS

Abegg Holdincs Ltd.
American Ir, trrnntional Underwritors
American Hone &. Hanover Assur. Coy.

n it it it

BHP Coy. Ltd.
Barclavs Nominees Ltd.
B.O.F.C.
Capel Court Securities Ltd.
Carr Fastener Pty. Ltd.
Clydeholm hty. Ltd.
Darling £. Co.
Expansion Finance (Aust) Pty. Ltd.
FNBB
MAC Ltd.
Myer Ltd.
H.I.H. Ltci.
National iicminecs Ltd.
Patrick i. Cc.
Permew.-n v.richt Pty. Ltd.
RILF Ptv. Ltd. RIL(Q) Pty.Ltd.
SGIO Q'id.
Swinburne- College of Technology
Theiss Moldings Ltd.
Winegardrer rj *j- Ltd.
Uestralinn International Ltd.

Landings. 
Lease Funds

500,OCO 
2CC. ,OCO 
350,600 
20L,,OCO 
50C.CCO 
200,000 
112,835 
300.000 

1,700,000
19,034 
500,000 
65,755 
735,000 
SOL.OOO 
500,000

1,000,000 
67,200

3,300,000
226,449
52,000

1,000,000 
170,000 
350,000

1,000,000 
JL.DCO.ODO

114,560,273

2,907.339 
j_l.660.934

il4.568.273

Copy of Accounts of Second 
Defendant 31.3.72
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED 

3Jat MAY, 1972

LENDINGS

Bartlett Investments
Clydeholm Pty. Ltd.
Expansion Finance (Aust) Pty.Ltd.
Dalgety Australia Ltd.
Esso Standard Oil (Aust.) Ltd.
I.A.C.
National Discount
J. B. Were &. S,on

INVESTMENTS

Keyes Fibre Co. 

LAND &. BUILDINGS

Permewari Wright Pty. Ltd.

$300,000
30,000
12,000

300,000
250,000
300,000
500,000
450,ODD

$2,142,000

247,998

1,509,66? 
$3,899,660

1. Loans to U.S. Subsidiaries with H.O. 
Guarantee.

2. Loans to U . S. Subsid iaries £. Australian 
Subsidiaries without H.P. Guarantee.

$247,998

3_, 651, 662 

$3,899,660

BORROWINGS

American International Underwriters
Abegg Holdings
B.O.F.C.
Barclays Nominees
Carr Fastener
Capel Court Securities
Clydeholm Pty. Ltd.
Expansion Finance (Aust.) Pty. Ltd.
F.N.B.B.
Hoover Australia Ltd.
Robert Hutchinson Ltd.
M.I.M. Holdings Ltd.
Myer Ltd.
National Nominees
Patrick Partners
Provident Building Society
Permewan Wright Ltd.
R.E.S.I.
RILF/RIL(Q)
S.G.I .O.Q'ld.
Thiess Holdings Ltd.
Tradax (Aust.) Ltd.
Wallace Bros.
Westralian International Ltd.
Winegardner Pty.Ltd.

Landings . 
Lease Funds

Copy of Accounts of Second 
Defendant

120,000
500,000
112,004
200,000

1,700,000
600,000
17,630
69,355

2,159,501
500,000
200,000

1,000,000
500,000
67,200

3,oog,ooo
200,000
226,449
100,000
52,000

1,000,000 
350,000

1,000,000 
500,000

1,000,000
1,000,POO

$16,174,139

3,899,660
12.274.479

5.16,174,139

31.5.72
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Kinsx LEASING LIMITED. JANUARY, 1973.

LENDINGS.

AYERS ROCK TOURIST DEVELOPMENT
DART LETT i N vie ST ME XT s
DARLING & CO. 
GOSFORD MEATS 
KORFRA INVESTMENT 
WALTONS LTL,

INVESTMENTS

KEYES FIBRE CO. 

LAND & BUILDINGS.

PERMEWAN WRIGHT

1. Loan to U.S. subsidaries with H.O. G'tee
2. Loan to U.S. &'amount without " "

125,000
300,000
100,000
207,996
95,000
100,000

927,996

197,107

1,527.655 
$2,652,758

197,107
2.455,651

$2,652,758

BORROWINGS

A.I.F.C. 
CARR FASTENER 

ii n
G. J. COLES 
C.S.R.
CLYDEHOLM 
DARLING & CO. 
EXPANSION 
HOOVER
HILL SAMUEL
HOOVER
ROBERT HUTCHINSON
MYER LTD.
ORD. B.T.
PATRICK & co. 

n n n
PERMEWAN WRIGHT
S.G.L.O.
THIESS HOLDINGS
TRADAX
VINE NOMINEES
WINEGARDENER
WESTRALIAN INTERNATIONAL LTD.

500,000
450,000
500,000
500,000
500,OOO
45,000

300,000
65,081

500,000
300,000
500,000
15O,OOO
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
229,148 

1,000,000
450,000 

1,000,000
200,000
500,000 

1,OOP,OOP

$13,389,229

LENDINGS 
LEASE FUNDS

Copy of Accounts of Second 
Defendant

2,652,758
10.536,471

$13,189,229

.1.73
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FIRST__LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED r J- 

FEBRUARY 1973

LENDING5

Ayers Rock Tourist Development $125,000
Bartlett Investments 300,000
Gosford Meats Pty.Ltd. 482,959
Korfra Investments 95,000

$1,002,959

INVESTMENTS

Keyes Fibre Co. 197,107

LAND &. BUILDINGS

Permwan Wright 1,527,655

12,727,721

1. Loan to U.S.Subsiriiaries with H . 0.Guarantee 197,107

2. Loan to U.-S.&. Australian subsidiaries without
H.O.Guarantee r_2 J 530,614

	$2,727,721

BORROWINGS
A.I.F.C. " 500,000
Carr Fastener 950,000
G.J.Coles 500,000
C.S.R. 500,000
Clydeholrn Pty.Ltd. 42,000
Darling & Company 300,000
Expansion Finance 65,OBI
Hoover Australia 500,000
Hill Samuel 300,000
Myer Ltd. 500,000
BiC.R. 50,000
Ord B.T. 1,000,000
Patrick S. Co. 3,000,000
Permewan Wright. 229,148
S.G.I.Q. 1,000,000
Thiess Holdings 300,000
Tradax. 1,000,000
Vine Nominees 200,000
Winegardner 500,000
W . I . L . Jl , OOP,, POD

	$12,436,229

Lendings $2,727,721 
Lease Funds 9,700,508

$12,436,229

Copy of Accounts of Second 
Defendant .2.73



227

L/C

gKANCII

8th August, 197'3

CORPORATE SERVICES

2 y_eaLs 
1 :ormec t i on )

NAME 

ACTIVITY

^DIRECTORS

PRESENT 
POSITION

I Total Bank Liabilities 
to include O/D Debt 
or limit whichever is 
the greater, T. L. and/ 
nr F.D.L.. Hill Limit. 
Total Ciintingent 
Liabilities including 
lease finance. /

PROPOSED

SECURITY 
(Summary

Oll/Yi

COMMENTS
(to inffii<la^ L 

reference to I 0 
associated buiiliessj

DRAWBACKS
(to include 

reference to hard 
core)

BENEFITS
(new accounts 

to be obtained & 
reference to credit 
funds & overseas 
exchange content JY »< r '''

Vfl>

W J. V O e 1 i

Fir

. . ... ..

fee at present 1/6ths% p.a 
Proposed .25% p.a 
Interest Rate_

Overdraft %
Line Fee
on unused port 

Endorsement Fee

PATRICK-1NTERMAK1NE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED
(50^0 Patrick Corporation Ltd 5O'$ 1'a t rick-Intermarine (Aust) Ltd)
Money market operators.

M.H.L. Dowling (Chm) P. Davie, P. Grey, R. L. Johnson 
E. J. Roberts Secretary J. R. Lees

Total Dcbls $ lerniLoan $
Total Liinils $ repayable $ pA .

reducing by $ p. a.
Bill Endorsement Facility $ 1 million for bills of, .exchange* f v ' ' * .

accepted or endorsed by Patrick— Intermarine Acceptances —
bills outstanding $525,000

Letter of Credit (matched)- issued in favour of the State Electric-
Total Hank Liabilities $ 1 . QQ 1 . 276

t s Br . )fJ^^ 1 1 e reagh &
JolaLLmuLs $ 

reducing by p.a. repayable p.a.

Bill Endo rscmerit Facility & 1 , OOO , OOO - unchanged
That we issue a letter of credit in favour of the State

Electricity C o mm i s si o n p f _Vic_toria for $_1 , 50O > OOP for 2 years
(rollover of existing facility) 

OUO * 'I nl.il Hank I ialulilies %2 , 50 1 , 2ffi 
i ty - see a t t, a c heil 

in our favour

Contingent Liabilities $ w 5OO , ( 
Bill KndorseinJ'ii/ Fac i 1
Matching let 
Nati oria 1 Ban

of credit in our favour issued by the First 
of Boston for $A1,500,000 for two years.

loV'or of <f5<iJ\s t i 11,; letter of credit i 11 favour of the
e \E1 ec |}r i c i. ty Commission of Victoria for $A1,500,000 

to .oxpVre j,'5/M/7.'i and backed by a matching Letter of credit from
National Bank.of Boston,

ri in respect of the maturing letter of credit 
into in August, 1969 for a four-year term and was

Thf/tylra/lf
ejitjored

Cd on behalf of Patrick Partners who borrowed from the 
d orilent to First Leasing Austral ia Limited.

P.-ytl'r i c/Tc-1 ii terinar iria i Accop tances L,td commenced business in 
''' y/ 1971 and wa.4/ \tis tab! islied to conduct the money market 
act/lvitios on be Waif of its shareholder companies including

ick Partner^. The present request was received by 
,'elephoiip ^from Patrick-In terinarine Acceptances Ltd and has been 
confirifie'i byjil elephone with First Leasing Australia.
n .. _ ~ __ J ,1 i I) „ - - i _* ../' A . . _ i. ._ __ •ReserVjO Australia approval 

*#*
is being obtained.

pur charge on existing facility was 1/6th of ^ c/o - $2,5PO p.a.
A''W,e consider the charge should now be a minimum of .257" p.a.
V \ - $3,750.

Closer relationship with the Patrick-Intermarine and 
First National Uank of Boston Groups.

»'r*tiir - n to this

Plaintiff's Internal Minute 8.8.73
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T
GA
020

INTLX SYD 
FLAUST AA31087L 
GA
230940581+ 
2215 08/13 WUI 
BOSTONBK B8N A

FLAUST AA31087

URGENT UTGENT UTGENT URGENT URGENT 

ATTENTION REYNOLDS

PLEASE ISSUE L/C IN FAVOUR OF COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF 
SYDNEY LIMITED FOR TWO MILLION AUST DOLLARS PRINCIPAL PLUS 
INTEREST AT EIGHT POINT ONE TWO FIVE PERCENT FROM AUGUST 20, 
1973 TO AUGUST 21, 1975 STOP THIS L/C IS BACK TO BACK WITH 
L/C ISSUED BY COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY LIMITED 
TO STATE ELECTRICITY COMMISSION OF VICTORIA WHO IS LENDER 
STOP//ALSO PLEASE ROLLOVER L/C 11085 IN FAVOUT OF PATRICK 
INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED (FORMERLY PATRICK AND CO.) 
128 EXHIBITION STREET, MELBOURNE, VICTORIA, 3000, FOR ONE 
POINT FIVE MILLION AUST DOLLARS PRINCIPAL PLUS INTEREST AT 
EIGHT POINT SEVEN PERCENT FROM AUGUST 15, 1973 TO AUGUST 14, 
1975 STOP IMPERATIVE YOU TELEX ISSUANCE ADVICE IMMEDIATELY 
TO REACH OVERSEAS DEPARTMENT, COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF 
SYDNEY LIMITED, SYDNEY OFFICE, TELEX NUMBER 20350 NO LATER 
THAN AUGUST 15, 1973 STOP

REGARDS 
LEWIS/FIRSTLEASING

AUGUST 14,1973

FLAUST AA31067 
BOSTONBK BSN A

Copy of Telex from Second Defendant |
to Third Defendant 14.8.73
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GA
30194
ROsDALF AA3U194
ROSDALE AA21279

PATRICKS SYDNEY 14/8/73 I"KLB OFFICE OUT 1.23 U.S.73.

THE SECRETARY,
FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED,
379 COLL INS STREET,
MELBOURNE. VIC. 3000

ATTENTION MR. ROBERT WHITTON

DEAR Sl

WE CONFIRM THE TERMINATION OF THE LOAN NEGOTIATED ON 
15TH AUGUST, 1969 BETWEEN PATRICK AND COMPANY AND YOURSELVES 
WHICH TAKES EFFECT TODAY.

WE ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF YOUR CHffjUE FOR $1,514,101.03 
BEING THE PRINCIPAL SUM PLUS FINAL INTEREST PAYMENT OF
514,101.03.

YOURS FAITHFULLY, 
PATRICK PARTNERS

COPY TO PIAL - MELB 
ATTENTION MR. 0. GROGAN

Copy of Telex from Patrick Partners 
to Second Defendant 14.8.73
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THE SECRETARY,
STATE ELECTRICITY COMMISSION OF VICTORIA,
15 WILLIA'-1 STREET,
MELBOURNE. VIC. 3000

DEAR SIR,

WE REFER YOU TO THE TLRMS AND CONDITIONS OF A LOAN OF 
•^l, 500,000 FROM YOU TO PATRICK AN! COMPANY ON THE 15TH 
AUGUST, 1969. PATRICK AND CON.P'UJY LODGED WITH YOU AS SECURITY 
AN IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT FROM THE COMMERCIAL BANKING 
COMPANY OF SYDNEY LIMITED IN FAVOUR OF YOURSELVES FOR THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE LOAN.

WE NOW CONFIRM THE TERMINATION OF THE LOAN, AND ACCORDINGLY 
ENCLOSE BANK CHEQUE FOR $1,528,687.50 BEING THE PRINCIPAL SUM 
PLUS FINAL INTEREST PAYMENT OF $28,687.50 WHICH WE WOULD THANK 
YOU TO ACCEPT IN EXCHANGE fOR THE IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT 
YOU ARE HOLDING AS SECURITY.

YOURS FAITHFULLY, 
PATRICK PARTNERS

.DAVID THORPE

SENT 1.
ROPFALE AA30194

Copy of Telex from Patrick Partners 
to Fourth Defendant 14.8.73
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vv*
CBCOS AA2035Q 
BOSTONJ3K BSN D

COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY LTD 
SYDNEY AUSTRALIA

ATTN OVERSEAS DEPT

MESSAGE BACKDATED AND TESTED FOR AUGUST i4, 1973

91724 UN 4,325,451

WE HAVE OPENED OUR IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT S-1264? FOft 
AUSTRALIAN DLRb 2,325-451.39 FAVOR YOURSELVES FAVOR YOU3SELVES 
ACCOUNT FIRST i :.:AblNG AUSTRALIA LTD^, MELBOURNE AVAILABLt EY YOU1 
SIGHT DRAFTS ACCOMPANIED BY YOUR SIGNED STATEMENT THAT YOU HAVE 
BCEN RtQJlRED TO MAKE PAYMENT UNDER YOUR LETTER OF 
CREDIT OPENED FOR ACCOUNT OF FIRST LEASItii AUSTRALIA LTD., IN 
FAVOR OF STATE ELECTRICITY COMMISSION OF VICTORIA. THAT YOU 
HAVE REQUESTED REIMBURSEMENT FROM FlilST LEASING AUSTRALIA 
LTD, AND SAME HAS liOT i3£EN RECEIVED FHOi'1 FIRST LfeASlMG AUSTRALIA 
LTD. CR ANY OTlicR SOURCE. THE AWUHT Or *H|S CREDIT INCLUDES 
PRINCIPAL CF ADLRS 2,000,000, PLUS INTEREST AT 8.125 PERCENT PER 
A.NHUM. THIS CREDIT £XPIf?£S AUGUST 21, 1975. STOP/OUR L/C S -11005
FAVOR PATRICK AMD COMPANY ACCOUNT FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LTDTj 
VALIDITY EXTENDED TO AUGUST l-'v,
BENEFICIARY OF THIS CREDIT IS N'OW PATRICAriMTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES 
LIMITED 128 EXHIBITION STREET, .MELBOURNE VICTORIA 3000> 
ACCRUED INTEREST HAY BE MOW DRAW?! AT A R VTE NOT EXCEEDING 6.7 
PERCENT PER ANNX-M. Pl.£Ao£ ACVISc BCKcFIC I Af<Y TFST 9172^ v'-N -^

BOSTONBANK SO^TOH

CBCOS AA20350
BOSTONCK BSI-J l> 

. -., o u>

Copy of Telex from Third Defendant 
to Plaintiff 14.8.73
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f.fi-n-
to* tut era sronir nti 
TltifHont»tnr

RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA ,* «««r nust coon BCD.OB.1C

15 Auguot 1973

The Manager
The Commercial Banking Company.

of Sydney Limited 
Box 2720 G.P.O. 
SYDNEY, N.S.W. 2001

Dear Sir,

EXCHANGE CONTROL 

We refer to your letter of 14 August 1973.

Authority under the Banking (Foreign Exchange) 
Regulations is given to the extension, until 15 August 1975, 
of arrangements under which guarantees given by The First 
National Bank of Boston, U.U.A., arid your bank secure the 
borrowing of ^Al, 500, 000 from the State Electricity 
Commission of Victoria by Patriclc-Intermarine Acceptance 
Limited for on-lending to First Leasing of Australia 
Limited.

Yours faithfully,

For the Manager
Exchange Control Department

Copy of letter from Reserve Bank to 
Plaintiff 15.8.73
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•ox ITM O.P.O.
SVDMCY, N.S.W.. tMI 

TBLKPMONC I MM

SYDNEY »** econai STRICT
SVDNCV. N.S.W.

OVERSEAS
TCjGPK.

.L6.tto..Au«uatr....l.9.73*......

The Secretary,
Patrick Intermarlne Acceptances Ltd.,
Patrick Mouse,
5 Gresham Street,
SYDNEY. N.S.rf. 2UOO.

Dear Sir,

The First National Bank of Boston, Boston, 
Irrevocable Credit In favour of Patrick Partnera 
for »*1.500.000.__________________________

We confirm our telephone conversation
of today. In which Me aiivlsed having received cabled advice 
from The First National Bank of Boston, Boston, daten 
instant amending the abovementioned Letter of Credit aa 
follows i

"OUR L/C S- 1 10 8S FAVOUR PATRICK AND COMPANY ACCO'JNT 7IRST 
LEASING AUSTRALIA LTD VALIDITY SXTENDSD TO AUGUST \k 1975 
BENEFICIARY OF THIS CHEDIT IS NOW PATRICK INTERM*KTNE 
ACCEPTANCES LIMITED 128 EXHIBITION STREET MEL'ICUl^NE VICTOHIA 
3000 ACCRUED INT^UKST MAY BB NOV.' DRAWN AT A RATE NOT KXCEEDTNG 
R. 7 PERCENT Pi« ANmjM".

All other terms and oonriltlons of the 
credit remain unaltered.

Please attach this advice to the original 
advice of Credit dated 14th August, 1969.

pro Manager.

Letter from Plaintiff to First 
Defendant 16.8.73
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. JMIMTAJIY Lcrrm or CMOIT — FOUM NO. 4.

iHE COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY, LIMITED
257 ColliM Street,

MELBOURNE. l6th.Au/j. 1973.

IRREVOCABLE CREDIT 
No. LJJ

We hereby authorise State Electricity Commission of Victoria, 15 William** 
Str«*t. MKLHOiTiwn vtc.3000

to draw oa Pa trick-In tormari'«o Acceptances Ltd.

at - eight for any eum or eume not exceeding in all $1, 5OO f OOO (One 
million five hundred thousand dollars.

currency)

purporting to cover fcmfcKM* of Unpaid Principle of Loan mad* to 
Patrick-Intermariti* Acceptancn* Ltd, 5 Cir*ahan Street,SYDNEY.

i 

for account of

The draft (•) drawn under thie credit mutt be accompanied by the following document* relating 
thereto:—

Statement of State Illectrlrity ComMinnio.i of Victoria e 
that the draft amount r«»prnae»tii the unpaid principle nmou-'t of the fix 
loan to lft/fl/75 ma»l* by t»»e Coiminiilon to Patrick-Internwrin* j 
Acceptances Ltd. and paym«nt of the loan has huen demanded and rot 
received.

Addirionel inttnictiont (if any):— 

Negotiation* u «ler thi* cr«Htt tire r«»tricted to thi* ha"k.
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To:
THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON
INTERNATIONAL BANKING - LETTER OF CREDIT

POST OFFICE BOX I7S4

BOSTON. MASSACHUSETTS 021 OS U.S.A

r
Patrick and Coopany 
G.P.O. 2350 
Sydaay, Australia

(BENEFICIARY)

RE: YOUR LF.TTEI; OF CREDIT Nog.. 

GENTLEMEN:

r
Coranareial Baakisg Company of 

Syd**y
SydjMTf 
Australia

(ADVISING BANK, IF ANT)

ACCOUNT
Laasiwj Australia Ltd. 

Nalboanw, Australia

WE CONFIRM YOUR ACTION AMENDING THIS CREDIT IN FAVOR OF THE CAPTIONED BENEFICIARY 
IN THE FOLLOWING MANNER:

3«Mfieiary is now?
Patrick lataraariaa Aceeptaaess
128 Kxhibitioa Stract
8*lboura«, Victoria . 3000 Australi«

Validity axtaadwA to August 14,

Accruvd iatareat »ay ba BOW draw* at a rate not «xos«<Us 8.7%par awnut.

ALL OTHER CONDITIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED.

METHOD OF NOTIFICATION
Q BY CABLE THROUGH ABOVE NAMED BANK
X

n BY AIR MAIL THROUGH ABOVE NAMED BANK

G BY AIR MAIL DIRECT TO BENEFICIARY

IN CONSIDERATION OF YOUR COMPLIANCE WITH OUR REQUEST, WE HEREBY ACRFE AND GUARANTEE TO MAKF, Dl F. 
PROVISION FOR ANY DRAFTS UNDER THIS CREDIT WITH THE SAME FORCE AND MANNER AS COVERED BY THE AGREEMENT 
SIGNED AT THE TIME THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WAS ORIGINALLY OPENED.

CUSTOMER'S FILE COPY

Copy of Third Defendant's amend­ 
ment of irrevocable Letter of Credit 15.8.73
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&. S
PATRICK-INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED^-

(IMCOMPOAATEO IN NEW SOUTH WALES) —'
1M EJWbition Street, Melbourne. Victoria. Australia. 3000

COJWESPONOENCE: 
ICLCPHONE Qf.O- Bo* tllTT
atost <yowfy BRISBANE KKTH iMboumt.vie.3oot

16th August 1973

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Limited,
379 Collins Street,
MELBOURNE 3000

Attention; Mr. R.T. Whitham

Dear Sir,

He confirm a loan negotiated with you today as follows:-

Amount: $1,500,000.00

Rate; 8.7% p.a.

Term: Fixed to 14th August, 1975.

As security for this loan, we acknowledge having 
received an Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. S-11085, 
from the First National Bank of Boston, Boston, U.S.A., 
with Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances Limited named 
as beneficiary.

Interest on this loan is payable quarterly on the 15th 
day of November, February, May and August until repayment.

If you are in agreement with the terms and conditions, 
as detailed above, please sign the attached duplicate 
copy of this letter and return to us.

Yours/faithfully,
For ̂ ATRICK,-INTER>'1ARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED

David G. Nicolll_ 
Money Market Manager

Copy of letter from First Defendant to j
Second Defendant 16.8.73
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FILE COPY 52720
IS. 1973

DATS |
6/15/73 L/C S-11035

1/21PA for
i

POOIimON

our corx-nloaion on AUST51, 700,000. 03 at 
2 yoaro (0-13-79 to 1-14-75). Rata 1.42.
ra

AMOUNT l>l'C

UC910 f 650.00

First Leasing Aoatralia Ltd.
Mellx>urn«
Australia

Copy of First Defendant's Internal 
Minute 15.8.73
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PATRICK-INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN NEW SOUTH WALES)

128 Exhibition Street, Melbourne, Victoria, Australia, 3000

TELEPHONE 
636036 SYDNEY BRISBANE PERTH

CORRESPONDENCE: 
Q.P.O. Box 2117T 
Melbourne. Vie. 3001

The Secretary, 
State Electricity 

of Vie'wcriii, 
15 William Street, 
MELBOURNE 3000

16th August 1973

Attention:

Dear Sir,

We confirm recfii,.-;-. Lx.~r.y oi' ^ io?r* fro. i you O.L; 
$1,500,000.00 no .-..1 -;:it w/'.ic..:.. V/M c.*vl-,n '.c.vlug lo:'rr 1 
with vou cis r;c...:'.v / .. > i'vj.v.vuv:*1 ••!'••. :<".; V. •:-.•? 3: of ''rcf.*^ 
fron the Oov'.^.-.vci?.;;. ' .,ui' .iiic ;jo:>rji.;iy of Liydncr/ J',i..;itocl 
in favour o," :.;".•<- .--'.:.'..t^ .-•loctricitv Co; t ilaaion of 
victoria, pgi\0'... c •-. i^an^.Jiciai-y, i;or tlie pri 

rtu of this lo^n.

The term of thir. lo---:ii is s:i::ca to 1-ltU August
and the rate c:.: i'.tc-.resu '^y«.ble ia o.lii'i per c'.ur.uv.i.
Interest on this. loan is payable quarterly on the
15th day of ? 7oV'?;vu>e~ , February, May ana August until
repayment.

If you are in agreement with the terns and conai. cio/.s 
as detailed above, please sign the attached duplicate 
copy of this letter and return to us.

ACCEPTANCES

We are in agreement with 
the terms and conditions 
as detailed above.

• ••••••••• ^

For and On beh-aif o 
State Electricity Commission of Victoria

n.G. NICOLL
Money Market Manager.

Receipt from Fourth Defendant to
First Defendant j 16.8.73
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
llcad Olilce: Leyal & General House, 379 ColHna Street, Melbourne 3000 I'hone 01SS7I 
TeleorrpJiic Address: Relnchr. Molbouine Wwtlote Offleoi — Drlsbin*. Sydnoy

PIR:DD/F 16th August, 1973-

Mr. Frank Castle,
International Factoring & Leasing,
Tho First National Bank of Boston,
1OO Federal Street,
BOSTON,
Massachusetts,
U.S.A.

Dear Frank,

Wo certainly do appear to bo having a moss up in regard to Letter of 
Credit notifications to the Australian banks. Our telephone call of 
yesterday, to you, re the $1.5 million Letter of Credit to Patrick & 
Company did not arrive at the C.B.C. until 9*30 am today. According 
to the C.D.C. they claim the Letter of Credit was not sent from Boston 
until the previous day i.e. 15th August, whereas it should have been 
•ent on the l4th. As you already know it is imperative that the Letters 
of Credit do leave the Bank the day they arc requested, for we assume 
the Letter of Credit will arrive in Australia the day following our 
request to lock into the planned various movement of funds.

Zn the case of the Patrick & Company loan we were seriously embarrassed 
for Patrick & Company demanded from us $1.5 million per a bank cheque 
because the Letter of Credit did not arrive on the due date. This 
necessitated us in borrowing unsecured from the C.B.C. Bank $1.3 million 
to accede to Patrick & Company's request.

Maybe some of the problems could be the perennial troubles wo have nad 
in the past in regard to Letters of Credit i.e. the Letter of Credit 
telex is given by the Australian desk to the Boston telex department 
late in the day and as a consequence the telexes are not sent out on that 
day. I recommend that the telexes be given to the telex department early 
in the morning to ensure they do leave Boston that day.

On another matter in regard to L/C's we have run into trouble on our 
request per our cable dated August 1'ith, wherein we asked for a Letter 
of Credit issued in favour of the Commercial Banking Co. of Sydney Ltd. 
$2,000,000 Australian dollars principal plus interest to commence from 
August 20th, 1973 to August 21st, 1975. Tho Letter of Credit received 
by the Uank docs not show the date of August 20th and as a consequence 
vc arc forced to take down the funds immediately even though they are not 
yet required, for our planning is for the 20tli to lock into various 
lending arrangements and repayment of previous borrowings. In other words 
ve are now paying a warehouse cost from today's date, 16th August, to

Copy of letter from Second Defendant
to Third Defendant , 16.8.73
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80th Aucuat needlessly* If there i* * difficulty in iasuing a Lottor of
Credit to ecnaanco on a future dato, you niuht write to BO on thic. If •
Lottor of Credit cannot be icisued on a *et future dat* the alternatlro io to issue
tho Lottor of Credit to arrive in Australia on the due data, in thi» ca»e
August 20th* It would ayain bo coat essential that tlio Lottor of Credit does
loavo toston to ensuie it ia in Australia on tho required date*

As you know Frank, we have built up an excellent reputation in our dealingo 
with tha brokers and banks in connection with tho Letters of Crodit havino 
pioneered this fora of recurity landing in Australia nror cany yoaro. Wo wish 
to ensure that wo continue to hold our reputation too this toost inportant aid* 
of our business* To da so we uust aa!co sure that our requests are actod on 
wroontly and as per the instructions in our toloxes.

Incidentally Z hare issued instructions that henceforth all tolex requests 
will bo eivnod by either John Lewis or Myself* A separate asue will spall out 
this in store detail*

Kindest regards to you and llanna.

F.I. Peinehr 
Manauina director
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2<»th August, 1973.

The Ms.nsg1ng Director,
First lemming Australia Limited,
Legal & General House,
379 Collins Street,

VIC. 300O

Dear Sir,

Ve refer to our discussion with Mr. R.
Vitham on 1st August, 1973 and subsequent telephone conversations 
concerning your company's proposed borrowing of t3.PPP.PPP for 
throe years from the State Electricity Commission of Victoria, 
against the security of a local Bank irrevocable letter of credit 
for a similar amount, and as already confirmed to you our Bank 
has approved tho request.

As further discussed, the local letter of
credit established by the Bank on l6th August, 1973 for t2.325.»51-39 
for two years against a matching irrevocable letter of credit in 
our favour for a similar period issued by the First National Bank 
of Boston, Boston, was applied against the I3.OOP.OOP approved 
limit and the balance remaining, namely t674.5»8-6l has boon 
treated by us as being cancelled.

The Bank's fee for making the letter of credit 
available is .25% per annum, payable yearly in advance on the 
amount guaranteed and arrangements have already been marts to charge 
your Company's I.J.D. account at our Melbourne Pffice with the 
amount involved, namely J5.813-6P.

A local documentary credit requisition
covering the transaction arranged on 16th August, 1973 1* enclosed 
for your signing where indicated and return to ue. A copy is also 
enclosed for your files.

cent.

Copy of letter from Plaintiff to Second 
Defendant 24.8.73
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We very Much appreciated the opportunity of 
participating in this facility with your company and 
would be pleased to consider any similar arrangement 
in the future.

Yours fa i thfully ,

Chief Manager Corporate Services 

(2)



243

24th August, 1973>
tat VM. o.r.o.
>T>MIY

The Manager,
Patrick-Intermarine Acceptances Limited,
G.P.O. Box 3879,
SYDNEY. 2OO1

Dear Sir,

Ve refer to our recent telephone ooncersationa
concerning the extension, until 14th August, 1975 of an arrange­ 
ment under which irrevocable letters of credit are established by 
the First National Bank of Boston and this Bank to secure a 
borrowing of tl.5OO.OOO from the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria by Patrick-Inteima I'ine Acceptances Limited for on-lending 
to First Leasing of Australia Limited, Melbourne.

Ve are pleased to confirm our Bank approval
to the facility which was renewed and completed on l6th August, 
1973.

Our commission fee is .25$ per annum payable
yearly in advance and arrangements have been made to charge your 
company's Sundry Charges account at our Castlereagh & Hunter Streets 
Branch with the initial t3.75O.

For your files we enclose copy of the Reserve 
Bank of Australia Exchange Control approval.

Ve are pleased to be of service in this regard.

Yours faithfully.

L.D.H. Kerans 
Chief Manager Corporate Services

Letter from Plaintiff to First | 
Defendant I 24.8.73
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30th August, 1973
J.C.:HG

The Secretary,
First Leasing Australia Ltd., 
379 Collins Street, 
MELBOURNE 3000

Attention: Mr. R. T. Whitham.

Dear Sir,

RE: $1,500,000 LOAN FIXED TO 14.08.1975

This is to advise that we would appreciate reimbursement of $70.00 being loss 
of interest on the loan as a result of delay in finalising it.

Yours faithfully,

PATRICK-INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED,

J. CH'NG

Copy of letter from First Defendant to
Second Defendant I 30.8.73
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I CASTLCHCACiH SI MEET 
SVONCV. N.S.W. 20M

TCLEM40MC tfJtK 232.28HH

SC:JAM

CASTLEREAGH 4 HUNTER STREETS 
BRANCH

CASTLCIICACM ft HUMTCH STS 
SVOMCV. N.S.W.

Th«
Patrick "Intermarliio Acceptance Ltd.,
C.P.O. liox 3079,

(><>ar Sir,

He: letter of Credit No.
for $1.500,000 - Jn fnvour
of .Jtate Blectrtcity OommiASion of Victoria

At the request of our Sydney Office we have today 

debited your Sundry Charges Account with th« SUM of $3.7^>O 

bein/r |> establishment cowmi»sion on the above I -otter of 

Credit.

Wo trust thin is to your entire atinf action.

Yours faithfully,

i
.A. 

for the Nano/^r.

Copy of letter from Plaintiff to First 
Defendant 20.8.74
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
BMf. Iloute, 140 William Street. Melbourne 3000
TvtograpMe Addmw: RrfMhr. ItotbeunM

InMttttto OffioM "••
RCVmb

Ffcww 902 lltl
Tefec Mumlun FIAUST AA31M7

October 23, 1974.

Mr Boardman,
Pi rat National Bank of Boston,
1OO Pedral Street,
BOSTON..MASSACHUSETTS..U.S.A.

Dear Sir, 

EeiLettors of Credit

We received your copy invoice* No. 74O78 and 74O79 and will 
be arranging for their payment today. Vith regard to Invoice 
No. 74O78, the I5OO.OOO loan for which this letter of credit 
was issued was repaid on August 3O, 1974. Ve have therefore 
paid the letter of credit fee up. until the date of repayment.

Ve also received a copy of Invoice No. 50254 for letter of 
credit No. S127&2. I asi having difficulty locating the payment 
date in our books and would be grateful if you could advise the 
approximate date that you received payment.

Letter of Credit No. 11O85 expired on August 14, 1974 and I 
would be grateful if you would invoice us for the next twelve 
•onths fees.

Advice of payment of the above invoices should be received 
from the National Bank of Australasia Limited in due course.

Tours faithfully,

Robert C. Vettcnhall. 
Chief Accountant.

O**'

ft

o'f^-
^+£*^
Cfj

r*
fl^ .

/̂fg
'•S

Copy of letter from Second Defendant 
to Third Defendant 23.10.74



247

CORPORATE SERVICES

9th August, 1973.

FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED

ovnsd by ths First National Bank of Boston 
ownsd by th« R«in«hr family)

Hsad Offics i 379 Collins Strsst,
Mslbourns. 3OOO

NEW

PROPOSED FACILITY

S To issus a local documentary Isttsr of credit 
9 in favour of th« Stats Electricity CosjMission

of Victoria for $3,OOO,OOO for a psriod of
thrss years

Charge • 25% psr annual

- V -

Matching irrsvocabls Isttsr of crsdit 
in our favour for $31000,000 for a 
psriod of thrss ysars issusd by ths 
First National Bank of Boston

16. Plaintiff's Internal Minute 9.8.73
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T
GA
020

INTLX SYD 
FLAUST AA31087L 
GA
230940581+ 
2215 08/13 WUI 
BOSTONBK B8N A

FLAUST AA31087

URGENT UTGENT UTGENT URGENT URGENT 

ATTENTION REYNOLDS

PLEASE ISSUE L/C IN FAVOUR OF COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF 
SYDNEY LIMITED FOR TWO MILLION AUST DOLLARS PRINCIPAL PLUS 
INTEREST AT EIGHT POINT ONE TWO FIVE PERCENT FROM AUGUST 20, 
1973 TO AUGUST 21, 1975 STOP THIS L/C IS BACK TO BACK WITH 
L/C ISSUED BY COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY LIMITED 
TO STATE ELECTRICITY COMMISSION OF VICTORIA WHO IS LENDER 
STOP//ALSO PLEASE ROLLOVER L/C 11085 IN FAVOUT OF PATRICK 
INTERMARINE ACCEPTANCES LIMITED (FORMERLY PATRICK AND CO.) 
128 EXHIBITION STREET, MELBOURNE, VICTORIA, 3000, FOR ONE 
POINT FIVE MILLION AUST DOLLARS PRINCIPAL PLUS INTEREST AT 
EIGHT POINT SEVEN PERCENT FROM AUGUST 15, 1973 TO AUGUST 14, 
1975 STOP IMPERATIVE YOU TELEX ISSUANCE ADVICE IMMEDIATELY 
TO REACH OVERSEAS DEPARTMENT, COMMERCIAL BANKING COMPANY OF 
SYDNEY LIMITED, SYDNEY OFFICE, TELEX NUMBER 20350 NO LATER 
THAN AUGUST 15, 1973 STOP

REGARDS 
LEWIS/FIRSTLEASING

AUGUST 14,1973

FLAUST AA31067 
BOSTONBK BSN A

(~~ • ~rv^pr~-'-~ite_-y

V

Copy of Telex from Second Defendant |
to Third Defendant 14.8.73
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62.6
15 th August, 1973

MBiO TO8 Manager,
Melbourne Office,

FROM : Assistant Chief Manager in Victoria.

SUBJECT : First Leasing Australia Ltd. I.J.D. Account

Mr. Frank Reinehr telephoned to advise that
approximately k years ago they arranged for the Bank to issue a 
Letter of Credit for $3 million in favour of Patrick Partners, 
Sydney being a back to back credit with a Letter of Credit for same 
artoTint established in favour of C.B.C. by First National Bank of 
Boston.

This documentation supported a loan to First
Leasing Australia of >3 Million from State Electricity Commission 
of Victoria through Patrick Partners.

Meanwhile $1.5 million has been repaid and 
the balance of $1.5 million Matures today.

First Leasing Australia Ltd. arranged with
Head Office of First National Bank of Boston to provide a new Letter 
of Credit for >1.5 Million to enable repayment of S.E.C. Loan and 
roll over the amount for a further loan (lender not disclosed) of 
$1.5 Million through Patrick Partners.

At this point of time telex advice of Letter
of Credit from First National Bank of Boston has not been received 
by C.B.C. Head Office and to keep faith with Patrick Partners and 
S.E.C. First Leasing wishes to issue cheque for $1.5 million on 
•First Leasing Australia I.J.D." account at Melbourne Office which 
would have effect of overdrawing the account to $1.2 million 
temporarily - daylight cover only May be required but in any case the 
debt would be cleared tomerrow l6th August at latest.

Mr. Bruce J. Haddow, Melbourne Representative of
First National Bank of Boston advises he has confirmed by telephone 
with Boston that Letter of Credit tl.5 Million has been approved and 
is being advised by telex.

Ve are requested to issue a Bank Cheque for
tl.5 Million in favour of Patrick Partners and upon written confirmation 
of the establishment of the Letter of Credit from N*. Bruce J. Haddow 
have agreed to do/so, (copy of letter attached)

Make appropriate charges.

Advise should debt not be cleared as indicated.

Plaintiff's Internal Minute | 15.8.73
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON, 
INTERNATIONAL BASKING

POST OFFICE BOX 1784 
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02105 U.S.A

M'TTER OF CREDIT NO. S-12647 f"~ ''•• PATE August 14, 19? 3
Commercial Banking Company of Sydney
ftvdney, N.S.v:.
Australia

OE \TLEMEir:

IV. HEREBY OPEN OUR 11>REVOCABLE LI T": UR or CREDI'i .• YODR FAM>I, AVAILABLE iir •-OUR DRAFT* DRAWN
"* Commercial Banking Company of Sydne' , Sydney, >".S.W. Australia

AT ................ RtttHT ro.( \I«r SUM 0* «l-M« WOT EXCEED! VO lit TOTAL

Tv.-o Million Three Hundred 7wanty Five Thousand Tour Hundred Fifty One 
and 39/100 Australian Dollars. .....................

ron ACCOUNT or First Leasing Australia Ltd., lelbourne, Australia

DRAFT* MDIT BE ACCOMPANIED BY:

Your signed statement that you have been required to make payment under 
your letter of credit opened for account of First Leasing Australia Ltd. 
in favor of State Electricity Commission of Victoria; that you have 
requested reimbursement from First Leasing Australia Ltd. and same has 
not been received from First Leasing Australia Ltd. or any other source.

The amount of this credit includes principal of A$2,000,000.00 plus 
interest at 8.125% Per Annum.

This credit becomes operative August 20, 1973. 

This confirms our cable of August 14, 1973.

EACH MAPT MOn IEA» crow IT» FACE THE CLAUSE "DBAWN t-Nnrn LETTEK or Curnrr No. S—12647
DATED August 14, 1973 °' THE FjnsT NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON, BO*TO», MA»."

I'XCEPT IO FAR A* OT'IEHWIIE EXPREULY mTED HEREIN. THIS I KTTIER OF CREDIT !< iriJECT TO THE "UNIFORM

.»«« AND PRACTICE rex DOCUMENTARY CREDIT* (IMS RETIIIOK i S-TERNATIOXAL CHAMBER or COMMERCE BROCHCRE 
No. tM".

\VE HEREBY AOREE WITH TOO THAT BtVAPN pftAWW CWBER AMD IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE TRRM* or THII LctTE* 99

CREDIT WILL BE DOLT HOWOBBB ir rmMMTBD.To THE ABOVE MEKTIONED DRAWEE BAJTK o« OB BBTOBB August 21. 
1975.

VV:.T m

'' ' ' S.

n-IOIt MBV. ••!

aem

'"/''! ~

Copy of Third Defendant's irrevocable |
Letter of Credit i 14.8.73
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FIRST LEASING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
0*atf (Met: Ltgmt A Gmtnl Hotue, S79 Callliu S<» Melbourne 3009. Phtne 913811
T«wgnphie AddraM: Rtimhr. Itolbounw Interstate Offlcw — Rrliban*, Sydney 
T«l«x Number: FLAUST AA31M7 

RTVtlr

Augu.t 31, 1973

Mr. L.D.H. Kerans,
Chief Manager Corporate Service*,
The Commercial Banking Co. of Sydney Ltd.,
3<»3 George Street,
SYDNEY. N.S.V. 2OOO.

Dear Mr. Kerans,

Thank you for your letter of August 24, 1973 a« a result* of 
which we now return to you the local documentary credit 
requisition signed as requested.

As Mentioned to you in our telephone conversation of this 
•orning, the writer will be in Sydney on Vednesday September 
19, 1973 and looks forward to lunching with you and Bob 
Graham to discuss the facility and matters of mutual interest.

Vith best wishes,

Yours faithfully,

dmlfffstration & FundinoXDirector

Letter from Second Defendant to 
Plaintiff 31.8.73
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No. 11 
REASONS FOR JUDGEMENT HIS HONOUR MR. JUSTICE SHEPPARD.

His Honour: The principal questions to be decided in this case are whether:
(a) the defendant Patrick Intermarine Acceptances Limited (in liquidation) 

(hereinafter called P.I.A.L.) and its liquidator the defendant Gavin 
Hosking are bound to take all necessary steps to draw upon a letter of 
credit issued by the defendant the First National Bank of Boston (herein­ 
after called the Boston Bank) and pay the proceeds either to the plaintiff 
or into an account in the name of the defendant P.I.A.L. kept by it with 

10 the plaintiff;
(b) the defendants First Leasing Australia Limited (hereinafter called First 

Leasing) and the Boston Bank are, as regards the plaintiff, bound to take 
all necessary steps to facilitate and assist the defendant P.I.A.L. and its 
liquidator in effecting the drawing mentioned in question (a);

(c) the defendant First Leasing, however questions (a) and (b) may be 
answered, is bound, as regards the plaintiff, to pay moneys which it owes 
to P.I.A.L. into an account kept by that company with the plaintiff, and 
P.I.A.L. is bound, also as regards the plaintiff, to accept such payment 
as a discharge of First Leasing's obligation to it;

20 (d) the defendant P.I.A.L., however questions (a), (b) and (c) may be 
answered, has a proprietary interest in the sum of $ 1,500,000 owing by 
the defendant First Leasing to the defendant P.I.A.L., with the result 
that when that sum is repaid P.I.A.L. is in turn bound to pay it to the 
plaintiff.

The questions arise because P.I.A.L. is in liquidation and insolvent. Unless both 
questions (a) and (b), question (c) or question (d) be answered in the affirmative, 
the plaintiff will rank as an unsecured creditor in the winding up of P.I.A.L. for an 
amount of $1,500,000 which it has paid out to the defendant the State Electricity 
Commission of Victoria (hereinafter called the S.B.C.V.) because of a drawing made 

30 by that undertaking upon a letter of credit issued to it by the plaintiff. The facts which 
give rise to the questions are not in substantial dispute but they are complex. I shall 
state them as shortly as I can.

The plaintiff carries on the business of banking principally within the Common­ 
wealth of Australia. Prior to its winding up the defendant P.I.A.L. carried on business 
as what has been described as a merchant banker. In the transactions to which I shall 
refer its business appears to me to have been no less and no more than that of a 
mbnsy lender. P.I.A.L. was at all material times associated in its business with the 
stockbroking firm of Patrick Partners. Until 1st August, 1970, Patrick Partners was 
known as Patrick & Company. Patrick & Company, and subsequently Patrick 

40 Partners and P.I.A.L. were customers of the plaintiff. Until 15th October, 1971, 
when P.I.A.L. opened an account with the plaintiff, transactions of the kind I am 
about to mention were entered into, firstly by Patrick & Company and then by 
Patrick Partners. As I have indicated the transactions were not stockbroking trans­ 
actions but involved the borrowing and lending of money.

The defendant First Leasing is a company incorporated in the State of Victoria. 
It carries on business within the Commonwealth of Australia as a financier, but 
usually by leasing commercial and industrial equipment and motor vehicles to persons 
in return for periodical payments. It needs substantial funds to enable it to carry on 
its business. It is a company associated with the Boston Bank, the Boston Bank owning 

50 a substantial number of its shares. The Boston Bank carries on the business of banking 
in the United States of America and elsewhere.
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In the year 1969 First Leasing wished to borrow money for the purpose of its 
business. In order to assist it in obtaining finance the Boston Bank was willing to issue 
irrevocable letters of credit in favour of persons from whom money was to be 
borrowed. Patrick & Company was prepared to lend First Leasing money. The money 
which it had to lend, although it, and subsequently Patrick Partners and P.I.A.L., 
operated at all times as a principal in the transactions shortly to be described, came 
from the defendant the S.E.C.V. The S.E.C.V. was not prepared to accept an 
irrevocable letter of credit from the Boston Bank. This was not for any reason 
associated with that Bank's financial stability but by reason of the fact that it feared 
that problems might arise in relation to the taking of such a security because of 10 
exchange control legislation.

In March 1969 Mr. N. H. Blacket was the Assistant General Manager of the 
plaintiff. He had been appointed to that position on 29th November, 1968, up to 
which time he had been the manager of its Sydney office. In that capacity he had been 
immediately responsible for the supervision of the account maintained with the plaintiff 
by Patrick & Company.

On or about 19th March, 1969, Mr. T. W. Alien, a member of the firm of 
Patrick & Company, rang Mr. Blacket. Mr. Alien told him that his firm was considering 
a transaction under which $ 1,000,000 was to be borrowed, "from an Australian com­ 
pany and re-lent to another Australian company. The lending company is seeking 20 
security by way of a bank letter of credit in its favour. Would the Bank (i.e. the 
plaintiff) be prepared to issue a clean letter of credit in favour of the lending company. 
The Bank will receive by way of security a letter of credit in its favour from the First 
National Bank of Boston". There then followed some discussion concerning the 
charge which the plaintiff would make for issuing its letter of credit.

Some days later Mr. Blacket informed Mr. Alien that the plaintiff would enter 
into the transaction and told him of the charge which it proposed to make. He 
continued, "Before the Bank issues the local letter of credit we will require that the 
letter of credit from the First National Bank of Boston is established in our favour 
and it will have to be in the nature of a 'back-to-back' letter of credit". 30

The letter of credit issued by the Boston Bank was numbered S-10971 and dated 
28th March, 1969. It was expressed to be an irrevocable letter of credit opened in 
favour of Patrick & Company in the sum of $536,250 (not $1,000,000). It was 
expressed to be for the account of First Leasing. The letter provided that any drafts 
drawn upon it should be drawn upon the plaintiff which was the Boston Bank's agent 
in Australia, and must be accompanied by a statement from Patrick & Company 
addressed to the Boston Bank in Boston, Massachusetts, certifying that the draft 
amount represented the unpaid principal amount plus accrued interest on a loan 
made by Patrick & Company to First Leasing, that such loan was made available to 
First Leasing by Patrick & Company arranging payments to First Leasing at the 40 
plaintiff bank and that such amount was not paid when due and had not been since 
repaid to or collected by Patrick & Company. Patrick & Company sent the letter of 
credit to the plaintiff.

On 9th April, 1969, the plaintiff issued a letter of credit in favour of the 
S.E.C.V. in the sum of $500,000 to expire on 8th April, 1970. It was expressed to 
be an irrevocable letter of credit and was issued in favour of the S.E.C.V. It 
authorised the S.E.C.V. to draw on Patrick & Company for any sum not exceeding in 
all $500,000, "purporting to cover unpaid principal amount of loan paid to Patrick 
and Company". The credit provided that any draft drawn under the credit must be 
accompanied by a statement of the S.E.C.V. certifying that the draft amount 50 
represented the unpaid principal amount of the loan made by the S.E.C.V. to Patrick
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Credit No. LD920.

8th April, 1969

& Company and that the amount had been demanded and not received.
Before the plaintiff would issue a letter of credit, it required the applicant there­ 

for to fill in and sign a form of requisition which was a standard printed bank form. 
The letter of credit dated 9th April, 1969, was not issued in respect of the transaction 
with which I am concerned in this case. But the form of the requisition which led to 
the issue by the plaintiff of the letter of credit which does form a part of that trans­ 
action has its origin in the form of the requisition which was signed by Patrick & 
Company on 8th April, 1969, in order to procure the issue by the plaintiff of the 
letter of credit of 9th April, 1969.

10 The requisition so far as it is relevant is as follows: 
"To: The Manager,
The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited 
(Hereinafter called 'the Bank') 
343 George Street, 
SYDNEY

We hereby request you to open on our account by Telegraph (Mail or tele­ 
graph) an irrevocable credit subject to Uniform Customs and Practice for 
Documentary Credits (1962 Revision), International Chamber of Commerce 
Brochure No. 222 authorising State Electricity Commission of Victoria, 15 William 

20 Street, Melbourne (Full name of beneficiary) of —— (Full address) to draw on us 
for any sum of sums not exceeding in all A$500,000 (Five hundred thousand dollars 
—Australian currency) available by their drafts at —— (usance) sight purporting 
to cover unpaid principal amount of loan made to Patrick & Company, 2 Castlereagh 
Street, Sydney.

The drafts must be presented for negotiation not later than 8th April, 1970 and 
must be accompanied by the following documents relating thereto:— 
Statement of State Electricity Commission of Victoria certifying that the draft amount 
represents the unpaid principal amount of a loan made by the Commission to Patrick 
& Company and that payment has been demanded and not received. 

30 Additional instructions (if any): Negotiation/s under this credit are restricted to the 
Commercial Banking Co. of Sydney Limited, Melbourne. Drawing(s) under this 
credit must not be made prior to 6th April, 1970.
Please hand Letter of Credit to our representative on application on the morning of 
9th April, 1969."

There then followed nine printed paragraphs, each of which was lettered. It is 
unnecessary for me to set out each of these. It is sufficient if I set out paragraphs B, C, 
G and H. Those paragraphs were as follows:—

"B. To accept on presentation and pay at maturity the drafts drawn under or 
in intended or purported compliance with the credit or this requisition 

40 together with:—
(i) Bank interest for any period by which the date of payment by the

Bank precedes the date of our payment to the Bank, and 
(ii) a commission of ( % ) on the amount of the credit, and 
(iii) all usual Bank charges
and so to do notwithstanding that for any reason whatsoever, any such 
draft or other documents herein mentioned shall not be genuine or shall 
be or become invalid or payment or recovery of any money thereunder or 
the performance of any contract thereby created or evidenced be or be­ 
come delayed postponed or impossible. Further if we fail to accept any 

50 draft negotiated by the Bank or be excused from acceptance thereof on 
any ground whatsoever, we will pay to the Bank at the branch or office
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first above-mentioned on demand the amount paid by the Bank. 
C. The Bank shall hold the above-mentioned documents and goods as a 

continuing security by way of pledge independent of and additional to 
any other security held by the Bank for payment of all moneys payable 
by us to the Bank including all commission, banking and other charges 
expenses and interest and we will not do or omit or suffer to be done or 
omitted any act matter or thing which might prejudice the value or 
existence of the said security. We will pay to the Bank any moneys 
received by us under any insurance of the goods which moneys until so 
paid shall be held by us in trust for the Bank. 10 

G. To indemnify and hold the Bank its servants and agents harmless and 
free from liability in respect of all loss and damage (including costs and 
expenses incurred by any of them in resisting claims by third parties) 
arising or resulting from the negotiation of drafts or any other act, matter 
or thing, done or omitted to be done in actual or in intended or purported 
compliance with this request and with any letter of credit issued in 
consequence thereof. 

H. This agreement shall continue in force notwithstanding any change in the
constitution of any firm or company referred to herein".

Although there is no direct evidence on the point, it would seem that the letter 20 
of credit No. S-10971 issued by the Boston Bank was not in the form which the 
plaintiff expected it to take because the beneficiary was Patrick & Company and not 
the plaintiff. In addition to the printed paragraphs of the requisition, a further para­ 
graph, paragraph J, was added in typescript. It was added because the Boston Bank's 
letter of credit was in favour of Patrick & Company and not the plaintiff. Paragraph 
J was as follows:

"J. We undertake that in the event of drawing/s being made under this 
credit, we will immediately lodge with the Bank a draft and accompany­ 
ing documents in terms of First National Bank of Boston, Boston, Letter 
of Credit No. SI0971 for an amount not less than that required to meet 30 
the drawing (s) under the credit requested in this requisition." 

On or about 8th May, 1969, Mr. Alien rang Mr. Blacket again. He informed 
him that Patrick & Company were considering a further transaction involving 
$1,500,000 which would be borrowed from an Australian organisation and lent to 
an Australian company. Again the lending organisation required a security by way 
of a local bank letter of credit in its favour. Mr. Alien said, "Would the Bank 
establish the letter of credit required against a 'back-to-back' letter of credit from the 
First National Bank of Boston. It would be for a term of four years". Mr. Blacket 
said, "The Bank will be prepared to enter into the commitment... we would require 
to see the terms of the backing credit and have it established prior to us issuing our 40 
letter of credit". Mr. Alien assented to this course.

On 16th May, 1969, the plaintiff issued a second letter of credit in favour of 
the S.E.C.V. in the sum of $1,500,000. It was to expire on 15th May, 1973. The 
procedure followed in relation to its issue was the same as in the case of the issue 
of the letter of credit of 9th April, 1969. The Boston Bank's letter of credit was dated 
15th May, 1969, and numbered S-l 1011. The beneficiary was again Patrick & Com­ 
pany. The requisition signed by Patrick & Company to procure the issue by the 
plaintiff of its letter of credit contained a paragraph in the same form as paragraph 
J above set out except that the number of the Boston Bank's letter of credit was 
S-l 1011. The two transactions to which I have referred, that is those by which firstly 50 
the sum of $500,000 and secondly the sum of $1,500,000, were lent by the S.E.C.V.
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to Patrick & Company and then by Patrick & Company to First Leasing were 
described in the books of Patrick & Company as "special deal number 1" and "special 
deal number 2", respectively.

I next turn to what was described both in the books of Patrick & Company and 
of P.I.A.L. as "special deal number 3". It was a transaction of a similar kind. A 
variation of it is the transaction with which I am concerned in this case. Again the 
S.E.C.V. was prepared to lend $ 1,500,000 and again First Leasing wished to borrow 
that sum on the security of a letter of credit issued by the Boston Bank. Again Patrick 
& Company acted as a principal, although the moneys went directly, but through

10 Patrick & Company, from the S.E.C.V. to First Leasing.
The letter of credit issued by the Boston Bank was dated 14th August, 1969, 

and numbered S-l 1085. The beneficiary was Patrick & Company. The letter of credit 
was expressed to be irrevocable and to be available by draft drawn upon the plaintiff 
at sight for any sum or sums not exceeding in total $1,500,000. The letter of credit 
was said to be for the account of First Leasing.

Under the words "Drafts must be accompanied by" appeared a number of state­ 
ments. It is unnecessary for me to set these out. They were the statements to be 
obtained by Patrick & Company in the event that a drawing was to be made under 
the letter of credit. There is some complexity about them because of the terms relating

20 to the date when the loan was to be repaid by Patrick & Company to the S.E.C.V. The 
terms of the repayment by Patrick & Company to the S.E.C.V. matched the terms of 
the repayment of the loan by Patrick & Company to First Leasing. These terms 
appear in two letters each dated 15th August, 1969, one from Patrick & Company to 
the S.E.C.V. and the other from Patrick & Company to First Leasing. It was provided 
in these letters that withdrawal of funds might be made at three-monthly intervals 
from 15th August, 1969, subject to sixty days' notice being given and also subject 
to the first withdrawal not being made prior to 15th November, 1970. There were 
other terms concerning the interest rate which was to be payable depending on the 
length of time the moneys in each case remained deposited. Although no mention of

30 it is made in the letters, the two letters of credit, that is to say that issued by the 
plaintiff and that issued by the Boston Bank, were no longer available to be drawn 
against after 15th August, 1973. I have referred to the terms of the two loans rather 
than to the documents which were to accompany drafts in the event of a drawing 
under the letter of credit issued by the Boston Bank because the words used in that 
letter of credit are not entirely clear. There is a question as to whether they give effect 
to the agreement which was made and to which I have referred. However, no question 
of that kind gives rise to any problem in the present case.

In fact the two loans were left outstanding until 14th August, 1973. On that 
date First Leasing repaid Patrick & Company the sum of $1,500,000 and Patrick

40 & Company repaid the S.E.C.V. the same sum. The plaintiff's letter of credit, which 
it had issued on 15th August, 1969, thus expired. I do not make any reference to 
this letter of credit except to mention that it was issued upon a requisition similar 
in form to that upon which the earlier letters of credit were issued by it. But for what 
next ensued the letter of credit issued by the Boston Bank on 14th August, 1969, 
would also have expired upon the repayment of the moneys due to Patrick & Com­ 
pany by First Leasing. It did not expire because, in the circumstances I now relate, 
it was extended in time and varied in another respect.

In July, 1973, Mr. D. L. Webb was the sub-manager of the Corporate Services 
Division of the plaintiff. In that month he had a telephone conversation with a Mr.

50 Peter Davie who was a director of P.I.A.L. Mr. Davie said to Mr. Webb, "I should 
like to discuss with you at some time in the near future the arranging of an extension
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of the letter of credit supplied by the bank to the State Electricity Commission of 
Victoria as security for a loan made by the Commission to Patrick and Company." 
Mr. Webb asked Mr. Davie to work out details of the proposal and let him know 
when he was ready to discuss the matter. He said to Mr. Davie "I presume that other 
than the period of the loan it will be similar to the earlier transaction."

On 7th August, 1973, Mr. Webb received a further call from Mr. Davie. Mr. 
Davie proposed an extension of the letter of credit for a further period of two years. 
He said the credit would secure the loan by the S.E.C.V. to P.I.A.L. and that P.I.A.L. 
would be on-lending the $ 1,500,000 to First Leasing. Mr. Davie further said, "You 
will receive as security a matching letter of credit from the First National Bank of 10 
Boston. The credit will be in our favour (that is P.I.A.L.) and not in favour of 
Patrick and Company". Mr. Webb said that he did not think there would be any 
problem and that he would let Mr. Davie know the position. In a memorandum 
prepared for the plaintiff's Board, on 8th August, 1973, Mr. Webb referred to the 
history of the matter. The memorandum tends to bear out Mr. Webb's recollection 
of the conversation which, in any event, is not challenged by Mr. Davie except that 
Mr. Davie does not think that he used the expression "matching letter of credit". This 
expression is used in Mr. Webb's memorandum. I do not think it important to resolve 
this conflict in their evidence; in the end the documents must speak for themselves.

On 10th August, 1973, P.I.A.L. was informed by Mr. Webb that the extension 20 
of the letter of credit had been approved. On 13th August, 1973, Mr. Webb was 
informed by P.I.A.L. that the loan had been re-negotiated and was asked to arrange 
for the issue of a letter of credit in favour of the S.E.C.V. Mr. Webb said that, 
amongst other things, he said to the officer from P.I.A.L. to whom he spoke, "... 
before the transaction can proceed we will need to obtain exchange control approval 
from the Reserve Bank and we will have to sight the First National Bank of Boston's 
letter of credit".

Notwithstanding the terms of the conversations between Mr. Webb and Mr. 
Davie, the transaction was in reality a new transaction. As already mentioned the 
moneys which had been lent in 1969 were repaid. The plaintiff issued a new letter of 30 
credit. The only document connected with the new transaction which continued to 
have force and effect was the Boston Bank's letter of credit issued on 15th August, 
1969, which was extended so that it would remain in force up to and including 15th 
August, 1975. A further variation made to it was that the beneficiary became P.I.A.L. 
and not Patrick & Company.

Pursuant to his conversations with Mr. Davie, Mr. Webb made arrangements for 
the preparation of the requisition for the issue of the new letter of credit by the 
plaintiff. The requisition was to be signed on behalf of P.I.A.L. which, as I have 
indicated, by now had taken over this type of business from Patrick & Company. The 
requisition was in the form earlier set out. The amount was $1,500,000 and the 40 
requisition provided that drafts to be drawn under the letter of credit must be presented 
for negotiation not later than 14th August, 1975, and must be accompanied by a 
statement from the S.E.C.V. certifying that the draft amount represented the unpaid 
principal amount of a fixed loan to 14th August, 1975, made by the S.E.C.V. to 
P.I.A.L. and that payment of the loan had been demanded and not received. Para­ 
graph J was included. It did not refer to any letter of credit number but said, instead, 
"Letter of Credit Nos. to be supplied". The letter of credit referred to was, of course, 
the letter of credit issued by the Boston Bank. It was apparently thought, at the time 
that the requisition was prepared, that the Boston Bank would issue a new letter of 
credit. As I have said it did not do so. The number of the letter of credit it had 50 
issued on 14th August, 1969, was S-11085 and the requisition signed on behalf of
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P.I.A.L. on 14th August, 1973, ought therefore to be read as if the number S-l 1085 
were included in paragraph J.

There is one other matter that I should mention in relation to the form of that 
requisition. It is to be observed in relation to the form of requisition which I have 
earlier set out that underneath the words "loan made to Patrick & Company, 2 
Castlereagh Street, Sydney." are words in brackets which have been struck out. The 
words in brackets are " 'Merchandise' or brief description of goods". Neither in the 
requisition signed on behalf of Patrick & Company on 15th August, 1969, nor in 
that signed on behalf of P.I.A.L. on 14th August, 1973, were those words crossed

10 out. The words are printed and are obviously intended for use when the form of 
requisition is used to procure the issue of a letter of credit to provide payment for 
goods which a customer is buying. It is to be noted that in paragraph C of the 
requisition there is a reference to the goods being a continuing security by way of 
pledge for payment of all moneys payable by the customer to the bank (the plaintiff). 
It will be necessary for me to say more about paragraph C of the requisition and the 
words " 'Merchandise' or brief description of goods" appearing thereon.

Pursuant to the requisition the plaintiff issued its letter of credit in favour of 
the S.E.C.V. It was dated 16th August, 1973. It provided, in accordance with the 
requisition that drafts drawn under the credit must be accompanied by a statement

20 of the S.E.C.V. certifying that the draft amount represented the unpaid principal 
amount of the fixed loan to 14th August, 1975, made by the S.E.C.V. to P.I.A.L. 
and that payment of the loan had been demanded and not received.

P.I.A.L. was unable to repay the moneys which it owed to the S.E.C.V. The 
S.E.C.V. drew upon the plaintiff pursuant to the letter of credit and the plaintiff was 
compelled to pay to it the sum of $1,500,000.

Before coming to deal with the questions posed in the opening paragraph of this 
judgment there are two preliminary matters which I should mention. In the course of 
dealing with one of them I shall dispose of a submission made by the plaintiff not 
adverted to in the questions. By July 1973 it was well known to all parties that the

30 S.E.C.V. was lending money to P.I.A.L. and that P.I.A.L. was lending the same 
moneys to First Leasing. It would appear that the source of the funds it was borrow­ 
ing was not originally known to First Leasing. It ascertained the information in a 
roundabout fashion some time after 1969. By the time of the 1973 transaction it and 
its associate, the Boston Bank, knew that, although they were dealing with P.I.A.L. 
as a principal, the moneys were in reality coming to First Leasing from the S.E.C.V. 
Counsel for the plaintiff submitted that in reality P.I.A.L. acted in the subject trans­ 
action only as a broker. If this were so the moneys in question would have been lent 
directly by the S.E.C.V. to First Leasing. The consequence of this, so counsel sub­ 
mitted, was that the plaintiff was entitled to recover the moneys owed by First Leasing

40 to the S.E.C.V. from it on the basis that the plaintiff had discharged its indebtedness. 
Notwithstanding the knowledge of the source of the funds which all parties had by 
July, 1973, I am satisfied that P.I.A.L. did not act in the transaction as a broker but 
acted as a principal. Having considered the documents and the evidence of the 
witnesses who were called I do not think that the transaction is open to any other 
interpretation. The evidence left me with such a clear impression that P.I.A.L. was 
a principal in all the transactions in question that I did not complicate my recital of 
the facts of the matter by referring to this submission at an earlier stage. In that recital 
I have asserted that P.I.A.L., and Patrick & Company before it, were principals. That 
is the finding which I make. Accordingly the submission made by the plaintiff upon

50 the basis that P.I.A.L., in the subject transaction, was acting as a broker is rejected. 
The other preliminary matter to which I should refer is that it is not common
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in Australia to use letters of credit for the purposes for which the letters of credit to 
which I have referred were used. A reading of a number of legal and banking text 
books would lead me to think that it is not common for letters of credit to be used in 
this way in the United Kingdom. I am not aware of the position in the United States 
of America. It would appear that the idea of using letters of credit in this way 
originated with a Mr. Reinehr who, at the relevant time, was a director of First 
Leasing. Irrevocable letters of credit are commonly used in this country and, as I 
understand the position, in the United Kingdom in connection with transactions 
involving the sale and purchase of goods, particularly where those transactions in­ 
volve the goods being imported or exported. Plainly the plaintiff's requisition form 10 
for the issue of letters of credit contemplated that the credit would be used in 
connection with such a transaction. So much can be seen from the use of the words 
in paragraph C and the reference to " 'Merchandise' or brief description of goods", 
the words in small print in the early part of the document. Furthermore, side notes 
to the document include the words, "F.O.B., C.I.F., etc." and, "Shipped, railed, etc.".

The letter of credit in question was a document by which the plaintiff in effect 
guaranteed the repayment of $1,500,000 to the S.E.C.V. by P.I.A.L. The letter of 
credit issued by the Boston Bank, as varied, was one whereby the Boston Bank 
guaranteed the repayment of $1,500,000 by First Leasing to P.I.A.L. I have referred 
to letters of credit being thought to be, at least by Mr. Blacket, back-to-back letters 20 
of credit, and by Mr. Webb to their being matching letters of credit. I think that each 
thought that the plaintiff would issue a letter of credit in favour of the S.E.C.V. 
conditioned upon default by Patrick & Company, and later P.I.A.L., and would 
receive from the Boston Bank a letter of credit conditioned upon default by First 
Leasing, the plaintiff, and not Patrick & Company nor P.I.A.L., being the beneficiary 
of such letter of credit. In transactions concerning the sale and purchase of goods the 
expression "back-to-back letter of credit" has a well-settled meaning both in legal and 
banking circles—see Paget's Law of Banking, 7th Ed. p. 625; Chorley's Law of Bank­ 
ing, 4th Ed. pp. 178-9; Gutteridge & Megrah, The Law of Bankers' Commercial 
Credits, 4th Ed. pp. 163-4. In the present context it has no such well-settled meaning. 30 
It is, however, plain that the letters of credit in the present case were neither matching 
nor back-to-back in the sense in which Mr. Blacket and Mr. Webb understood those 
expressions. The reason for this was that the beneficiaries of the letters of credit 
issued by the Boston Bank were either Patrick & Company or P.I.A.L. and not the 
plaintiff.

This was something perceived by at least one officer of the plaintiff at the time 
of Mr. Blacket's negotiations, and it is plain that paragraph J of the requisition was 
inserted with the intention of overcoming, from the plaintiff's point of view, any 
problem that arose by reason of the beneficiary being Patrick & Company or P.I.A.L. 
and not the plaintiff. 40

It must be pointed out, however, (Mr. Alien gave evidence of this) that it was 
important to Patrick & Company, and later P.I.A.L., that it have security from First 
Leasing for the loan which was being made to that company. The fact that the letters 
of credit issued by the Boston Bank made Patrick & Company, and later P.I.A.L., 
the beneficiaries was not regarded as an oversight by those in the Patrick organisation. 
It was an intended effect of the documents so that Patrick & Company and P.I.A.L. 
would, in the event of default by First Leasing, have immediately the ability, subject 
to the notice referred to therein, to draw upon the Boston Bank pursuant to the letters 
of credit issued by it.

This problem has arisen because nobody really contemplated the possibility of 50 
insolvency on the part of P.I.A.L. All was designed to take care of a situation which
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would arise if First Leasing, for some reason, defaulted. Nobody turned his mind to 
the possibility of financial failure on the part of P.I.A.L. I say that notwithstanding 
that the plaintiff could not be called upon to pay any sum pursuant to any of its 
letters of credit unless there were default by Patrick & Company or P.I.A.L. in their 
obligations to the S.E.C.V. Although paragraph J itself only operates in that event, 
it obliges P.I.A.L. to lodge with the plaintiff a draft and accompanying documents in 
terms of the Boston Bank's letter of credit for an amount not less than that required 
to meet the drawings under the plaintiff's credit. Obviously what the parties had in 
mind was a failure by First Leasing to pay P.I.A.L. and any failure by P.I.A.L. to

10 meet its obligations to the S.E.C.V. arising only as a result of the failure of First 
Leasing to pay its indebtedness to P.I.A.L. It would only be in that event that the 
documents referred to in the Boston Bank's letters of credit could or would come into 
existence.

The fact is that First Leasing has made no default. It has not paid the moneys 
due by it to P.I.A.L. The reason why it has not paid is not because of any unwilling­ 
ness or inability on its part to meet its obligations. It has been ready and willing to 
make payment of the amount which it owes since 14th August, 1975. These proceed­ 
ings were commenced on 7th August, 1975. On 13th August, 1975, the parties 
entered into an arrangement designed to preserve the status quo until such time as

20 the matters in issue between them could be determined by the court. Included in their 
agreement was an agreement that the time for the repayment of the loan should be 
extended to 14th August, 1976, and that the Boston Bank's letter of credit should be 
similarly extended. First Leasing is ready now to pay $1,500,000 to P.I.A.L. Its 
submission is that it should be permitted to do so. The joint submission of the Boston 
Bank and First Leasing is that the occasion for a drawing under the Boston Bank's 
letter of credit will never arise because First Leasing will meet its obligations.

I now come to the first of the plaintiff's principal submissions. In the plaintiff's 
submission P.I.A.L., First Leasing and the Boston Bank are contractually bound to 
the plaintiff to act in concert to procure a drawing on the Boston Bank's letter of

30 credit "so that P.I.A.L.'s account with the plaintiff will be sufficient to cover the draw­ 
ing upon the plaintiff by the S.E.C.V.". The words which I have quoted from counsel's 
submission involve a little more than at first meets the eye. In the events which have 
happened no result is of any assistance to the plaintiff unless it can procure the pay­ 
ment of the indebtedness of First Leasing or the amount payable (if it be payable) 
pursuant to the Boston Bank's letter of credit to it, or into a P.I.A.L. account 
maintained with it, which account is in debit to the extent of at least $1,500,000. I 
am not at the moment dealing with alternative submissions made concerning the 
plaintiff's alleged entitlement to be paid the moneys to be repaid by First Leasing. 
But so far as the letter of credit is concerned the plaintiff's submission above referred

40 to goes so far as to assert that, not only is the plaintiff entitled to compel the three 
defendants to bring about a situation pursuant to which P.I.A.L. is entitled to draw 
upon the letter of credit; additionally the proceeds when paid by the Boston Bank 
must be paid to the plaintiff or into a P.I.A.L. account kept with it.

The obligation is said to arise ex contractu; no other basis for it is relied upon. 
The contract is said to arise from the entirety of the facts and circumstances which 
were in, or came into, existence in August, 1973 when the transaction was entered 
into. Insofar as First Leasing and the Boston Bank are concerned reliance is placed 
largely upon the conduct of First Leasing which it was said must have been known 
to the Boston Bank and upon the knowledge of First Leasing that the funds being

50 advanced by P.I.A.L. to First Leasing came in turn from the S.E.C.V. which would 
not lend them without the security of a letter of credit issued, not by the Boston Bank,
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but by a local bank.
There are obvious difficulties in the submission. Counsel for the plaintiff did 

not shrink from facing them. Those difficulties, of course, arise by reason of the 
apparent lack of any contractual relationship between the plaintiff and the defendants 
other than P.I.A.L. There is a clear contractual relationship established between the 
plaintiff and P.I.A.L. itself. The contract between them certainly consists of the 
requisition signed on behalf of P.I.A.L. in order to procure the issue of the plaintiff's 
letter of credit and the letter of credit itself. Counsel for P.I.A.L. submitted that those 
documents comprised the entirety of the contract between the plaintiff and P.I.A.L.

Part of the requisition was paragraph J, the form of which (it comes from an 10 
earlier requisition) I have set out. By that clause P.I.A.L. promised the plaintiff that 
in the event of default by P.I.A.L. it would draw upon the Boston Bank by lodging 
with the plaintiff, as agent for that Bank, a draft "and accompanying documents in 
terms of" the Boston Bank's letter of credit. Effectively the document which must 
accompany the draft is a statement by P.I.A.L. that the sum of $1,500,000 owing by 
First Leasing to P.I.A.L. was not paid when due and has not since been repaid to 
or collected by P.I.A.L. Because of the extension of the period of the loan, the amount 
is not due by First Leasing until 14th August next. As I have previously said First 
Leasing is and, at all material times has been, ready and willing to repay what is 
owing. It has not repaid its indebtedness only because of its willingness to assist the 20 
Court in the resolution of the dispute by agreeing to the interlocutory arrangements 
which were made. Accordingly, any statement signed by P.I.A.L. to the effect of that 
required before a drawing pursuant to the Boston Bank's letter of credit could be 
made would be false. Nevertheless P.I.A.L. has bound itself in paragraph J of the 
requisition to make that statement in the events which have happened, that is default 
by P.I.A.L. in its obligation to repay the moneys on the due date to the S.E.C.V. If 
it were to make the statement contemplated by paragraph J, the Boston Bank could, 
unless it is bound contractually to accept it, refuse to give effect to it and seek the 
Court's assistance to enable it to do so. Unless the Boston Bank is contractually 
bound to accept such a statement (and that is the critical question) the most the 30 
plaintiff will have will be an action for damages against P.I.A.L. for breach of con­ 
tract constituted by its inability to provide the documents referred to in paragraph J 
of the requisition. That will not assist the plaintiff; for such damages as it is entitled 
to recover, it will rank only as an unsecured creditor in the winding-up of P.I.A.L. It is 
agreed that it has that right in any event; for that purpose it is enough for it to rely 
upon the indemnity given to it by paragraph G of the requisition.

I come then to the question of whether there is the contractual relationship 
between the plaintiff and the defendants First Leasing and the Boston Bank for which 
the plaintiff contends. Evidence was given by executives of First Leasing including 
a Mr. Robert Whitham. I accept his evidence. To the extent that it deals with matters 40 
not dealt with by other witnesses or is in conflict with their evidence I prefer it. But 
that finding will not take the plaintiff very far.

An analysis of the detail of the plaintiff's submissions reveal that their basis is 
the reference in the discussions which took place between the representatives of First 
Leasing and P.I.A.L. on the one hand, and those of P.I.A.L. and the plaintiff on the 
other, to the two letters of credit being "back-to-back". What the plaintiff very under­ 
standably seeks to do is to make that the most significant feature of what might be 
termed very generally the overall arrangement made by all the participants. But to 
do what the plaintiff asks involves, if not leaving out of account, at least substantially 
playing down the importance of, the plain terms of the documents in the case—the 50 
two letters of credit and the requisition which procured the issue of that given by the
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plaintiff to the S.E.C.V.
I have already mentioned the fact that that the use of letters of credit in this 

field of commercial activity is rare. The term back-to-back letter of credit has no well- 
known connotation in this area as it has in that concerned with the sale and purchase 
of goods. The Courts, when dealing with a problem concerning any commercial 
transaction, will always pay great attention to the documents in the case particularly 
when they form either the whole or part of a contractual arrangement. Rarely will 
the effect which they would otherwise have be overborne by verbal discussions or what 
are said to be common understandings which pre-date them. From the plaintiff's point

10 of view all would have been well if it had insisted upon the issue by the Boston Bank 
of a letter of credit of which the plaintiff was the beneficiary and in respect of which 
a drawing could be made if P.I.A.L. did not repay, upon the due date thereof, its 
indebtedness to the S.E.C.V. Instead, not overlooking the provisions of paragraph 
J of the requisition, the plaintiff accepted as sufficient for its purposes a letter of 
credit of which P.I.A.L. was the beneficiary which could only be drawn upon by 
P.I.A.L. if First Leasing defaulted in its obligations to P.I.A.L. I say that notwith­ 
standing the fact that the operation of paragraph J is conditioned upon default, not by 
First Leasing, but by P.I.A.L. To be added to what I have so far said is the fact that 
P.I.A.L. had a real reason, itself, for wanting as security for the advance it was

20 making to First Leasing a letter of credit in its favour. Otherwise its loan of 
$1,500,000 was totally unsecured.

Notwithstanding such knowledge of the overall arrangement and the source of 
the funds being borrowed by First Leasing which can be imputed to First Leasing and 
the Boston Bank, it is impossible, in my opinion, to find expressly or by implication any 
promise made either by First Leasing or the Boston Bank other than a promise by 
First Leasing to repay to P.I.A.L. the moneys which it had borrowed upon the due 
date for their repayment, and a promise by the Boston Bank to make good any 
default by First Leasing in that obligation.

In the development of this argument counsel for the plaintiff said that when the
30 moneys in question left the S.E.C.V. they flowed through a channel which the parties 

knew and expected they would follow. This channel led them from the S.E.C.V. into 
the account kept by P.I.A.L. with the plaintiff (which issued its letter of credit to 
procure that situation) and from that account to First Leasing. Counsel submitted 
that it was the intention of all that when the time for repayment by First Leasing 
came the moneys should take the same route back. If this occurred the plaintiff, having 
paid out the S.E.C.V. pursuant to its obligation to do so under the letter of credit 
issued by it, would be reimbursed, which, so it was said, was, in the events which had 
happened, the common contractual intention of all. In counsel's language, the three 
defendants ought not to be allowed "to walk away" or "wash their hands" of the

40 problem and leave the plaintiff, which came into the transaction only because a 
local letter of credit was required, lamenting as an unsecured creditor. Reliance was 
placed upon the dictum of Cockburn, C.J. in Stirling v. Maitland, 5 B. & S. 840; 122 
E.R. 1043. At p. 857 (E.R. 1047) his Lordship said:

"I look on the law to be that, if a party enters into an arrangement which can 
only take effect by the continuance of a certain existing state of circumstances, 
there is an implied engagement on his part that he shall do nothing of his own 
motion to put an end to that state of circumstances, under which alone the 
arrangement can be operative." 

The words which I have emphasised are those relied upon by counsel. They were
50 applied by Lord Atkin in Southern Foundries Limited v. Shirlaw (1940) A.C. 701 

at p. 717.
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This way of putting the plaintiff's case (what I might term the channel argument) 
is different from that with which I have already dealt. It does not necessarily involve 
a drawing upon the Boston Bank's letter of credit. Accordingly no question of the 
need for there to be a statement by P.I.A.L. that First Leasing has not repaid on the 
due date arises. What is involved is an obligation on the part of First Leasing owed 
to the plaintiff to repay its indebtedness into an account maintained by P.I.A.L. with 
the plaintiff, and an obligation on the part of P.I.A.L., again owed to the plaintiff, 
to accept such a payment as a discharge of the obligation owed to it by First Leasing.

In giving consideration to the submission I am prepared to take into account, not 
only the documents to which I have referred, but the whole course of dealing between 10 
the parties. I do this not overlooking a submission made by counsel for P.I.A.L. that, 
in the circumstances of the case, it was impermissible to have regard to any material 
other than the requisition for the issue of the plaintiff's letter of credit and the letter 
of credit itself. It is not enough, of course, that it may seem fair and reasonable that 
the course contended for by the plaintiff should be taken. The obligations relied upon 
are said to be contractual. They must appear as part of a contract to which the 
plaintiff, P.I.A.L. and, at least, First Leasing are parties. That contract may itself be 
implied, or terms forming part of such a contract, part of which is express, may be 
implied. My difficulty in accepting the proposition advanced by the plaintiff lies in my 
inability to perceive any contractual relationship whatever between the plaintiff and 20 
First Leasing. Unless there be such a relationship there is no basis for the implication, 
as an incident of that relationship, of a term of the kind referred to by Cockburn, 
C.J. and Lord Atkin in the cases above cited. There are questions as to the extent 
and operation of the doctrine enunciated by Cockburn, C.J. To some of those I 
referred in Rio Pioneer Gravel Co. Pty. Limited v. Marley Australia Holdings 
Limited, 23rd December, 1975, unreported. But I do not come to those questions in 
this case because the underlying basis which must exist before they arise, namely a 
contractual relationship between the plaintiff and First Leasing, is absent. As 
previously said the basis for saying that there was such a relationship is in essence the 
reference in the discussions to the letters of credit being "back-to-back" and the 30 
knowledge which First Leasing had of the source of the funds which it was borrow­ 
ing. I do not wish to add to what I have earlier said about those circumstances being 
insufficient to give rise to a contractual relationship between the plaintiff and First 
Leasing.

For the above reasons the submissions made on behalf of the plaintiff are rejected. 
Although the first of the questions posed at the outset of this judgment should be 
answered in the affirmative, questions (b) and (c) should both be answered in the 
negative. No other submission made on the plaintiff's behalf sought to implicate the 
defendants First Leasing and the Boston Bank. The proceedings brought against those 
defendants and against the defendant, the S.E.C.V., which submitted to such 40 
judgment or order as the Court saw fit to make, should therefore be dismissed.

I turn to deal with further submissions made by counsel for the plaintiff which 
are directed against P.I.A.L. alone, but which, if accepted, would have the effect of 
entitling the plaintiff to have the moneys owing by First Leasing to P.I.A.L. 
channelled into P.I.A.L.'s account with it. Those submissions relate to the matters 
referred to in question (d).

It was submitted that the plaintiff, in the circumstances which had arisen, had a 
proprietary interest and claim upon the debt owed by First Leasing to P.I.A.L. The 
starting point for the submission was that the transaction was proposed by P.I.A.L. 
to the plaintiff on the basis that a particular sum of money or fund was to be borrowed 50 
by P.I.A.L. from the S.E.C.V. and, in turn, lent by P.I.A.L. to First Leasing. Thus
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a fund was identified. That fund, so it was submitted, still exists, not in identifiable 
cash, but in the form of the moneys which First Leasing is ready and willing to repay 
to P.I.A.L. Counsel for the plaintiff submitted that the plaintiff has an equitable 
interest in that fund:—

(a) by reason of the law relating to subrogation;
(b) by reason of the existence of a trust pursuant to which the moneys, when 

paid to P.I.A.L., will be held on trust by it for the plaintiff; or
(c) by reason of the existence of an equitable assignment of the debt from

P.I.A.L. to the plaintiff by way of charge.
10 Reliance was placed upon the decision of the House of Lords in Duncan Fox & 

Co. v. North and South Wales Bank (1880) L.R. 6 A.C. 1. That case is authority for 
the proposition that an indorser of a bill of exchange, by reason of the fact that he is 
a surety for its payment to the holder, is entitled, in the event that he is called upon to 
pay the bill, to the benefit of any securities to cover the amount paid deposited with 
the holder by the acceptor. He is entitled to those securities whether he knew or did 
not know of the deposit. The indorser's right in this respect in no way depends upon 
contract but is the result of the equity of indemnification attendant on the suretyship. 
In the course of his speech Lord Selborne, L.C. referred, at p. 11, to three classes of 
case which he said it was important to distinguish when the principles and authorities 

20 applicable to the question in issue were being examined. The third class, into which 
the case under consideration fell was, in his Lordship's words, "those in which, with­ 
out any such contract of suretyship, there is a primary and a secondary liability of two 
persons for one and the same debt, the debt being, as between the two, that of one of 
those persons only, and not equally of both, so that the other, if he should be compelled 
to pay it, would be entitled to reimbursement from the person by whom (as between 
the two) it ought to have been paid". At p. 13, after having referred to the principles 
which were applied in equity in relation to contracts of suretyship, his Lordship said 
that it appeared to him that these principles of equity were not less applicable to cases 
of the third class, "cases in which there is, strictly speaking, no contract of suretyship, 

30 but in which there is a primary and secondary liability of two persons for one and 
the same debt, by virtue of which, if it is paid by the person who is not primarily 
responsible, he has a right to reimbursement or indemnity from the other". His Lord­ 
ship added that to this third class of cases the rights of an indorser against an acceptor 
of a bill of exchange might most properly be referred. Lord Blackburn, at p. 19, said 
that he thought that although the indorser of a bill was not exactly a surety for the 
acceptor, or a co-surety with those who are sureties for the acceptor, yet he stood in 
a position sufficiently analogous to that of a surety to bring him within the principles 
referred to by Lord Selborne. The opinion of Lord Watson was the same.

I have given this case, which was strongly relied upon by the plaintiff, close 
40 consideration. In doing so I have paid attention to the general principles of equity 

upon which it is based and I have examined the origin and development of these. I 
do not consider it necessary to engage in an elaborate citation of passages from 
authorities and texts. The general principle is stated in Sheldon on Subrogation, 
published in 1882 in Boston, as follows (p. 10):

"General Doctrine of Subrogation.—In short, the doctrine of subrogation is 
that when one has been compelled to pay a debt which ought to have been paid 
by another, he is entitled to a cession of all the remedies which the creditor 
possessed against that other. To the creditor they may have been both equally 
liable; but if, as between themselves, there is a superior obligation resting upon 

50 one to pay the debt, the other, after paying it, may use the creditor's securities 
to obtain reimbursement. The doctrine does not depend upon privity; nor is it

In the Supreme
Court of New
South Wales

Common Law
Division

Commercial
List

No. 11

Reasons for
Judgement

His Honour
Mr. Justice
Sheppard



266

In the Supreme
Court of New
South Wales

Common Law
Division

Commercial
List

No. 1 I

Reasons for
Judgement

His Honour
Mr. Justice
Sheppard

confined to cases of suretyship. It is a mode which equity adopts, to compel 
the ultimate discharge of a debt by him who in equity and good conscience 
ought to pay it, and to relieve him whom none but the creditor could ask to 
pay. Although, as between debtor and creditor, the debt may be extinguished, 
yet, as between the person who has paid the debt and the other parties, the debt 
is kept alive, so far as may be necessary to preserve the securities. When the 
money due upon a debt is paid, this will operate as a discharge of the indebted­ 
ness, or in the nature of an assignment of it, subrogating him who pays it to 
the place of the creditor, as may best serve the purposes of justice and the just 
intent of the parties." 10 

I refer also to Ashburner, Principles of Equity, 2nd Ed. p. 243, Hanbury's Modern 
Equity, 9th Ed. p. 429 and Equity—Doctrines and Remedies, Meagher, Gummow 
and Lehane, paras. 901 et seq.

Having considered the principles so enunciated, I am at a loss to understand 
how they can be of assistance to the plaintiff. I recognise that it was intended that the 
two letters of credit should be, as I have earlier mentioned, back-to-back, that the 
plaintiff would not have been a party to the transaction if it had not been for the 
insistence of the S.E.C.V. that it be provided with a letter of credit issued by a local 
bank and that there are, because of the facts that I have mentioned, reasons why the 
plaintiff here may be said to be in a position analogous to that of a surety and thus 20 
entitled to call in its aid principles such as were successfully relied upon by the in- 
dorser of the bills of exchange in Duncan Fox.

But this is not a case where there is any available security. In some circumstances 
the letter of credit issued by the Boston Bank might have been regarded as a security 
but, for reasons already given, there will be no drawing under that letter of credit and 
no payment, therefore, by the Boston Bank. All that will happen is that First Leasing 
will discharge in the ordinary way the obligation which it has to P.I.A.L.

Of course it is correct to say, as I have already indicated, that here there is, in the 
words of Lord Selborne, L.C. in Duncan Fox, "a primary and a secondary liability 
of two persons (P.I.A.L. and the plaintiff) for one and the same debt, the debt being, 30 
as between the two, that of one of those persons only ... so that the other, if he should 
be compelled to pay it, would be entitled to reimbursement from the person by whom 
(as between the two) it ought to have been paid". There is no question that, as 
between the plaintiff and P.I.A.L., it is P.I.A.L. which ought to pay. It is not in 
contest that that is so. But unless there can be identified a security to the benefit of 
which the plaintiff can be said to be entitled, the plaintiff is no further forward; it has 
a right, but only as an unsecured creditor. I should add that when one contemplates a 
security in this situation one would, in the normal situation, expect it to be a security 
held by the creditor, namely, the S.E.C.V. It held no security other than the plaintiff's 
letter of credit pursuant to which it was paid out. Accordingly, tthe plaintiff's sub- 40 
mission based on Duncan Fox is rejected.

Counsel for the plaintiff relied additionally upon the decision of Wynn-Parry, J. 
in In re Miller, Gibb & Co. Limited (1957) 1 W.L.R. 703. His Lordship based his 
decision upon the well-known case of Castellain v. Preston (1883) L.R. 11 Q.B.D. 
380 from which he cited extensively. Castellain v. Preston is authority for the 
proposition that, as between an underwriter and an insured, the underwriter, having 
paid out the insured, is entitled to the advantage of all his rights, legal or equitable, 
in relation to the subject matter of the insurance. It is thus an application of the 
doctrine of subrogation. Miller, Gibb, however, goes a step further.

Although its facts are complex it is important that I indicate generally what 50 
they were. In 1951 the Exports Credits Guarantee Department of the Board of Trade
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issued a shipments policy of indemnity to a company which carried on the business of 
exporters. Under the terms of the policy the department guaranteed to pay to the 
exporter ninety per cent of the amount of any loss sustained in respect of goods sold 
and shipped from the United Kingdom to any buyer in the countries specified in the 
schedule thereto, which included Brazil, by reason of the operation of a law which, 
in circumstances outside the control of the exporter or of the buyer, prevented the 
transfer of payments from the buyer's country to the United Kingdom. The policy 
further provided that any sum recovered by the exporter or the department after the 
date at which the loss was ascertained should be divided between the department

10 and the exporter in the proportions of ninety and ten. in 1952 the company exported 
machinery to Brazil. The buyer made payment into a bank in Brazil but the transfer 
of this payment from Brazil to the United Kingdom was prevented by Brazilian 
currency exchange regulations. In 1953 the company made a claim against the 
department for ninety per cent of its loss which the department paid. The company 
was wound up in December, 1954. In January, 1956, the company's bankers received 
on its account the full purchase price in sterling from Brazil and the Board of Trade 
claimed ninety per cent thereof from the company. Wynn-Parry, J. held, upon the 
authority of Castellain v. Preston (supra), that it was entitled to be paid the sum 
claimed. At p. 710 his Lordship said that it followed necessarily to his mind that as

20 a result of the payment made by the department to the company in 1953 the depart­ 
ment, "by reason of the nature of the contract and not as a result of any extreme 
term in it, became subrogated to all the rights of the company". He added "There­ 
fore, if (which did not happen) the sterling sum in question had been received by 
the company, the company would thereupon have become trustees thereof for the 
department".

The situation in Miller, Gibb was one of double payment. The moneys to be 
received by the company were impressed with a trust in favour of the Board of Trade 
because the company had already received payment from the Board. Because of the 
finding that there was a trust there is, as I have said, more to the decision than an

30 application of the principles of subrogation. But the case, in my opinion, is distinguish­ 
able from the present. Here no question of any double payment is involved. The 
plaintiff, being in a position analogous to that of a surety, has discharged an in­ 
debtedness that is properly that of P.I.A.L. It is entitled to look to P.I.A.L. for 
payment. But it is not, in the absence of some contractual provision, entitled to have 
P.I.A.L. treated as a trustee of moneys it will receive in repayment of an indebted­ 
ness owed to P.I.A.L. in respect of an entirely separate, although commercially 
related transaction. As I have already said the plaintiff as a surety, or as a person 
in a position analogous thereto, is plainly entitled to payment by P.I.A.L. What I am 
unable to do is to take the further step, which is involved in the plaintiff's submission,

40 and treat the moneys to come to P.I.A.L. from First Leasing, as impressed with a 
trust, in the plaintiff's favour. Accordingly the plaintiff's submission based on Miller, 
Gibb is rejected.

Counsel for the plaintiff then relied upon cl. C of the requisition. That clause, 
as I have said, was not appropriate for the present transaction because it assumes 
that the letter of credit will be issued in connection with a sale of goods transaction. 
In such a case the plaintiff's customer effects payment of the price to be paid by him 
for the goods by procuring the issue by the plaintiff of a letter of credit in favour of 
the seller which is drawn upon by him. Normally the drawing will not be given effect 
to unless the seller hands over to the plaintiff or its agent the documents, including

50 documents of title, which are specified both in the requisition and letter of credit. In 
such a situation the opening words of the clause namely, "the Bank shall hold the
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above mentioned documents and goods as a continuing security by way of pledge 
. . ." have a clear field of operation. Counsel for the plaintiff submitted that I should 
not regard the clause, despite the inappropriateness of its language for present 
purposes, as having no effect in the present case. He submitted that the word "goods" 
should be read as "loan" and that the word "pledge" should be read as "charge". The 
loan to which he referred was the loan by P.I.A.L. to First Leasing. It is to be 
observed that the only loan referred to in the requisition is that mentioned in the 
early part of it as "the unpaid principal amount of loan made to P.I.A.L.". That is not 
the loan to which counsel for the plaintiff refers. It is further to be noted that in the 
requisition in question, that is the requisition dated 14th August, 1973, the words in 10 
brackets underneath the loan to which I have referred as being in the requisition are 
not crossed out. Those words are " 'Merchandise' or brief description of goods". 
Obviously the words in clause C, "the above mentioned documents and goods", were 
intended in a sale of goods transaction to refer to the goods described above the words 
in small print to which I have just referred. Consequently one cannot read clause C at 
all literally if one is to give effect to the submission made by counsel for the plaintiff. 
Such charge as the plaintiff has pursuant to clause C, if there be one at all, is, if the 
words of the requisition are read literally, a charge over the unpaid principal amount 
of the loan made by the S.E.C.V. to P.I.A.L. Reading the words literally will not 
therefore assist the plaintiff. Much more has to be done than merely changing the 20 
word "goods" into the word "loan" and the word "pledge" into the word "charge". 
Notwithstanding the fact that one will always endeavour, in construing a commercial 
document, to give it full force and effect, it becomes impossible in my opinion to do 
what the plaintiff asks the Court to do here without rewriting a printed clause in the 
plaintiff's own document. To the extent that the clause does not do for the plaintiff 
what it wishes it to do, one can only say that the problem is caused by the plaintiff 
selecting, for the purposes of the issue by it of its letter of credit, a printed form which 
was quite inappropriate for the purpose for which it was intended. The plaintiff's 
argument based upon clause C is therefore rejected.

Finally it was submitted that clause J of the requisition was effective to confer 30 
upon the plaintiff a proprietary interest in the moneys to be repaid by First Leasing to 
P.I.A.L. because the words of the clause constituted an equitable assignment of that 
indebtedness to the plaintiff by way of charge. Reliance was placed upon a long line 
of cases of which re Warren (1938) 1 Ch. 725 and In re Kent and Sussex Sawmills 
(1947) 1 Ch. 177 are examples. It is to be noted that in each of those cases the 
Judges construed the words in the documents which were submitted to constitute 
charges with a degree of strictness. I regret to say that I am unable to construe the 
words of clause J, notwithstanding that the condition of the operation of the clause is 
the default of P.I.A.L., as a charge or an equitable assignment of anything. Certainly 
it does not operate to create an equitable charge over, or an equitable assignment of, 40 
the moneys to be repaid to P.I.A.L. by First Leasing.

The plaintiff's submission that it hada proprietary interest in the moneys to be 
repaid by First Leasing to P.I.A.L. is therefore rejected. It follows that question (d) 
posed in the early part of this judgment should be answered in the negative.

One further submission remains to be dealt with. It is based upon the rule in ex 
parte James; re Condon (1874) L.R. 9 Ch. 609. In that case James, L.J. said at 
p. 614:

"I am of opinion that a trustee in bankruptcy is an officer of the Court. He has 
inquisitorial powers given him by the Court, and the Court regards him as its 
officer, and he is to hold money in his hands upon trust for its equitable dis- 50 
tribution among the creditors. The Court, then, finding that he has in his hands
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money which in equity belongs to some one else, ought to set an example to
the world by paying it to the person really entitled to it. In my opinion the
Court of Bankruptcy ought to be as honest as other people".

Of the rule Williams, J. in Downs Distributing Co. Pty. Limited v. Associated
Blue Star Stores Pty. Limited, 76 C.L.R. 463 at p. 482, said that it had been invoked
in many subsequent cases "on some occasions with, but more often without, success".
Williams, J. referred to In re Thellusson (1919) 2 K.B. 735 where at p. 764, Atkin,
L.J. (as he then was) said: "it can make no difference whether the trustee himself has
acquired the property by unworthy means, or whether there is vested in him by opera-

10 tion of law property which has been acquired by the debtor by unworthy means. If it
would be dishonourable of the debtor to use the money to pay his creditors, it is
equally dishonourable for the officer of the Court, knowing the full facts, to use the
money to pay his creditors".

After citing that passage Williams, J. continued:
"But the cases as a whole appear to show that it is only in exceptional cases 
that the rule would be applied where the officer or his predecessor in office 
has not been personally concerned in the transaction. In re Thellusson, (1919) 
2 K.B. 735 is an exceptional case. There a creditor who had agreed to lend 
the debtor money to pay a pressing debt paid the money into the bank account 

20 of the debtor in ignorance of the fact that a receiving order had been made 
against him. Out of the money paid in, the bank recouped itself for the amount 
of an overdraft leaving a balance in the account. The balance vested in the 
Official Receiver by operation of law. The money was paid into a bank 
account over which the Official Receiver had control, so that the payment 
was very much akin to a payment to him personally. In Re Gozzett (1936) 
1 All E.R. at 88, Lord Wright M.R. said that the payment was very 
analogous to a payment under mistake of fact and it was not therefore a 
matter of astonishment that the Court held that the rule should apply. In his 
judgment in In re Wigzell (1921) 2 K.B. at pp. 868, 869, Younger, L.J. set 

30 out the exceptional circumstances that existed in In re Thellusson (supra). He 
referred to the essential difference between applying the rule to 'a transaction 
initiated by the bankrupt himself, not presumably in every case a person of the 
highest commercial morality, and a transaction initiated either by the trustee 
or the Court'. ((1921) 2 K.B. at 869). He pointed out that in the case of 
transactions initiated by the bankrupt himself 'it is not obvious that a creditor 
with whom that transaction has been carried out and is complete, even one 
who in relation to it may have been tricked by the bankrupt, has any equity 
at all as against the other creditors of the same bankrupt, who may all have 
been equally tricked, merely because in his case the proceeds of the transaction 

40 can be traced amongst the bankrupt's assets, and in the other cases they cannot' 
((1921) 2 K.B. at pp. 869,870).
The trickery alleged in the present case is that the defendant was induced to 
give credit by the fraudulent representation of the agent of the plaintiff that 
there would be no difficulty whatsoever in paying for the goods, whereas the 
agent well knew that the plaintiff was insolvent and would be unable to pay 
for the goods. This is an allegation of fraud, and fraud should be strictly 
pleaded and proved. Fraud was not raised before Roper, C.J. in Eq., and it 
is apparent that on such an issue further evidence might have been tendered. 
But it is unnecessary to pursue the matter because the trickery, if any, was the 

50 trickery of the plaintiff whilst it was a going concern, and it was not trickery 
in which the liquidator was in any sense involved. It may be that some of the
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goods sold and delivered by the defendant to the plaintiff or their proceeds 
of sale could be traced into the possession of the liquidator, but the mere fact 
that the assets available for the unsecured creditors are thereby increased 
would not give the defendant any equity to be paid in full. A person who sells 
his goods on credit without security has only himself to thank if he finds him­ 
self an unsecured creditor on the bankruptcy of his debtor: Re Gozzett 
(supra). If as in the present case he takes a security too late he cannot 
complain of any hardship caused by the operation of the bankruptcy law: In 
re Hall, (1907) 1 K.B. 875; In re Wigzell (supra)."

Having given consideration to what was said by Williams, J. I have reached the 
conclusion that this is not a case where I should invoke, in the plaintiff's favour, the 
rule in ex parte James. I think it has a very limited operation and will usually only 
apply where the liquidator or trustee in bankruptcy as an officer of the Court has been 
guilty of some dishonourable or discreditable conduct. It will, as In re Thellusson 
shows, have some operation in other cases but these will be rare and certainly, before 
the rule can be successfully invoked by a creditor, there must be trickery of some kind. 
Here there is no trickery on the part of anyone. Certainly from the plaintiff's point 
of view the situation is an unfortunate one. Naturally one feels sympathy for it 
particularly when one bears in mind the circumstances in which it came to enter into 
the transaction. Nevertheless it charged a commission for its services and, although 
the amount of the letter of credit issued by it was substantial, the fee it charged would 
not appear to have been minimal. I do not think that one can say more than that the 
sympathy one feels for it is the sympathy one feels always for a person who un­ 
expectedly finds himself in the position of an unsecured creditor in the winding up 
of a company, the failure of which, at the time that the transaction in question was 
entered into, could not reasonably have been foreseen.

In the result I am of the opinion that the plaintiff has failed in respect of all the 
submissions which it has made. The defendants are entitled to judgment and to costs.

10

20
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ORDER GIVING CONDITIONAL LEAVE TO APPEAL TO HER MAJESTY IN 
COUNCIL

THE COURT ORDERS:—
1. That leave to appeal to Her Majesty in Council from the judgment of this 

Court be and the same is hereby granted to THE COMMERCIAL BANKING 
COMPANY OF SYDNEY LIMITED hereinafter called the Appellant UPON 
CONDITION that the Appellant do within three months from the date hereof, give 
security to the satisfaction of the Prothonotary in the amount of One thousand dollars

10 ($1,000) for the due prosecution of the said appeal and the payment of such costs as 
may become payable to the Respondents in the event of the Appellant not obtaining 
an order granting him final leave to appeal from the said judgment or of the appeal 
being dismissed for nonprosecution or of Her Majesty in Council ordering the 
Appellant to pay the Respondents costs of the said appeal, as the case may be, AND 
UPON FURTHER CONDITION the Appellant do within fourteen (14) days from 
the date hereof deposit with the Prothonotary the sum of Fifty dollars ($50) as 
security for and towards the costs of the preparation of the transcript record for the 
purposes of the said appeal AND UPON FURTHER CONDITION that the 
Appellant do within three months of the date hereof take out and proceed upon all

20 such appointments and take all such other steps as may be necessary for the purpose 
of settling the index to the said transcript record and enabling the Prothonotary to 
certify that the said index has been settled and that the conditions hereinbefore re­ 
ferred to have been duly performed AND UPON FURTHER CONDITION finally 
that the Appellant do obtain a final order of this Court granting it leave to appeal as 
aforesaid.

2. That the costs of all parties of this application and of the preparation of the 
said transcript record and of all other proceedings hereunder and of the said final 
order do follow the decision of Her Majesty's Privy Council with respect to the costs 
of the said appeal or do abide the result of the said appeal in case the same shall 

30 stand or be dismissed for non prosecution or be deemed so to be subject however 
to any orders that may be made by this Court up to and including the said final order 
or under any of the rules next hereinafter mentioned that is to say Rules 16, 17, 20 
and 21 of the rules of the 2nd day of April One thousand nine hundred and nine 
regulating appeals from this Court to Her Majesty in Council.

3. That the costs incurred in New South Wales payable under the terms here­ 
of were under any order of Her Majesty's Privy Council by any party to this appeal 
be taxed and paid to the party to whom the same shall be payable.

4. That so much of the said costs as become payable by the Appellant under this 
order or any subsequent order of the Court or any order made by Her Majesty in 

40 Council in relation to the said appeal may be paid out of any moneys paid into Court 
as such security as aforesaid so far as the same shall extend AND that after such 
payment out (if any) the balance (if any) of the said moneys be paid out of Court 
to the Appellant.

5. That each party is to be at liberty to restore this matter to the list upon giving 
two days notice thereof to each of the other parties for obtaining any necessary 
rectification of this order.
ORDERED: 27th August, 1976
ENTERED: 12th September, 1977

(Sgd.)G.Whalan(L.S.) 
50 Registrar

Court of Appeal.
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ORDER GIVING FINAL LEAVE TO APPEAL TO HER MAJESTY IN COUNCIL
THE COURT ORDERS that:—

1. That final leave to appeal to Her Majesty in council from so much of the 
judgment of this Court given by the Honourable lan Fitzhardinge Sheppard on 13th 
August 1976 as provided for judgment for the respondents Patrick Intermarine 
Acceptances Limited and Gavin Hosking and as ordered the Plaintiff to pay those 
defendants' costs be granted to The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited.

2. That upon payment by the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited 
of the costs of preparation of a transcript record and dispatch thereof to England the 
sum of Fifty dollars deposited in Court by The Commercial Banking Company of 
Sydney Limited as security for and towards the costs thereof be paid out of Court to 
The Commercial Banking Company of Sydney Limited.
ORDERED: 15th August, 1977 
ENTERED: 3rd November, 1977

Registrar.
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